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WE ARE AN ECONOMIC
ENTERPRISE WITH. ..

W relentless focus on growth.
aining to increase camings by
double digits an average

a glebal orientation. hut with
deep local 1oots in every market
where we operate.

a highly diversified base of
earnings that enables us to
prosper under difficult market
conditions.

capital employed in higher-
margin businesses, each one of
which is capable of profitable
growth on a stand-alone basis.

financial strength protected by
financial discipling, enabling
us to take risks commensurate
with rewards to capture attrac-
tive opportunities.

a close watch on our overhead
costs, but a willingness to
mvest prudently in our infra-
structure—we spend money
like ity our own.

a focus on technological
innovation, seamlessly deliv-
ering value to our customers
across multiple platforms.

WE VALUE A WORKPLACE
WHERE. ..

bureaucracy s discouraged.
entrepreneurial thinking ts fos.
tered and deciston-making is
streamlined by an “open-deor”
management style

diversity is embraced. parfienlarly
it light of our globaliry.

empleyees think and act Tike
owners because they ARE owners.

mistakes are tolerated, admitted
and addressed before they become
real problems.

people are promoted on their
merits rather than on their tenure,
and rewarded for their perform-
ance within the context of what
they can personally control or
influence.

people treat each other with
mutual respect and dignity.

people truly feel that. no matter
how large we grow, each and
every one of us can make a
difference.

WE VALUE PEOPLE WHO. ..

1ake the company personatly.
They care about each ot the

guality of our products and serv-
ices, and above all, their value o
awr custemers and shareholders.

are cornmitted to a strong work
ethic and are constantly striving to
excel in se1ving their customers,

are more interested in teamwork
than in internal politics

lead by example. giving credit to
¥ pie. gIVIng

others for success and assuming

personal responsibility for failure.

have a sense of urgency and
excitement, who demonstirate
candor, insight and creativity,
d[’ld (h“\’t” in an environment
of change. challenge and
competition.

are top performers and are com-
mitted to excellence in whatever
they do.

WE ASPIRE T0 BE
KNOWN AS...

Gcompany with the highest
standards «f moral and ethical
conduct—workmg to earn
client trust, day in and day
aut. Qur word is our hend.

the leader in glohal financial
services, with market leadership
in every one of our major activi-
ties, and une of the great
companics in the world.

a compaiy where the best
people want to work, and the
first choice of where customers
want to do business.

cus

omer centered, providing

unpatalleled levels of service as a
means of protecting and building
our business franchise over time.

an crganization with credibility
—doing what we say and report-
ing results with accuracy and
objectivity.

a company dedicated to
community service, taking a
leadership role in every local
community around the world in
which we eperate, and making
each community a better place
because we are there.
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CITIGROUP

in Millions of Dellars 2001 2000 Y% Change
ADJUSTED REVENUE $83,625 $77.694 8
) SEGMENT INCOME

GLOBAL CONSUMER
Banking/Aending 4,217 3,390 24
Insurance 720 799 am
Western Furope 483 384 26
Japan 928 729 27
Emerging Markets 1.166 Q06 29
e-Consumer/Consumer Other 41 48) @040 27
TOTAL GLGBAL CONSUMER 7.366 6.004 23
GLOBAL CORPORATE
Corporate & Investment Bank 3.500 3,670 &3]
Ferzing Markets Corporate Banking and

Global Transaction Services 1644 1,403 17
Comamercial Lines Insurance 691 1,093 37
TGTAL GLOBAL CORPORATE 5.844 6.166 %
GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING
Travelers Life & Annuity 821 777 6
The Citigroup Private Bank 378 323 17
Citigtoup Asset Management 336 3435 3)
TOTAL GLOBAL INVESTMENT

MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING 1,535 1445 6
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES (A) $30 1.383 62)
CORPGRATE/OTHER (706} (858) it
CORE INCOME 14,569 14,140 3
Restructuring and Merger-Related ems—After Tax (28%) (621 4
Income Before Cumnlative Effect of Accounting Changes 814,284 $13,510 6
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes (B) (1$8) - -
NET INCOME $14,126 813,519 4
RETURN ON COMMON EQUITY {CORE INCOME) 20.4% 23.8% -

{A) tncludes the Company’s venture capital activities, the realized investient gains and losses 1clated to
certain corperate- and mswrance-relates! investments, and the results of certain lvestments in countries that
refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady Plan or plans of & similar nature, (B) Accounting Changes refer to the
adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instrunients
and Hedging Activities” as amended and the adoption of FITF issue 99-20 Recogpition of Interest Incomne
and Topairment on Purchased and Retained Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets.”

Financial Highlights

1| CITIGROUP 2001 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS,

IN 2001, CTIGROUP SOLIDIFIED 1TS POSITION AS ONE OF THE MOST SUCGESSFUL FINANCIAL

SERVICES COMPANIES IN THE WORLD, OUTPERFORMING AND LEADING THE FIELD IN THE
MOST PROFITABLE AND ATTRACTIVE GROWTH AREAS. WE REGISTERED DOUBLE-DIGIT

INCREASES ACROSS MANY LINES OF BLISINESS, AND A 20 PERCENT RETURN ON EQUITY.

While these resatlts wre @ testament o the intelligence, creativity and commitment of our
268.000 employees across more than 100 countries, they also say something about our
coming of age as a company. Over the past three years, we have described Citigroup as
a work in progress, a new model of financial services organization that we were building
to serve our chients’ financial needs and deliver value for cur shareholders.

Today, we can say without hesitation that the model is working,

We are now completely focused on our strategic aspiration—to establish trusted relation-
ships with consumers, corporations, institutions and governments as we continue {o

deliver the full spectrum of financial services across our multiple distribution channels.

OPP006360



2001: A YEAR OF UNPRECEDENTED
CHALLENGES

2001 was an extraordinary year. We
saw o world transformed lrom pros-
perity and peace to economic turmoil
and war. We experienced the first
synchronized global economic slow-
down in decades. We saw the
ecanomy of Argentina collapse and
witnessed the largest corporate bank-
ruptey in history And in the U.S.
amid an environment of weakening
corporate credit and falling stock
markets, the September 11 attack took
thousands of lives even as it struck
hard at the financial markets, causing
mere than $30 billion of damage to
the insurance industry alone.

Elespite these considerable challenges,
Citigroup continued to grow in 2001
We achieved record core income of
$14.6 billion, making us ence again
one of the world’s most profitable
companies. Our revenues rose eight
percent. while expenses increased
only four percent. and our core diluted
earnings per share were up three
percent. We also completed multiple
acquisitions int key markets. At the
same time, we received credit rating
upgrades from Standard & Poors

and Moodys.

What allowed us te operate success-
fully in this difficull environment was
our unique business model-—the first
of its kind in eur industry. Citigroup
brings tagether an incredible diversity
ol products and services...multiple
distribution channels...a powerful
brand. ..the largest global footprint

of any financial services firtn.. capital
strengrh that enables us not only to
ride out econemic storms but also

to seize opportunities. .. acquisitions
expertise and expense management
discipline...all built on a foundation

of recurring and predictable carnings.

“CITIGROUP HAS PROVEN THE BENEFITS OF ITS
EXTRAORDINARY DIVERSIFICATION IN A DIFFICULT
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT.”

—STANDARD & POOR'S, SEPTEMBER 2001

There is one other important reason
for our success: more than two-thirds
of our employees are awners of
Citigroup. which offers them an addi-
tional opportunity to participate in
our company’s success. When employ-
ees think and act like owners, their
interests are aligned with those of their
fellow shareholders and our clients are
served well.

Our achievements received important
recognition when Citigroup, for the
first time, was named one of America’s
10 Most Admired Companies by
Fortute magazine and ranked number
one in our industry category. I'm
especially proud that, of the top 10
companies, not only did Citigroup
bring the fourth-highest return to
shareholders over the past five years,
but we were also rated the very best

long-term investment value.

While we have experienced success,

a grear deal of work lies ahead. What
we can say. however, is that cur brand
is becoming synonymous with growth,
stability. innovation and shareholder
value, and that we have been recog-
nized as a safe haven for millions of
new customers around the world in

these uncertain times.

SEPTEMBER 11

We will never forget the terrorist
attack that took thousands of lives
on September 11, including six of
cur own people. We dedicate this
annual report Lo their memory.

The third building to collapse that
day was 7 World Trade Center, home

to 2,300 Citigroup employees from

Salomon Smith Barney and Citigroup
Asset Management. [n total, we had o
evacuate 16,000 people from a dozen
sites in lower Manhattan. Nevertheless,
our company continued to function

with minimal disruption.

We were conducting business imme-
diately—resuming trading when the
bond market reopened and again
when the bell sounded at the New
York Stock Exchange. Our Travelers
catastrophe-response vans arrived
just a few blocks from Ground Zero
on September 12, processing claims
and approving overdraft limits for

people hit hard by the tragedy.

Many of our ewn people were also
hit hard by the tragedy, huving lost
farily and friends, yet they contin-
ued to perform their duties under
very difficult circumstances.

My heartfelt thanks and admiration
go to them and to our Disaster
Recovery team, under the leadership
of Bob Druskin and Frank Bisignano.
They were called inte action within
minutes of the disaster and made it
possible for us to continue working
on hehalf of our clients, our share-
holders and our markets.

With the human side of this tragedy
UprﬂﬂQ‘e[ m our mmds, we crea\ed
the Citigroup Reliel Fund on Sep-
tember 14 with an initial grant of
$15 million to provide college schol-
arships for the most innocent vietims
of ali—the children of these who died
or were permanently disabled. Since
that day, the Fund has received an
additional $4.5 million from our
shareholders, clients and employees.

3| CITIGROUP 2001 LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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as well as individuals and organiza-

tions from many other countries.

We are very grateful for your generos-
ity and, like you, we hope that these
funds can in some small way help
secure a better future for the families

who lost so much on September 11.

2001: A YEAR OF SOLID ACHIEVEMENTS
Despite the shadow cast over 2001
by September 11 and the global eca-
nomic downturn during the course of
the year, Citigroup continued to build

on its strengths.

» We acquired Banamex, Mexico’s
most profitable bank, making us the
leading financial services provider in
that country. This deal, which was the

markets during a period of attractive
market valuations and consolidation
in the insurance industry.

» We continued to make strong
progress toward $1 billion in expense
savings—before reinvestment-—before
the end of 2002, by leveraging tech-
nology and hest operational practices

across Citigroup.

a We acquired European American
Bank, strengthening vur footheld
in the important consumer. small
business and middle markets in the
Northeast U.S.

» We made additional prudent invest-
ments in the Internet. Our alliances
with AOL Time Warner and Microsolt

“WE CELEBRATE 100 YEARS OF SERVING THE FINANCIAL
NEEDS OF THE PEOPLE OF ASIA AND THE UNITED

KINGDOM.”

largest financial services investment
ever in Mexico. adds considerable
distribution strength to our Emerging
Markets {ranchise. and brings more
than 1,500 branches and 4,200 ATMs
throughout Mexico.

w We completed the integration of
Associates, which has not only
resulted in betier-than-forecast cost
savings and strong revenue returns

in the LLS., but has also positioned us
1o become a major force in consumer
finance markets overseas, particularly
n Japan.

» We announced our plan to spin oft
our property and casualty business in
2002 to enable our company to focus
its resources more fully on higher-
growth areas of financial services,
while giving Travelers Property
Casually greater headroom to grow
through capital-raising in the public

have made us the preferred payment
product on the Internet. And we
nearly doubled our online consumer

accounts to 15 million.

a Despite the ditficult economic envi-
ronment. we are also continuing to
make significant investmenis in our
own technology infrastructure and
applications that will keep us in the
forefront of client services globally.
For example, CitiDirect® Online
Banking. our Web-based transaction
banking platform for corporate and
financial institution clients, is now
available in 12 languages and pro-
vides access to our branches in 85
countries, a significant expansion
over last year. And our interactive
Web sites for individual investors,
SSB Accesse, and corporate benefits
clients, Benefits Accesse, surpassed
a combined total of four million

accounts online.

2001 marked one more important
step toward realizing our vision for
Citigroup: cross-marketing initiatives
led to enormous henetits tor our
custorners and shareholders. Today,
we derive more than $12 billion in
revenue from cross-marketing pro-
grams—an increase of five percent
over 2000. We are taking measures
to ensure that this important earn-
ings-generating trend will continue
in 2002 and beyond.

POSITIONED FOR THE FUTURE

While | am extremely proud of our
achievements, 'm humbled by the
enormous possibilities that await us
globally. Over the next several years,
the hnancial services industry will be
marked by continuing consolidation.
glohalization and the convergence of
what were once distinct businesses.
Technology will play an ever more
aritical role in ncreasing productiviry
and containing expenses.

We helieve Citigroup has many

core advantages that uniquely distin-
guish us from other financial services
firms, and position us for continued

success in this environment:

1. Globality: While many talk about
globality, we define it. No other
financial firm can match our preserce
in more than 100 countries—some
for more than a century. Qur global
opportunities are extraordinary,
particularly in the fastest growing
markets of the world-—the emerging
markets—where we generate move
profits than any other financial
services company.

2. Diversified business portfolio:

We have played a lead role in defin-
ing the conicept of a fully diversified
financial services firm. As 2001 illus-

trated. our diversification can help

A} CITIGROUP 2001 LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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reduce carnings volatility. thus
increasing our protection from
economic downturns and other

unfavorable market conditions.

3. Capital strength: With the mest
equity capital of any financial services
firm, at $88 billion (including trust
preferred securities), we maintain
control over our strategic destiny,
positioning us to withstand difficult
conditions and take full advartage

of opportunities.

4. Acquisitions expertise: By virtue
of our tightly managed and well-
hened acquisition processes, we
have become an acquiter of choice
and often enjoy the first look at
the most attractive assets. This is
a critical advantage in an industry

undergoing significant consolidation.

5. Multi-channel distribution: We
have built distribution channels to
every consumer wealth segment—
from consurer Anance branches,
retail banking branches and the
Internet, to life insurance agents,
Financial Consultants and private
bankers. Having a world-class invest-
ment bank and commercial bank
under one roof has enabled us to
provide greater value for our
customers. In a world where value
is Tﬂ]gl'j«]”’ﬂg fmm mmmfa(“mring

to distribution, and where open
architecture is becoming mainstrean,
our strategy has positioned us favor-
ably for marketing multiple services

to customers around the wor.d

6. Financial controls: The strong
financial controls we have in place

in managing each of our businesses
have allowed us to provide fall and
accurate reporing te onr shareholders.
We continue to manage risk carefully
and achieve profitability by running
our businesses well rather than by

leveraging our balance sheet.

7. Fxpense discipline and operarional
efficiency: Keeping a tight lid on costs
is an unshakable part of our corporate
culture and, as our experience in the
past year demaonstrated, enables
Citigroup to manage profitably
through all kinds of business cycles.
This operational flexibility allowed

us to initiate a number of efficiency-
focused projects that, in 2001, cut our
expenses by $600 million—a key
contributor to our performance at the
bottorn of the market cycle. We antici-

pate additional reductions in 2002.

OUR OPPORTUNITY

Qur greatest opportunity is te
increase share in certain strategic
markets in which we operate. Given
the growth rates in many of these
economies, and our unigque advan-
tages listed above, we believe that
we can increase our market share and
earnings significantly over the coming
years. Our objective is to have annual
double-digit earnings growth, on

average. across business C)’CLCS.

We will achieve that by continuing to
attract, develop and retain the most
jalented employees available, and hy
fostering an entrepreneurial culture
that allows employees of all back-
grounds to flourish individually as
they work on our team.

NEW CITIGROUP PRESIDENT NAMED

We began 2002 with another impor-
tant milestore for our company:

the naming of Bob Willwmstad as
President of Citigroup. Bob’s leadership
of our consumer business—where he
was very successful in integrating
acquisitions, building our franchises
from within, exporting our consumer
finance mode! into the untapped inter-
national markets and keeping expenses
under control—has contributed signif-

icantly to our earnings and moved us

toward true leadership in global
consumer finance. Bob% new role,
in addition to his current position as
Chairman and CEO of the Consumer
Group, will enable us to leverage his
talents even further as we grow our
company in the years ahead.

A NOTE OF APPRECIATION

My since e appreciation goes Lo niy
fellow directors for an outstanding
job in 2001, We came through a
tough year and emerged more unified
than ever, with a strong sense of pur-
pose about where we want to take

our company in the years ahead.

For Citigroup, 2002 marks a special
anniversary: we celebrate L0Q years
of serving the financial needs of the
people of Asia and the United
Kingdorm. We'te very proud of our
achievements in these markets and
the role we played in some of their
landmark financial events of the 20th
century. We eagetly look forward to
the next 10O years.

Let me close with a special word to
our employees. No cne could have
predicted the kind of year 2001 turned
out to be. But your enormous talent
and commitient o do whal’s right
for our customers and shaveholders
give me tremendeus confidence in
our continued success, no matter
what challenges may arise in the
years ahead. Thank you for making

Citigroug: the great company that it is.
\

Sandy Weill

51 CITIGROUP 2001 LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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DEAR CITIGROUP SHAREHOLDER,

N THE TWO YEARS THAT | HAVE BEEN AT CITIGROUP. THE PEOPLE OF THIS COMPANY HAVE

MADE GREAT PROGRESS iN TRANSFORMING TS CONSTHUENE PARTS INTO A SOUND AND

SUCCESSFLL ORGANIZATION WITH A BROAD PRODUCT SCOPE AND LOCAL OPERATIONS IN

MORE THAN 100 COUNTRIES.

This immense accomplishment has provided great value Lo our consumer

custemers, our corporate clients and investors by providing products. services
and ghebal capacity relevant te our clients needs. all within ene organization.
Citigroup, already the worlds largest financial institution, is in many ways the

worlds leading financial institution,

This ability to serve our chents is manifested n the work thar our clients ask us
10 do. day i and day cur. The effectiveness of Citigroup’s combination of great
financial strength and broad product as well as geographical scope also provides
an opportunity for oustanding professionals ro move fully realize their potential.
Qur highest priority, in sceking to serve our clients and provide sharcholder
value. is to focus with great intensity on attracting outstanding people to
Citigroup and providing them with a rewarding and {ulfilling environment.
Having said that, greal institutions are always works in progress because only

through a dynamic commitment 10 moving ahead strategically can an organiza-

ficn remain SHL‘C(‘SS(U]

a1l within the context of an unchanging set of underlying
values. A great deal has been accomplished at Citigroup. but much remains to be
dene 1o realize the immense potential of this organization. This will always be
true. When the challenges of today have heen met. there will be new issues, new
opportunities and new problems. Our dynamic commitment to change will best
ensure that we meet the needs of our customers, provide fulfillment for our
people and create shateholder value,

6! CITIGROUP 2001 LETTER TO SHAREHOQLDERS
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2001 was an especially siressful year, for the global community and for our
company. The terrorist attack on September 11 was a great tragedy, and beth
that attack and the continued softening of the global economy posed huge
challenges to Citigroup. Our people successtully met these challenges through
exiraordinary effort, maintaining our operations under difficult conditions in the
immediate aftermath of September 11, and producing strong financial results for
the year.

In the years ahead, globalization, the spread of market-based economics and new
technologies will continue to present great opportunities in the developed and
emerging markets. But the challenges will also be grear, both to policymakers and
Lo each of us as participants in the global econory. No one knows what eco-
nomic conditions will be like over this year or in the longer run; but | think our
strategy of dynamically seeking opportunities to build our businesses, combined
with intense expense discipline and a sound balance sheet. is the right approach
to weathering difficult times when they occur and, at the same time, realizing
what 1 believe is the immense potential over time for the global economy and
for Citigroup.

Though we can look back with great satistaction at all that Citigroup has accorm-
plished for the benefit of its customers. employees and shareholders over the
past few years, | believe equally that there is ahsolutely no room for even one
moment of complacency. All of our activities are highly competitive, and the
global economic environment will always be challenging, in good times and in
difficult times. Thus, we must remain committed Lo constant improvement and
change in all of our activities, while adhering Le unchanging values. This view is

widely shared at Citigreup—in fact, it is central to the culture of our company.

[ have continued to focus on working with Sandy and members of the
Management Commitlee on stralegic and managerial issues, acling as a sounding
board for others in all our businesses, and working with clients. As my experi-
ence here grows, so tco does my great respect for what has been accomplished
and my strong belief in the immense potential of Citigroup to serve our
customets, provide opportanity for eur people and ¢reate value lor our share-
holders. 1| look forward to working with Sandy, the management team and the
people of Citigreup for a fong time to come, in cur joint undertaking to build a
truly extraordinary institution.

TS N

Robert E. Rubin

7l ciTiGROUP 2001 LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
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CITIGROUP NEARLY
DOUBLED ITS NUMBER OF
ONLINE CUSTOMERS TO
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CONSUMER GROUP

DESPITE A DIFFICULT ECONOMY, THE CONSUMER GROUP WAS A POWERFUL ENGINE OF GROWTH

FOR CITIGROUP IN 2001, WITH CONSISTENT AND STRONG PERFORMANCES ACROSS THE

BOARD, WE REINFORCED THAT A RELENTLESS FOCUS ON THE CONSUMER EXPERIENCE IS THE

BEST MEANS NOT ONLY TO SATISFY FINANCIAL NEEDS, BUT T0 BUILD SHAREHOLDER VALUE

AND CONTINUE TO EXPAND THE BUSINESS INTO A TRULY DYNAMIC GLOBAL FRANCHISE.

Our results in 2001 further vali-
dated our business model—that
is, a balanced business strategy
focusing on revenue gains and
productivity enhancements,
organic growth as well as growth
by acquisition, strict expense dis-
cipl'me, and maintaining and
enhancing our market leadership

in key business segments.

This strategy—which has been
the foundation of the Consumer
Group’s success in recent years—
has propelled us Lo the Lop in
every business. We are a provider
of more product and service
choices to our customers than
our cempetitors, a low-cost pro-
ducer and, ultimately, a leading
player in the continued consoli-
dation of the financial services
industry.

BEST IN CLASS

The Consumer Group is
Citigroup’s most diverse collection
of businesses, and the majority of

them reported exceptionally

strong results in 2001, Two
outstanding examples are
CitiFinancial and our U.5.
Citi* Cards operations.

CitiFinancial—-which new

has the largest consumer finance
operation in North America with
some 2,200 hranches—continues
to have a customer satisfaction
rating of nearly 90 percent. The
business also was among the
lowest-cost providers in the con-
sumer finance industry in 2001,
with expenses at only 3.4 percent

of receivables

Citigroup’ cards business is the
worlds largest provider of credit
cards. In the U.S., the business
has grown significantly over the
last three years, at a rate estimated

at 1.4 times the industry average.

We strengthened the franchise
significantly by leveraging our
vast product array and [ocusing
extensively on providing superior

9| CITIGROUP 2001 CONSUMER GROUP

customer service. This, in turn,
led to enhanced satistaction lev-
els, deeper customer relationships
and greater retention—all leading

to increased wallet share.

CITIGROUP BUSINESS MODEL

A halimark of the Consumer
Group has been the ability to
“export” a business model to
other businesses abroad. As
Citigroup moves further into
the huge, untapped international
consumer [inance markets, this
core competency will play a sig-
nificant role in our growth, given
the fact that these markets are
less mature and offer enormous
opportunity going forward. Qur
existing global platform has put

the franchise in a strong position.

We have demonstrated the ability
of our Consumer franchise to
acquite large companies such as
Associates, leverage them and
grow significantly. We are now
among the top five companies in
the consumer finance industry in
Japan, compared to 1997 when
we had no significant consumer

finance presence there.

And consumer finance means
much more than lending.

Primerica, which celebrates

OPP006367



- an: e

in 1902, we opened the first branch
of any American bank in Shanghai.

its 25th anniversary in 2002,
continues to be a strong distribu-
tion channel domestically for
Citigroup products. We will
export the Primerica business

model 1o other countries in 2002

The [act that our business madel
is flexible and easily adaptable has
bCCn an enormous com Pt‘l.l“\e
advantage. An example is the
acquisition of European American
Bank ([AB), a highly successful
branch banking operation serving
New York City and adjacent Long
Island. Our defined business
model helped to integrate EAB nto
the Citibanking operation, setting
the stage {or future expanston.

Citipro®, our unigue banking
financial-needs analysis program,
has become embedded in the
Citibank Financial Center sales
process as we offer investments,
insurance, debt management
and basic cash management
services to our clients. Citipro
also proved to be a valuable tool
in the integration of the EAB into
the Citibanking culture.

LEADER IN INNOVATION

fo maintain cur leadership on
the Internet, we cantinue to
invest in online services. We

nearly doubled our online

T00YEARS IN ASIA & UK.

102:

the percentage increase
of Citibank's home
equity business

consumer accounts to 15 million and have become the preferred pay-
ment provider on the net through alliances with America Online and
Microsoft. Citibank® Online, which debuted in 2000, is now fully inte-
grated into the business and provides users with unprecedented
information and access, allowing them to deepen their relationships

with Citigroup.

We use the Internet to provide expanded services to our customers and
greater efliciencies for our organization. And it’s working. In our private
student loan business, approximately 70 percent of the business—or
$1 billion—was generated and processed online. CitiMortgage closed
its first paperless “e-Mortgages” in the fourth quarter. And CitiFinancial

continues to increase its Internet presence.

IAPAN

The Citibank Consumer business in Japan grew substantially in 2001
and benefited from a full year of expense savings at Diners Japan.
Growth was reported across all product categories, and we anticipate it
will continue in 2002 as we look to expand our cards, revolving credit
and investment products, as well as build the banking business by
focusing on expanded distribution channels, including remote banking.
In addition, as the regulatory environment changes in Japan, we expect
the business to bernefit as consumers look to Cltigroup as the safe and
trusted company with which to do their business.

WESTERN EUROPE

Consumer Western Europe reported core income up 26 percent in
2001, mainly reflecting growth in the consumer finance, branch fending
and credit card businesses, particularly in Germany. the UK., Spain and
ltaly. Revenues and assets in the region grew seven percent during the
year, even alter the sale of several Diners Club franchises. Core income
growth was supported by strong expense and credit management, which
i« reflected in the net credit loss ratio of 1.88 percent in 2001 versus 205
percent in 2000.

The consumer business in Western Europe continues to gain selective

market share in loans and cards, specifically in Germany, Belgium, the

10]CITIGROUP 2001 CONSUMER GROUP
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U.K. and Spain. In all European markets, we im proved our advisory-based
investments program, adding market share of net retail investment flows in

most markets, notwithstanding uniformly weak equity market conditions.

The business also successfully managed the changeover to the euro

currency for our customers in the Eurozone without any major issues.

LIVE RICHLY"

In 2001, we intreduced new branding. The Citi hrand became even
more recognized through our Live Richly ad campaigo, with its non-
traditional approach. The philosophy behind the brand platform—that
Citi advocates a healthy approach to money—has resonated with con-
sumers and helped generate positive results. For example, after just
twa months of advertising about Citipro, we experienced a 73 percent
increase in the sales of products using Citipro over a four-month
period. Moreover, because the Citi brand is used across the Consumer

Group businesses, the advertising has created a broad impact.

CONCLUSION

During 2001, our consumer businesses demonstrated the importance
of *predictable and recurring earnings” to Citigroup’s value proposition.
In a difficult global economic environment, most of these businesses still
sustained double-digit growth rates. Although expense control—one of
our core competencies—was a key factor, revenues in a number of
these businesses registered double-digit growth over 2000, offsetting a

higher level of credit losses related to the slowing of the global economy.

Importantly, every husiness within the Cansumer Group is either
the leader or near the top of its class In the primary areas of cards,
consumer finance and banking, the businesses maintain distinct
competitive advantages:

» Jow-cost producers with superior credit management,

w exportable business models with superior acquisition capabilities,

a a strong brand

111 CITIGROUP 2001 CONSUMER GROUP

As a result, we anticipate that our

consumer businesses will main-
tain the momentum they built in
2001 and continue to strengthen
their market positions to take
advantage of the huge global

opportunities that await.
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CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANK

WITH FLAT EARNINGS iN 2001 DURING THE TOUGHEST BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT IN A DECADE,

CITIGROUP'S CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANK (CIB) OUTPERFORMED COMPETITORS, WHOSE

EARNINGS WERE DOWN DRAMATICALLY.

GLOBAL FINANCE

The reason for this superior result
is the unique business model we
have implemented successfully
over the last three years. With the
mergers of Salomon and Smith
Barney, Citibank and Salomon
Smith Barney (SSB), the formation
of Nikko Salomon Smith Barney
and the acquisition of Schroders,
today we have leading-edge capa-
hilities in every part of the globe
for every fmancial services product
that corporations, governments

and institutional investors need.

By combining world-class invest-
ment banking services through
s$B and world-class commercial
banking through Citibank, we
provide unique value propositions
to our clients. As a result, invest-
ment banking revenue {rom our
target client base rose 15 percent.
Due to this success in serving our
clients, 2001 was a year of impor-

tant “firsts” for us:

» We became Lhe leading global
underwriter in combined equity
and debt for the first time, With

12 percent market share, we
raised some $487 hillion for our
clents, a 37 percent increase over
the prior year. We also ranked
Arst in disclosed fees at $2.4 bil-
lion, up 17 percent over 2000.

a We hecame the leading global
investment banking firm as

measured by revenue.

» We became the number-one
global fixed-income underwriter
with record new-issue volume,
earning International Financing
Review’s Global Bond House ol
the Year award. In addition, our
firm was again voted number one
in the Institutional Investor Fixed

Income Trading Survey.

» We maintained our first place
positioning in many other areas,
such as municipal finance, foreign

exchange and project finance.

 Qur equity research ranked
number one in the Institutional
Investor All-America Research
poll. Coupled with a number-two
showing in Europe, our research
platform is becoming a global
leader.

We also made tremendous
progress in developing other
important areas of our business.
For example, our global market
share in equity underwriting
jumped [rom 8 percent te 12 per-
cent, with an overall third-place
ranking. In M&A, our share of
completed deals globally rose

from 17 to 22 percent.

Our success touched all regions.
In Japan, Nikke Salomon Smith
Barney again dominated the
cquity markets, being named the
number-one equity bookrunner,
and increasing our lead market
share over last year [rom 32 per-
cent Lo 36 percent. In Europe,
Schroder Salomon Smith Barney
continued to build its franchise,
becoming the number-two under-
writer in the Furopean bond
markets and number-one in
European securitization as well as
in completed M&A in the UK.

In Latin America, we earned
top-three rankings in the debt,
equity, syndicated loans and
M&rA league tables, and were
named Regional Bank of the Year
by Latin Firance. In the U5,
we topped the league tables for
investment grade bonds with a
22 percent market share, while
our share of the market in
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$10 note of local currency issued in Tientsin,
July 1, 1918 by the International Banking
Corporation/National City Bank.

convertibles more than doubled
to 15 percent, and our equities
market position rose to third with
a 14 percent share. Also in the
U.5., we were again the years
leader of municipal debt under-
writing, and in Asia, the CIB was
named International Financial
Review (IFR} Asias Bank of the
Year, winning recognition for the
quality and professionalism ol its
various businesses in virtually

every country in the region

‘The CIB was involved in many
of the years key transactions. In
the U.S., we jointly led the Kraft
Foods Initial Public Offering, the
largest of the year, which was
voted U.S. Equity Issue of the
Year by IFR. We also lead man-
aged the majority of the year’s
jumbo bond deals, including
those for AOL Time Warner,
DaimlerChrysler and Kellogg. We
were instrumental in many other
award-winning {inancings, includ-
inyg Lucent and Rite Aid. We led
Furope’s 1PO of the Year,a 2.4
hillion euro offering for Spaink
Inditex. In Asia, Citigroup under-
wrote SingTels US$2 3 billion
equivalent global bond offering,
the largest non-Japanese Asian
corporate bond issuance in

history. In Latin America, we

TOOYEARS IN ASIA & UK.

88:

percentage of the Fortune 50
doing business with our
Corporate & Investment Bank

co-lead-managed Brazil's $2.15 billion par-lor-par debt exchange,
which was named Sovereign Liability Management Deal of the Year
by Latin Finance.

Strong expense discipline was another reason for the CIB% industry-
teading performance this year, and for our achieving profits significantly
greater than those of our competitors. By initiating a program of
aggressive expense reductions early in the year, well ahead of competi-
tors, we reduced our quarterly expenses by 19 percent from their peak in

the first quarter Tnday, we are the low-cost competitor in our industry.

No review of the year would be complete without mentioning
September 11 and the unspeakable human and material devastation.
Sadly, and most importantly, one of our CIB employees remains unac-
counted for. Given the location of the CIB% global headquarters—just
blocks from the World Trade Center—and the significant number of
CIB staff displaced by the collapse of 7 World Trade Center, the dis-
ruption was enormous, but the emotional and business support we
received from colleagues and clients around the globe was heyond

anything we could have imagined.

To the credit of those who developed and implemented our disaster
recovery plan, its depth and quality addressed our immediate needs as
an orgamzation. Qur extensive communication and array of counseling
programs sought to address the needs of our employees, virtually all of
whom were touched in some way by this tragedy. As the financial mar-
kets reopened after September 11, the CIB was a leading participant,
providing back up lines of credit to our clients the next day and even

handling record single-day volume on the resumption of equity trading.

PRIVATE CLIENT GROUP

Despite challenging markel conditions, the Private Client Group (PCG)
continued to distinguish itself in 2001 as a world-class leader in delivering
wealth management and financial planning services to high-net-worth
private investors, smali- to mid-sized businesses, non-proflt organizations
and family foundations.
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The PCGYs commitment to delivering superior value to clients was
evidenced by the development of new client refationships and the expan-
sion of others, resulting in more than $40 billion in net new money for
2001 In a year that reinforced the value of professional and personalized
advice, the firm selectively increased the number of Financial Consultants
by nearly 600 to a record 12,927 by year-end.

For the year. the PCG continued its leadership in fee-based financial
services, which now comprise 49 percent of total revenues. The division
also maintained industry-leading profit margins of 21 percent, reflecting
the productivity of its financial professionals and disciplined cost man-

agement in all market conditions.

The PCG sharpened its focus on client-friendly technotogy, adding the
e-delivery of client statements and prospectuses o its roster of Web
offerings for individual investors. Also reaching new highs in 2001,
PCGs Web sites for individual investors and corporate benefits clients

surpassed a combined total of four miflion chient accounts online

Our Financial Consultants continued to leverage access to the resources
of Citigroup on behalf of their clients. In fact, they assisted clients with
a record $3 billion in loans and mortgages during the year—a billion
dollars more than last year.

CITICAPITAL

In 2001, CitiCapital, the commercial {inance business of Citigroup,
continued integrating acquisitions into its operations, most notably
Associates Commercial Finance and the leasing businesses of the
European American Bank. As the second-largest V.S -based leasing com-
pany, CitiCapital serves equipment manufacturers, as well as dealers and
buyers ol transportation equipment, material handling and construction
equipment, and business technology and medical equipment. 1t is also a

leading provider of master leasing programs to large corporations.
8 5 35

With several significant mergers and acquisitions behind it, CitiCapital
has grown in less than two years from almost $& billion in managed
receivables to nearly $35 billion. Profitability in 2001 was affected

by particularly difficult market

conditions in the transportation
market and the costs of integrat-
ing many diverse operations. The
ongoing priorities are to refine
the focus of the overall business,
enhance and integrate operational

controls and improve profuability.

COMMERCIAL LINES

Despite the economic difficuities of 2001
and a decade of falling rates, Travelers
Commercial Lines — the third-largest
provider of insurance to businesses, insti-
tutions and government — emerged a
strong, well-capitalized and profitable
business. As the rate environment began
to improve last year, Travelers’ financial
strength enabled us to use technology to
reinforce our ties with the independent
agent and broker community through which
all our products and services are sold.
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EMERGING MARKETS

WITH A PRESENCE IN 80 COUNTRIES IN ASIA, LATIN AMERICA, CENTRAL AND EASTERN EUROPE,

THE MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA, CITIGROUP, PRINGIPALLY THROUGH CITIBANK, HAS A UNIQUE

FRANGHISE IN THE EMERGING MARKETS OF THE WORLD.

In 2001, this franchise achieved
enormous success, recording
significant earnings growth,
increasing our market share,

and building our client base as cus-
tomers turned to Citibank, seeking
the kind of quality products and
services few others can offer in
the emerging markets, along with
the stability we provide.

Against the backdrop of unstable
economies in many emerging-
market countries and global
political turmoil, 2001 was a
solid year for our franchise and
one in which we built momen-
tumn for 2002 and beyond. We
earned $2.8 billion in core
income, up 22 percent over the
prior year, even with the $470
million (pre-tax) charges we
took in Argentina.

100 YEARS IN ASIA

We have a long and unrivaled
history in the worlds emerging
markets, and 2002 is an important
yC‘dI‘ fOY us. It murks our centen-
nial anniversary in six countries
in Asia: China, Hong Kong, India,
Japan, the Philippines and
Singapore. In fact, we have a long

history in most of the markets in
which we operate. Our presence
in Latin America dates back to
1904, and we opened offices in
the Middle Last and Africa in the
1950s. Through this unparalleled
on-the-ground presence, Citibank
provides the industry’s most
extensive array of products and
services to the broadest range of
clients. No other financial institu-
tion can rival our global network
or customer base—key factors

in our continuing success as a

franchise.

The oppartunity for growth in
these markets is dramatic, as the
demographics show: 86 percent
of the worlds population lives in
emerging-market countries; their
economies account for 43 percent
of the worlds purchasing power;
and their emeryging middie class
has new and largely unmet needs.

Individuals and businesses

in these countries need what
Citibank has—credit cards for
consumers, clectronic solutions
for small businesses, sophisticated
corporate finance for multinational

subsidiaries, and the trust that
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has been built over many years.
Indeed, for millions of customers
in the emerging markets, Citibank
is a trusted partner and the logi-
cal choice for financial services.

Recognizing the immense potential
in these markets, Citigroup created
an organization (two years ago

to focus on our businesses there.
We brought together the consumer
and corporate businesses in each
country. We offer two transaction
banking businesses, which serve
our corporate customers in both
the developed and emerging mar-
kets—e-Business, our award-
winning e-commerce, cash-man-
agement and electronic-banking
business; and Citibank Global
Securities Services, which provides
a full spectrum of industry-leading
securities-related services, includ-
ing custody, clearing, agency and
trust, and depositary receipts. In
addition, our Sales and Trading
business provides capital markets
products to clients and manages

our own position.

The results in 2001 validate our
decision to focus on the emerg-
ing markets. Our 22 percent
growth in earnings came from
both our consumer and corporate
franchises, which grew 29 percent
and 17 percent, respectively.
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Singapore brac opened in 1902,
relocated to the Ocean building in 1923.

ROOM TO GROW

Indeed, the emerging markets
represent our most exciting growth
opportunity. While our overall
market share of four percent gives
us a leadership position, we still
have substantial room to grow. In
2001, we completed the Banamex
acquisition, the largest financial
services investment ever in Mexico.
This transaction powerfully posi-
tions us in Mexico, where we are
now the number-one corporate
bank, the number-one retail bank
and the number-one credit card
issuer, with a share of between 25
percent and 30 percent in most
markets. In addition to Banamex,
we acquired Credito Familiar, a
consumer finance company. which
positions us to provide services to
virtually every consumer and cor-

porate segment in Mexico

The Banamex transaction followed
our acquisition of Bank Handlowy
w Warszawie in Poland, where we
are now the teading corperate bank
in terms of the number of customers
we serve. Both acquisitions under-
score the kind of growth we can
build in our largest and highest-

potential markets

While these acquisitions have
received much altention, organic
growth fuels the bulk of our
expansion. Our goal is to grow our

TOOYEARS IN ASIA & UK.

400 million:

amount of business in U.S. dollars
Citigroup awarded to companies
owned by minorities and/or women

market share over the next five years through our Embedded Bank
strategy. By Embedded Bank we mean a bank that has roots in the coun-
try as deep as any local indigenous bank, building a broad customer
base, offering diverse products, actively participating in the community
and recruiting staff and senjor management from the local population.
Our long history in these regions positions us as a genuinely local
bank—but one with an important difference. As much as they appreci-
ate our local character and established roots, our customers also value
our global access and expertise. [n these markets, Citibank offers the
hest of hath worlds.

The Embedded Bank strategy is validated by the strength of our brand.
The Citibank brand is recognized throughout the emerging markets and,
in 2001, we launched a focused effort to erthance our brand. In Asia, we
are one of the top five consumer brands and mumber one among financial
services providers. We are now introducing the new Citibank logo across

our markets

THE CONSUMER FRANCHISE

The opportunity in our consumer business is also tremendous. We cur-
rently provide consumer services in 36 of our 80 countries, so there is
ample room Lo grow as we introduce these services into new countries.
In countries where we have consumer businesses, we will intreduce new
products as the markets mature. Our goal is to provide a complete spec-
trum of services for consumers as they enter the middle class and their

financial needs evolve.

Ouy consumer Anance business offers a broad array of loan products to
meet the growing needs of peeple in the emerging-markets economies.
As consumers gain confidence in their earning power, retail bank serv-
ices and credit cards become more important. Indeed, credit cards
represent the bulk of consumer lending in the emerging markets and
provide the highest rates of return. We are steadily expanding retail
hank services and our cards business, and launched several new prod-

uets during 2001, including cobranded and youth cards.

Wealth Management for the middle aftluent is an important new initia-
tive, as consumers begin Lo accumulate wealth and seek advice and
expertise in managing their assets. [n 2001, we introduced Wealth
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Management Banking in Asia, which we will expand across other
regions. Insurance also represents a large vntapped opportunity in our
markets and will be an important initiative in 2002. Our integrated
organization also facilitates the cross-marketing of consumer products
to the employees of corporate customers, and we will continue to roll

out these programs.

We are a leader in Internet banking for consumers, with more than three
million customers in 25 countries accessing our online offerings. From
mobile banking and wireless alerts Lo e-commerce and electronic bill
presentment and payment, we are continuously introducing new serv-

ices that meet our clients’ needs.

THE CORPORATE FRANCHISE

We serve the full spectrum of husiness clients, from small family busi-
nesses to subsidiaries of the worlds largest multinational companies.
CitiBusiness® focuses on emerging local corporations—local companies
with annual sales of less than $50 million, the fastest-growing customer
segment in the Emerging Markets. Our Citibank Global Securities Services
business remains a leader in its field, offering award-winning services in
73 markets. Our Sales and Trading business had record earnings in 2001,
with net income growth of 35 percent. We are steadily building our global
customer base and have been recognized as a leader in foreign exchange,
derivatives, treasury and risk management in every region.

The demand for online banking continues to increase, and we are
committed to being the number one provider of Internet services for
our customers. Duing 2001, e-Business continued to roll out CitiDireat”
Online Banking, our online platform for corporate customers which is

now available in 83 countries and is processing more than $30 billion

in payments a month—a number that is steadily growing as more

companies take advantage of this platform.

With its extensive global presence, Citigroup’s Emerging Markets busi-
ness has a long track record of operating in volatile markets. In 2001,
we demonstrated once again our ability to manage through a crisis.

e-Dusiness and Citibank Global Securities Services provide basic
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payments and clearing systems

used by customers and industry
colleagues alike. In the wake

of September 11, both of these
critical operating areas performed
flawlessly. Qur international
network remained open, even
in markets facing heightened
tension. This was a result of the
extraordinary efforts of our many
people around the world, and we
thank them for their dedication.

Citibank’s experience allows us
to maintain a long-term commit-
ment to the markets where we
do business. The strength of
our business model allows us to
weather even the most difficult
periods. While the competition
may retreat from challenging mar-
kets, we can sustain our presence
and even thrive. This is a crucial
attribute for organizations seeking
1o do business around the world,
and our extensive experience
has enabled us to develop the

people and processes Lo succeed.
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GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
& PRIVATE BANKING GROUP

THE GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT & PRIVATE BANKING GROUP COMBINES A

US. LEADER IN THE LIFE AND ANNUITIES ARENA, A LEADING PRIVATE BANK FRANCHISE,

A TOP-TIER GLOBAL ASSET MANAGEMENT FIRM, A STRONG ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS

CAPABILITY, AND THE SECOND-LARGEST U.S. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT

SERVICES RECORD KEEPING PLATFORM.

Across these businesses, our
group is committed to achieving
strong investment performance
with an emphasis on risk control,
providing broad product offerings
tailored for each client segment,
and delivering world-class client
service supported by superior
technology.

We estimate that Citigroup ranks
number one or two in Global
Wealth Management as measured
by revenue and net income.
Citigroup is extremely well-
positmned to caplure even
greater share in the Global
Wealth Management market
based on our strong product set
and the firms impressive distribu-
tion channels. The high-net-worth
market s growing faster than the
financial services industry overall,
and generates relatively stable

earnings and attractive margins.

TRAVELERS LIFE & ANNUITY

Travelers Life & Annuity (TL&A)
prospered in a year of uncertain
market conditions, continuing its
strong operating tesults. TL&A
achieved record operating earn-
ings of $821 million, placing it in
the top three U.S. companies pro-
viding individual life and annuity
products. Expense management
remained a high priority, with
TL&A continuing its industry-
low expense ratio. In 2001,
TL&As strong sales resulls pro-
duced market share gains in all
three of its product lines: individ-
ual life, and individual and group

annuities.

Leveraging its scale and strength
in Citigroup channels, TL&A out-
paced the industry in individual
annuity sales by increasing third-
party channels in 2001 by 32

percent. Overall net individual

annuity sales in all channels
increased by four percent. Over
the last four years, TL&A has
moved from 38 to 18 in life
insurance industry sales (LIMRA)
—with a year-over-year increase
of 61 percent—by focusing on
high-net-worth customers and
by achieving significant growth
from the independent producer
channel. TIL.&A maintained

its number-three rank within
the institutional annuity arena
(LIMRA), mainly due to record
group annuity sales in the pen-
sion closeout and structured

settlement segments.

Qur partnership with Citigroup
sister companies continued to
grow across all product lines.
Citigroup profits were {urther
increased with 52 percent of new
annuity deposits into TL&A vari-
able annuity products going into
Citigroup Asset Management
funds. Distribution continued

to be expanded within Citigroup
channels, as well as through an
exciting new venture leveraging
Citibank overseas distribution,
offering new investment and life

products.
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First office in the UK. opened in
London in 1902,

THE CITIGROUP PRIVATE BANK
Despite a turbulent year, The
Citigroup Private Bank made
major progress in building the
business globally, expanding its
investment offerings and leveraging
the vast resources of Citigroup. The
Private Bank provides personal-
ized wealth management services
for many of the worlds most suc-
cessful families through 90 offices

in 38 cities and 31 countries.

The Citigroup Private Bank acts
as a global gateway to the [ull
resources of Citigroup. The firm
offers affluent families a tull range
of portfolio management and
investment advisory services.
Clients of the Private Bank are
considered clients of Citigroup
as a whole, allowing them to have
multiple touch points within the
organization and giving them
unparalleled access to Citigroup’s
global capabilities. The Private
Bank is committed to providing
high-quality investment advisory
services and asset allocation to
clients.

Working with Citigroup Asset
Management and Citigroup’s
Corporate & Investment Bank,

the Private Rank offers clients a

T00YEARS IN ASIA & UK.

4.8 trillion:

total assets in U.S. dollars under custody
by Citibank Global Securities Services

wide array of investment management, capital markets and investment
banking services. In addition, the bank differentiates itself by offering
distinctive advisory services to the marketplace, including the highly
successful Family Advisory Practice, which provides families with guid-
ance on an array of wealth management issues from business succession
to philanthropy. Art Advisory Services helps clients build or disperse art

and antique collections.

The Citigroup Private Bank ended 2001 with double-digit growth
in margin and net income. During the past two years, net income has
grown more than 40 percent, despite the uncertainty and volatility in

our industry.

CITIGROUP ASSET MANAGEMENT

Citigroup Asset Management (CAM) is a leading asset manager, with
417 billion in assets under management as 2001 closed. CAM is
committed to offering excellent investment performance through a
broad array of products and services to institutional, high-net-worth
and retail clients around the world. The business achieved record
net flows in 2001, with $29 billion in retail and high-net-worth man-
aged accounts and long-term mutual fund flows, and $33 billion in

institutional managed accounts and liquidity flows.

CAM is a market leader in U.S. retail managed accounts with $63 billien
assets under management and is ranked number one in the Dalbar
Survey (Research) of investment professionals regarding quality of service

among mid-size mutual fund families.

CAM also has built one of the worlds (inest global buyside research
organizations, which has become a cornerstone of our institutional and
retail asset management business. The depth and breadth of aur research
and investment capabilities is helping to accelerate the growth of insti-
tutional sales. CAMS Institutional Division expects o continue to

improve its share of the institutional pension segment globally.
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Through CitiStreet, our joint ven-
ture with State Street Bank & Trust
Company, we offer administration,
outsourcing and investment man-
agement services for defined
contribution, pension and health-
and-wellare plans worldwide.
CitiStreet now ranks second overall
among retirement plan record-
keepers, administering $179
hillion in assets for 7.1 million par-
ticipants (Plan Sponsor magazine).
CAM is committed to growing
delined contribution assets by cap-
italizing on the CitiStreet platform,
and currently manages $3 billion

for CitiStreet clients.

CITIGROUP ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
Citigroup Alternative Investments
is a newly branded business unit
and a leader in the held of alter-
native investments. [t meets the
needs of investors around the
world seeking a range of products,
including hedge funds, real estate,
credit structures and private
equity. In 2001, assets under
management grew 10 percent,

1o $39 billion.

CITIGROUP GLOBAL INVESTMENTS

Citigroup Global Investments (CGI), one of the worlds leading investment organizations,
continued to outperform peers despite a difficult investment environment in 2001, CG!
applies Citigroup's in-depth knowledge of geographies, industries and clients and
makes direct investments acioss a full range of fixed-income, equities and alternative
products, including real estate, private equity, hedge funds and structured investments.
Our $160 biltion portfolio of investments consists of our Property Casualty and Life &
Annuity assets, the Citigroup Pension Fund, Citigroup's Proprietary Equity Investments,
and our clients’ money. It is managed actoss four categories: Citigroup Venture Capital,
US. Proprietary and Alternative Investments, Fixed Income and Emerging Markets.

In 2001, our fixed-income insurance investment performance ranked in the upper 20th
percentile of the Lipper Intermiediate Investment (rade Debt Rankings. The Citigroup
Pension Fund cutperformed benchmarks, ranking just shy of the top quartile of all pen-
sion funds of more than $1 billion. Additionally, earnings from our proprietary
investments—combined with the realized gains of our insurance investments—totaled
$530 million in net income.

In addition to generating significant returns in 2001, CGI committed an additional
$1.9 billion of proprietary capital across several alternative asset classes and raised
almost $1.5 billion of client capital for a variety of co-investment oppertunities, includ-
ing nearly $1 billion for the new CVC Fund, about $600 miltion for the CT Mezzanine
Fund It and $350 miltion for the Tishman V Fund.

Toward the end of the year, CG! created Citigroup Alternative Invesiments, a business
responsible for structuring and marketing alternative investments to customers, often
as co-investment with Citigroup, This business allows us to systematically leverage wo
of Citigroup's greatest strengths—our distribution channels and our diverse product
offering—into increased sharehoider value.
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CITIGROUP UNDERWROTE

MORE THAN
SN BILLION
OF ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
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GLOBAL COMMUNITY

CITIGROUP STRIVES TO MAKE EAGH COMMUNITY WHERE WE OPERATE A BETTER PLACE

BECAUSE WE ARE THERE. WE FOCUS THIS EFFORT IN THREE AREAS: BUILDING COMMUNITIES

AND ENTREPRENEURS, FINANCIAL EDUCATION AND EDUCATING THE NEXT GENERATION.

Our philosophy is founded upon
high standards of ethics, fair lend-
ing and fair access to financial
services, customer privacy, diver-
sity in hiring, and cultural and
environmental sensitivity We
believe that extending our
resources and experlise to benefit
athers s the right thing to do; and
we understand that economically
healthy communities are necessary

for business success.

We live these values through our
business activities, through our
philanthropic giving, and through
our employee volunteers. Overall,
our total philanthropy in 2001,
from the Citigroup Foundation
and the busincsses combined,

exceeded $67 million

BUILDING COMMUNITIES

Our employees regularly seek out
opportunities where husiness and
social responsibility go hand-in-
hand. Qur Smith Barney Public
Finance Group specializes in
funding a wide variety of environ-
mentally beneficial projects. In

2001, we announced the launch

of the Smith Barney Charitable
Investment Fund. The fund is
administered through Salomon
Smith Barney Charitable Trust
Ine., an independent public charity
for clients who want to make
future philanthropic grants to
charitable organizations while
receiving immediate income tax
deductions on their contribution

of cash or appreciated securities.

Citigroup’s community lending
to and investing with low-

and moderate-income (LM1)
individuals and areas in the

U.S. continued to grow, reaching
more than $21 billion—an
increase of 140 percent since
1997. In 2001, we leveraged our
partnerships Lo further extend
our reach to thousands of LMI
and minority lamilies, new immi-
grants, underserved households
and other emerging markets.

Our Center for Commmunity
Development Enterprise (CCDE)
also delivered impressive results.
During 2001, CCDE loaned and
invested $892 miltion, which rep-
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resents an increase of 107 percent
over a two-year period. CCDE
draws resources from across
Citigroup’s businesses to
provide nonprofit and for-profit
organizations with innovative,
comprehensive and cost-effective
financing packages for commu-

nity development.

Our businesses also supported
non-gevernmental organizations
{NGQs) and nonprofits around
the globe by working to develop
financial programs that address
their needs and offering them
customized financial product
and services packages. In 2001,
we introduced a capacity building
program to help NGOs in
Indonesia run their aperations
efficiently. This was part of our
Citibank Peka program. In the
U.S,, Citigroups Community
Development Institute sponsored
technical assistance and training
programs attended by more than

1,500 nonprofit organizations.

MICROCRED!T

Citigroup participates in a broad
range of community building
initiatives that foster healthy
economies; microlending,
affordable housing and special-

needs facilities, small-business
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ankow branch opened in 1909.

development and savings incen-
tive programs. Our involvement
includes offering customized
products and services and access to
technical assistance, along with the

volunteer efforts of our employees

Citigroup has pioneered and
funded microlending programs
around the world for more than
20 years. We have helped microfi-
nance institutions {MFls) become
more self-sufficient and improve
their accounting and financial
management so they can serve
more clients effectively. In 2001,
we contributed $3.5 million and
issued letters of credit totaling
$4.5 million.

Among our new microlending
initiatives in 2001 was the devel-
opment of the Wholesale Funding
Facility in Jordan through a part-
nership with the United States
Agency for International
Development (USALD) and

the Access to Microfinance
and Improved Implementation
of Reform Program (AMIR).
This first-of-its-kind facility
will enable the countrys USAID-
supported MPls to obtain low-
interest loans from commercial

banks. Citibank Jordan acts as

TOOYEARS IN ASIA & UK.

21 billion:

U.S. dollar amount Citigroup loaned to
and invested in low- and moderate-
income communities in the U.S.

escrow agent {or the $6 million facility, financed by USAID through
AMIR, while also issuing guarantees to the commercial banks that
provide credit to the MFls.

We also expanded our microlending outreach to Morocco, where we are
partners with Al-Amana, one of the country’s largest providers of micro-
finance. Citigroup is helping to capitalize Al-Amana’s lending portfolio
and working closely with the institution te increase its capacity to meet

the growing demands of microentrepreneurs.

FINANCIAL EDUCATION

In 2001, Citigroup strengthened its commitment to financial education
by praviding more opportunities for individuals and institutions to learn
ahout managing thetr finances.

in the U.S., Citibank offered some 1,400 free financial education semi-
nars attended by mere than 23,000 individuals. In addition, Smith
Barney continued sponsorship of its Target Market investor education
programs that give women, minorities and young investors greater
insight into investing and the financial markets. At Travelers, consumer
education was offered in loss prevention and salety through its partner-
ship with the Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation’s National
Insurance Task Force.

in Taiwan, we launched the Citibank Personal Finance Seminar Series
on EduCities, a Web site that provides free access to hundreds of
courses. In China, we opened the Citigroup-Fudan International
Management Center, which offers training programs to help develop
management talent there. Another successtul program is Salomon smith
Barney Australias ASX Schools Sharemarket Game, which provides
teams of high school students hands-on experience trading virtual

shares via the Internet.

During 2001, more than 17,000 students attended Academies of
Finance, a program of the National Academy Foundation, founded and
chaired by Citigroup Chairman & CEO Sandy Weill. While preparing for
careers in the financial services industry, these students also develop their
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own personal finance skills. In the spring of 2001, Citigroup named
20 graduating seniors from across the country as its first Academy of
Finance Scholars. This annual scholarship program provides selected stu-
dents with $20,000 scholarships, along with internship opportunities

and a mentor from Citigroup.

EDUCATING THE NEXT GENERATION

Recognizing that knowledge enables individuals and societies to realize
their full potential, Citigroup is committed to supporting education and
career development at every level. in Singapore, we expanded our suc-
cessful Foundations in Finance program to the secondary school level
and sponsored the country’s first global business plan competition for
university students.

The Citigroup Success Fund multimarket program awards grants to edu-
cators to develop innovative, easily replicable, grassroots programs aimed
at helping students succeed. In 2001, Citigroup provided grants totaling
£798,000 to support Success Fund programs in California, Florida,
Georgia, New York, Singapore, Hong Kong and Guam that alforded
thousands of teachers an opportunity to put their best ideas into action.

THE ENVIRONMENT

We recognize the importance of responsible environmental stewardship
and continue to work with key environmental organizations. In 2001,
along with expanding our relationship with envirenmental organizations
such as Conservation International and World Resources Institute, we
established new partnerships with the World Wildlife Fund and others.
In addition, we locused ob raising the awareness of our employees about
the opportunities and challenges associated with environmental issues
and conducted training sessions for our bankers on environmental risk
management.

VOLUNTEERISM

Citigroup encourages volunteerism. We have a diverse range of company-

sponsored employee programs in countries such as Australia, Brazil,
Indonesia, Turkey, the UK. and the U.S.
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One of our leading volunteer activ-

ities is “hands-on” community
building. In Colombia, 300
Citibank employees are involved
in the School Construction
Program helping to build schools
and collect educational supplies
benefiting more than 2,000
children.

In 2001, the Citigroup Foundation
further strengthened our U.S.
Citigroup Builds Communities
with [labitat for | lumanity volun-
teer program with a $1 million
grant. Since Citigroup launched
the program two years ago, more
than 6,000 employees in 20 states
have contributed 64,000 volun-
teer hours. Our employees in
Belivia, Colombia, Kenya,
Paraguay, Peru, the Philippines,
South Africa, South Korea,
Uganda and Venezuela were

also involved in local Habitat

projects,
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Recognition

AS THE WORLD'S LEADING FINANCIAL SERVICES PROVIDER TO {NDIVIDUAL AND CORPORATE CLIENTS,
CITIGROUP IS RECOGNIZED BY INDEPENDENT ORGANIZATIONS, THE MEDIA AND CLIENTS AS THE
BEST IN THE INDUSTRY. FOLLOWING IS A SAMPLING OF THIS RECOGNITION:

ADWEEK

Named a Live Richly Ad—Delivery Room—
One of Best Spots of the Year

AMERICAN FOUNDATION

FOR THE BLIND
Helen Keller Award (talking ATMs)

ASIAMONEY
Best Cash Management Bank in Asia
Best Derivatives Rank in Asia

BARRON'S

Salomon Brothers Asset Management
Ranked Number Four in the Mutual
Fund Family Annual Rankings

CORPORATE FINANCE
Best Bank for Project Finance

COUNCIL FOR AID TO EDUCATION
2001 Leaders for Change

Best in Class

DARWIN
Fittest 50 e-Business

EURCMONEY

World’s Best Bank

Worlds Best Global Bank in Emerging Markets
Worlds Best Foreign Exchange Bank

Best Bank in Latin America

Best Bank in Asia

Best Bank in Africa

Best Bank in Online FX

Rest Online Site for Cash Management
Waorlds Best Credlit Bond House

FINANCE ASIA

Best Bank

Best Commercial Bank

Rest Cash Management Bank
Best Foreign Exchange Bank

FINANCIAL TIMES
Worlds Most Respected Firancial Company

FORBES

Number One on Forbes Super 50

Ctubank Online Named Forbes Favorie

Smith Barney Aggressive Growth Fund
Honor Rolt

FORTUNE
Citigroup Named to Top 10 of America’s
Most Admired Companies

FREDDIE AWARD
Diners Club/Club Rewards. Best Frequent
Traveler Alfinity Charge/Credit Program

FX WEEK
Best Bank for Foreign Exchange

GLOBAL FINANCE

Best Global FX Bank

Best Global Consumer Bank

Rest Bank in Middle Fast/Aftica (SAMBA)
Best Global Emerging Markets Bank

Best Trade Finance Bank Globally

Best internet Bank in Latin America

Best Internet Bank in Asia Pacific

GLOBAL INVESTOR

Best FX Provider

Best Clearmg Bank m Fquities

Best Clearing Bank in Fixed Income

GOMEZ ADVISORS

Citibank Online: Number One Culine
Banking Service

CitiCards com Ranked Number One Among
Online Credit Card Sites

HISPANIC MAGAZINE
Top 100 Companies Providing the Most
Oppertunities to Hispanics

INDEPENDENT INSURANCE AGENTS
OF AMERICA

Rest Practices Award of Excellence

INSTITUTIONAL INVESTOR

Top Fixed Income Trading Firm

1op All-America Research Team
Number Cne in Global Custody Top 20

INTERNATIONAL FINANCING REVIEW
Best Global Bond House

Best US. Dollar Bond House

Best Japan Securitization Louse

Best Tatin America L.oan House

INTERNATIONAL FINANCING
REVIEW ASIA
Bank of the Year

LAFFERTY GROUP/RETAIL BANK
INTERNATIONAL
Best Glabal Retail Bank

LATIN FINANCE
Best Regional Bank in Latn America

LATINA STYLE
Number One Company for Latinas to Work
forin the U.S.

MUTUAL FUNDS MAGAZINE

Best in Class:

Smith Bamey Large Cap Growth Fund

Smith Barney Social Awareness Fund

Salomon Brothers Capital Fund

Smith Barney Fundamental Value Fund &
Smith Bamey Security and Growth Fund

Smith Barney Aggressive Growth Fund

Smith Barney Appreciation Fund

RED HERRING
Top Investment Bank

RISK
Derivatives House of the Year

U.S. SMALL BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
Excellence in Lending
Citibank: Special Recognition (9/11 Support)

THE ASSET

Best Conumercial Bank in Asia

Best Cash Management Bank

Best Foreign Exchange Bank

Rest Asian Currency Bond House
Best Loan House

Best Project Finance House

Best Structured Trade Finance Bank

THE BANKER

Global Bank of the Year

Best Bank in North America

Best Use of Technology

Bond House of the Year

EX Housce of the Year

THE WALL STREET JOURNAL

Ranked Number Cne in Best of the Street
Survey

WOMEN & DIVERSITY
LEADERSHIP SUMMIT

Diversity Best Practices

WORKING MOTHER
1Q0 Best Companies for Working
Mothers—Top 10

WORTH
Best Online Bank

Readers’ Choice: Number One
in Online Banking
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Citigroup at a glance

CONSUMER GROUP

2001 INITIATIVES

Internet expansion Citibanking North America
(CBNA) demwonstrated the power of its award-
winning online banking with 25 percent of
CBNA clicats regularly using Internet banking
versus the industry average of 15 percent.

Brand leverage Further leveraged the *Cit”
brand through the highly successful Live Richly
campaign. For example, Citipro® sales during a
four-month ad period were up 73 percent.

Accelerated growth CitiFinancial demonstrated
one of the highest growth rates of any Citigroup
business in 2001,

Acquisitions expertise Continued integration

of acquired companies, while positioning
ourselves to further take advantage of

ongeing industry censolidation.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Increase productivity Keep leveraging our
competitive advantages through branding
and increasing productvity at all levels in
retail banking,

Export business modet Using our exportable
business model, further develop the consumer
finance franchise internationally. Continue dihi-
gent risk management in a changing global
ecanony.

Increase momentum Maintain and expand
current cards momentum through branding,
efficiency, superior risk management and ability
to take advantage of industry consolidation
opporiuiies.

Broaden and deepen relationships Uphold
highest standards of service and conduct while
delivering a variety of meaningful and effective
products to our clients. Deepen and breaden
relationships with current and future
customers

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANK

2001 INITIATIVES

Market leadership Continued 1o grow market
share across all businesses globally. Became lead-
ing underwnter globally in volume by raising
$487 billion for clients, a 37 percent increase
over 2000, Became number one globally in
investment banking revenue.

Aggressive cost cutting Initiated aggressive
expense reductions early in 2001, reducing
uanerly expenses overall by 19 percent from
a peak in the first quarter, yesuiting in superior
profit performance and reinforcement of our
pusition as the low-cost competitor.

tndividual client service The Private Chent
Group and its 12.000 Financial Consultants
helped its high-net-worth customers through
a difficult market. adding $40 billion in net
assets cluring the year, improving our [nternet
services and broadening the product and serv-
ices available to clients.

FOCUS FOR 2002

Clients first Continue effective implementation
of proven Power of One business medel,
Broaden and deepen relationships with our
target client base, particularly in becoming
their principal trusted strategic advisor. Further
develop customized financial solutions for
high-net-worth clients,

Increase reach Strengthen our positons
in markets and industries where we are
under-represented.

Resource management Remain focused on
expense reduction and operational efficiency
in anticipation of continuing difficult markets.

Re-engineer CitiCapital Continue integration

of recently acquired commercial linance busi-
nesses. Upgrade operational infrastructure and
improve {inancial performance.

EMERGING MARKETS
2001 INITIATIVES

Building momentum Gained strong momentum
through the combination of internal growth
and selected acquisitions in priotity countries.

Acquisitions/jeint ventures Completed the inte-
gration of Citibank Mexico and Banamex.

Bought remaining interest of Credito Familiar
and Nikko Trust in Japan, a custody business.

Cost management Initiated actions focusing on
integrating operatons and technology in each
country, and the streamlining of infrastructure
with the goal of operating processes in locations
with lower cost structures.

Solutions Qur Internet platform for corporate
clients {(CiuDirect® Online Banking) is now
in 85 countrics and 12 languages. Rolled out
CitiDirect® for Securities. the online platferm
for our securities customers,

FOCUS FOR 2002

Market share Maintain our stats as the number-
one finansial institution in the emerging markets
through market shage incrvases as a result of
organic growth and acquisitions.

Internet Exploit global market presence to
deliver products via the Internet for corperate
and consumer customers. Provide innovative

electronic solutions for our corporate customers.

Products Develop global products with the fur-
ther expansion of consumer finance, insurance
and asset management services.

Leadership Continue to define ourselves as
the leading financial institution as we further
improve the level of both customer and
employee satisfaction.

GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
& PRIVATE BANKING GROUP

2001 INITIATIVES

Number one Citigroup Asset Management
hecame pumber one in U.S. retail high-net-
worth managed accounts with $63 billion of
assets under management and $14 billion

in net flows.

Record gains in cross-marketing Citigroup Asset
Managentent and The Citigroup Private Bank
collaborated efficiently, enahling the Private
Bank to capture an all-time high of $4.3 billion
in net new discretionary sales.

The rankings Travelers Life & Annuity ranks
number three in U.S. life and annuity earnings,
number seven in individual annuity sales,
wamber three in group annuity and number
18 in individual life sales. Crigroup Asset
Management ranks number one in the Dalbar
survey of financial professionals regarding the
guality of muwal fund firms.

FGQCUS FOR 2002

Alternative Investments Become the leader in
alternative investments by expanding offerings
and targeting a broader distribution in the insti-
witional and high-net-worth markets.

Citigroup Asset Management Expund institu-
tional pension investment advisory assets,
maintin top position n U.S, high-net-worth
managed accounts and expand third-party
distnibunon.

Private Bank growth Lxpand the Citigroup
Private Bank’s wealth management market
share by emphasizing cur sophisticated asset
allocation strategy and investment portfalio
including alternative investments.

Travelers Life & Annuity Expand third-party
distributien to grow our share of individual
annuity and life sales.
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Malaysia Eric R. Mayer

Juan Bruchou

+ Member of Citicorp/Citibank, N.A. Board of Directors
but no designated Counuy Corporate Officer are not reflected in the above list.

Philippines
Catherine M. Weir

o Metber of the Internet Operating Group

Poland Tanzania

shirish Apte Mayanik Mahk
Portugal Thailand

Martin johansson Tab Cuddyre
Puerto Rico Trinidad & Tobago
Alvaro Taramillo Steve M. Bideshi
Romania Tunisia

Zdenek Tuarek Michael Grossman
Russia Turkey

Allan J. Hirst Sehastian Paredes
Saudi Avabia Uganda

Mike de Graffenried Sarjeev Anand
Senegal Ukraine

Gabriel Lopes Witeld Zielinski
Singapore United Arab
Suni! Sreenivasan Emirates
Slovakia ;’\hmcd Saced 5.
Tirad Mahmoud Rin Brek

South Africa
Marcus Andrade

Spain

Charles Deilorto
Sri Lanka

Kapila Jayawardena
Sweden

Jaur Delirage
Switzerland

Per Etholm

Taiwan
Eric Chep

United Kingdom
Michael Rirkwood
Uruguay
Constantine Gatsis
Venezuela

Philip Henriquez
Vietnam

John M. Beeman

virgin tslands
(U.S.)
Alvaro Jaramillo

Zambia
Srinivasan Sridhar

OPP006389



TUESDAY Q.11

8:48 a.m.
9:10 a.m.

10:30 a.m.
12:00 p.m.

12:15p.m.
2:00 p.m.

5:20 p.m.
7:00 p.m.

Terrorists crash plane into 1 World Trade Center,

Evacuation of 16,000 employees in lower Manhattan begins; customer coverage provided out of London,
Chicago and San Francisco.

Citigroup Disaster Recovery teams make their way to New Jersey and other Disaster Recovery sites.

First all-hands Disaster Recovery cenference call held with executives and Disaster Recovery coordinators
for each business.

Begin process of getting operations running in remote focations.

Begin providing additicnal short-term tiquidity to our corporate clients who could not access the
securities markets or banks.

7 World Trade Center collapses.

Create special telephone hotlines with Disaster Recovery information for displaced empioyees, which will
receive more than 15,500 calls in the first week.

WEDNESDAY Q.12

8:00 a.m.
10:30 a.m.
11:30 a.m.

12:30 p.m.

Contingency locations are fully statfed and operational.
Travelers catastrophe vans arrive near Ground Zero and process claims for individuals and business owners.

Create special Disaster Recovery information Web site on Gitigroup.com for clients, shareholders and
empleyees.

First Citibank Financial Center opens to provide food and shelter to emergency workers; several other
Financial Centers will follow later in the week.

THURSDAY Q.13

9:00 a.m.
10:00 a.m.

2:30 p.m,

Citigroup bond trading desks fully eperational and ready when Bond Markets resume trading.

Citigroup conducts its first grief counseling session, which subsequently will be used by more than 6,000
employees at 60 locations in 12 states.

Citibank establishes Citi for the City, a fund to meet the immediate needs of relief workers and families
affected by the tragedy.

FrRIDAY Q.14

1:20 p.m.  Citigroup announces that, with a $15 million denation, it has established the Citigreup Relief Fund to provide
college schotarships to children of 9/11 victims. # is the largest corporate-sponsored fund of its kind.

SATURDAY/SUNDAY Q.IS-Iﬁ

10:00 a.m.
(Sat.)
7:00 p.m,
{Sun.)

After review hy New York City and independent engineers, 388 and 390 Greenwich Street are declared
habitable and made ready for emplovees to return to their desks.

Citigroup’s Robert Rubin appears on “60 Minutes” to provide his perspective on the attack and the state
ot the economy.

MoONDAY Q.17

8:.00 a.m.
9:30 a.m.
6:00 p.m.

Citigroup issues press statement estimating the September 11 impact on our earnings.
Opening bell rings on New Yerk Stock Exchange. Citigroup begins what will be single-day record volume trading.

Almost one week after the attack on the World Trade Center, six Citigroup employees remain missing.

All times—EDT

£ Printed on recycled papet. Design: Salomon Smith Basney Graphe Conmmunitalicns
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THE COMPANY

Citigroup Inc. (Citigroup and, together with its subsidiaries, the Company) is a
diversified global financial services holding company whose husinesses provide
abroad range of financial services to consunier and corporate customers with
192 million customer accounts in over 100 countries and territories. Citigroup
was incomorated in 1988 under the laws of the State of Delaware.

The Company’s activities are conducted through Global Consumer, Global
Corporate, Global Investment Management and Private Banking, and
[nvestrent Activities.

The Company has completed certain strategic business acquisitions during
the past three years, details of which can be found in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Staterents.

The Company is 2 bank holding company within the meaning of the US.
Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (BHC Act) registered with, and subject io
examination by, the Federal Reserve Board (FRB). Certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries are subject to supervision and examination by their respective
federal and state authorities. Additional information on the Company’s
regulation and supervision can be found within the Regulation and
Supervision section beginning on page 124,

At December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately 145,000 full-time
and 4,000 part-time employees in the United States and approximately
123,000 emplovees outside of the United States.

The periodic reports of Citicor, Salonon Smith Bamey Holdings Inc,,
Travelers Insurance Group Holdings Inc,, The Student Loan Corporation
{STU), The Travelers Insurance Company (TIC), and Travelers Life and
Annuity Company (TLAC), subsidiaries of the Company that make hlings
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange
Act), provide additional business and financial information concerning those
companies and their consolidated subsidiaries.

The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 399 Park
Avenue, New York, New York 10043, telephone number 212-559-1000.
Additional information is available on the Company’s web site at
(http://www citigroup.com).

GLOBAL CONSUMER

Global Consumer delivers 4 wide array of banking, lending, insurance and
investment services through a network of ocal branches, offices and
electronic delivery systems, including ATMs, unmanned kiosks and the World
Wide Weh. The businesses of Global Consumer serve individual consumers as
well as small businesses.

Citilxrnking North America delivers banking, lending, and investment
services through 445 branches and through Gitibank Online, an enhanced
Internet hanking site en the World Wide Web.

The Morizage Banking business originates and services norigages and
student foans for custormers across North America

The North America Cards unit combines the operations of Citi Cards and
Diners Club, whose products include MasterCard, VISA and private label credit
and charge cards issued to customers across North America. At December 31,
2001, Giti Cards had 93 million accounts and $109 hillion of managed
receivables, which represented approximately 20% of the US. credit card
receivables market. New accounts are acquired through multiple channels
including direct marketing efforts, the Internet, and portfolic acquisitions.

CittFinemcial provides community-based lending services through its
branch network svstem, regional sales offices and cross-sefling initiatives
with other Gitigroup businesses. As of December 31, 2001, CitiFinancial
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maintained 2,221 loan offices in North America that offer real estate-secured
loans, unsecured and partially secured personal loans, auto loans and loans
to finance consumer goods purchases. In addition, GitiFinancial, through
certain subsidiaries and third parties, makes available various credit-related
and other insurance products to its US. consumer finance custorners.

The business operations of Primerica Financial Services (Primerica)
involve the sale in North America of life insurance and other products
manufactured by its affiliates, including Smith Barney mutual funds,
CitiFinancial mortgages and personal loans and TIC annuity products.

The Primerica sales force is composed of over 100,000 independent
representatives. A great majority of the sales force works on a part-time basis.

Through Travelers Property Gasualty Corp. (TPC), Global Consumer writes
virtually all types of property and casualty insurance covering personal risks.
The Personal Lines unit of TPC had approximately 5.4 million policies in
force at December 31, 2001. The primary coverages are personal automobile
and homeowners insurance sold to individuals, and are distributed through
approximately 7,600 independent agencies located throughout the United
States, Personal Lines also uses additional distribution channels, including
sponsoring organizations such as emplovers’ and consumer associations, and
joint marketing arrangements with other insurers.

‘Yhe international unit of Globat Consumer provides full-service banking
and community-based lending, including credit and charge cards, and
investment services in Western Europe, Japan, Asia (excluding Japan),
CEEMEA (Central & Eagtern Europe, Middle East, & Africa), Latin America
and Mexicn, which includes the results of all operations of Banamex and
Citibank Mexico, through more than 3,000 branches and offices in 52
countries and territories.

e-Consumer is the business responsible for developing and implementing
Citigroup’s Intemet financial services products and e-commerce solutions.
e-Consumer’s mission is to build and deliver new forms of financial services
that meet the changing needs of customers and to facilitate all aspects of
e-commerce as it grows with the new digital economy.

GLOBAL CORPORATE

Global Corporate provides corperations, governments, institutions and
investors in 100 countrics and territotics with a broad range of financial
products and services, including investiment advice, financial planning and
retail brokerage services, banking and financial services and commercial
insurance products.

Global Corporate, through the Corporate and Investment Bank (CI13),
delivers investment banking and commercial banking services in North
America, Western Europe and Japan, and also includes investment banking
services in the emerging markess. CIB delivers a full range of global capital
niarket activities, including the underwriting and distribution of fixed incore
and equity securities for United States and foreign comporations and for state,
local and other governmental and government-sponsored authorities. CIB
also provides capital raising, advisory, research and other brokerape services
to its customers, acts 45 4 market-maker and executes securities and
commaodities futures brokerage transactions on all major United States and
international exchanges on behalf of customers and for its own account. CIB
also offers foreign exchange, structured products, derivatives, loans, leasing,
and equiprent finance products. CIB trades for its own account in various
markets throughout the world and uses many ditferent strategies involving a
broad spectrum of financial instruments and derivative products.
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Global Corporate is a major participant in foreign exchange and in the
over-the-counter (O'TC) market for derivative instruments involving a wide
range of products, including interest rate, equity and currency swaps, caps
and floors, options, warrants and other derivative products. It also creates and
sells various types of structured securities.

Citibank has a long-standing presence in emerging markets, which
includes all locations outside North America, Western Europe and Japan.
Citigroup's Emeruing Murkels Corporate Banking and Global
Transaction Services (EM Corporate & GTS) business offers a wide array of
banking and financial services products and services that help multinational
and local companies fulfill their financial goals or needs. Citigroup’s
strategies focus on its plans to gain market shase in selected priority emerging
market countries and to establish Citibank as « local bank as well as aleading
international bank . Citibank typically enters a country to serve glohal
customers, providing them with cash management, trade services, short-term
Joans and foreign-exchange services. Then, Citibank offers project finance,
fixed-income issuance and trading and, later, introduces securities custody,
loan syndications and derivatives services. Finally, as a brand image is
established and services for locally headquartered companies become
significant, consumer banking services may be offered. The EM Corporate &
G1S segment also includes the global results of cash management, securities
custody and trade services.

TPC's Commercial Lines unit offers a broad array of property and casualty
insurance and insurance-related services, which it distributes through
approximately 6,300 brokers and independent agencies located throughout
the United States. TPC is the third largest writer of commercial lines
insurance in the U.8. based on 2000 direct written premiums published by
AM. Best Company. Commercial Lines is organized into five marketing and
underwriting groups, each of which focuses on a particular client base or
product grouping to provide products and services that specifically address
clients’ needs: National Accounts, primarily serving large national
corporations; Commercial Accounts, serving mid-size businesses; Select
Accounts, serving small businesses; Bond, providing specialty products which
include surety bonds and executive liability; and Gulf, providing a variety of
specialty coverages. Environmental, asbestos and other cumulative injury
claims are segregated from other elaims and are handled separately by TPC's
Special Liability Group, a.separate unit staffed by dedicated legal, claim,
finance, and engineering professionals.

GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND
PRIVATE BANKING

Global Investment Management and Private Banking is composed of
Travelers Life and Annuity, The Citigroup Private Bank and Citigroup
Asset Mandagement.

These businesses offer a broad range of life insurance, annuities, and asset
managenent products and services from global investment centers around
the wonld, including individual annuities, group annuities, individual life
insurance products, corporate owned fife insuranice (COLE), mutual funds,
closed-end funds. managed accounts, unit investment trusts, variable
annuities, alternative investments, pension administration and personalized
weutlth management services distributed to institutional, high net worth and
retail clients.

Travelers Life and Annuity (T1.4) offers individual annuity, group
annuity, individual life insurance and COLI products. The individual products
include fixed and variable deferred annuities, payout annuities, and term and
universal life insurance. These products are primarily distributed through
Citigroup businesses, 4 nationwide network of independent agents and
unaffiliated broker dealers. The COLI product is a variable universal life
product distributed through independent specialty brokers. The group
annuity products offered include institutional pension products, including
guaranteed investment contracts, payout annuities, structured finance, and
group annuities to U.S. employer-sponsored retirement and savings plans
through direct sales and various intermediaries.

The Citigroup Private Bank provides personalized wealth management
services for high net worth lients through 90 offices in 31 countries and
territories, generating fee and interest income from investment funds
managenent and customer trading activity, trust and fiduciary services,
custody services, and traditional banking and lending activities. Through its
Private Bankers and Product Specialists, The Citigroup Private Bank leverages
its extensive experience with clients’ needs and its access to the breadth and
depth of Citigroup to provide clients with comprehensive investment and
hanking services tailored to the way they create and manage theirwealth and
lifestyles in today's economy.

Cituroup Asset Management includes Smith Barney Asset Manugement,
Salomon Brothers Asset Management, and Citibank Asset Management
along with the pension administration and insurance businesses of Global
Retirement Services. Clients include private and public retirement plans,
endowments, foundations, banks, central banks, insurance companies, other
corporations, governmenit agencies and high et worth and other individuals.
Client relationships may be introduced through the cross marketing and
distribution channels within Citigroup, through Citigroup Asset Management’s
own sales force or through independent sources.

INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company's frzestmient Aclivities segment consists primarily of its
venture capital activities, realized investment gains and losses from certain
insurance related investments, results from certain proprietary investments,
the results of certain investments in countrics that refinanced debt under
the 1989 Brady Plan or plans of 4 similar nature and since August 2001, the
investrnent portfolio related to Banamex.

CORPORATE/OTHER

Corporate/Other includes net corporate treasury results, corporate staff and
other corporate expenses, certain intersegment eliminations, and the
remainder of Internet-related development activities not allocated to the
individual businesses.
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Citigron Inc. and Subsidiaries

i millions of dolars, excep! per share amoumts 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Yotal revenues $ 112,022 35111826 $ 94296 § 85925 ¢$ 80,530
Total revenues, net of interest expense 80,057 75,188 65,722 55,233 53,231
Benefits, claims and credit losses 18,559 15,486 13,880 12,788 11,455
Operating expenses 39,601 38,559 33,691 31,360 29,471
income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 14,284 13519 11.370 6.950 7682
Cumulative effect of accounting changes™ (158) - (127} —
Net income $ 14126 $ 13519 $11243 3 6950 ¢ 7682
Eamings per share !
Basic eamings per share:

income before cumutative effect of accounting changes $ 282 $ 269 $§ 22 & 135 § 148

Net income 27 269 223 136 148
Diluted earnings per share:

Income befare cumulative effect of accounting changes 2.5 262 219 1.31 142

Net income 272 262 247 1.31 1.42
Dividends declared per common share (2 0.600 0.520 0.405 0.277 0.200
At December 31,
Total assets $1,061,450 $002,210 $795584 §740336 §7565,167
Total depasits 374525 300586 261573 229413 199,867
Long-term debt 121631 111778 88,481 86,250 75,605
Mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 7125 4,920 4,920 4,320 2.995
Redeemable preferred stock - — —_ 140 280
Cammon stockholders’ equity 79,722 64,461 56,395 48,761 44,610
Total stockholders' equity 81,247 66,206 58,290 51,035 47 956
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred stock dividends 1.67x 1.56x 181 1.34x 1.42¢
Return on average common stockholders’ equity ™ 19.7% 22.4% 21.5% 14.4% 17.5%
Gommon stockhalders’ equity to assets 7.58% 714% 7.09% 6.59% 591%
Total stockholders’ equity to assets 7.73% 7.34% 7.33% 6.89% 6.35%
Income Analysis ¢
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 80057 57518 $65722 $55233 § 5323
Effect of securitization activities 3568 2,459 2,707 2.364 1,734
Housing Finance unit charge ! — 47 - - —
Adjusted revenues, net of Interest expense 83,625 77,694 68,429 57 597 54,965
Adjusted operating expenses '’ 39,143 37,775 33744 30,565 27,753
Berefits, claims and credit losses 18,559 15,486 13,880 12,788 11,455
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707 2,364 1,734
Housing Finance unit charget™ - (40} - — —
Adjusted benefits, claims and credit losses 22127 17,905 16,587 15,152 13,189
Restructuring- and merger-related items {458) 759} 53 {795 (1.718)
Housing Finance unit charget’: - (112 — — —
Income before taxes, minority interest and cumaulative effect of accounting changes 21,897 21,143 18,151 11,085 12,305
Provision for income taxes 1526 7,525 6,530 3,907 4411
Minority interest, net of income taxes a7 99 251 228 212
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 14284 13,519 11.370 6,950 7,682
Cumulative effect of accounting changes© {158) —-— (127) - —
Net income $ 14126 913519 $ 11243 § 6950 $ 7682

(1) The years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997 include nel teslructuring-tefated items @ndin 2000 and 1998 merger telated items} of $458 million (F285 milfion atter -tax, $759 million ($550
million after-tsx), (853 mitfien (525} millon after-tax), $795 million ($535 million after-tax) and §1,718 million (51,046 milior: atter-tax). respectively. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Finarcial Statements.

(21 Accounting changss in 2001 include the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended (SFAS 133), of (342 mitlion and
Emerging kssues Task Fore (EIT} ssue No. 99-20. “Recognition of Inferest Income and impalrment on Purchased and Retained Benefivial Inferests in Securitized Financlat Assets” (€1TF 99-201 of (5 116 millllon,

Accoring tlanges in 1999 inslude the adoplion of Statement of Pesition (S0P 97-3, “Accourting by lnsuiancy and Other Enterpu

for Instrarse-Redated Assessiments” of ($135) miflicer, SOP 68 7, “Deposit

Ascounting: Aceounling Jot Insurance and Reinsusance Contracts That Do Not Transter insurance Risk™ of $23 imiliory, and SOP 98-5, “Repotting on the Costs of Stant Up Activities” of ($15) million. See Note 1 o the

Consolidated Finanelal Statements,
(31 All amounts have been adjusted o reflect stock spilts.

(4} Ameunts prior to 1994 represent Traveloss” historical dividonds por common share.
{5) the refurn on average common stockiolders” eauity is calcufated using netincome atter deducting preferred stock dividend.

i6) The Income andysis teconciles amounts shown in the Consolidated Statement of incorme en page 80 fo the basis presented in the Management's Dissussion and Aalysis of Financtal Condiion and Resulls of

Operatinns section.

{7) The 2000 pesiod includkes chiarges associated with the disconfinuation of the loan origination operations o the Assotiates Housing Finance unit,

{8) Excludes restiuctuing- and merges-totfated items and the discontinuation of Assoeiates Housing Finance loan ariginations in 2000,

32
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF

cifigronp Inc. and Subsitiaries

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The vear ended December 31, 2001 presented the Company with a
challenging economic environment, 4 continued global recession, the
Septenber 11th terrorist attack, Enront's bankruptcy and severe economic
turmoil in Argentina.

Impact from Argentina’s Political and Economic Changes
During the fourth quarter of 2001, Argentina underwent significant political
and economic changes. The government of Argentina implemented:
substantial economic changes, including abandoning the country’s fixed
US. dolar-to-peso exchange rate, as well as converting certain U8, dollar-
denominated consumer loans into pesos. The Company recognized charges
in the 2001 fourth quarter of $235 million (pretax) related to write-downs
of Argentine credit exposures and $235 million (pretax) in losses related to
the foreign exchange revaluation of the consumer loan portfolio. Since year-
end, the governmient announced additional steps, including redenomination
of substantially all of the remaining dollar denominated loans and dollar
denominated deposits into pesos, and new government bends, which in part
are designed to compensate for the redenomination of assets and liabilities
into pesos. The Argentine government is atternpting to stabilize the economic
environment. As these financial regulations and implementation issues
remain fluid, we are working with the Argentine government and our
customers and will continue to monitor conditions closely and assess the
financial impact, Financial results in 2002 are likely to be impacted. This
staternent is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements”
on page 62.

Impact from Enron

As a result of the financial deterioration and eventual bankruptey of Enron
Corporation in the fourth quarter of 2001, Citigroup's results were reduced by
$228 million (pretax) as a result of the write-down of Enton-related credit
exposure and trading positions, and the impairment of Enron-related
investments. We will continue to monitor this situation and its impact. This
statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” ot
page 62.

September 11th Events

The September 11, 2001 terrorist attack financially impacted the Company in
several areas. Atter-tax losses recorded in the third quarter of 2001 related to
insurance claims (net of reinsurance impact) totaled $502 million. Revenues
ware reduced due to the distuption to Citigroup’s businesses and additional
expenses incurred 4 a result of the attack resulted in after-tax losses of
approximately $200 million. The Company also experienced significant
property loss, for which it is insured. The Company has recorded insurance
tecoveries up to the net bock vatue of the assets written off. Additional
insurance recoveries will be booked when they are realized. Losses aftributable
to insurance claims are based in part on estimates by the Company of
insurance losses and related reinsurance recoverables. The associated reserves
and related reinsurance recoverables represent the estimated ultimate net
costs of all incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses. Since the reserve
and related reinsusance recoverables are hased on estimates, the ultimate net
liability may be more or less than such amounts. This stalement i a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.
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Acquisition of Banamex

On August 6, 2001, Citicorp, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Citigroup,
completed its acquisition of 99.86% of the issued and outstanding ordinary
shares of Grupo Financiero Banamex-Accival (Banamex), a leading Mexican
financial institution, for approximately $12.5 hillion in cash and Citigroup
stock. Giticorp completed the acquisition by settling transactions that were
conducted on the Mexican Stock Exchange. On September 24, 2001, Citicorp
became the holder of 100% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares

of Banamex following a share redemption by Banamex. The results of
Banamex are included from August 2001 forward within the Global
Consumer-Mexico and Investiment Activities segments. Banamex's and
Citicorp's banking operations in Mexico have been integrated and conduct
husiness under the “Banamex” brand name.

Pianned Initial Public Offering and Tax-Free
Distribution of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.

Citigroup announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. (TPC), intends to scll a minority intercst in TPC in an initial
public offering and Citigroup intends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such amount of the remainder of its interest in TPC so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TPC
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution. The distribution
i expected to be concluded by yearend 2002.

Citigroup business units will continue to offer certain TPC products and
the two companies plan to enter into an agreement under which a Citigroup
subsidiary will provide investment advisory as well as certain back office and
data processing services to TPC during a transition period.

The distribution is subject to various regulatory approvals as well as a
private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the distribution
will be tax-free to Citigroup and its stockholders, Citigroup has no obligation
to consummate the distribution by the end of 2002 or at all, whether or not
these conditions are satisfied.

In February 2002, TPC declared two dividends of $1 billion and
$3.7 billion.

Citigroup has offered to enter into an agreement that will provide that,
in the event that in any fiscal vear TPC records ashestos-related income
statement charges in excess of §150 million (pretax), net of any reinsurance,
Citigroup will pay to TPC the amount of any such excess up to d cumulative
aggregate of $800 million, reduced by the tax effect of the highest Federal
income tax rate as applied 1o TPC. A portion of the gain expected to be
realized a5 a result of the offering will be deferred to offset any payments
arising in connection with this agreement.

These statements are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Staterments” on page 62,

Managed Basis Reporting

The business segment discussions that follow include amounts reported in
the financial staterents (owned basis) adjusted to reflect certain effects of
securitization activities, receivables held for securitization, and receivables
sold with servicing retained (managed basis). On a managed basis, these
earnings are reclassified and presented s if the receivables had neither been
held for securitization nor sold.
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The income analysis on page 32 reconciles amounts shown in the
Consolidated Statement of Income on page 80 to the basis presented in the
business segment discussions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contain asummary of
Gitigroup’s significant accounting policies, including a discussion of recently-
issued accounting pronouncements. Certain of these policies are considered
to be important to the portrayal of the Company's financial condition, since
they requite management to make difficult, complex or subjective judgments,
some of which may relate to matters that are inherently uncertain. These
policies include valuation of financial instruments where no ready market
exists, determining the level of the allowance for credit fosses and insurance
policy and claims reserves, and accounting for securitizations. Additional
information about these policies can be found in Nete 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The statements below contain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-
Looking Statements” on page 62.

Valuation of Financial Instruments with
No Ready Markets

Investments include fixed matusity and equity securities, derivatives,
investments in venture capital activities and other financial instruments.
Citigroup carries its investments at fair value if they are considered to be
available-forsale or trading securities. For the substantial majority of our
portfolios, fair values are determined based upon externally verifiable model
inputs and quoted prices. All financial models which are used for updating
the firmy’s published financial statements, or for independent risk monitoring,
must be validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created the niodel. Changes in value of
available-for-sale securities are recognized in a component of stockholders’
equity, unless the value is impaired and the impairment is not considered to
he terporary. Impairment losses that are not considered temporary are
recognized in earnings. The Company conducts regular reviews to assess
whether other-than-tenporary impairment exists. Deteriorating economic
conditions — global, regional, or related to specific issuers— could adversely
affect these vatues. Changes in the fair value of trading account assets and
liabilities are recognized in earnings. Venture capital subsidiaries also carry
their investments at fair value with changes in value recognized in carnings.

1f available, quoted market prices provide the bestindication of value.
1f quoted market prices are not available for fixed maturity securities,
derivatives or commodities, the Company discounts the expected cash flows
using market interest rates commensurate with the credit quality and
maturity of the investment. Altematively, matrix or model pricing may be
used to determine an appropriate fair value. The determination of market or
fair value considers various factors, including ime value and volatility
factors, underlying options, warrants, and derivatives, price activity for
equivalent synthetic instruments; counterparty credit quality; the potential
impact on market prices or fair value of liquidating the Company's positions
in an orderly manner over a reasonable period of time under current market
conditiens; and derivative transaction maintenance costs during the period.
Changes in assumnptions could affect the fair values of investments.

For venture capital investments in publicly traded securities, fair value is
generally hased upon quoted market prices. In certain situations, including
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thinly traded securities, large block holdings, restricted shares or other special
situations, the quoted market price is adjusted to produce an estimate of the
attainable fair value for the securities. For investments that are not publicly
traded, estimates of fair value are made based upon a review of the investee's
financial results, condition and prospects and discounted cash Hows, together
with comparisons to similar companies for which quoted market prices are
available. See discussion of trading account assets and labilities, and
investments in Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Note 1 to

the Consolidated Financial Statements,

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses represents management's estimate of probable
losses inherent in the portfolio. This evaluation process is subject to
numerous estimates and judgments. The frequency of default, risk ratings,
and the loss recovery rates, among other things, are considered in making
this evaluation, as are the size and diversity of individual large credits.
Changes in these estimates could have 4 direct impact on the provision and
could result in achange in the allowance.

Larger balance, non-homogeneous exposures representing significant
individual credit exposures are evaluated based upon the borrower's averall
financial condition, resources, and payment record; the prospects for support
from any financially responsible guarantors; and, if appropriate, the
realizable value of any collateral. The atlowance for credit losses attributed to
thesc loans is established via a process that begins with estimates of probable
loss inherent in the portfolio based upon various statistical analyses. These
analyses consider historical and projected default rates and loss severitics;
internal risk ratings; geographic, industry, and other environmental factors;
and model imprecision. Management also considers overall portfolio
indicators, including trends in internally risk-rated exposures, classified
exposures, cash-basis loans, and histotical and forecasted write-offs; and 2
review of industry, geographic, and portfolio concentrations, including
current developments within those segments. In addition, management
considers the current business strategy and credit process, including credit
limit setting and compliance, credit approvals, loan underwriting criteria.
and loan workout procedures.

Within the allowance for credit losses, amounts are specified for larger
balance, non-homogeneous loans that have been individually determined to
he impaired These reserves consider all available evidence, including, as
appropriate, the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at
the loan's contractual effective rate, the secondary market value of the loan
and the fair value of collateral

Each portfolio of smatler balance, homogeneous loans, including
consumer mortgage, installment, revolving credit and most other consurer
foans, is collectively evaluated for impairment. The atlowance for credit fosses
is established via a process that begins with estimates of probable losses
inherent in the portfolio, based upon various statistical analyses. These
include migration analysis, inwhich historical detinquency and credit loss
experience is applied to the current aging of the portfolio, together with
analyses that reflect current trends and conditions. Managenent also
considers overall portfolio indicators including historical credit losses,
delinquent, non-performing and classified loans, and trends in volumes and
terms of loans; an evaluation of overall credit quality and the credit process,
including lending policies and procedures; economic, geographical, product,
and other environmental factors; and model imprecision.
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This evaluation includes an assessment of the ability of borrowers with
foreign currency obligations to ehtain the foreign currency necessary for
orderly debt servicing.

During the year-ended December 31, 2001, there were increases in net
credit losses, cash-basis loans and delinquency rates. If such experience
continues, higher loss experience could result in the future. See discussions of
Consumer Credit Risk and Corporate Credit Risk in Management's Discussion
and Analysis for additional information.

Insurance Policy and Claims Reserves

Insurance policy and claims reserves rapresent liabilities for future insurance
policy benefits. Insurance reserves for traditional life insurance, anmuities,
and accident and health policies have been computed based upon mortality,
moehidity, persistency and inferest rate assumptions (ranging from 2.5% to
& 1%) applicable to theses coverages, including adverse deviation. These
assumptions consider Company experience and industry standards and may
be revised if it is determined that future experience will differ substantially
from that previously assumed. Property-casualty reserves include (1)
uneamed premiums representing the unexpired portion of policy premiums
and (2) estimated provisions for both reported and unreported claims
incurred and related expenses

tn determining insurance policy and claims reserves, the Company
performs a continuing review of its overall pesition, its reserving techniques
and its reinsurance. The reserves are also reviewed periodically by a qualified
actuary emploved by the Conspany. The Conpany maintains property and
casualty loss reserves to cover the estimated ultimate unpaid liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses with respect to reported and unreported claims
incurred as of the end of each accounting period. Reserves do not represent
an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent estimates, generally
utilizing actuarial projection techniques at 4 given accounting date. These
reserve estimates are expectations of what the ultimate setternent and
administration of claims will cost based on an assessment of facts and
circumstances then known, review of historical settlement patterns, estimates
of trends in claims severity, frequency, legal theories of liability and other
factors. Variables in the rserve estimation process can be affected by both
intemal and external events, such as changes in claims handling procedures,
economic inflation, legal trends and legislative changes. Many of these items
are not directly quantifiable, particularly on a prospective basis. Additionally,
there may he significant reporting lags hetween the occurrence of the insured
event and the time it is actually reported to the insurer. Reserve estimaies are
continually refined in 4 regular ongoing process as historical loss experience
develops and additiona] claims are reported and settled. Adjustments to
reserves are reflected in the results of operations in the periods in which the
estimates are changed. Because establishment of reserves is an inherently
uncertain process involving estimates, currently established reserves may not
be sufficient, If estimated reserves are insufficient, the Company will incur
additional income statement charges, which could be material to our
operating results in future periods.

Additional information on the uncertainties relating to environmental and
ashestos claims and litigation can be found in the Commercial Lines section
of Management's Discussion and Analysis. Additional information about
Citigroup's insurance policy and claims reserves can be found in Note 13 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Securitizations

Securitization is a process by which a legal entity issues certain securities to
investors, which securities pay a return hased on the principal and interest
cash flows from a pool of loans or other financial assets. Citigroup securitizes
credit card receivables, mortgages, home equity loans, and auto loans that
itoriginated and/or purchased and certain other financial assets. After
receivables or loans are securitized, the Company continues to maintain
account refationships with credit card holders and certain mortgage and
home equity and auto loan customers. As a result, the Company continues

to consider these securitized assets to be part of the business it manages.
Citigroup also assists its clients in securitizing the clients” financial assets.
Citigroup may provide administrative, underwriting, liquidity tacilities and/or
other services to the resulting securitization entities, and may continue to
service the financial assets sold to the securitization entity.

There are two key accounting determinations that must be made relating
to securitizations. In the case where Citigroup originated or previously owned
the financial assets transferred to the securitization entity, 2 decision must be
made as to whether that ransfer would be considered a sale for generally
acoepted accounting purposes. The second key determination to be made is
whether the securitization entity should be considered 4 subsidiary of the
Company and be consolidated into the Company’s financial staiements or
whether the entity is sufficiently independent that it does not need to be
consolidated. If the securitization entity's activities are sufficiently restricted
to meet certain accounting requirements, the securitization entity is not
consolidated by the seller of the transferred assets. Most of the Company’s
securitization transactions meet the criteria for sale accounting and
nonconsolidation.

Additional information on the Company's securitization activities can
be found in the Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements section on page 71 and
Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments.

FUTURE APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Business Combinations, Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets

Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and certain provisions
of SEAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™ as required for
goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business combinations
consummated after June 30, 2001. The new rules require that al} business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 be accounted for under the
purchase method. The nonamortization provisions of the new rules affecting
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are effective for
all purchase business combinations completed after june 30, 2001.

On fanuary 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS
142 when the rules became effective for calendar vear companies. Under the
new rules, effective January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to
have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject o annual
impaitment tests. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their useful lives.

Based on current levels of goodwill and an evaluation of the Company's
intangible assets, which determined that certain intangible assets should be
reclassified as goodwill and identified other intangible assets that have
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indefinite lives, the nonamortization provisions of the new standards will
reduce other expense by apptoximately $570 million and increase net income
by approximately $450 million in 2002.

During 2002, the Company will perform the required impairment tests of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1, 2002. Itis not
expected that the adoption of the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 will have a
material effect on the financial stalements as a result of these impairment tests.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

In September 2000, the FASB issucd SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a
replacement of FASE Statement No. 1257 (SFAS 140). In July 2001, FASB
issued Technical Bulletin No. 01-1, “Effective Date for Certain Financial
Institutions of Certain Provisions of Statement 140 Related to the Isolation
of Transterred Assets.”

Certain provisiens of SEAS 140 require that the structure for transfers of
financial 4ssets o certain securitization vehicles be modified to comply with
revised isolation guidance for institutions subject to receivership by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Comporation. These provisions will beconue effective
for transters taking place after December 31, 2001, with an additional
transition period ending no later than September 30, 2006 for transfers to
certain master trusts. 1t is notexpected that these provisions will materially
affect the financial statements. SFAS 140 also provides revised guidance for an
entity to be considered a qualifying special purpose catity.

impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

OnJanuary 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144), when the rule
became effective for calendar vear companies. SFAS 144 establishes additional
criteria as compared to existing generally accepted accounting principles to
determine when 4 long-lived asset is held for sale. It also broadens the
definition of “discontinued operations,” but does not allow for the accrual of
future operating losses, as was previously permitted.

The provisions of the new standard ate generally to be applied
prospectively. The provisions of SFAS 144 will affect the timing of discontinued
operations treatment for the planned initial public offering and tax-free
distribution of Travclers Property Casualty Corp.

Business Focus

The table below shows the core income (loss) for each of Citigroup's

husinesses for the thiee vears ended Decerber 31:

& mitlions of doilars, excent per share data 2001 20000 1993
Global Consumer
Citibanking North America $ 605 $ 4% $ 373
Mortgage Banking 353 297 249
North America Cards 2,133 1,787 1,436
GitiFinancial 1,126 810 761

Total Banking/Lending 4,217 3,390 2,819
Primerica Financial Services 512 492 452
Personal Lines 208 307 280

Total Insurance 720 799 732
Western Europe 483 384 312
Japan 928 729 494

Asia 611 550 352

Latin America 120 250 193

Mexico 346 58 83

Central & Eastern Europe,

Middle East & Africa 89 50 38

Total Emerging Markets Consumer Banking 1,166 906 666

Total Infernational 2577 2,019 1,472
e-Consumey {77) {160) {110}
Othet (71) (44) 62
Total Global Consumer 7,366 6,004 4975
Global Corporate
Corparate and Investment Bank 3,509 3,670 3,372
Emerging Markets Corporate Banking

and Global Transaction Services 1,644 1403 882
Commercial Lines 691 1.093 884
Total Global Corporate 5,844 6,166 5,138
Glohal Investment Management

and Private Banking
Travelers Life and Annuity 821 777 623
The Citigroup Private Bank 378 323 269
Citigroup Asset Management 336 345 327
Total Global Investment Management and

Private Banking 1,535 1,445 1,219
Investment Activities 530 1,383 650
Corporate/Other {706) (858) 637)
Core income 14,569 14,140 11,345
Restructuring- and merger-related

items, after-tax (285) (550) 25
Housing Finance unit charge, after-tax - 71 -
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (158) — (127
Net income $14,126 $13,519 $11.243
Diluted earnings per share
Core income $ 281 § 2.74 5 219
Net income $ 272 § 282 § 217

{1} Reclassified to conform 1o the 2001 presentation.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Income and Earnings Per Share
Citigroup reported 2001 core income of $14.569 billion or $2.81 per diluted
share, both up 3% from $14.140 billion or $2.74 per diluted share in 2000.
Core income in 2001 excluded $285 million in after-tax restructuring-related
items and $158 million in after-tax charges reflecting the cumulative effect of
adopting SFAS 133 and EITF 99-20. as described in Notes 1 and 15 o the
Consolidated Financial Staternents. Core income in 2000 excluded $621
million in after-tax restructuring- and mergeerelated items. Core income of
$11.345 billion or $2.19 per diluted share in 1999 excluded a release of $25
million after-tax in restructuring-related items and an after-tax charge of
$127 million reflecting the cumulative effect of adopting several new
accounting standards as described in Notes 1 and 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Staements.

Net income in 2001 was $14.126 billion or §2.72 per diluted share, both
up 4% trom $13.519 hillion or $2.62 per diluted share in 2000. Net income
in 2000 was up $2.276 billion or 20% from 1999. Core incone return on
common equity was 20.4% in 2001 compared to 23.5% for 2000 and 21.7%
for 1999,

Glohal Consumer core income increased $1 4 hillion or 23% in 2001 led
by increases of $346 million or 19% in North America Cards, $316 million
or 39% in CitiFinancial, §290 million in Mexico reflecting the August
acquisition of Banamex, and $199 mitlion or 27% in Japan. Global Corporate
decreased $322 million or 5% in 2001 retlecting decreases in Commercial
Lincs and Corporate and investment Bank, partially offset by a 17% increase
in EM Corporate & GTS. Global Investment Management and Private
Banking improved $90 million or 6% in 2001, while investment Activities
decreased $853 million or 62%, primarily due to lower venture capital results.

Core income growth of $2.8 billion or 25% in 2000 was led by Global
Corporate which improved $1.0 billion or 20% from 1999, Global Consumer
which increased $1.0 billion or 21%, Investent Activities which was up §733
million and Glebal Investment Management and Private Banking which
improved $226 million or 19%.

Revenues, Net of interest Expense

Adjusted revenues, net of intercst expense of $83.6 billion in 2001 were up
$5.9 biltion or 8% from 2000, Revenues in 2000 were up $9.3 billion or 14%
from 1999, Global Consumer revenues in 2001 were up $5.8 billion o 16%
from 2000 o $41.3 billion, including increases of $3.4 billion or 18% in
Banking/Lending, $2.2 bilkion or 2% in International and $298 million or
5% in Insurance. Global Consumier revenues in 2000 increased $2.9 billion or
9% from 1999 to $35.5 billion, led by Banking/Lending, up $1.6 billion or 9%,
and the International businesses, up $1.2 billion or 14%.

Global Gorporate revenues of $34.3 billion in 2001 were up $313 million
or 2% from 2000, led by increases of 11% in EM Corporate & GTS and 6 %
in Commercial Lines, partially offset by a 2% decrease in Corporate and
Tnvestment Bank. n 2000, Global Gorporate revenues of §33.5 billion were
up $4.8 billion or 17% from 1999 reflecting increases in Corporate and
Investment Bank of $3.3 billion or 20%, 16% in EM Corporate & GTS, and
10% in Commercial Lines.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking revenues increased
$408 miitlion or 6% in 2001, and §1.0 billion or 17 % in 2000 reflecting
continued growth in assets under management and business volurmes for
both years and the impact of acquisitions in 2000.

Selected Revenue ltems

Net interest revenue as calculated trom the Consolidated Statement of Income
was $34.6 bitlion in 2001, up £6.3 hillion or 22% from 2000, which was up
$2.0 biltion or 8% from 1999 reflecting business volume growth in most
markets and the impact of acquisitions. Net interest revenue, adjusted for the
effect of securitization activity, of $40.7 hillion was up §7.0 biltion or 21% in
2001 and $1.6 billion or 5% in 2000.

Total commissions, asset management and administration fees, and other
fee revenues of $21.3 billion were down $368 million or 2% in 2001 primarily
reflecting decreases in over-the-counter securities and mutual fund
commissions due to depressed market conditions, partially offset by the
intpact of acquisitions. Insurance premiums of $13.5 billion in 2001 were up
$1.0 billion or 8% from year-ago levels and up $925 million or 8% in 2600
reflecting strong growth in Travelers Life & Annuity in both 2001 and 2000,
and Commercial Lines in 2001,

Principal transactions revenues decteased in 2001, from $6.0 billion in
2000 and $5.2 hillion in 1999 reflecting results in Corporate and Inwestment
Bank. Realized gains from sales of investments of $578 million in 2001 were
down from $806 million in 2000, but were up from $541 million in 1999,
The increase in 2000 resulted from gains on the exchange of certain Latin
American bonds, partially offset by losses in insurance-related investments.
Other income of $4.5 billion in 2001 decreased $1.4 billion from 2000, which
was up $1.2 billion from 1999. The 2001 decrease primarily reflected venture
capital activity.

Operating Expenses

Adjusted operating expenses, which exclude restructuring: and merger-related
costs, grew $1.4 billion or 4% to $39.1 billion in 2001, and increased $4.0
biltien or 12% from 1999 to 2000.

Global Corporate expenses were up $57 million in 2001, primarily
attributable o higher expenses in Commiercial Lines and EM Corporate &
GTS, as aresult of acquisitions, and other volume-related increases, and
partially offset by lower production-relaied compensation and expense control
initiatives in the Corporate and Investment Bank. Expenses increased in
Global Consumer by 7% in 2001 and 8% in 2000 reflecting higher business
volumes including acquisitions, partially offsetin 2001 by savings resulting
from the integration of Associates. Global Investment Management and
Private Banking expenses increased 1% in 2001 and 16% in 2000, driven by
acquisitions in 2001 and investments in sales and marketing activities,
technology, and product development in both vears.

Restructuring- and Merger-Related {tems

Restructuring: related items of $458 million ($285 milkion after-tax) in 2001
related primarily to severance and costs associated with the reduction of staff
primuasily in the Global Corporate and Global Consumer businesses and the
acquisition of Banamex in the 2001 third quarter.

Restructuring-related iterns of $759 million {8550 miltion after-tax) in
2000 primarily related to the acquisition of Associates. Restructuring charges
included the reconfiguration of branch operations, the exiting of certain
activities, and the consolidation and integration of certain middle and back
office functions. Also included in the costs were $177 miflion of merger-
related items, which included legal, advisory and SEC filing fees, as well as
other costs of administratively closing the acquisition.
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Housing Finance Unit Charge

Included in other operating expenses for 2000 is a $71 million (after-tax)
charge associated with the discontinuation of the loan origination operations
of the Associates Housing Finance unit.

Benefits, Claims and Credit Losses

Adjusted henefits, claims and credit losses were $22.1 billion in 2001, up

$4 2 hillion or 24% from 2000, which was up $1.3 billien or 8% from 1999
Policyholder benefits and dlaims increased 16% to $11 8 hillion in 2001 and
11% to $10.1 billion in 2000 primasily as a result of higher loss levels in
Commercial and Personal Lines and increased volume in Travelers Life &
Annuity. The adjusted provision for credit losses increased 34% to $10.4 billion
in 2001 and 4% to $7.8 billion in 2000.

Global Consumer adjusted benefits, claims and credit losses of $13.0
hillion were up 25% in 2001 and 3% in 2000. Managed net credit losses in
2001 were $8.9 billion and the related loss ratio was 2.89% compared with
$6.8 hillion and 2.48% in 2000 and $6.7 biltion and 2.80% in 1999. The
managed consumer loan delinquency ratio (90 days or more past due)
was 2.37% at the end of 2001, up from 1.75% and 1.95% at the end of 2000
and 1999.

Glohal Corporate henefits, claims and credit losses increased to $6.5 biltion
from $5.2 billion in 2000, which was up from $4.3 billion in 1999, resulting
from increases in Commercial Lines of $873 million, and $362 rillion in
Gorporate and Investment Bank and $136 million in £M Corporate & GTS,
primarily in Asia.

Commercial cash-basis loans at December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $4.0
hiltion and $2.0 billion, respectively, while the commercial Other Real Estate
Owned (OREQ) portfolio totaled $220 million and $291 million, respectively.
The increase in cash-basis loans was primarily related to the acquisition
of Banamex, the transportation portfolio, and increases attributable to
borrowers in the retail, telecommunication, energy and utility industries.
The improvements in ORED were primarily related to the North America
real estate portfolio.

Capital

Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) was §75.8 billion or 10.92% of risk-adjusted
assets, and Tier 1 capital was $58.4 billion or 8.42% at December 31, 2001,
compared to §73.0 billion or 11.23% and $54.5 billion or 8.38% at
December 31, 2000,

The Income line in each of the following business discussions excludes the
cumulative effect of adopting accounting changes in 2001 and 1999. See
Notes 1 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

GLOBAL CONSUMER

In miiens of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense  $37,697 332,999 $29.816
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2,459 2,707
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense 41,265 35458 32,523
Adjusted operating expenses ! 16,793 15,668 14,471
Provisions for benefits, claims

and credit losses 9,382 7895 7,346
Effect of securitization activities 3,568 2.459 2,707
Adjusted provisions for benefits, claims

and credit losses 12,950 10,354 10,063
Core income hefore taxes and

minority interest 11,522 9,436 7.999
Income taxes 4,102 3,394 2,953
Minority interest, after-tax 54 38 71
Core income 7,366 6,004 4,975
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (144) (144) {78
Income $ 7,222 $ 5860 $ 4897

(1) Recassified to confoim to the 2001 presentation.

(?) Fxeludes restiuchuing refated flems.

Global Consumer —which provides banking, lending, including credit
and charge cards, and investment and personal insurance products and
services to customers around the world—reported core income of §7.366
billion in 2001, up $1.362 billion or 23% from 2000, which, in tum, increased
$1.029 billion or 21% from 1999, Banking/Lending core income increased
$827 million or 24% in 2001 reflecting double-digit earnings growth in ali
businesses. Banking/Lending core income increased $571 million or 20% in
2000 marked by strong performances in North America Cards, Citibanking
North America and Mortgage Banking, For the insurance businesses of Global
Consume, which include Primerica Financial Services and Personal Lines,
core income decreased $79 million or 10% in 2001 primarily driven by
catastrophe losses in Personal Lines associated with the terrorist attack of
September 11th. For the insurance businesses of Global Consumer, core
income grew $67 million or 9% in 2000 reflecting strong mutual fund sales
and net investment income in Primerica Financial Services. The developed
markets of Western Europe and Japan reported core income of $1.411 billion
in 2001, up $298 million or 27% from 2000, which, in turn, grew $307
million or 38% from 1999 primarily reflecting the irapact of acquisitions and
higher business volumes. Core income in Emerging Markets Consumer
increased $260 milion of 29% in 2001 primarily reflecting the acquisition of
Banamex, partiaily offset by teanslation losses in Latin America resulting
from the re-denomination of certain consumer loans in Argentina. In 2000,
core income in Emerging Markets Consumer increased $240 million or 36%
reflecting strong performance in Asia and Latin America.

Income of $7.222 billion 1n 2001, $5.860 billion in 2000, and $4.897
billion in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $144 million (8223
million pretax), $144 million (§223 million pretax), and §78 millin ($120
million pretax), respectively. See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial
Satements for 2 discussion of restructuring-related items.
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[n 2000, Citigroup adopted the Federal Financial Institutions
Examination Council’s (FFIEC) revised Uniform Retail Classification and
Account Managenent Policy, which provided guidance on the reporting of
delinquent consumer loans and the timing of associated charge-offs for
Citigroup's depository institution subsidiaries. The adoption of the policy
resulted in additional net credit losses of approximately $90 million which
were charped against the allowance for credit losses.

BANKING/LENDING

Citibanking North America

in millions of doftars 2001 200008 1909
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,714 $2,273 2121
Adjusted operating expenses i 1,651 1423 1417
Provision for credit losses 70 29 64
Core income before taxes 993 821 640
Income taxes 388 325 267
Core Income 605 496 373
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 3) 9 1
income $ 602 $ 505 $ 374

Average assets (i hitions of tuitars) $ 13 $ 9 $ 9

Return on assets 4.63% 5.61% 4.16%
Excluding restructuring - related items
Return an assets 4.65% 551% 4.14%

{1} Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(7 Fxcludes restictiring-related fems.

Citibanking North America—which delivers banking, lending and
investment services to custormers through Citibank's branches and electronic
detivery systerns— reported cote income of $605 million in 2001, up $109
million or 22% from 2000 primarily reflecting revenue growth, as well s the
acquisition of the European American Bank (EAB). In July 2001, Citibanking
North America completed the acquisition of EAB, a state-chartered bank that
added $8 4 billion to end-of-period deposits, $4.4 hillion to end-of-period
loans and 78 branches at December 31, 2001. Core income of $496 million
in 2000 grew $123 million or 33% from 1999 due to revenue growth and
lower net credit losses. Income of $602 million in 2001, $505 milkion in 2000
and $374 million in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $3
million ($5 miltion pretax) in 2001 and restructuring-related credits of

$9 million (815 million pretax) and $1 million {$2 million pretax) in 2000
and 1999, respectively.

As shown in the following table, Citibanking grew accounts, custormer
deposits and loans in both 2001 and 2000 reflecting, in part, the acquisition
of EAB which added $4.0 hillion to average customer deposits, $2.3 hillion to
average loans and 0.8 million to accounts in 2001.

I bitkons of doligrs 2001 2000 1999
ACCOUNts fin milions) 1.1 67 6.3
Average customer deposils $52.4 $44.8 $424
Average loans $93 $70 $73
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Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.714 billion in 2001 increased $441
million or 19% from 2000 reflecting improved net funding and positioning
spreads, the benefit of strong customer deposit growth and increased debit
card fees, as well as the acquisition of EAB in July and a realized investment
gain resulting from the dispesition of an equity investnient. Revenue growth
in 2001 was partially offset by reduced investment product fees reflecting
market conditions throughout the vear. Revenues of $2.273 hillion in 2000
grew $152 mitlion or 7% from 1999 reflecting growth in deposits and spreads
combined with increased investment product fees.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.651 billion in 2001 increased §228
million or 16% from 2000 primarily due to the acquisition of EAB, higher
advertising and marketing costs and investments in technology and staff.
Expenses in 2000 were up stightly compared to 1999 primarily reflecting the
impact of expense management initiatives.

The provision for credit losses was $70 million in 2001, up from $29
miltion in 2060 and $64 million in 1999. The net credit loss ratio was 1.03%
in 2001 compared to 0 91% in 2000 and 1.22% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90
days or more were $96 million or 0.82% at December 31, 2001, compared to
$35 million or 0.48% at December 31, 2000 and $55 million or 0.78% at
December 31, 1999. The increases in the provision for credit losses and
delinquencies in 2001 were mainly due to the acquisition of EAB and
increases related to commercial market loans. Net credit losses are expecied to
increase from 2001 due to the inclusion of a full year's credit losses for EAB.
This statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Locking Statements”
onpage 62,

Average assets of $13 billion in 2001 increased $4 billion from 2000
primarily reflecting the acquisition of FAB. Retum on assets was 4.65% in
2001 down from 5.51% in 2000. The decline in return on assets reflects the
increase in loans associated with the addition of EAB.

Meortgage Banking

I mitfions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,037 $912 3819
Adjusted operating expenses ! 431 395 354
(Benefit) Provision for credit losses {12) 2 28
Core income before taxes and

minority interest 618 515 437
Income taxes 238 196 169
Minority interest, after-ax 27 22 19
Core income 353 297 249
Restructuring refated items, after tax ) .
Income $ 35t $297 $249
Average assets n biions of dollars} $ 48 $ 40 $ 30
Return on assets 0.73% 0.74% 0.83%

{1} Redlassified fo conform to the 2001 presentation.
{2} Excliudos restructuring 1 dated fems,
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Mortgage Banking —which originates and services mortgages and
student loans for customers across the United States — repotted core income
of $353 million in 2001, up $56 million or 19% from 2000 which, in turn,
increased $48 million or 19% from 1999 reflecting growth in both the student
loan and mortgage businesses. Income of $351 million in 2001 included
restructuring-related items of $2 milkion (83 million pretax).

As shown in the following table, accounts grew 7% in 2001 and 29% in
2000 primarily reflecting strong growth in student loans. Average on balance
sheet loans grew 23% and 29% in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Growth in 2001
was driven by increases in student loans and mortgage loans held for sale.
Growth in 2000 was driven by increases in variable rate mortgage loans,
which are typically held in the portfolio rather than securitized, and student
luans. Other serviced loans increased 13% in 2001 and 25% in 2000 primarily
retlecting growth in originations and servicing portfolio acquisitions. Total
originations were up significantly from 2000 reflecting increased mortgage
refinancing activity due to lower inferest rates.

it bitions of dofiars 2001 2000 1999
Average loans-on balance sheet ™ $ 45.1 336.8 3286
Other serviced loans 675 59.6 476
Tetat owned and serviced ioans $1126 $96.4 $76.2
Total originations $ 385 $265 $22.1
Accounts i mitfonst 43 45 35

{1} Inchudes loans held for sale

Revenues, net of inferest expense, of $1.037 billion in 2001 grew $125
miltion or 14% from 2000 mainly due to higher mortgage securitization
income and spread improvements in student loans, partially offset by lower
servicing revenue. The decline in servicing revenue primarily reflected
increased prepayment activity that was driven by lower interest rates.
Revenues in 2000 increased $93 million or 11% from 1999 as loan growth
and higher servicing income was partially offset by reduced spreads and Juwer
secutitization activity Adjusted operating expenses increased $36 million or
9%in 2001 and grew $41 million or 12% in 2000 primarily reflecting
additional business volunxs.

The (benefit) provision for credit losses was ($12) million in 2001
compared to $2 million in 2000 and $28 rmillion in 1999. The declines in the
provision for credit losses in 2001 and 2000 principally reflect improverments
in the quality of the mengage portfolio. The adoption of revised FFIEC write-
off policies in 2000 added $17 million to net credit losses, which were charged
against the allowance for credit losses, and 4 basis potnts to the 2000 net
credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 0.09% in 2001 compared to
0.18% (0.12% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy revisions) in 2000 and
0.18% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were $1.157 billion o
2.53% of loans at December 31, 2001, up from $846 million or 2.01% at
December 31, 2000 and $707 million or 2.26% at December 31, 1949. The
increase in delinquencies from 2000 mainly reflects 2 higher level of
huyhacks from GNMA pools where the credit risk is maintained by
government agencies.
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North America Cards

Inmitions of doltts 2001 20007 19904
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 9574 $ 8,346 $7.157
Effect of securitization activities 3454 2410 2,707
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense 13,028 10,756 9.864
Adjusted operating expenses & 4,069 3,954 3,607
Adjusted provision for credit josses 5,593 3973 3979
Core income before taxes 3,366 2,829 2278
Income taxes 1,233 1.042 842
Core income 2,133 1,787 1,436
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 16 {57 12
Income $ 2,149 $ 1,730 31,448
Pverage assels din bitions of dollarsy: $ 48 $ 45 $§ 3B
Return on assets 4.48% 3.84% 4.14%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assels ™ 4.44% 397% 4.10%

(1} Recassified to conform to the 2001 presentstion,

(& Excludes restructuring refated tems.

{3 Adjusted for the sffect of cradit card securitization activities

(41 Adiusted for the offect of securitization activitios, managed avorage and the related return on
assels, sxcluding restruciuning-refated lems, for North Ametica Ca © $108 biion and $1.98% in
2001, compared o $98 billion and 1.82% and $86 billion and 1.67% in 2000 ard 1999, respectively.

North America Cards —which includes Citi Cands (bankcards and
privae-label cards) and Diners Club— reported core income of $2.133 hiltion
in 2001, up $346 million or 19% from 2000 which, in turn, increased $351
million or 24% from 1999, driven by strong revenue growth that was partially
offset by higher credit costs. Income of $2.149 billion in 2001, $1.730 billion
in 2000 and $1.448 hillion in 1999 included restructuring-related credits of
$16 million ($26 million pretax) and $12 miltion ($19 million pretax) in
2001 and 1999, respectively, and restructuring-related charges of §57 million
(891 million pretax) in 2000.

As shown in the following table, on a managed basis, the Giti Cards
portfolio experienced growth in 2001 of 6% in end-of-period receivables, 2%
in accounts, 1% in cards in force and 1% in total sales. Growth in sales,
accounts and cards in force in 2001 was pegatively impacted by current
economic conditions, as well as the impact of the events of September 11th.
Increases in 2000 primarily reflect the impact of portfolio acquisitions,

fn ifins of doliars 2001 2000 1999
ACCOUNtS /i milions} 929 90.8 767
Cards inforce s milons) 142 140 124
Total sales $2185 $2157 31831
End-of-period managed receivables $108.9 $103.2 3 856

Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense, of $13.028 billion in 2001
increased $2.272 billion or 21% fror 2000 reflecting spread improvement due
to lower cost of funds and repricing actions, combined with the benefit of
receivable growth. Adjusted reverues of $10.756 billion in 2000 increased
$892 million or 9% from 1999 primarily reflecting receivable growth,
including portfolio acquisitions, and higher interchange fee revenues due to
sales volume growth, partially offset by lower spreads.
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Risk adjusted margin is 2 measure of profitability calculated as adjusted
revenues less managed net credit losses divided by average managed loans.
This measure is consistent with the goal of matching the revenues generated
by the loan portfolio with the credit risk undertaken. As shown in the
following table, Citi Cards risk adjusted margin of 6.98% decreased 6 basis
points from 2000 4s higher spreads were more than offset by higher net
credit losses.

{0 biffons of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Risk adjusted revenues ! $7.1 $6.5 35.6
Risk adjusted margin % 6.98% 7.04% 7.06%

{1} Cili Cards adjusted reventies less managed net credit losses.
2) Risk adusted revenues as a parcentage of average managed loans.

Adjusted operating expenses of $4.069 billion in 2001 increased $115
miflion or 3% from 2000 as volume-related incredses were partially offset by
disciplined expense management. In 2000, adjusted operating expenses grew
$347 million ot 10% from 1999 reflecting acquisitions and increased target-
marketing efforts in Citi Cards. Citi Cards adjusted operating expenses as 4
percentage of average managed loans were 3.69%, 4.00% and 4.20% in 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

The adjusted provision for credit losses in 2001 was $5.593 billion
compared with $3.973 billion in 2000 and $3.979 billien in 1999, Citi Cards
managed net credit losses in 2001 were $5.556 billion and the related loss
ratio was 5.44%, compared with $3.921 billion and 4.28% in 2000 and $3.903
billion and £91% in 1999, The increase in net credit losses from the prior vear
reflects current U.S. economic conditions as well 4s 4 rise in bankruptcy
filings. Citi Cards managed loans delinquent 90 days or more were $2.135
billion or 1.98% of loans at December 31, 2001 compared with $1.497 billion
or 1.46% at December 31, 2000 and $1.285 billion or 1.51% at December 31,
1999. Net credit osses and the related ratio are expected to increase from 2001
as a result of continued economic weakness including rising hankruptey
filings and delinquent loans. This statement is a forward-looking statement
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See
“Forward-Looking Statements™ on page 62

CitiFinanciat
iy mifions of dodlars 2001 20007 1999
Adjusted revenues, net of interest expense  $5,634 $5,071 $4.600
Adjusted operaling expenses = 2,006 2,256 1980
Adjusted provisions for benefits claims

and credit losses 1,830 1,646 1414
Core income before taxes 1,798 1,269 1.206
Income taxes 672 459 445
Core income 1,126 810 761
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (19) {68) 2)
Income $1,107 $ 742 3 759
Average managed assets (i hifliens of dhliarst $ 6 $ 5 $ 48
Return on managed assets 1.70% 1.33% 1.58%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on managed assels 1.73% 1.45% 1.59%

1 Redassified to conform to the 2001 presontation
(2} Excludes restructuring-refated foms.
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CitiFinancial—which provides community-based lending services
through its branch network, regional sales offices and cross-selling initiatives
with other Gitigroup businesses— reported core income of $1.126 billion in
2001, up $316 million or 39% from 2000 primarily reflecting strong growth in
receivables, efficiencies resulting frem the integration of Associates and lower
cost of funds. Core income of $810 million in 2000 increased $49 million or
6% trom 1999 primarily reflecting strong growth in receivables, including the
effects of acquisitions. Income of $1.107 billion in 2001, $742 milkion in 2000
and $759 million in 1999 included restructuring-related itervs of $19 million
(832 million pretax), $68 million ($165 million pretax) and $2 million ($3
million pretax), respectively.

As shown in the following table, managed receivables grew 9% in 2001 and
15% in 2000 resulting from higher volurmes from CitiFinancial locations, the
cross-selling of products through other Citigroup distribution channels, and,
in 2000, the impact of acquisitions. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
portfolio consisted of 69% real estate-secured loans, compared with 68% at
December 31, 1999. The average net interest margin of 7.99% in 2001
increased 20 basis points compared to 2000 as lower cost of funds was
partially offset by continued growth in lower risk real estate foans that have
lower vields. The average net interest margin of 7.79% in 2000 decreased 54
basis points compared to 1999 due to growth in fower-risk real estate loans
and higher cust of funds.

& bikions of dallars 2001 2000 1999
End-of-period managed receivables '

Real estate secured loans —other $335 3329 $289
Real estate secured loans —PFS sourced 78 52 38
Personal loans 9.7 9.9 10.0
Auto 6.5 46 25
Sales finance and other 217 27 29
Total $602 $55.3 3481
Average net interest margin % 79% 7.79% 8.33%

(1} Excludes loas held for sale.

Adjusted revenues, net of intetest expense, of $5.634 hillion in 2001
increased $563 million or 11% from 2000 reflecting strong growth in
receivables and lower cost of funds which was mainly due to a lower interest
rate environment, partially offset by lower vields. Adjusted revenues in 2000
increased $471 million or 10% from 1999 primarily reflecting strong growth
in receivables. Adjusted operating expenses of $2.006 billion in 2001 decreased
$250 mitlion or 11% from 2000 primaily reflecting efficiencies resulting from
the integration of Associates, partially offsct by volume-related increases. In
2000, adjusted operating expenses increased $276 million or 14% from 1999
reflecting higher business volumes, including the effects of acquisitions.

Adjusted provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses were $1.830
billion in 2001, up from $1.546 billion in 2000 and $1.414 billion in 1999.
The net credit Joss ratio of 2.70% in 2001 was up from 2.57% in 2000 and
2.66% in 1999. Net credit Josses in 2001 include losses of $76 million from the
sales of certain underperforming loans, which were charged against the
allowance for credit losses and resulted in a 12 basis points increase in the net
credit loss ratio. Loans delinguent 90 days or more were $2.002 billion or
3.32% of Joans at Decernber 31, 2001, up from $1.272 billion or 2.23% of
loans at Decerber 31, 2000 and $943 million or 1.96% at December 31, 1999
The increase in delinquencies in 2001 was primarily due to the alignment of
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credit and collection policies in the Associates real estate portfolio to those at
CitiFinancial combined with the impact of current U.S. economic conditions.
Net credit fosses and the related loss ratio are expected to increase from 2001
as a result of economic conditions and credit performance of the portfolios,
including bankruptey filings. This statement s a forward-looking statement
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See
“Forward-Leoking Statements™ on page 62.

INSURANCE

Primerica Financial Services

putchase of term life insurance as compared to traditional whole life
insurance. Primerica sales of variable annuities, predominately underwritten
by Travelers Life and Annuity, generated net written premiums and

deposits of §924 million in 2001 compared to $1 057 billion in 2000 and $9%0
million in 1999. Cash advanced on loan products primarily underwritten by
CitiFinancial was $3.87 billion in 2001 compared to $2.09 billion in 2000 and
$1.92 billion in 1999. The increase in cash advanced reflects rate reductions
implemented during 2001. Sales of mutual funds were $3.409 billion in 2001
compared to $4.220 billion in 2000 and $3.124 hillion in 1999 reflecting a
difficult market environment during 2001. During 2001, proprietary mutual
funds accounted for 67% of Primerica’s 1S, sales and 58% of Primerica’s total

In ions of doitirs 2001 2000 199 sales, compared to 50% and 43% in 2000

Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,979 31,915 $1.775 .

Provision for benefits and claims 506 496 487 Personai Lines

Adjusted operating expenses 683 659 086 i1 mithons of doitars 2001 20001 1999

Core income before taxes 790 760 702 Total revenues, net of interest expense $4.464 $4,230 $4.071

income taxes 278 268 250 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 3,099 2,767 2,572

Core lncome & 512 49 452 Adjusted operating expenses 1,079 1.002 1,021

Restructuring-related iters, after-tax - 1 — Income before taxes and minority interest 286 461 478
Income taxes 78 138 144

Income $ 512 3 4% 3 452 Minority interest, after-tax - 16 54

(1) Excludes restuctring-related items. “

(2} Fxcludes invesrmen?gainslimses incuded indnvestment Activiies segment Core mmme . 208 307 280
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (3) — —

Primerica Financiaf Services —which sells life insurance as well as Income $ 205 $ 207 s 280

other products manufactured by the Company, including Salomon Smith
Barney mutual funds, CitiFinancial morigages and personal loans and
Travelers Insurance Company annuity products— reported core income of
$512 million in 2001 compared to $492 million in 2000 and $452 millien in
1999. The 4% improverment in 2001 reflects strong net investrent income
and $ MART loan® sales, partially offset by lower mutual fund sales. The
9% improvement in 2000 retlects strong mutual fund sales and net
investment income partially offset by increased infrastructure investment
inchuding international expansion. Results in all periods continue to reflect
success at cross selling a range of products (particularly mutual funds,
variable annuities and debt consolidation loans), growth in life insurance in
force, improved investment income, and disciplined expense management.

Increases in production and cross-selling initiatives were achieved during
2001. Earned premiums net of reinsurance were $1.145 billion, $1.106
billion, and $1.071 billion in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Total face
amount of issued term life insurance was $71 5 billion in 2001 compared
to $67.4 hillion in 2000 and $56 2 billion in 1999. The number of policies
issued was 244,700 in 2001, compared to 234,700 in 2000 and 209,900 in
1999. The average face value per policy issued was $250,400 in 2001
compared to $245,000 in 2000 and $229,000 in 1999. Life insurance in force
atyear-end 2001 reached $434.8 biltion, up from $412.7 hillion at vearend
2000 and $394.9 billion at year-end 1999, and continued to reflect good
policy persistency.

Primerica leverages its cross-selling efforts through the Financial Needs
Analysis (FNA) — the diagnostic tool that enhances the ability of the Personal
Financial Analysts to address client needs— to expand its business beyond life
insurance by offering its clients a greater array of financial products and
services, delivered personally through its sales force. During 2001, 470,000
FNAs were submitted. In addition, Primerica has traditionally offered mutual
funds to clients as a means to invest the relative savings realized through the
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{1} Peclassified lo conform to the 2001 presentation.
{21 Exeludes restruciuting-refated flems.
(3) See Note 2 lo the Consolidated Financial Stalemients.
(4} Excludes investment gainsflosses indluded in fivestment Activiies segment.
Personal Lines— which writes property and casualty insurance covering
personal risks—reported core income of $208 million in 2001 corpared to
$307 million in 2000 and $280 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease reflects
the impact of catastrophe losses of $42 million associated with the terrorist
attack on Scptember 11th, increased loss cost trends, including increased
medical costs and auto repair costs, lower favorable prior-year reserve
development and lower net investment income, partially offset hy premium
growth driven by imptoving rates. Also retlected in the 2001 results are the
incremental earnings from the minority interest buyback. The 2000 results
eflect increased net investment income, lower catastrophe losses, and the
incremiental earnings from the minority interest buyback, partially offset by
increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-year reserve development.
Included in the 1999 results is a charge related to curtailing the sale of
TRAVELERS SECURE® auto and homeowners products.

The following table shows net written premiums by product line for the
three years ended December 31

tn mifions of dollars 2001 2000 19990
Personal autemobile $2,642 $2,408 $2.388
Homeowners and other 1,524 1456 1,444
Total net written premiums $4,166 $3.864 33,832

(1} Redlassified lo conform 1o the 2001 presentation.

Personal Lines net written premiums for 2001 were $4.166 billion
compared to $3.864 billion in 2000 and $3.832 billion in 1999. Net written
premiums in 1999 included an adjustment associated with the termination
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of a quota share reinsurance arrangement, which increased homeowners'
premiums written by independent agents by $72 million. The increase in net
written premiums in 2001 compared to 2000 reflects growth in target markets
served by independent agents and growth in affinity group marketing and
joint marketing arrangements, partially offset by continued emphasis on
disciplined underwriting and risk management. Rate increases implemented
in both the automobile and homeowners product lines were the primary
contributors to the growth in net written premiums. The business retention
ratio for 2001 was comparable to the 2000 ratio. The increase in net written
premiums in 2000 compared to 1999, excluding the reinsurance adjustment,
primarily reflects growth in target markets served by independent agents and
growth in affinity group marketing and joint marketing arrangerments and is
partially offset by planned reductions in the TRAVELERS SECURE® auto and
homeowners business, a mandated rate decrease in New Jersey and continued
emphasis on disciplined underwriting and risk management. The business
Tetention ratio for 2000 was moderately lower compared to the1999 ratio
reflecting planned reductions in the TRAVELERS SECURL® auto and
homeowners business.

Catastrophe losses, net of taxes and reinsurance, were $86 million in 2001
compared to $54 million in 2000 and $79 million in 1999. Catastrophe losses
in 2001 were primarily due to the terrorist attack on September 11th, ‘fropical
Storm Allison and windsterms and hailstorms in Texas and the Midwest.
Catastrophe losses in 2000 were primarily due to Texas, Midwest and
Northeast windstorms and hailstorms and hailstorms in Louisiana and Texas.
Catastrophe losses in 1999 were primarily due to Hurricane Floyd, windstorms
and hailstorms on the East Coast and tornadoes in the Midwest and 2
windstorm and ice storm in the Midwest and Northeast.

The Company, along with others in the industry, uses the combined ratio,
which measures the totat cost per $100 of premium production, as a measure
of performance for Personal Lines. The statutory combined ratio for Personal
Lines was 102.7% in 2001 compared to 99 8% in 2000 and 96.7% in 1999.
The U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) combined ratio
for Personal Lines was 103.1% in 2001 compared to 99.5% in 2000 and 96.8%
in 1999, GAAP combined ratios for Personal Lines differ from statutory
combined ratios primarily due to the deferral and amortization of certain
expenses for GAAP reporting purposcs only.

The 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios include the impact of the
terrorist attack on September 11 th. Excluding the impact of this event, the
2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios would have been 101.2% and
101.6%, respectively. The 1999 statutory and GAAP combined ratios for
Personal Lines include an adjustment associated with the termination of 4
quota share reinsurance arrangement. Excluding this adjustment, the 1999
statutory and GAAP combined ratios were 96.5% and 97.3%, respectively.

The increase it the 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios, excluding
the related adjustment above, compared to the statutory and GAAP combined
ratios for 2000 reflects increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-
year reserve development, partially offset by the growth in premiums due to
rate increases. The increase in the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios
compared to the statutory and GAAP combined ratios (excluding the
premium adjustment) for 1999 was primarily due to increased loss cost trends
and lower favorable prior-vear reserve development, offset in part by the
TRAVELERS SECURE® charge taken in 1999 and lower catastrophe losses.
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INTERNATIONAL CONSUMER

Western Europe

In mitiuns of dottars 2001 20001 1999
Total revenues, net of intorest expense $2,555 $2,388 $2,424
Adjusted operating expenses & 1,392 1,396 1474
Provisions for banefits, claims and credit losses 414 390 453
Core income before taxes 749 602 497
Income taxes 266 218 185
Core income 483 384 312
Restructuring-related items, after-tax 1) — 2
Income $ 432 $ 384 $ 314
Average assets (i biions of doliars) $ 22 $ 2 5 23
Return on assets 2.19% 1.83% 1.37%

{1} Reclassitied o conform to the 2001 presentation,

(2 Excludes restuciuring refated tems,

Western Europe—which provides banking, community-based lending,
including credit and charge cards, and investment products and services—
reported core income of $483 miltion in 2001, up $99 million or 26% from
2000 which, in turn, increased $72 million or 23% from 1999 primarily
reflecting growth in the consumer finance, branch lending and credit card
businesses, particularly in Germany, the UK. and Spain. Income of $482
million in 2001 and $314 million in 1999 included 2 restructuring-related
charge of $1 miltion ($2 million pretax) in 2001 and a restructuring-related
credit of $2 million ($4 million pretax) in 1999.

As shown in the following table, the Western Europe business experienced
growth of 7% in both average Joans and customer deposits in 2001. Accounts
were unchanged from 2000 25 foan and deposit growth and the impact of
acquisitions was offset by the sale of Diners Club franchises in the region. In
2000, customer deposit and loan volumes were reduced by the effect of foreign
currency translation.

In billons of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts fn mitiens) 10.1 101 a6
Average customer deposits $133 3124 3137
Average loans $180 $16.8 $17.3

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.555 billion in 2001 increased $167
miltion or 7% from 2000 principally due to growth in consumer finance,
branch lending and bankcard revenes, reflecting increased volumes and
spreads, partially offset by the effects of the Diners Cluh sale and foreign
currency translation as well as reduced investment product fees. Revenues in
2000 decreased $36 million as loan growth and higher investment product
fees were more than offset by the adverse effect of foreign currency translation.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.392 billion in 2001 declined $4 million
from 2000 as costs associated with higher husiness volumes were more than
offset by the effects of the Diners Club sale, foreign currency translation and
management expense initiatives. Expenses in 2000 decreased $78 miltion or

% from 1999 primarily reflecting lower regional office and technology
expenses and the effect of foreign currency translation.
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The provisions for benefits, clains and credit losses were $414 mitlion in
2001, compared with $390 million in 2000 and $453 million in 1999. The
adoption of revised FFIEC write-off policies in 2000 added $10 million to net
credit losses, which were charged against the allowance for credit losses, and
added 6 basis points to the net credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was
1.88% in 2001, compared with 2.05% (1.99% excluding the effects of FFIEC
policy revisions) in 2000 and 2.00% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or
more were $800 million or 4.21% of loans at Decerber 31, 2001, down from
$835 million or 4.78% at December 31, 2000 and $928 million or 5.39% at
Decernber 31, 1999, Net credit losses and the related loss ratio may increase
from 2001 as 4 result of economic conditions, statutory changes in the region
and future credit performance of the portfolios. This statement is 4 forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 6.

Japan

Adjusted operating expenses increased $131 million or 11% in 2001 and grew
$334 million or 41% in 2000 reflecting costs assaciated with expansion efforts,
including the impact of acquisitions and higher business volurmes, partially
offset by the effect of foreign currency translation.

The provision for credit losses in 2001 was $649 million, up from $500
million in 2000 and $315 million in 1999. The net credit loss ratio of 4.10%
in 2001 increased from 3.50% in 2000 and 3.49% in 1999. The increases in
net credit fosses in 2001 and 2000 were primarily due to higher loan volumes,
including the impact of acquisitions, and, in 2001, increased bankruptcy
filings and deteriorating credit quality. Loans delinquent 90 days or more
were $178 million or 1.24% of loans at December 31, 2001, up from $101
million 01 0.73% at December 31, 2000 and $112 million or 1.19% t
December 31, 1999. Net credit losses and the related ratio are expected to
increase from 2001 as a result of continued increases in bankruptey flings
and higher unemployment rates in Japan. This is a forward-looking
statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.

Inmillens of dotkss 2001 20000 199" gee “Fonward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Total revenues, net of interest expense $3,382 $2,781 $1.930 i

Adiusted operating expenses & 1,282 1,151 gty Asia

Provisian for credit losses 649 500 315 In mitlioas of dofiars 2001 20005 1999
Core income before taxes 1,451 1,130 798 Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,201 $2.096 $1,847
Income taxes 523 401 304 Adjusted operating expenses 969 971 944
Core income %8 79 494 Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses 268 273 kI
Restructuring-related items, after-tax {6) — — Core income before taxes 964 852 562
Income $ 922 ¢ 729 S 494 income taxes 353 302 210

o = Core income 611 550 352
Average assets i biors of doltars) $ 20 s 17 $ 13 Restructuring-related items, after-tax @ @ (13)
Return on assets 461% 4.29% 3.80%

Income $ 608 $ 546 $ 339
t1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
) Excludes restruetuing-tefaled fems. Average assets i hilions of doliars $ 5 $ 27 $ 2%

. . . . o . Return on assets 243% 2.02% 1.30%
Japan—uwhich provides banking, community-based lending, including . °
credit cards, and investment products and services —reported core incorme of Exchuding restructuring-related items
$928 million in 2001, up $199 million or 27% trom 2000 which, in turn, Return on assets 244% 2.04% 1.35%

increased $235 million or 48% from 1999 reflecting growth in the consumer
finance business, including the impact of the acquisition of Unimat in
Septernber 2000. Income of $922 million in 2001 included a restructuring-
related charge of $6 million ($12 million pretax).

Asshown in the following table, the Japan business experienced strong
growth in loans, customer deposits and accounts in both 2001 and 2000.
Growth in 2000 benefited from the acquisitions of Diners Club and Unimag,
which added approximately 0.6 miflion and 0.4 million to accounts and $0.5
billion and $0.4 billion to average loans, respectively. In 2001, average loans
for Unimat were $1.5 billion.

In bitfons of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts fin mifions; 5.2 4.8 33
Average customer deposits $149 $136 $114
Average loans $144 $11.6 $78

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $3 382 hiltion in 2001 grew $601
million or 22% from 2000 which, in turn, were up $851 million or 44% from
1999 reflecting growth in business volumes, including the impact of
acquisitions, and increased foreign exchange fees, partially oftset by the
impact of foreign currency translation, and, in 2001, reduced spreads.
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(1) Revdassified 1o conform to the 2001 presentation.
(™ Fxcludes resticiuring refated ftems.
Asla (excluding Japan) —which provides banking, lending, including
credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers throughout
the region — reported core income of $611 million in 2001, up $61 million
or 11% from 2000 reflecting growth across the region especially in deposits,
investment product fees and cards. Core income in 2000 was up $198 millien
or 56% from 1999 reflecting growth across the region especially in deposits,
investment product fees and cards, as well as lower credit costs. Income of
$608 million in 2001, $546 million in 2000 and $339 million in 1999
included restructuring-related charges of $3 million ($4 million pretax),
$4million (85 million pretax) and $13 mitlion ($21 million pretax),
respectively.

As shown in the following table, Asia accounts grew 20% in 2001 and 14%
in 2000 primarily reflecting growth in the cards business across the region.

In ithons of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts fm mitfions) 938 82 72
Average customer deposits $35.5 $347 $30.7
Average loans $213 $22.2 8217
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Revenues, net of interest expense, of §2.201 billion in 2001 increased $105
million or 5% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $249 million or 13% from
1999 reflecting continued growth across the region especially in deposits,
investment product fees and cards.

Adjusted operating expenses in 2001 of $969 million decreased $2 million
from 2000 reflecting expense control initiatives across the region, partially
offset by increased costs associated with volume growth. Expenses in 2000
increased $27 million or 3% trom 1999 reflecting increased variable
compensation and increased marketing costs, partially offset by lower
expenses in ertain countries resulting from previously implemented
restructuring initiatives.

The provisions for benefits, clains and credit Tosses in 2001 were $268
million compared with $273 million in 2000 and $341 million in 1999. The
net credit loss ratio was 1.21% in 2001, compared with 1.16% in 2000 and
1.32% in 1999. Loans delinquent 90 days or more were $367 million or 1.73%
of loans at December 31, 2001, compared with $335 million or 1.51% at
Drecember 31, 2000 and $442 million or 1.93% af Decernber 31, 1999. The
increases in the net creditloss ratio and delinquencies from 2000 reflect the
weakening economic conditions in most countries across the region, Net
creditlosses and loans delinquent 90 days or more may increase from 2001
levels due to economic weakness in Asia, whose exporting economies have
heen impacted by the recession in the U.S. This staternent is 4 forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements™ on page 62.

Latin America

In miiens of doffars 2001 20004 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,380 $1,606 $1.638
Adjusted operating expenses & 938 1,007 916
Provisions for benefits,

claims and credit losses 299 298 436
Core income before taxes 143 351 286
Income taxes 23 101 93
Gore income 120 250 193
Restructuring-related items, after-tax {19) (31 (27
Income $ 101 $ 219 $ 166
Average assets din billions of doffars) $ 8 S 9 $ 10
Return on assets 1.26% 2.43% 1.66%

Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 150% 2.78% 1.93%

{1} Reclassified lo conform to the 2001 presentation

@ Excludes 1estruchkaing related tems,

Latin America (excluding Mexico) —which provides banking, lending,
including credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers
throughout the region— reported core income of $120 million in 2001, down
$130 million or 52% from 2000 primarily reflecting transiation losses
associated with the re-denomination of certain consunier loans in Argentina.
Core income i 2000 was up $57 million or 30% primarily reflecting lower
eredit costs and an increase in eamings from Credicard, a 33%-owned
Brazitian Card affiliate. Income of $101 million in 2001, $219 million in
2000, and $166 million in 1999 included restructuring-related charges of $19
million ($28 million pretax), $31 miltion ($45 mitlion pretax), and §27
million (340 mittion pretax), respectively.
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As shown in the following table, Latin America accounts declined as
decreases in deposits and loan products were partially offset by growth in
banking-related insurance products and cards. Average customer deposits
declined in 2001 reflecting continued weak economic conditions in
Argentina and foreign currency translation effects. Average loans declined
13% in 2001 reflecting continued credit risk management inititives and
foreign currency translation effects. Ln 2000, the decline in average loans
retlects the 2000 fisst quater auto loan portfolio sale in Puerto Rico and
credit risk management initiatives.

In bitfons of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts (ia miltions) 7.1 7.2 76
Average customer deposits $104 5106 $10.7
Average loans $ 6.0 $69 577

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $1.380 billion in 2001 decreased
$276 million or 17% from 2000 primarily reflecting estimated translation
losses of $235 million associated with the re-denomination of certain
consumer loans in Argentina. [n 2000, revenues of $1.656 billion increased
$18 million from 1999 as higher Credicard earnings were partially offset by
business wolume declines, including the effect of the auto loan portfolio sale
in Puerto Rico.

Adjusted operating expenses of $938 million decreased $69 million or 7%
from 2000 primarily reflecting expense rationalization initiatives across the
region. Adjusted operating expenses of $1.007 billion in 2000 were up $91
miltion or 10% from 1999 primarily due to costs associated with new business
initiatives and acquisitions in the region.

The provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses were $299 million in
2001 compared to $298 million in 2000 and $436 million in 1999. The
adoption of revised FFIEC write-off policies in 2000 added $41 million to net
credit losses, which were charged against the allowance for credit losses, and
61 basis points to the net credit loss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 4.63%
in 2001, as compared to 4.67% (4.06% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy
revisions) in 2000, and 5.32% in 1999. The increase in the net credit loss ratio
in 2001 primarily reflects deteriorating economic conditions in Argentina.
The improvement in the net credit loss ratie in 2000, as compared to 1999,
primarily reflects high write-offs in Argentina in 1999, Loans delinquent 90
days or mote of $248 million or 4.71% of leans at December 31, 2001
increased from $235 million or 3.59% at Decernber 31, 2000 and $303
million or 3.99% at December 31, 1999, The increase in loans delinquent 90
days or more primarily reflects deteriorating economic conditions in
Argenting, partially offset by Puerto Rico's gradual liquidation of its auto
loan portfolio. The decline in delinquent loans in 2000 from 1999 reflects
additional write-offs related to the adoption of revised FFIEC policies as well
as lemporary improvements in Argentina during 2000. Net credit losses and
foans delinquent 90 days or more are expected to increase from 2001
levels due to the economic crisis in Argentina and will be impacted by
unemployment and the instahility of prices. This statement is 4 forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements™ on page 62.

OPP006409



Mexico
I mittens e dloftars 2001 2000:4 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $2,117 3603 $531
Adjusted operating expenses 1,399 461 369
Provisions for benefils, claims and credit losses 254 40 32
Core income hefore taxes

and minority interest 464 102 130
Income taxes 91 46 47
Minority interest, after-tax 27 - -
Core income 346 56 83
Restructuring-related items, after-tax {90) - —
Income $ 256 $ 56 $ 83
Average assets fn billons of diitars) $ 3 $ 9 310
Return on assets 0.73% 0.62% 0.83%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 0.99% 0.62% 0.83%

(13 Reclassified to conform o the 2001 presentation,

(2 Exciudes restructuring-refated tems.

Mexico——which includes the results of Banamex from August 2001, as well
as Citigroup’s legacy consumer banking, corporate banking, and retirement
services businesses in Mexico and provides a wide array of banking,
insurance, and financial services products— reported core income of $346
mitlion in 2001, up $290 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting the
acquisition of Banamex. Core ingonie in 2000 was $56 million, down

$27 million or 33% from 1999 primarily due to the loss of a subsidy from
the Mexican government related to the Confia acquisition. Income of

$256 million in 2001 includes a restructuring-related charge of $90 million
($139 million pretax).

On August b, 2001, Giticorp completed its acquisition of Banamex. The
transaction was accounted for as a purchase, therefore, five months of
Banamex results are included in the Mexico results. Subsequently, Citibank
Mexico's hanking operations merged into Banamex, with Banamex being the
surviving entity. "The business also successfully merged the Citihank branches
onto the Banamex operating platform without customer distuption,

in biions of doiars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts s mitlions} 16.1 17 14
Average customer deposits $14.3 832 340
Average Loans:
Cansumer 26 0.3 03
Corporate 72 32 34
Govermment/government agencies 15 02 0.2
Total Average Loans $11.3 $3.7 339

Revenues, net of interest expense, of $2.117 billion in 2001 increased
$1.514 billion from 2000 primarily reflecting the acquisition of Banamex.
Revenues teflect strong volume growth from the underlying customer deposit
business combined with improvements in trading revenue primarily due to
interest rate positioning, partially offset by declining spreads. The consumer
business was impacted by lower intetest rates that reduced spreads on deposits.
In 2000, revenues, net of interest expense, increased $72 million or 14% from
1999 reflecting the Garante acquisition and strong trading revenues, partially
offset by the loss of 4 subsidy fron the Mexican government related to Confia.
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Adjusted operating expenses of $1.399 hillion in 2001 increased $938
million primarily reflecting the acquisition of Banamex . The business has
initiated actions to rationalize headcount, branches, and systems. Since
August 2001, headcount has been reduced by 4,079 and 77 branches have
been closed. In 2000, adjusted operating expenses increased $92 million or
25% from 1999 primarily due to Confia systems consolidation expenses and
the acquisition of Garante,

The provisions for benefits, clains and credit losses in 2001 were $254
miltion compared with $40 million in 2000 and $32 million in 1999. The
consumer net credit loss ratio was 3.72% in 2001, compared with 3.67% in
2000 and 4.89% in 1999. Consumer loans delinquent 90 days or more were
$523 million or 8.75% of loans in 2001 compared with $15 million or 5.17%
of floans in 2000 and $17 million or 6.78% of loans in 1999 reflecting the
acquisition of Banamex, Consumer loans delinquent 40 days or more
primarily include mortgages.

Commercial cash-basis loans were $1.030 billion, $79 million, and $55
million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in
20071 reflects the acquisition of Banamex whose commercial cash-basis loans
include exposures in steel, textile, food products and other industries.

Net credit losses, cash-basis loans, and loans delinquent 90 days or more
may increase from 2001 levels, due to economic weakness in Mexico, whose
exports have been impacied by the slowdown in the U.S. This statement is a
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act, See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East & Africa

In miffions of doltars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $548 $438 $350
Adjusted operating expenses 369 332 253
Provision for credit losses 39 33 35
Core income before taxes 140 73 62
Income taxes 51 23 24
Core income 89 50 38
Restructuting-related items, after-tax ()] 4 (17)
Income $ 88 $ 54 521
Average assets fin bilions of tollars) $ 4 $ 3 $ 3
Return on assets 220% 1.80% 0.70%
Excluding restructuring-related items

Return on assets 223% 1.67% 1.27%

{1} Roddassified to eontotm 1o the 20071 presentation,

2 Excludes restuciuring-dated items,

Central & Eastern Europe, Middie East & Africa (CEEMFA—
including India and Pakistan) -— which provides banking, lending, including
credit and charge cards, and investment services to customers throughout the
region— reported cure income of $89 million in 2001, up $39 million or 78%
from 2000, and in 2000 core income was up $12 million or 32% from 1999
reflecting continued growth in deposits, branch lending and cards across the
region, including the impact of acguisitions. Income of $88 miltion in 2001
included restructuring-related charges of $1 million (82 million pretix).
Income of $54 million in 2000 included restructuring-related credits of

$4 million (85 million pretax). Income of $21 million in 1999 included
restructuring-related charges of $17 million ($28 million pretax).
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1n June 2000, CEEMEA completed the acquisition of 3 majority interest in
Bank Handlowy in Poland, whose consumer businesses are reported in this
segrnent. 1n August 2000, CEEMEA completed the acquisition of ING's retail
branches in Hungary.

As shown in the following table, CEEMEA reported 39% account growth in
2001 and 33% in 2000 primarily reflecting growth in customer deposits, cards
and other lending, including the impact of acquisitions, as franchise growth
efforts continue cross the region.

In biions of doflars 2001 2000 1999
Accounts fin mitfions) 39 28 21
Average customer deposits $5.9 $39 $35
Average loans $23 $1.9 316

Revenues, net of inferest expense, of $548 million in 2001 increased
$110 million or 25% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $88 million or 25%
primaily reflecting growth in deposits, branch lending and cards across the
region, including the impact of acquisitions, partially offset by weakness
in Turkey.

Adjusted operating expenses of $369 million increased $37 million or
11% from 2000 and in 2000 increased $79 mitlion or 31% from 1999
reflecting higher business volumes, acquisitions and franchise growth in
the region.

The provision for credit losses was $39 mitlion in 2001 compared with
$33 million in 2000 and $35 million in 1999. The adoption of revised FFIEC
write-off policies in 2000 added $3 million to net credit losses, which were
charged against the allowance for credit losses, and 14 basis points to the net
creditloss ratio. The net credit loss ratio was 1.70% in 2001, as compared to
1.95% in 2000 (1.81% excluding the effect of FFIEC policy revisions) and
1.96% in 1999 primarily due to lower net credit losses in Pakistan and India.
Loans delinquent 90 days or more of $36 million or 1.41% of loans at
December 31, 2001 increased from $32 million or 1.37% at December 31,
2000 primarily due to higher delinguent loans in Poland. Loans delinquent
90 days or more of $32 miltion or 1.37% at Decernber 31, 2000 decreased from
$46 million or 2.25% at December 31, 1999 primarily due to lower delinquent
loans in Pakistan. Net credit losses and loaas delinguent 90 days or more
may increase from 2001 levels due to weakening global economic conditions.
This statement is 4 forward-looking staternent within the neaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements”
on page 62,

e~-CONSUMER

In millions of doltars 2001 2000 19997
Total revenues, net of interest expense $176 $170 $108
Adjusted operating expenses© 305 426 285
Core loss hefore tax henefits (129) {256) (177
Income tax benefits (52) (98) (67)
Core loss 7 (160) {110
Restructuring-related items, after-tax ® — —
Loss $ (85) $(160) 3110
1) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

(2} Excludes restructuring 1 ofaled tems.

a7

e-Consumer — the business responsible for developing and implementing
Global Consumer Intemnet financial services products and e-commerce
solutions— reported a loss before restructuring-related items of $77 million
in 2001, compared te losses of §160 million in 2000 and $110 million in
1999. The loss of $85 million in 2001 included restructuring-related items of
$8 mitlion ($13 million pretax).

Revenues, net of interest expense, in 2001 increased $6 million or 4% from
2000 prirarily due to growth associated with both new and established
product offerings, partially offset by lower realized investment gairs.
Revenues of $170 million in 2000 included gains related to the sale of
Internet/e-commerce investments.

Adjusted operating expenses in 2001 declined $121 million or 28% from
2000 prinaily due to the effect of initiatives discontinued in 2001 and 2000,
partially offset by continued investment spending on Intemet financial
services and products. Expenses in 2000 increased $141 million or 49% from
1999 reflecting investrent spending combined with charges related to the
termination of certain contracts and other initiatives.

OTHER CONSUMER

I miftions of doltars 2001 20000 19990
Total revenues, net of interest expense $ 50 3169 5445
Adjusted operating expenses 220 235 448
Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses {59) 7 (103)
Core income (loss) before tax benefits (111 (73) 100
Income taxes (benefits) {40) (29) 40
Minority interest, after-fax - — {2)
Core income (loss) {7) (44) 62
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (5) 2 (34)
Income (loss) $ (76) $(42) 3 28

{1} Redassified to confoim to the 2001 presentation.
2 Exchudes rstruchuing-efated items.

Other Consumer — which includes certain treasury and unallocated
staff functions, global marketing and other programs— reported losses hefore
restructuring-related items of $71 million and $44 million in 2001 and 2000,
respectively, compared to core income of $62 million in 1999. The increase in
losses from 2000 was primarily due to lower treasury results, primarily
reflecting 4 change in internal transfer pricing methodology, and lower
foreign currency hedge gains. Income in 1999 was primarily due fo gains
resulting from the disposition of the Associates recreational vehicle finance
operations (Fleetwood Credit Corporation) and the sale of certain non-
strategic operations.

Losses of $76 million and $42 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively,
included a restructuring-related charge of $5 million ($7 million pretax) in
2001 and a restructuring-related credit of $2 miltion ($3 million pretax) in
2000. income of $28 million in 1999 included a restructuring-related charge
of $34 million (353 million pretax).

Revenues, expenses, and the provisions for benefits, claims and credit
losses reflect offsets to certain line-item reclassifications reported in other
Global Consumer operating segments. The 1999 revenues, expenses and
provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses also include the results of
certain private lahel cards and other businesses that were discontinued in
1999 and 2000.
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GLOBAL CONSUMER OUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Banking/Lending

Citibanking Nerth America. The vearended December 31, 2001 was
avear of continued success in both aur core business momentum and the
successful integration of FAB. Citibanking invested in programs and staff to
improve operations and customer service while continuing to control overall
expenses. In addition, Citibanking continues to emphasize its needs-based
sales approach through Citipro, a complimentary financial analysis that
assesses customers' needs and recornmends appropriate financial products o
meet those needs. The key elements to grow our earnings will be increasing
sales productivity in the Financial Centers, increasing customer refention
through focused marketing, cross selling, and technology; streamlining
processes and investing in appropriate technology to improve productivity and
cost efficiency, which, in turn, will enhance price flexibility; and improving
customer service and satistaction,

Mortgage Banking. In 2001, Mortpage Banking increased core income
by 19% over 2000. Heavy refinancing activity in 2001 drove CitiMortgage
origination volumes to a record $32.3 billion, & 62% increase over 2000.
student Loans benefited in 2001 from lower cost of funds while growing its
number one market share position by expanding sales capabilities and
increasing Internet distribution. In 2002, core income should reflect
continued improvement compared to 2001. With an expected decrease in
refinance activity, CitiMortgage anticipates focusing on increasing market
share in the stable purchase market, with a special emphasis on Citigroup
referrals. CitiMortgage should also benefit from higher net servicing income
45 mortgage prepayment rates decling. Student Loans expects to benefit from
its strengthened sales pladorm and continued low funding costs. Credit costs
are anticipated to be comparable to 2001,

North America Cards. In 2001, the Cards business reported a record
core income of $2.1 billion. Core income increased 19% for the vear, driven by
improved spreads, resulting from lower interest rates and repricing actions
and contained expense levels, partially offset by higher credit costs. National
bankruptcy filings increased 20% in 2001, due to the combination of pending
legislative reform, higher unemployment and a weakened economy. In 2002,
the Cards business is expected to deliver continued growth and consistent risk-
adjusted revenue performance, despite the presence of a challenging
environment which is expected to continue in 2002. Credit costs and
delinquencies are expected to increase from 2001 levels s a resultof
economic conditions and credit performance of the portfolios.

CitiFinancial. During 2001, GitiFinancial focused on the integration

of the Associates businesses, including eliminating redundant, unprofitable
branches or centers and conforming all underwriting and collection
practices. The results of these efforts contributed to significantexpense
reductions and improved profitability. Real estate volume increased
significantly primarily due to the success of the PFS-sourced business, which
increased 50% to $7.8 billion in outstandings as of December 31, 2001.
GitiFinancial continues to improve its cost structure and plans to pursue
growth by expanding and developing new sales channels and divessifying its

product offerings. As in the past, cross-selling opportunities among Citigroup
affiliates will continue. Net credit losses and the related loss ratio are expected
to increase from 2001 as a result of economic conditions and credit
performance of the portfolios, including bankruptey filings.

international

Western Europe, The Western Europe region experienced strong growth
in 2001 with expanded margins resulting from improved spreads and
continued cost management, Business volumes in 2001 benefited from
organic growth and acquisitions in the home equity and credit card
businesses. Gur strategic priorities — consumer finance, cards and wealth
managerment—continue to show excellent growth opportunities in the
nrarkets in which we operate. Continued focus on distribution channels will
ensure that customers can access our products in ways that are most
convenient and corafortable for their individual needs, We expect that with
continued product innovation and focused customer support we will continue
to enhance our performance. Gredit costs may increase from 2001 as a result
of economic conditions and statutory changes in the region.

Japan. Japan’s increase in core income in 2007 reflected the impact of
acquisitions and continued organic growth with aver 500,000 new customers
generated. The business began to experience deteriorating credit quality as
unemployment rates and bankruptcy levels reached record highs in late 2001,
We expect this deterioration to continue in 2002 as the Japanese economy
continues to weaken.

Asia. The region recorded improved financial peformance in 2001, driven
by growth in deposits, investment product fees and cards, combined with
expense control initiatives, Credit costs may increase in 2002 reflecting the
delayed effect of weak economic conditions in the region. The business focus
in 2002 will be on continuing the revenue momentum to expand deposits,
investment product fees and cards, combined with expense control initiatives
and tight credit underwriting and collections.

Mexico. Mexico experienced an increase in core income in 2001 primarily
due to the acquisition of Banamex. In 2002, the business expects W continue
its initiatives for significant expense rationalization combined with market
share expansion. The Mexican economy has been negatively impacted by
the slowdown of exparts to the .S, and the credit portfolio continues to he
closely menitored.

Latin America. In 2001, Arpentina experienced continued recession
ending the vear in an economic and political crisis. The business was able to
generate core income growth in its other countries through modest revenue
growth combined with expense reduction initiatives and disciplined credit
management. In 2002 delinquencies and net credit losses may increase due to
continuing weak global economic conditions. We will continue to manage for
moderate growth and cost management in the rest of our businesses across
f.atin America.
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Central & Eastern Europe, Middle East & Africa. The
business experienced strong growth in 2001 driven by growth in deposits,
hranch lending and cards across most countries in the region, including
the impagt of acquisitions. In 2002, the business expects continued market
share expansion in established markets, build-out of new franchises

in the Czech Republic and in Israel and continued focus on disciplined
credit management.

e-Consumer. In 2001, the business entered into a strategjc alliance with
the Microsoft Network and continucd to develop and refine existing product
offerings including Citibank Online, C2it, MyCiti, and a strategic alliance
with America Online. These efforts will continue in 2002 as the business seeks
o extend Citigroup's ability to detiver financial services via the Internet and
improve cross-selling opportunities among Gitigroup businesses. These
activities should position Citigroup to grow with the digital economy and
improve the performance and cost effectiveness of our customer service
capabilities.

Insurance Industry

Avariety of factoss continue to affect the property and casualty insurance
market and the Company’s cote business outtook, including improvement in
pricing in the commercial lines marketplace as evidenced by price increases,
4 continuing highly competitive personal lines marketplace, inflationary
pressures on foss cost trends including medical inflation and increasing
auto loss costs, asbestos-related developments and rising reinsurance and
litigation costs

The property and casualty insurance industry continues to be teshaped
by consolidation and globalization. With respect to globalization, Gitigroup
formed Citilnsurance, the international arm of Citigroup's insurance
activities, to capitalize on the strength of the Citigroup branch franchise and
the extensive distribution strength of the Citigroup consumer business around
the world. This unit expects to build on the progress already made in
Southeast Asia during the last several vears with the strategic alliance with
Fubon Group, a diversified financial services company based in Taiwan.

Changes in the generdl interest rate environment affect the return received
by the insurance subsidiaries on newly invested and reinvested funds. While a
rising interest rate envitonment enhances the returns available, it seduces the
market value of existing fixed maturity investments and the availability of
gains on disposition. A decline in interest rates reduces the return available on
investment of funds, but creates the opportunity for realized investment gains
on disposition of fixed maturity investments.

As required by various state laws and regulations, the Company's
insurance subsidiaries are subject to assessments from state-administered
guaranty associations, second-injury funds and similar associations.
Managenent believes that such assessizents will not have a material impact
on the Company’s results of operations.

Certain social, economic, political, and litigation issues have led to an
increased number of tegislative and regutatory proposals aimed at addressing
the cost and avaitability of certain types of insurance, as weil as the claim and
coverage obligations of insurers. While muost of these provisions have failed to
hecome law, these initiatives may continue as legisiators and regulators try to
respond to the public availability, affordability, and claim concerns. The
resulting laws, if any, could adversely affect the Company’s ability to write
husiness with appropriale returns.
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Primerica. During the last few years, Primerica has instituted programs,
including sales and product training, that are designed to maintain high
compliance standards, increase the number of producing agents and
customer contacts and, ultimately, increase production levels. Additionally,
increased effort has been made to provide all Primerica customers full access
to all Primerica marketed lines. Insurance in force continues to grow. A
continuation of these trends could positively influence future operations.
Primerica continues to expand cross selling with other Company subsidiaries.

Personal Lines. Personal Lines strategy includes control of operating
expenses to improve competitiveness and profitability, growth in sales
primarily through independent agents and selective expansion of additional
marketing channels to broaden distribution to awider customer basc. These
erowth strategies also provide opportunities to leverage the existing cost
structure and achieve economies of scale. In addition, Personal Lines
continues to take action to control its exposure to catastrophe losses,
including limiting the writing of new homeowners business in certain
markets and implementing price increases in certain hurricane-prone areas,
and non-renewing policies in some hurricane-prone areas where acceptable
returns are not being achieved, subject to restrictions imposed by insurance
regulatory authorities

The personal auto insurance marketplace remains highly competitive as
some personal auto carriers have been reluctant to increase prices despite
increases in oss cost trends due to inflationary pressures in medical costs and
auto repair costs. These trends are expected to continue into 2002, Personal
Lines will continue to emphasize underwriting discipline in this competitive
marketplace and continue o pursug its strategy of increases in auto rates to
offset increases in oss cost trends. Market conditions for homeowners
insurance have remained stable with the industry experiencing modest rate
increases. Personal Lines expects homeowners rate increases to continue in
2002. Homeowners loss cost trends continue to increase at modest levels
reflecting inflationary pressures and the increased frequency of weather-
related losses.

The Personal Lines insucance market shows indications of contraction
as aresult of the terrorist attack on Septeraber 11th. Several Personal Lines
carriers have ceased writing new policies and are not renewing existing
policies. As carriers exit markets and fail to renew policies, Personal Lines is
well positioned within the independent agent’s office to take advantage of this
opportunity to properly underwrite and bind this new business.
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GLOBAL CORPORATE

in miions of goitars 2001 2000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $34,297 $33.479 $28.688
Adjusted aperating expenses 18,369 18,812 16233
Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses 6,544 5173 4,317
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 8,884 9,494 8,138
Income taxes 3,014 3,260 283
Minority interest, after-tax 26 68 169
Core Income 5,844 6,166 5,138
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (37 (146) 121
Income $ 5,707 $ 6,020 $ 5259

{h Reclassified fo conform to the 2001 preserdation,
(&) Excludes restructuring-refated fiems.

Global Corporate serves corporations, financial institutions, governments,
investors and other participants in capital markets throughout the world. It
consists of the Corporate and [nvestment Bank (C1B), Emerging Markets
Corporate Banking & Global Transaction Services (EM Corporate & GTS},
and the Commercial Lines business of TPC. The CIB delivers a full range of
financial services and products including investment banking, brokerage,
research and advisory services, foreign exchange, structured products,
derivatives, loans, leasing and equipment finance. EM Corporate & GTS offers
awide array of banking and financial services products in the emerging
markets (excluding Mexico) and also includes the global operations of
Transaction Services. TPC is one of the largest property and casualty insurers
in the United States offering, among other products, workers’ compensation,
commercial multi-peril, commercial auto, other liahility, fidelity and surety
and property and other lines, which it distributes through independent agents
and brokers.

Global Corporate reported core income of $5.844 billion in 2001, down
$322 million or 5% from 2000. The decrease reflects declines in Commercial
Lines, down $402 million to $691 million, and the CIB, down §161 miltion to
$3.509 billion, partially offset by increases in EM Corporate & GTS, up $241
million to $1.644 billion, Commercial Lines decreased primarily due to the
catastrophe losses associated with the terrorist attack of September 11th,
increased loss costs trends including increased medical costs, auto repair costs
and reinsurance costs and lower net investment income, partially offset by the
benefit of rate increascs, higher fee income and higher favorable priesyear
reserve dovelopment. Also reflected in the 2001 results are the incremental
earnings from the minority interest buyback. 'The decrease in the CIB was
primarily due to lower income in global equities and private client, lower
carnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial and higher credit losses,
partially offset by strong growth in fixed income and expense control
initiatives. The increase in EM Corporate & GTS primarily reflects higher
trading-related revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives,
partially offset by write-downs in Atgentina.

Income of $5.707 billion in 2001 and $6.020 billion in 2000 included
restructuring-related charges of $137 million ($222 nutlion pretax) and $146
million {$172 miltion pretax), respectively, Income of $5259 billion in 1999
included net restructuring-refated credits of $121 mitlion ($192 million
pretax). See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
of the restructuring-related items.

The businesses of Global Comporate are significantly affected by the levels
of activity in the global capital markets which, in tum, are influenced by
macro-economic and political policies and developments, among other
factors, in the 100 countries in which the businesses operate. Global
economic and market events can have both positive and negative effects on
the revenue performance of the businesses and can affect credit performance.
Losses on commercial lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans can
vary widely with respect to timing and amount, particulardy within any
narrowly-defined business or loan type. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans
may increase from the 2001 levels due to weak global economic conditions,
sovereign or regulatory actions and other factors. The property and casualty
insurance market will benefit from improvements in pricing, offset in part by
competitive pressures, inflation in the cost of medical care, and litigation.
This paragraph contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

CORPORATE AND INVESTMENT BANK

I mitlions of doltars 2001 2000™ 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense  $19,406 $19.746 $16,500
Adjusted operating expenses ! 12,846 13,268 10,990
Provision for credit losses 1,17 755 193
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 5,443 5723 5317
Income taxes 1,832 2,051 1943
Minority interest, after-lax 2 2 2
Core income 3,509 3670 3372
Restructuring-refated items, after-tax (105) 24) 131
Income $ 3,404 $ 3576 $ 3503

(1} Nedlassified o conform to the 2007 presentation.
(21 xcludes restructuring -+ elated tems.

The CIR delivers a full range of Bnancial services and products
including investment banking, brokerage, research and advisory services,
foreign exchange, structured products, derivatives, loans, leasing and
equipment finance.

Core income was $3.509 billion in 2001 compared t $3.670 billion in
2000 and $3.372 billion in 1999. CIB core income decreased $161 million
during 2001 primarily due to lower income in global equities and private
client, lower earnings from the investment in Nikke Cordial and higher
creditlosses, partially offset by strong growth in fixed income and expense
control initiatives. Cote income of $3.670 billion in 2000 increased $298
million compared to 1999 primarily reflecting double-digit growth across
most businesses, partially offsct by increases in production-related expenses
and the provision for credit losses, including the impact of acquisitions in
2000 Income of $3.404 billion in 2001 and $3.576 billion in 2000 included
net restructuring-related charges of $105 million (§176 million pretax)
and $94 million ($111 million pretax), respectively. Income of $3.503 hillion
in 1999 included net restructuring -related credits of $131 million (3208
million pretax).
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On May 1, 2000, the CIR completed the acquisition of the global invest-
ment banking business and related net assets of Schroders PLG (Schreders),
including all corporate finance, financial markets and securities activities.
During the second quarter of 2000, the CIB strengthened its position in the
US. leasing market through the purchase of Copelco.

Revenues, net of interest expense, decreased 2% in 2001 o $19.406 billion
from $19.746 billion in 2000 primarily retlecting decreases in global equities
and private client and lower eamings from the investment in Nikko Cordia,
partially offset by strong growth in fixed income. Revenues increased
20% to $19.746 billion in 2000 from 1999 reflecting strong growth across
all businesses.

Revenues by category were as follows:

I engthons of dtiars 2001 20007 1999
Commissions and fees $ 3,702 $ 4471 $ 3/
Investment banking 4519 4,008 3,353
Principal transactions 3,248 4,238 3.609
Asset management and administration fees 2,035 2.169 1.641
Interest and dividend income, net 5,009 3.801 3600
Other income 893 969 576
Total revenues, net of interest expense $19,406 $19,746 $16,500

i1} Reclassifled to conform o the 2001 presentation.
(2} byrdudos the revenues of SSH Asset Management which are repottad in the Citigroup Asset

Management segment.

Comuissions and fees were $3.702 billion, $4.471 billion and $3.721
billion in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The 2001 decline primarily
reflects decreases in over-the-counter securities and mutual fund
commissions due to depressed market conditions. The 2000 increase reflects
prowth in sales of listed and over-the-counter securities along with increased
mutual fund commissions and transaction services fees.

Investment banking revenues were $4.519 billion in 2001 compared to
$4.098 hillion in 2000 and $3.353 billion in 1999. Growth in 2001 was
primarily due to increases in high-grade debt, structured products and high
vield underwritings, partially offset by decreases in equity and unit trust
underwriting and lower merger and acquisition fees. Growth in 2000 was
primarily due to increases in equity and high-grade debt underwriting and
in merger and acquisition fees, partiaily offset by 2 decline in high vield
underwriting,

Principal transactions revenues were $3.248 billion in 2001, down $990
million or 23% from 2000 primarily reflecting decreases in global equities.
Principal transactions revenues were $4.238 billion in 2000 compared to
$3.609 hillion in 1999 prirarily reflecting increases in global equities, fixed
income and foreign exchange.

Asset management and administeation fees decreased $134 million in
2001 to $2.035 billion from $2.169 billion in 2000 primarily due to 4
decrease in average balances of assets under fee-hased management. Asset
managerent and administration foes increased $528 million in 2000 from
$1.641 billion in 1999 primarily due to strong growth in assets under fee-
based management. These fees include results from assets managed by the
Financial Consultants and other internally managed assets a5 well as those
that are managed through the Consulting Group

Net interest and dividend income was $5.009 billien in 2001 compared to
$3.801 hillion in 2000 and $3.600 billion in 1999, The increase in 2001 was
primarily due to wider spreads in fixed income, treasury and loans. The
incredse in 2000 was primarily due to the addition of Copelco.
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Other income was $893 maillion in 2001 compared to $969 mitlion in 2000
and $576 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease is primarily due to lower
earnings from the investment in Nikko Cordial and the effect of a change in
the presentation of intercompany balances that had the effect of reducing
other income and other expense, partially offset by gains on the sale of the
Associates Relocation and Canadian Fleet businesses and gains on sale of
municipat bonds from the available-for-sale portfolio. Other income of $964
milkion in 2000 increased $393 miltion from 1999 primarily due to an
increase in ownership in Nikko Cordial along with higher income from the
Nikko SSB joint venture which began operations during the 1999 first quarter.

Total assets under fee-based management at December 31, were as follows:

In billiens of dofiars 2001 2000 1999
Financial constltant managed $ 549 $ 562 $ 436
Consulting group and intemally managed 150.2 1456 126.2
Total assets under fee-based

management $206.1 $201.8 $160.8

{1 Includes assets managad jointly with Citigroup Asset Management.

Adjusted operating expenses were $12.846 billion in 2001 compared to
$13.268 hillion in 2000 and $10.990 billien in 1999. Adjusted operating
expenses decreased 3% in 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to lower
compensation and benefits and other eperating and administrative expenses.
Compensation and benefits decreased primarily 4 4 result of declines in
production-related compensation and savings from restructuring actions
initiated in 2001. Other operating and administrative expenses declined
$374 million primarily due to tight expense controls and a change in the
presentation of intercompany balances that had the effect of reducing other
incorne and other expense. Adjusted operating expenses increased 21% in
2000 compared to 1999 primarily due fo higher production-related
compensation and benefits expense, including the impact of the acquisitions
of Schroders and Copelco in the 2000 second quarter.

The provision for credit fosses was $1.117 billion in 2001 compared to
$755 million in 2000 and $193 million in 1999. The increase in 2001 was
primarily due to higher net credit losses in the transportation leasing portfolio
combined with higher net credit losses in the telecommunication, energy,
tetail and airline industries. The increase in 2000 compared to 1999 was due
to losses on exposures to North American health care borrowers, additional
provisions for the transportation portfolio, recoveries on real estate loans in
1999 and the inclusion of lusses for Copelco, which was acquired in the
second quarter of 2000,

Cash-basis loans were $1.525 billion, $776 million and $481 million at
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, reflecting increases in the
transportation portfolio and horrowers in the telecommunication, energy,
utility, and retail industries. The OREQ portfolio totaled $64 million, $115
million and $156 million at Decenber 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
The improvemments in OREQ in 2001 and 2000 were primarily related to the
Notth America real estate portfolio. Losses on commercial lending activities
and the Jevel of cash-basis loans can vary widely with respect to timing and
amount, particularly within any narrowly-defined business or loan type. Net
credit losses and cash-basis loans may increase from 2001 levels due to weak
economic conditions in the US., Japan and Europe. This statement is a
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements™ on page 62.
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EMERGING MARKETS CORPORATE BANKING AND
GLOBAL TRANSACTION SERVICES

i eifionss of doliars 2001 20000 19991
Total revenues, net of interest expense $6,928 $6,236 $5.373
Adjusted operating expenses 4,087 3,845 3612
Provision for credit losses 300 164 329
Core income hefore taxes and

minority interest 2,591 2227 1432
Income taxes 923 808 544
Minority interest, after-tax 24 16 6
Core income 1644 1,403 882
Restructuring-related items, after-tax (32) (11) (10}
Income $1,612 $1.392 $ 872

{1} Revlassified to conferm to the 2001 presentation.
(21 Excludes restustuting telalod o,

Citigroup’s EM Corporate & GTS business offers 4 wide array of banking
and financial services products in the emerging markets (excluding Mexico)
and also includes the global operations of Transaction Serviges.

EM Corporate & GTS core income totaled $1 644 hillion in 2001, up
$241 million or 17% from 2000 primarily reflecting higher trading related
revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives, partially offset by
write-downs in Argentina, The improvement in core income was driven by
growth in Asia up 23% to $674 million, CREMEA up 31% to $519 million and
Latin America up 10% to $521 million. Core income in 2000 of $1.403 billion
increused $521 million or 59% from 1999 primarily reflecting broad-based
revenue growth, tight expense control management and improved credit in
Asia. Income of $1.612 hillion, $1.392 hillion and $872 million in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively, included restructuring-related charges of $32 million
($46 million pretax), $11 million ($18 million pretax) and $10 million
($16 million pretax), respectively.

In June 2000, EM Comporate & GTS completed the acquisition of 2 majority
interest in Bank Handlowy, 4 leading bank in Poland.

Revenues, net of interest expense, were $6.928 billion in 2001 compared to
$6.236 billion in 2000. Revenue growth in 2001 was led by CEEMEA, up 22%
from 2000, primarily due to the acquisition of Bank Handlowy along with
growth in trading-related revenues and benefits from capital hedging
activitics. Asia revenues were up 13% in 2001 primarily due to growth in
trading-related revenues and the impact of a building sale. Latin America
revenues were up 14% in 2001 primaily reflecting growth in trading-related
revenies and benefits from capital hedging activities, partially offset by fourth
quarter write-downs in Argentina. Revenues of $6.236 hillion in 2000 grew
$863 million or 16% compared to 1999 primarily due to the acquisition of
Bank Handlowy and growth in transaction services revenues in all regions.

Adjusted operating expenses increased 5% in 2001 to $4.037 billion from
$3 845 billion in 2000 which, in turn, increased 6% from $3.612 billion in
1999 primarily reflecting the acquisition of Bank Handlowy and volume-
related increases, partially offset by cost controls in all regions.

The provision for credit losses totaled $300 miflion, $164 million and
$329 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001 i
primarily due to fourth quarter write-downs in Argentina reflecting the
deteriorating economic situation in that country. The decrease in 2000
primarily reflects improvements in Asia, mainly Ching, Tndonesia, Australia
and Thailand, and in CEEMFA.
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Cash-hasis loans (excluding Mexico, which is included in the Mexico
Consumer segment) were $1.465 billion, $1.069 billion and $989 million
at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001
primarily reflects increases in Latin America, mainly Argentina, and increases
in Asia, mainly Australia and New Zealand. The increase in 2000 was
primarily due to the acquisition of Bank Handlowy along with increases in
Latin America, partially offset by improvements in Asid. Losses on commercial
lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans can vary widely with
respect to timing and amount, particularly within any narrowly-defined
business or loan type. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans may increase
from the 2001 levels due to weakening glohal economic conditions, the
eCONOIIC Crisis in Argenting, sovereign or regulatory actions and other
factors. This statement is a forward-looking statement within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

COMMERCIAL LINES

In mitions of dofiars 2001 20000 1999t
Total revenues, net of interest expense $7,963 $7,497 $6.815
Claims and claim adjustment expenses 5,127 4,254 3,795
Adjusted operating expenses ¢ 1,986 1,699 1,631
Income before taxes and minority interest 850 1.544 1,389
income taxes 159 4N 344
Minority interest, after-tax & - 50 161
Core income 691 1,093 884
Restructuring-related items, after-tax - {41) —_
Income $ 661 $1,052 $ 884

(1) Redlassified Io conform to the 2001 presentation.
(2) Excludes restucluring- daled ftems.
{3} See Nele 2 lo the Consdlidated Financial Statements.
4 Fxcludes investment gainsfcsses included in investment Activiies segment.
Commercial Lines —which offers a broad array of property and casualty
insurance and insurance-related services through brokers and independent
agencies— reported core income of $691 million in 2001 compared to $1.093
hillion in 2000 and $884 million in 1999. The 2001 decrease compared to
2000 primarily reflects the impact of catastrophe losses of $448 mitlion
associated with the terrorist attack on September 11th, increased loss cost
trends including increased medical costs, auto repair costs and reinsurance
costs and lower net investment income, partially otfset by the benefit of rate
increases, higher fee income and higher favorable prior-year reserve
development. Also retlected in the 2001 results are the incremental earnings
from the minority interest buyback. The improvements in 2000 over 1999
retlect the incremental earnings from the minerity interest buyback, rate
increases, higher fee income, lower catastrophe losses, and higher net
investment income and were partially offset by increased loss cost trends and
lower favorable prior-year reserve development. Results for 2000 and 1999
also reflect benefits resulting from legislative actions that changed the
manner in which certain states finance their workers’ compensation second-
injury funds, principally in the states of New York and Pennsylvania

On May 31, 2000, the Company completed the acquisition of the surety
business of Reliance Group Loldings, Inc. (Reliance Surety). In the third
quarter of 2000, the Company purchased the renewal rights to a portion of
Reliance Group Holdings, Inc’s commercial lines middle-market book of
business (Reliance Middle Market) and also acquired the renewal rights to
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Frontier Insurance Group, Inc.'s (Frontier) environmental, excess and
surplus lines casualty businesses and certain classes of surety business.

The following table shows net written premiums by market for the three
vears ended December 31:

I mitiions of dotars 2001 20008 1909
National accounts $ 419 $ 382 $ 488
Commercial accounts 2,947 2,851 2373
Select accounts 1,713 1575 1,494
Bond 590 487 207
Gulf 608 517 403
Total net written premiums $6,277 $5,782 $4.965

{11 Reclassified to conform fo the 2001 presentation.

Commercial Lines netwritten premiums were $6.277 billion in 2001
compared to $5.782 hillion in 2000 and $4.965 billion in 1999. Included in
Bond net written premiums in 2000 is an adjustment of $131 nullionduc to a
reinsurance transaction associated with the acquisition of the Reliance Surety
business. The trend in net written premiums reflects the impact of an
improving rate environment 45 evidenced by the continued favorable pricing
on new and renewal business. Also contributing to the net written premium
increases in 2001 were the full vear impacts of the acquisition of the renewal
rights for the Reliance Middle Market business in Commercial Accounts, the
Reliance Surety acquisition in Bond and the acquisition of the renewal rights
for the Frontier business in Gulf, The 2001 increase in National Accounts net
witien premiuns is due to the purchase of less reinsurance reflecting the
shift in business mix from guaranteed cost products to loss-sensitive products
combined with the re-population of the involuntary pools. Also contributing
to the net written premium increases in 2000 was the new husiness associated
with the acquisition of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle Market
business in Commercial Accounts, the Reliance surety acquisition in Bond
and the new business associated with the acquisition of the rencwal rights for
the Frontier buginess in Gulf. The net writien premium decrease in National
Accounts was primarily due to a shift of business mix from premium-based
products to fee-based products.

National Accounts works with national and regional brokers providing
insurance coverages and services, primarily workers’ compensation, mainly
to large corporations. National Accounts also includes the residual market
business, which sells claims and policy management services to workers'
compensation and automobile assigned risk plans and to self-insurance pools
throughout the United States. New business in National Accounts for 2001 was
marginatly lower than in 2000 reflecting a disciplined approach to market
opportunities. New business in 2000 was marginally fower than in 1999
reflecting the Cormpany’s disciplined approach to underwsiting and risk
management, National Accounts business retention ratio for 2001 was
moderately lower than in 2000 primarily reflecting a focus on account
profitability and an increase in lost business due to the renewal price
increases in 2001. National Accounts business retention ratio for 2000 was
moderately lower than 1999 reflecting an increase in lost business due to the
renewdl price increases in 2000,

Commercial Accounts serves primarily mid-sized businesses for casualty
products and both farge and mid-sized businesses for property products
through a network of independent agents and brokers. Within Commercial
Accounts, a dedicated construction unit exists as well as a unit which
primarily writes coverages for the trucking industry. New premium business
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in Commercial Accounts for 2001 was moderately lower than in 2000
reflecting the acquisition of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle Market
husiness in 2000. New business in 2000 was significantly higher than in 1999
retlecting the impact of the acquisition of the Reliance Middle Market renewal
business. Commercial Accounts business retention ratio for 2001 was
significantly lower than 2000 reflecting the continued disciplined approach to
achieving acceptable levels of account profitability and an increase in lost
business due to the renewal price increases in 2001, Commercial Accounts
business retention ratio for 2000 was moderately lower than 1999 reflecting
an increase in lost business due to the renewal price increases in 2000.

Select Accounts serves small businesses through a network of
independent agents. For 2001, new business in Select Accounts was
marginally lower than in 2000, while for 2000, new business was moderately
higher than in 1999 reflecting the unusually low new business in 1949
resulting from the Company's selective underwriting policy in the highly
competitive marketplace. The business retention ratio in 2001 was virtually
the same as in 2000. Select Accounts business retention ratio for 2000 was
moderately lower than in 1999 reflecting an increase in lost business due to
renewal price increases in 2000.

Bond provides a variety of fidelity and surety bonds and executive liability
coverages to clients of all sizes through independent agents and brokers.

Gulf markets products to national, mid-size and small customers and
distributes thern through both wholesale brokers and retail agents and
brokers throughout the United States.

Catastrophe losses, net of tax and reinsurance, were $471 million in
2001 and $27 million in 1999. There were no catastrophe losses in 2000.
Catastrophe losses in 2001 were primarily due to the terrorist attack on
September 11th, Tropical Storm Allison and the Seattle earthquake. The
1099 catastrophe losses were primarily due to Hurricane Flovd and tornadoes
in Oklahoma.

The Company, along with others in the industry, uses the combined
ratio, which measures the total cost per $100 of premium production, as
ameasure of performance for Commercial Lines. The statutory combined
ratio before policvholder dividends for Commercial Lineswas 111.7%in
2001 compared to 104.1% in 2000 and 106.8% in 1999. The GAAP combined
ratio before policyholder dividends for Commercial Lines was 110.9% in
2001 compared to 100.9% in 2000 and 103.8% in 1999. GAAP combined
ratios for Commercial Lines differ from statutory combined ratios primarily
due to the deferral and amortization of certain expenses for GAAP reporting
purposes only.

The 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios include the impact of the
terrorist attack on September 11th. Excluding the impact of this event, the
2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratio before policyholder dividends would
have been 100.2% and 99.4%, respectively. The 2000 statutory and GAAP
combined ratios include an adjustment associated with the acquisition of the
Reliance Surety business. Excluding this adjustment, the 2000 statutory and
GAAP combined ratios betore policyholder dividends would have been 103.8%
and 101.5%, respectively. The 1999 statutory combined ratio for Commercial
Lines reflected the treatment of the commutation of an asbestos liability to an
insured. Excluding this commutation, the statutory combined ratio before
policyholder dividends for 1999 would have beer: 104.6%,

The decrease in the 2001 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before
policyholder dividends, excluding the related adjustment above, compared to
the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before policyholder dividends,
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excluding the retated adjustment above, was primarily due to premium
growth related to rate increases, the full year impact of the ongoing business
associated with the Reliance Surety acquisition, the purchase of the renewal
rights for the Reliance Middle Market and Frontier businesses and higher
favorable prior-year reserve development, partially offset by increased loss cost
trends and catastrophe losses due to Tropical Storm Allison in the 2601 second
quarter and the Seattle earthquake in the 2001 first quarter.

‘The improvement in the 2000 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before
policyholder dividends, excluding the adjustments above, compared to the
1999 statutory and GAAP combined ratios before policyholder dividends,
excluding the adjustments above, was primarily due to premium growth
related to rate increases as well 4s the impact of the Reliance Surety
acquisition and the purchase of the renewal rights for the Reliance Middle
Market and Frontier businesses and lower catastrophe losses, partially
offset by increased loss cost trends and lower favorable prior-year reserve
development and a disproportionately smaller increase in expenses associated
with the growth in premiums.

Environmental Claims

The Company continues to receive claims from insureds which allege that
they are liable for injury or damage arising out of their alleged disposition of
toxic substances. Mostly, these claims are due to various legislative as well as
regulatory efforts aimed at environmental remediation. For instance, the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Conmpensation and Liability Act, or
CERCLA, enacted in 1980 and later moditied, enablas private parties as well
as federal and state governments to take action with respect to releases and
threatened releases of hazardous substances. This Federal statute permits the
recovery of response costs from some liable parties and may require liable
parties to undertake their own remedial action. Liability under CERCLA may
be joint and several with other responsible parties.

The Company has been, and continues to be, involsed in litigation
involving insurance coverage issues pertaining to environmental claims. The
Corpany believes tha certain court decisions have interpreted the insurance
coverage to he broader than the original intent of the insurers and insureds
These decisions often pertain to insurance policies thut were issued by the
Company prior to the mid-1970s. These decisions continue to be inconsistent
and vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Environmental claims when
submitted rarely indicate the monetary amount being sought by the claimant
from the insured, and the Company does not keep track of the monetary
amount being sought in those few claims which indicate a monetary amount.

The Company's reserves for environmental claims are not established on a
claim-by-claim basis. The Company carries an aggregate bulk reserve for all
of the Company’s environmental claims that are in dispute, until the dispute
is resofved. This bulk reserve is established and adjusted based upon the
aggregate volume of in-process environmental claims and the Company’s
experience in resolving those claims. At December 31, 2001, approximately
75% of the net environmental reserve, approximately $298 million, is carried
in a bulk reserve and includes unresolved and incurred but not reported
environmental dains for which the Company has not received any specific
claims as well as for the anticipated cost of coverage litigation disputes
relating to these claims. The balance, approximately 25% of the net
environmiental reserve, or approximately $98 million, consists of case reserves
for resolved claims.
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The Company’s reserving methodology is preferable to one based on
“identified claims™ because the resolution of environmental exposures by the
Company generally occurs by settlement on an insured-by-insured basis as
opposed to a claim-by-claim basis. Generaily, the settlement between the
Company and the insured extinguishes any obligation the Company may
have under any policy issued to the insured for past, present and future
environmental liabilities as well as extinguishes any pending coverage
litigation dispute with the insured. This form of settlement is commonly
referred to as 4 “buy-back” of policies for future environmental liability. In
addition, many of the agreements have also extinguished any insurance
obligation which the Company nray have for other claims, including but not
limited to ashestos and other cumulative injury claims. Provisions of these
agreements also include appropriate indemnities and hold harmless
provisions to protect the Company. The Company's general purpose in
executing these agreements is to reduce its potential environmental exposure
and eliminate the risks presented by coverage litigation with the insured and
related costs

in establishing environmental reserves, the Company evaluates the
exposure presented by each insured and the anticipated cost of resolution, if
any, for each insured on a quarterly basis. In the course of this analysis, the
Company considers the probable liability, available coverage, relevant judicial
interpretations and historical value of similar exposures. In addition, the
Company considers the many variables presented, such as the nature of the
alleged activities of the insured ateach site; the allegations of environmental
harm at each site; the number of sites; the total number of potentially
responsible parties at each site; the nature of environmental harm and the
comesponding remedy at each site; the nature of government enforcement
activities ateach site; the ownership and general use of each site; the overall
nature of the insurance relationship between the Company and the insured,
including the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the Company has
issued to the insured; the involvement of other insurers; the potential for other
available coverage, including the number of years of coverage; the role, if any,
of non environmental claims or potential non-environmental claims, in any
resolution process; and the applicable law in each jurisdiction.

The following table displays activity for environmental losses and loss
expenses and reserves for the years ended Docember 31:

Environmental Losses

In miticns of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Beginning reserves

Direct $669 $ 801 $928
Ceded (111) {125) (96)
Net 558 676 832

Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct 58 75 139
Ceded (12) (1 {82)
Losses pald

Direct 248 207 266
Ceded (40) (25) (53)
Ending reserves

Direct 479 669 801

Ceded {83) {11y (125}
Net $396 $ 558 $676
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Over the past three vears, the Company has experienced a substantial
teduction in the number of policyholders with pending coverage litigation
disputes, a continued reduction in the number of policyholders tendering for
the first tine an environmental remediation-type claini to the Company as
well as a continued reduction in the number of policyholders with active
environmental claims.

As of Decemnber 31, 2001, the number of policyholders with pending
coverage litigation disputes pertaining to environmental claims was 216,
approximately 11% less than the number pending as of December 31, 2000,
and approximately 20% less than the number pending as of December 31,
1999. Also, in 2001, there were 134 policyholders tendering for the first time
an environmental remediation-type claim to the Company. This compares to
158 policyholders doing s in 2000 and 256 policyholders in 1999,

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has resolved the environmental
liabitities presented by 5,595 of the 6,214 policyholders who have tendered
envitonmental claims to the Company for approximately $1.88 billion
(hefore reinsurance). This resolution comprises 90% of the policyholders who
have tendered these claims. The Company generally has been successtful in
resolving its coverage litigation disputes and continues to reduce its potential
exposure through favorable settlements with some insureds.

Asbestos Claims and Litigation
The Company helieves that the property and casualty insurance industry has
suffered from judicial interpretations that hase atteropted to maximize
insurance availability for ashestos claims from both a coverage and liability
standpoint far heyond the intent of the contracting parties. These policies
generally were issued prior to 1980, The Company continues to receive
ashestos claims alleging insureds’ liability from claimants’ asbestos-related
injuries. Since the beginning of 2000, the Company has experienced an
increase over prior years in the number of ashestos claims being tendered to
the Company and the Company expects this trend to continue. This staement
is aforward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62. Facters
leading to these increases include more intensive advertising by lawyers
seeking ashestos claimants, the increasing focus by plaintiffs on new and
previously peripheral defendants and an increase in the number of entities
seeking bankruptey protection as a result of ashestos-related liabilities. In
addition to contributing to the increase in clains, the bankruptey proceedings
may have the effect of significantly accelerating and increasing loss payments
by insurers, including the Company. Particularly during the last few months
of 2001 and continuing into 2002, these trends have both accelerated and
hecome more visible.

Because each insured presents different liability and coverage issues,
the Company evaluates those issues on an insured-by-insured hasis. The
Company's evaluations have not resulted in any meaningful data from which
an average asbestos defense or indemnity payment may be determined.

1n establishing the Company's ashestos reserve, the Company evaluates
the exposure presented by each insured. 1n the course of this evaluation, the
Company considers available insurance coverage, including the role of any
umbrella or excess insurance the Company has issued to the insured; limits
and deductibles; an analysis of each insured's potential lisbility; the
jurisdictions involved; past and anticipated future claim activity; past
settlernent values of similar claims; allocated claim adjustment expense;
potential role of other insurance; the role, if any, of non-asbestos claims or

potential non-asbestos claims in any resolution process; and applicable
coverage defenses or determinations, if any, including the determination as

to whether or not an ashestos claim is a product/completed operation claim
subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if any, for that claim
Once the gross ultimate exposure for indemnity and allocated claim
adjustment expense is determined for each insuted by each policy vear, the
Company calculates a ceded reinsurance projection based on any applicable
facultative and treaty reinsurance, s well as past ceded expetience.
Adjustments to the ceded projections also occur due to actual ceded claim
experience and reinsurance collections.

The Company also compares its historical direct and net loss and expense
paid experience, vear-by-vear, to assess any emerging trends, tluctuations or
characteristics suggested by the aggregate paid activity. The comparison
includes a review of the ratio of the ending direct and net reserves by fast
vear's direct and net paid activity, also known as the survival ratio.

At December 31, 2001, approximately 81%, o approximately $665
million, of the net ashestos reserve, represents incurred but not reported
losses for which the Company has not received any specific claims. The
balance, approximately 19% of the net asbestos reserve, or approximately
$155 million, is for pending ashestos claims. As in the past, asbestos claims,
when submitted, rarely indicate the monetary amount being sought by the
claimant from the insured, and the Company does not keep track of the
monetary amount heing sought in those few claims that indicated a
monetary amount. Based upon the Company's experience with asbestos
claims, the duration period of an asbestos claim from the date of submission
to resolution is approximately two years.

Tn general, the Company posts case reserves for pending ashestos claims
within approximately thirty business days of receipt of these claims.

The following table displays activity for ashestos losses and loss expenses
and reserves for the years ended December 31:

Asbestos Losses

I mitiions of dollars 2001 2000 1999
Beginning reserves

Direct $1,005 $1.050 $1,252
Ceded (199) (223) (266}
Net 806 827 986
Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct 283 187 128
Ceded (94) (137) )
Losses paid

Direct 242 232 330
Ceded (67) (161) {114)
Ending reserves

Direct 1,046 1,005 1,050
Ceded (226) (199) {223
Net $ 820 $ 806 $ 827

Uncertainty Regarding Adequacy of Environmental and
Asbestos Reserves

It is ditficult to estimate the teserves for environmental and asbestos-related
claims due to the factors described above. Conventional actuarial techniques
are not used to estimate these reserves.
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As a result of the processes and procedures described above, the reserves
carried for environmental and ashestos claims at December 31, 2001 are the
Company's best estimate of ultimate claims and claim adjustment expenses
based upon known facts and current law. Tlowever, the uncertainties
surrounding the final resolution of these claims continue. These include,
without limitation, the risks inherent in major litigation, any impact from
the bankruptey protection sought by various ashestos producers and other
asbestos defendants, a further increase or decrease in asbestos and
environmental ctaims which cannot now be anticipated, the role of any
umbrella or excess policies the Company has issued for these claims, the
resolution or adjudication of some disputes pertaining to the amount of
available coverage for ashestos claims in a manner inconsistent with the
Company’s previous assessment of these claims, the number and outcome
of direct actions against the Company, and unanticipated developments
pertaining to the Company’s ability to recover reinsurance for environmental
and ashestos claims. Tt is also not possible to predict changes in the legal and
legistative environment and their impact on the future development of
asbestos and environmental claims. This development will be atfected
by future court decisions and interpretations, as well as changes in
applicable legislation.

Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabilities may arise
for amounts in excess of the current related reserves. These additional
amounts, or a range of these additional amounts, cannot now be reasonably
estimated and could result in liability exceeding those reserves by an amount
that could be material to the Company's operating results in future periods.
However, in the opinion of the Company’s management, it is not likely that
these claims will have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition or iquidity.

Cumulative Injury Other than Asbestos (CIOTA) Claims
CIOTA claims are generally submitted to the Company under general liability
policies and often involve an allegation by a claimant against an insured that
the claimant has suffered injuries as 2 result of long-term or continuous
exposure to potentially harmful products or substances. These potentially
harmiul products or substances include, but are not limited to, lead paint,
pesticides, pharmaceutical products, silicone-based personal products,
solvents, fatex gloves, silica, mold and other potentially barmful substances.
To the extent disputes exist between the Company and a policyholder
regarding the coverage available for CLOTA claims, the Company resolves the
disputes, where feasible, through settlement with the policyholder or through
coverage litigation. Historically, the Company’s experience has indicated
that insureds with potentially significant environmental and/or asbestos
exposures, may often have other CIOTA exposures or CIOTA claims pending
with the Company. Due to this experience and the fact that settlerent
agreements with insureds may extinguish the Company's obligations for all
claims, the Company evaluates and considers the environmental and asbestos
reserves in conjunction with the CIOTA reserve. Generally, the terms of a
settlement agreement set forth the nature of the Company’s participation
in resolving CIOTA claims and the scope of coverage to be provided by the
Company, and contain the appropriate indemnities and hold harmless
provisions to protect the Company. These settlements generally eliminate
uncertainties for the Company regarding the risks extinguished, including
the risk that losses would be greater than anticipated due to evolving theories
of tort Liability or unfavorable coverage determinations. The Company’s
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approach also has the effect of determining losses at a date earlier than would
have occurred in the ahsence of these settlernent agreements. On the other
hand, in cases where future developments are favorable to insurers, this
approach could have the effect of resolving claims for amounts in excess of
those that the Company ultimately would have paid had the claims not been
settled in this manner

At December 31, 2001, approximately 80%, or approximately $569
miflion, of the net CLO'A reserve, represents incurred but not reported losses
for which the Corpany has not received any specific claims. The balance,
approximately 20% of the net CIOTA reserve, or approsimately $141 million,
is for pending CIOTA claims.

The following table displays activity for CIOTA losses and loss expenses and
reserves for the years ended December 31

CIOTA Losses

&1 mitions of dollars 2001 2000 1399
Beginning reserves

Direct $1,079 $1.184 $1,346
Ceded (280) {313) (392
Net 79 871 54
Incurred losses and loss expenses

Direct (115) 27 {36)
Ceded 70 (11 28
Losses paid

Direct i 132 126
Ceded 27 44 51
Ending reserves

Direct 893 1,079 1.184
Ceded (183) (280) (313
Net $ 7o $ 799 $ 871

GLOBAL CORPORATE QUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-leoking staterments within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Global Corporate is significantly affected by the levels of activity in the
global capital markets which, in turn, are influenced by macro-economic and
political policies and developments, among other factors, in the 100 countries
in which the businesses operate. Global economic and market events can
have hoth positive and negative effects on the revenue and credit performance
of the businesses.

Losses on commercial lending activities and the level of cash-basis loans
can vary widely with respect to timing and amount, particularly within any
narrowly defined business or foan type.

The Corporate and investment Bank. [n 2001, the Corporate and
Investment Bank was impacted by the slowdown in capital markets activity
combined with higher net credit losses from weakening economic conditions.
Strong growth in fixed incone and market share improvements mitigated
weakness in global equities and private client. The business initiated several
expense reduction initiatives.

In 2002, focus will continue on identitving preblem credits early and
taking appropriate remedial actions. Net credit losses and cash-basis loans
may increase from 2001 levels due to weak econontic conditions. Expense
management initiatives may continge across the business. While initiatives
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will continue to expand market share, revenue performance is dependent
upon the timing and strength of a recovery in {18, and global economic
conditions.

EM Corporate & GTS. In 2001, EM Corporate & GTS reflected higher
trading-related revenues across all regions and expense control initiatives,
partially offset by write-downs in Argentina.

1n 2001, Argentina experienced continued weakness ending the vear inan
economic and political crisis. The remaining countries were able to generate
core income growth through modest revenuce growth combined with expense
reduction initiatives and disciplined credit management. In 2002, the
husiness expects to focus on containing the negative fallout trom Argentina’s
economic crisis. The remaining countries continue to be closely monitored
for possible contagion.

In 2002, EM Corporate & GTS expects o continue to work on strategies to
increase market share in priority countries through organic growth and
selective acquisitions, combined with continued focus on expense control
inttiatives and disciplined credit management. The EM Corporate & GTS
portfolie remains diversified across a number of geographies and industry
groups. Citigroup continues to monitor the economic situation in emerging
market countries dosely and, where appropriate, adjusts exposures and
strengthens risk management oversight. 2002 net credit losses and cash-basis
loans may increase trom the 2001 levels due to continuing weak global
cconoimic conditions, the economic crisis in Argenting, sovereign or
regulatory actions and other factors.

Commercial Lines.[n 2001, the trend of higher rates continued in
Commercial Lines. Prices generally rose throughout the vear, although some
of the increases varied significantly by region and business segment. These
increases were necessary to offset the impact of rising loss cost trends and the
decline in profitability from the competitive pressures of the last several years.
Since the terrorist artack on September 11th, there has been greater concern
over the availability, terms and conditions, and pricing of reinsurance. As a
result, the primary insurance market is expected to continue to see significant
rate increases for some coverages.

In National Accounts, where programs include risk management services,
such as claims settlement, loss control and risk management information
services, generally offered in connection with a large deductible or self-
insured program, and risk transfer, typically provided through a guaranteed
cost or retrospectively raied insurance policy, pricing improved during 2001
and 2000, National Accounts has benefited from higher rates on both new and
renewal business as evidenced by the improving profit margins earned on this
business. National Accounts believes that pricing will continue to firm into
2002, However, National Accounts will continue to reject business that is not
expected to produce acoeptable retums. Included in National Accounts is
service fee income for policy and clain administration of several states’
Workers' Compensation Residual Market pools. After several years of
depopulation, these pools are growing significantly as the primary market is
firming. Premiums the Company services for these pools grew 76% in 2001
compared to 2000 and is expected to continue to grow significantly.

Commorcial Accounts achieved double-digit price increases on renewal
business during 2001 and 2000, improving the overall profit margin in this
business and offsetting the impacis of rising loss costinflation, medical
inflation and reinsurance costs. Cornmercial Accounts will continue to seek
significant rate increases in 2002, as pricing in some areas and business
segrments still has not improved to the point of producing acceptable retums.

1n Select Accounts, the trends towand increased pricing on renewal
business that started in [ate 1999 gained momentum in 2000 and continued
to improve during 2001. Prices generally rose during this time frame while
customer retention remained consistent with prior periods. Price increases
varied significantly by region, industry and product. However, the ability of
Select Accounts to achieve future rate increases is subject to regulatory
constraints in some jurisdictions. Loss cost trends in Select Accounts also
worsened in 2001, especially in workers’ compensation and property. The
impact of these negative foss cost trends has been partially offset by a
continued disciplined approach to underwriting and risk selection by the
Company. The Company will continue to pursue business based on its ability
to achieve acceptable returns.

Bond achieved significant growth in 2001 and 2000 with the acquisition
of Reliance Surety, cementing a leadership position in the surety bond
marketplace by broadening product and service capabilities. In addition,
the expanding array of products and recognized expertise in the executive
liability marketplace has enabled Bond to further enhance its product and
customer diversification and profit opportunities. Bond's focus remains on
underwriting and selling its products to customers that provide the greatest
opportunity for profit. Bond is also focused on its efforts to cross-sell its
expanding array of specialty products to existing customers of Commercial
Lines and Personial Lines. [n Bond, prices in both of its markets began to
modestly increase in late 2001. In 2001, Bond and the industry have
experienced an increase in claim frequency and severity in the most recent
accident vears. This increase in claim frequency and severity has impacted the
primary insurer and reinsurance capacity in the Company’s marketplace.
‘This decrease in capacity is expected to create opportunities for further price
increases for all products in 2002, although the worsening loss cost trends and
increased cost of reinsurance will offset some of the positive impact.

In Gulf, rate increases began in most lines of business in 2001 although
specific increases varied significantly by region, industry and product.
Improvernent was mostevident in the unibrella and excess and surplus lines
of business, with lesser increases achieved in the professional liability lines
of business. In most areas of the business, capacity has dissipated due to
reinsurance constriction, which should lead to further rate increases
throughout 2002, The faverable impact from rate improvement continues
to be offset by rising loss costs.

Insurers generally, including the Company, are experiencing 4n incredse
in the number of ashestos-related claims due to, among other things, more
intensive advertising by lawvers seeking ashestos claimants, the increasing
focus by plaintiffs on new and previously peripheral defendants and an
increase in the number of entities seeking bankruptcy protection s a resulf
of ashestos-related labilities. In addition to contributing to the increase in
claims, the bankruptcy proceedings may have the effect of significantly
accelerating and increasing loss payments by insurers, including the
Company. Increasingly, policyholders have been asserting that their claims
for ashestos-related insurance are not subject to aggregate limits on coverage
and that each individual bodily injurv claim should be treated 4s 4 separate
occurrence under the policy. Particularly during the last few months of 2001
and continuing into 2002, the ashestos-related trends described above have
hoth aceelerated and become more visible. In addition, these claims and the
related litigation could resultin liability exceeding these reserves hy an
amount that could be material to our operating results in future periods.
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GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT
AND PRIVATE BANKING

in miions of deifars 2001 20001 1900
Total revenues, net of interest expense $7.553 $7.145 $6.099
Adjusted operating expenses 2562 2,529 217
Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses 2,632 2,375 2,009
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 2,359 2,241 1919
Income taxes 823 793 700
Minority interest, after-tax 1 3 -
Core income 1,535 1,445 1219
Restructuring-related items, after-tax () () 2
Income $1,528 $1.434 $1.221

(1) Reciassified to conform o the 2001 presentation,
12) [xchudes restructuing-related tems.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking is comprised of
Travelers Life and Annuity (TLA), The Citigroup Private Bank and Citigroup
Asset Management. These businesses offer a broad range of life insurance,
annuity and asset management products and services, including individual
annuity, group annuity, individual life insurance products, COLI products,
mutual funds, closed-end funds, managed accounts, unit investroent trusts,
variable annuities, pension administration and personalized wealth
management services distributed to institutional, high net worth and
retaif clients.

Global Investment Management and Private Banking core income in 2001
increased to $1.535 billion, up $90 million or 6% from 2000. The 2001
increase in core income reflected increased customer activity across most
products within The Citigroup Private Bank and higher business volumes
and premiums within TLA, partially offset by lower core income in Aset
Management primarily due to the impact of a charge in Argentina related to
the exchange of Argentine debt for loans. Core income of $1.445 billion in
2000 was up $226 million or 19% trom 1999. The 2000 increase in core
income reflected increased husiness volunies, 2 strong capital base and strong
investment income at TLA, continued customer revenue momentum within
The Gitigroup Private Bank along with the impact of the acquisitions of
Siembra, Colfondos and Confia in Citigronp Asset Management. Income of
$1.528 hillion in 2001, $1.434 billion in 2000 and $1 221 billion in 1999
included restructuring charges of $7 million ($13 miflion pretax) and $11
million ($18 miflion pretax) in 2001 and 2000, respectively, and
restructuring credit of $2 million ($4 million pretx) in 1999,

TRAVELERS LIFE AND ANNUITY

In miflions of doiars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $4,088 33,891 $3,394
Provision for benefits and claims 2552 2.325 1997
Total operating expenses 329 409 451
Income before taxes 1,207 11567 946
Income taxes 386 380 323
Income $ 821 $ 777 $ 623

(1} Reutassified to contorm to the 2001 presentation.
 Dxoludes vostinent gainsfosses included in nvestment Activities seginent.

Travelers Life and Annuity offers individual annuity, group annuity, and
individual life insurance products and COLI products marketed by TIC and
its wholly-owned subsidiary TLAC under the Travelers name. Among the
range of individual products offered are fixed and variable deferred annuities,
payout annuities and term, universal and variable life insurance. These
products are primarily distributed through CitiStreet Retirement Services
(CitiStreet) (formerly The Copeland Gompanies (Copeland)), ajoint venture,
Salomon $mith Barney Finuncial Consultants, Primerica, Citibank, and a
nationwide network of independent agents and the growing outside broker
dealer channel. The COLI product is 4 variable universal life product
distributed through independent specialty brokers. The group products
include institutional pensions, including guaranteed investment contracts
{GICs), payout annuities, group annuities o employer-sponsored retirement
and savings plans and structured finance transactions.

Income was $821 million in 2001 compared to $777 million in 2000 and
$623 million in 1999. The improvement in 2001 compared to 2000 reflects
operating expense reductions and a 3% net investment income growth,
despite the declining markets. During 2001, TEA also achieved double-digit
erowth in individual life direct periodic premiums, group annuity net written
premiums and deposits and account balances versus the prior year. The 25%
improvement in 2000 retlects increased business volume, a strong capital
base and particularly strong investroent income versus the prior-year period.
During 2000, this business continued strong individual annuity sales and
achieved double-digit business volurme growth in group annuity account
balances and individual life net written premiums, reflecting growthin
retirement savings and estate planning products and strong momentum from
cross-selling initiatives. The continued growth in 2001 and 2000 reflects both
greater popularity of these products with an aging American population and
strong momentum from cross-selling initiatives. Total operating expenses
decreased in 2001 compared to the prior-year period due to continued expense
management and the absence of expenses related to the long-term care
insurance business which was sold during the third quarter of 2000. The
Jong: term care transaction also reduced the amount of premium revenue
reported in 2001, fotal operating expenses decreased in 2000 compared to the
prior-year period due to the contribution of Copeland to the CitiStreet joint
venture and the absence of certain one-time technology expenses in 1999.
The increase in revenues was also mitigated by the contribution of Copeland.

The cross-selling initiatives of TLA products through Primerica,

Citibank, Salormon Smith Barney Financial Consultants, and CitiStreet, as
well as strong sales through various intermediaries, a nationwide network
of independent agents and outside broker dealers, reflect the ongoing
effort to build market share by strengthening relationships in key
distribution channels.

OnJuly 31, 2000, TIC sold 90% of its individual fong-term care insurance
business to General Eleetric Capital Assurance Company in the form of an
indemnity reinsurance arrangement. Proceeds from the sale were $410
million, resulting in a deferred gain of approximately $150 million after-tax
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The following table shows net written premiums and deposits by product
line, excluding long-term care insurance written premiums for the three
vears ended December 31:

In miflions of doftars 2001 2000 1999
Individual annuities
Fixed $ 2,120 $ 1,267 $ 1.008
Variable 4,000 5,025 4,265
Individual payout 59 80 78
GICs and other group annuities 7,068 5,628 5619
individual life insurance
Direct periodic premiums and deposits 652 511 409
Single premium deposits 208 98 84
Reinsurance (98) (83) 71)
Total $14,011 $12.426 $11.392

The majority of the annuity business and a substantial portion of the
life business written by TLA are accounted for as investment contracts,
with the result that the premiums are considered deposits and are not
included in revenues.

individual annuity account balances and benefit reserves reached $30.0
hillion at December 31, 2001, up from $29 4 billion at vearend 2000 and

27.9 billion at vear-end 1999. Net written premiums and deposits decreased
in 2001 to $6.179 billion from $6.372 billion in 2000 (down 3%). The
decrease in individual annuity net written premiums and deposits was driven
by a decline in variable annuity sales due 1o current market conditions, but
was partially offset by significant fixed annuity sales increases over the prior-
vear period. Non-affiliated sales channels increased 32% allowing this
business to increase market share despite lower sales. Net written premiums
and deposits increased in 2000 to $6.372 billion from $5.351 billion in 1999
{up 19%). Both 2001 and 2000 continue to reflect the cross-selling initiatives
at all of the Citigroup affiliates, and also reflect the continued penetration of
outside broker-dealer channels.

Group annuity account halances and benefit reserves reached $21.0 billion
at Decernber 31, 2001, up from $17.5 billion at vear-end 2000 (up 20%), and
$15.1 billion at yearend 1999 During both 2001 and 2000 the group annuity
business experienced continued strong sales momentum in all products,
particularly long-term liability and guaranteed investrent contracts. Net
written premiums and deposits {excluding the Company's employee pension
plan deposits) in 2001 were $7.068 billion, compared to $5.528 billion in
2000 reflecting fixed GIC growth through structured finance transactions and
long-term lability growth through the extension of structured settlement
broker relationships and large case emplover pension sales. Net writien
premiums and deposits were $5.619 billion in 1999 and reflected particularly
strong structured finance transactions.

Direct periodic premiums and deposits for individual life insurance
were $652 miltion in 2001 compared to $511 million in 2000 (up 28%),
driven by independent agent high end estate planning and COLI sales, and
$409 million in 1999. Life insurance in force was $75.0 billion at December
31,2001, up from $66.9 billion at vear-end 2000 and $60.6 billion af year-
end 1999
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THE CITIGROUP PRIVATE BANK

In millions of dollers 2001 2000 199G
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,536 $1,400 $1,212
Adjusted operating expenses & a4 874 770
Provision for credit losses 23 24 12
Core income before taxes 589 511 430
Income taxes 211 188 161
Cote Income 378 323 269
Restructuring-related items, after-tax {4) 5 1
Income $ 314 $ 318 § 270
Average assets i hiions of doltars) $ 26 § 25 $ 20
Return on assets 1.44% 1.27% 1.35%
Excluding restructuring-related items
Return on assets 1.45% 1.29% 1.35%
Client business volumes under

management i fiions of dobas $158 3153 $140

(1} Reddassified 10 contorn 1o the 2001 prasentation
{2 Excludes restructuring telated tems

The Citigroup Private Bank provides personalized wealth management
services for high net worth clients around the world. The Citigroup Private
Bank core income was $378 million in 2001, up $55 million or 17% from
2000 primasily reflecting increased customer activity across most products,
partially offset by increased investment spending in technology and front-end
sales and servicing capabilities. Core incorne of $323 million in 2000 was up
$54 million or 20% from 1999 primarily reflecting continued customer
revenue momentum, partially offset by increased front-end expenses and a
moderate increase in the provision for credit losses.

(lient business volumes under management which include custody
accounts, client assets under fee-based management and deposits and loans,
were $159 billion at the end of the vear, up 3% from $153 hillion in 2000
reflecting strong growth in Asia and continued growth in the US., despite
challenging market conditions,

Revenues, net of interest expense, were $1.536 billion in 2001, up $127
miltion or 9% fram 2000, primarily driven by the impact of lower interest
rates and higher investment product (fees and trading) revennes. The 2001
increase also reflects strong international growth in Japan and Asia, up 22%
and 19%, tespectively, from the prior-vear period and continued growth in the
North American region, up 12% from the prior-year period. Revenues in 2000
were $1.409 billion, up $197 million or 16% from 1999 reflecting increases in
foe and interest-related products. The 2000 increase alse reflects strong
international growth inJapan, Asia and CEEMEA, up 40%, 23%, and 19%,
respectively, from the prior-year period and growth in the North American
region, up 16% from the priot-year period.

Adjusted operating expenses of $924 mitlion in 2001 were up $50 million
or 6% from 2000 primarily reflecting continued investment spending in
technology and front-end sales and servicing capabilities. Expenses were
$874 million in 2000, up $104 million or 14% from 1999 primarily reflecting
higher levels of bankers and product specialists hired to improve front-end
sales and service capahilities.
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The provision for credit losses was $23 million in 2001, compared to §24
million in 2000 and $12 million in 1999. The increase in the provision for
credit losses in 2000 of $12 million primarily related to a loan in Europe. Net
creditlosses in 2001 remained at 2 nominal level of 0.06% of average loans
outstanding, compared with 0.09% in 2000. Leans 90 days or more past due
atyearend 2001 were $135 million or 0.53% of total loans outstanding,
compared with 0.23% at the end of 2000 and 0.54% at the end of 1999,

Average assets of $26 billion in 2001 increased $1 billion or 4% from $25
billion in 2000, which, in tum, increased $5 bitlion or 25% from 1999. The
increase in 2000 was primarily related fo incremental margin lending and
mortgage financing,

CITIGROUP ASSET MANAGEMENT

e nthons of doflars 2001 20000 1999
Total revenues, net of interest expense $1,929 $1.845 $1.493
Adjusted operating expenses 1,308 1,246 950
Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses 57 26 -
Core income before taxes

and minority interest 563 573 543
Income taxes 226 225 216
Minority interest, after-tax 1 3 —
Core income 336 345 327
Restructuring-related items, after-tax {3) {6) 1
Income $ 333 $ 339 $ 328
Assets under management @ bifcos of dotiars S § 417 $ 400 $ 377

{1} Peclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

{2) Excludes 1estiuchaing-related Rems.

) Inchudes $31 biflion, $30 bilior, and 331 billlen in 2001, 2000 and 1999 respectively, tor Cigraup
Private Bank dlients.

{4} Inchides Unit investment Trasts held in dliend aecounts of 57 bilion, $6 biflion and $12 billion in 2001,
2000 and 1499, respectively, and $5 billion in Fmes ging Markets Pension Adminish alion assets tnder
management in 2001,

Citigroup Asset Management is corptised of the substantial resources
{hat are available through its three primary asset management business
platforms — Smith Barney Asset Managenent, Salomon Brothers Asset
Management and Citibank Asset Management— along with the pension
administeation businesses of Global Retirement Services. These businesses
offer institutional, high net worth and retail clients a broad range of
investrient alternatives from investment centers located around the world.
Products and services offered include mutual funds, closed-end funds,
separately managed accounls, unit investment trusts, alternative investments,
variable annuities (through affiliated and third party insurance companies),
pension administration and insurance.

Core income of $336 million in 2001 was down $9 million or 3%
compared to 2000 primarily reflecting a charge for Argentine debt securites
exchanged for loans held in the Siembra insurance companies of Global
Retirervient Secvices, partially offset by growth in Citigroup Asset Management
earnings. The Argentine debt securities were held in support of existing
contractholders’ liabilities. The Global Retirement Services buginess in
Argenting, Siembra. includes pension administration and insurance
companies. Core incuine of $345 million in 2000 was up $18 million or 6%
compared to 1999 retlecting the impact of Latin American acquisitions in the
Global Retirement Services business and growth in asset-based tee revenue,
partially offset by increased expenses.

Assets under management rose to $417 billion as of December 31, 2001, up
4% from $400 billion in 2000 reflecting strong net flows that were partially
offset by negative market activity and the transter of $26 hillion in retail
Money Market assets to the SSB Bank Deposit Program. Institutional chient
assets of $185 hillion as of December 31, 2001 were up 20% compared to a
year 4o reflecting an increase in institutional money market fund and
long-term product flows, offset by negative market action and altemative
investment volume growth. Retail client assets were $227 hillion, down 6%
from $242 billion in 2000. Retail client assets, excluding money markets and
unit investment trusts, grew 9%, driven by strong net flows, partially offset by
negative market action.

Sales of proprietary mutual funds and managed acoount products 4t S5B
rose 33% to $28 billion in 2001 from the privr vear primarily driven by growth
in managed account products, and represented 59% of SSB's retail channel
sales for the vear Sales of mutual and money funds through Global
Consumer's banking network were $11 billion for the vear, representing 53%
of total sales, including $8 billion in International and $3 billion in the U8,
of which Primerica sold $2.0 billion of proprietary .S, mutual and money
funds in 2001, 29% increase compared to 2000, representing 67% of
Primerica’s total sales. Institutional long-term product sales of $28 hillion
increased 40% over the prior vear and include $14 hillion of sales to Global
Corporate dients.

Revenues, net of interest expense, increased $84 miltion or 5% 10 $1.929
billion in 2001 . This was compared to $1 845 billion in 2000, which was up
$352 million or 24% from 1999. The increase in 2001 was primarily due to
the effects of positive net flows, the impact of acquisitions and a reduction in
death and disability reinsurance premiums in the Global Retirement Services
business, partially offset by the impagct of lower market values of assets under
management, the transfer of assets to the SSB Bank Deposit Program and the
impact of the Siembra Argentina debt securities exchange. The increase in
2000 was primarily due to the impagt of the acquisitions of Siembra,
Colfondos and Confia in the Global Retirement Services busingss, along with
continued growth in asset-based fee revenues.

Adjusted operating expenses of $1.309 billion in 2001 increased $63
miltion or 5% from 2000. The increase in 2001 primarily represents the
impact of Global Retirement Services acquisitions and other variable expenses
related to revenue growth. Adjusted operating expenses of $1.246 billion in
2000 increased $296 million or 31% from 1994, The increase in 2000 was
primarily due to the impact of acquisitions in the Global Retirement Services
husiness, as well as continued investment in sales and marketing activities,
technology and product developrent.

Provision for benefits, claims and credit losses of $57 million in 2001
increased $31 million from 2000, driven by reduced reinsurance levels on
death and disability business and the Generar acquisition.
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GLOBAL INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AND
PRIVATE BANKING QUTLOOK

The statements below are forward-looking statements within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Statements” on page 62.

Travelers Life and Annuity should benefit from growth in the aging
population which is becoming more focused on the need to accumulate
adequate savings for retirement, to protect these savings and to plan for the
transfer of wealth to the next generation. TLA is well positioned to take
advantage of the favorable long-term demographic trends through it strong
financial pusition, widespread brand name recognition and broad array of
competitive life, annuity and retirement and estate planning products sold
through established distribution channels.

However, competition in hath product pricing and cistomer service is
intensifying. While there has been some consolidation within the industry,
other financial services organizations are increasingly involved in the sale
and/or distribution of insurance products. Financial services reform is likely
to have many effects on the life insurance industry and the results will take
time to assess, however, heightened competition is expected. Also, the
annuities business is interest rate and market sensitive, and swings in interest
rates and equity markets could influence sales and retention of in-force
policies. In order to strengthen its competitive position, TLA expecis to
maintain a current product portfolio, further diversity its distribution
channels, and retain its financial position through strong sales growth and
mintenance of an efficient cost structure.

Private Banking and Asset Management. The businesses of
Private Banking and Asset Management are affected by the economic outlook
and market levels. The market for private banking and asset management
services continues to be extremely attractive because the “wealth” segment
has been growing faster than the overall market. While competition for this
attractive and dynamic market segment is increasing, the global market is
highly fragmented. This presents Private Banking and Asset Management
with an extremely attractive business opportunity hecause it is one of the few
providers that can claim to offer afull range of services on a global basis.

The Argentina economic and pelitical crisis that occurred towards the end
of 2001 impacted the Global Retirement Services business, which operates a
portion of its business in Argentina. {n 2002, the business will focus on
containing the negative fallout from Argentina's economic crisis.
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INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

In milliens of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Total reventtes, net of interest expense $907 $2.309 $1,089
Total operating expenses 118 124 72
Provision for credit losses — 7 —
Income hefore taxes and minority interest 789 2,178 1,017
income taxes 264 806 356
Minonty interest, after-tax (5) (10} 11
Income $530 $1,383 $ 650

(1} Reclassified 1o conform o the 2001 presentation.

Investment Activities comprises Citigroup's venture capital activities,
realized investment gains (losses) from certain insurance-related
investments, results front certain proprietary investments, the results of
certain investments in countries that refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady
Plan or plans of a similar nature, and since August 2001, the investment
portfolio related to Banamex

Revenues, net of inferest expense, include $380 million, $2.042 bilkion and
$809 million from proprietary investments, $59 million, $331 million and
$78 million from LDG Debt Sales/Refinancing portfolios and $468 million,
($64) million and $202 million from net realized gains from insurance-
related investments for the years ended 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Revenues, net of interest expense, in 2001 of $907 miltion decreased
$1.402 billien from 2000 primarily reflecting lower venture capital results
and current vear impairment write-downs in insurance-related and other
proprictary investments, partially offset by increased gains in insurance-
related and other proprietary investments. Revenues, net of tnterest expense,
in 2000 of $2.309 hillion increased $1.220 bilkion from 1999 primarily
reflecting increases in venture capital results and gains on the exchange of
certain Latin American bonds. The 2000 first quarter included losses
in insurance-related investments from repositioning activities designed
to improve yields and maturity profiles, and write-downs in the
refinancing portfolio

Investment Activities results may fuctuate in the future s a result of
market and asset-specific tactors. This staterent is a forward-looking
statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62,
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CORPORATE/OTHER

in mitions of doiiars 2001 20000 1999
Adjusted revenues, net of

interest expense i $ (397) $ (697) $ 30
Adjusted operating expenses ©! 801 642 797
Adjusted provision (credit) for benefits,

claims and credit losses ¥ 1 ) 208
Core loss hefore tax benefits

and minority interest (1,198) {1.335) (975
income tax benefits (504) 477 {338
Minority interest, after-tax 11 — —
Core loss (706) {858) 837)
Restructuring-related items and

merger-related costs, after-tax 3 (249) (20)
Housing Finance unit charge, after-tax - 71) —
Loss $ (703) $(1,178) $(657)

{1} Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
) Excludes Housing Finance unit sharge and restructuring retated items and merger-rdated costs.

Corporate/Other includes net corparate treasury results, corporate staff and
other corporate expenses, certain intersegnient eliminations, the remainder
of Internet-related development activities not allocated to the individual
businesses and in 1999 and 2000, activities related to the Associates Housing
Finance (AHF) unit, in January 2000, Associates announced its intention to
discontinue the foan origination operations of its AliF unit. Prior to the
announcement, AHF originated and serviced loans for manufactured homes.

Adjusted revenues in 2001 of ($397) million increased $300 million from
2000 due to lower net treasury costs primarily related o reduced rates and the
impact of higher intersegment eliminations, partially offset by increased
funding costs related to the Associates and Banamex acquisitions. Adjusted
revenues in 2000 of ($697) million decreased $727 million from 1999
primarily reflecting the discontinuation of AIF activity, higher net treasury
costs and the impact of lower intersegment eliminations. Adjusted operating
expenses in 2001 of $801 millien increased $159 million front 2000 primarily
due to the impact of higher intersegment eliminations, as well as a §57
million fourth quarter pretax expense for the contribution of appreciated
venture capital securities to Citigroup’s Foundation, which had minimal
impact on Citigroup’s earnings after related tax benefits and investment
gains, partially offset by 4 2000 $108 million pretax expense for the
contribution of appreciated venture capital securities to Citigroup's
Foundation. Adjusted operating expenses in 2000 of $642 miltion decreased
$155 million from 1999 primarily reflecting the discontinuation of AHF
activity and decreases in certain unallocated corporate costs, intersegment
eliminations, performance-based option expense and technology costs. The
adjusted provision for benefits, claims and credit losses in 1999 primarily
related to AHE

The 2000 after-tax restructuring-related items and merger-related charges
of $249 million (8346 million pretax) included exit costs incurred as a result
of Citigroup's acquisition of Associates. See Note 15 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a discussion of restructuring-refated items. The 2000
after-tax Housing Finance unit charge of $71 million ($112 miltion pretax)
included costs related to the discontinuation of AHF loan origination
operations. The 1999 after-tax restructuring-related charge of $20 million
related primarily to accelerated depreciation.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained herein that are not historical facts are
forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. Many of these statements appear under the heading
“Global Consumer Outlook,” “Global Corporate Gutlook,” and “Global
Investment Management and Private Banking Outlook.” The Company's
actual results may difter materially from those included in the forward-
looking staterments, Forward-looking statements are typically identified by
words or phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” "intend,”
“estimate,” “may increase,” “may fluctuate,” and similar expressions or
future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,” and “could.”
These forward-looking staternents involve risks and uncertainties including,
but not limited to, weakening global economic conditions. the economic
crisis in Argentina, higher unemployment rates and the continued increase in
hankruptcy filings in Japan, sovereign or regulatory actions, and political
conditions and developments; possible changes in estimated reserves for
property and casualty insurance losses, an increase in the number of entities
seeking bankruptcy protection as a result of asbestos-related liabilities, the
changing trends in policybolders claims with respect to aggregation limits
and separate accurrence treatment, and environmental and asbestos claims
and related litigation; the highly competitive nature of the personal-lines
marketplace; inflationary pressures in medical costs and auto and home
repair costs; asbestos-related developments including more intensive
advertising by lawyers seeking ashestos claimants and the increasing focus by
plaintiffs on new and previously peripheral defendants; rising reinsurance
and litigation costs in the property and casualty insurance marketplace;
proposed changes in laws and regulations on the cost and availability of
certain types of insurance, as well as the claim and coverage obligations of
insurers; assessments on insurance subsidiaries from state-administered
guaranty associations, second-injury funds and similar associations; the
ameount of refinancing activity in mortgage banking; the effect of hanking
and financial services reforms, of rules governing the regulatory treatment of
merchant banking investments, and of rules regarding the regulatory capital
treatment of recourse, direct credit substitutes and residual interest in asset
securitizations; possible amendments to, and interpretations of, risk-based
capital guidelines and reporting instructions; the aility of states to adopt
mote extensive consumer privacy protections through legislation or
requlation; the resolution of legal proceedings and related matters; and the
{Company's success in managing the costs associated with the expansion of
existing distribution channels and developing new ones, and in realizing
increased revenues from such distribution channels, including cross-selling
initiatives and electronic commerce-based efforts.
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MANAGING GLOBAL RISK

The Citigroup Risk Management framework recognizes the wide range and
diversity of global business activities by balancing strong corporate oversight
with defined independent risk management functions at the business fevel.
included in this oversight s an assessment of the accounting and financial
reporting tisks across all businesses.
The risk management framework is grounded on the following seven
principles, which apply universally across all businesses and all risk types:
* Integration of Business and Risk Management — Risk
management is integrated within the business plan and strategy.
» Risk Ownership—All risks and resulting returns are owned and
managed by an accountable business unit.
* Independent Oversight—Risk limits are approved by both business
managenment and independent risk management.
+ Policies —All risk management policies are clearly and
formally documented.
+ Risk ldentification and Measurement—All risks are measured
using defined methodologies. including stress testing.
+ Limits and Metrics—All risks are managed within a limit
framework.
» Risk Reporting—All risks are comprehensively reported across
the organization.

The risk management functions at the corporate-level are responsible for
establishing Citigroup risk management standards for the measurement,
approval, reporting and limiting of risk, appointing independent risk
tmanagers at the business-level, approving business unit risk management
policies, approving business risk-taking authority through the allocation of
limits and capital, and reviewing, on an ongoing basis, major risk exposures
and concentrations across the organization.

The independent risk managers at the business-level are responsible for
establishing and implementing risk management policies and practices
within their business, while ensuring engoing consistency with Citigroup
standards. The business risk managers have dual accountability—to the
Citigroup Senior Risk Officer and to the head of their business unit.

The Citigroup Senior Risk Officer is responsible for reviewing material
corporate-wide risks, and determining appropriate exposure levels and limits.
Risks are regularly reviewed with the independent business risk managers, the
Citigroup Management Commitiee, and s necessary, with committees of the
Board of Directors. Reviews may include analysis of current exposure levels,
trends in exposure levels, as well as assessments of the impact of “normal”
market moves and sudden, severe market events. The scope of risks covered
includes, but is not limited to:

» Corporate Credit Risk, including obligor exposures vis-2-vis limits, risk
ratings, industry conoentrations, and country cross-border risks;

o Consumer Gredit Risk, including product concentrations, regional
concenteations, and trends in portfolio performance;

e Counterparty pre-settlement risk in trading activities;

» Distribution and underwriting risks;

» Price Risk, including the earnings or economic impact of changes in the
level and volatilities of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and
commodity, debt and equity prices on trading portfolios and on investment
portfolios.
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* Liquidity Risk, including funding concentrations and diversification
strategy,

« Risks resulting from the underwriting, sale and reinsurance of life
insurance policies and property and casualty policies (commercial,
personal and performance bonds); and

« Other risks, including legal, technology, operational and tranchise, as well
asspectfic matters identified and reviewed in the Audit and Risk Review.

The following sections summatize the processes fer managing credit and
market risks within Citigroup’s major businesses, and reflect the ongoing
integration of businesses and risk management practices.

THE CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Credit risk s the potential for financial loss resulting from the failure of a
horrower ot counterparty to honor its financial or contractual obligation.
Credit risk arises in many of the Company’s business activities including
Jending activities, sales and trading activities, derivatives activities, securities
transactions settlement activities, and when the Company acls as an
intermediary on behalf of its clients and other third parties. The credit risk
management process 4t Citigroup relies on corporate-wide standards to
ensufe consistency and integrity, with business-specific policies and practices
to ensure applicability and ownership.

CONSUMER CREDIT RISK

Within the Global Consumer Group (GCG), business-specific credit risk

policies and procedures are derived from the following risk management

framework:

o Fach business must develop 4 plan, including risk/return tradeoffs, as well
as risk acceptance criteria and policies approptiate to their activities;

* Senior Business Managers are responsible for managing risk/return
tradeoffs in their business:

* Senior Business Managers, in conjunction with Senior Credit Officess,
implement business-specific risk management policies and practices;

o Approval policies for a product or business are tailored to internal audit
ratings, profitability and credit risk management performance;

+ Independent credit risk management is responsible for establishing
the GCG Policy, approving business-specific policies and procedures,
monitoring business risk management performance, providing
ongoing assessment of portfolio credit risks, and approving new
products and new risks,

Citigroup’s consumer loan portfolio is well diversified by both customer
and product. Consumer loans comprise 62% of the total loan portfolio. These
loans represent thousands of borrowers with relatively small individual
balances. The loans are diversified with respect to the location of the borrower,
with 67% originated in the United States and 33% originated from offices
outside the United States. Mortgage and real estate loans constitute 44% of the
total consumer Inan portfolia and instaliment, revolving credit and other
consumer loans constitute 56% of the portfolio.
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CONSUMER PORTFOLIO REVIEW

in the consumer portfolio, credit Joss experience is expressed in terms of
annualized net credit losses as a percentage of average loans. Pricing and
credit policies reflect the loss experience of each particular product. Consumer
Joans are generally written-off no later than a predetermined number of days
past due on 4 contractual basis, or eartier in the event of bankruptcy. The

number af days is set at an appropriate level according to loan product and
country. The following table summarizes delinquency and net credit loss
experience in hoth the managed and on-batance sheet foan portfolios in
terms of Joans 90 days or more past due, net credit losses, and a5 a percentage
of related loans.

Consumer Loan Delinquency Amounts, Net Credit Losses, and Ratios

Total Average
loans 90 days or more past due " foans Net creditiosses
rr enitfions of dolfars, cxcept otal and average foan amounts ib billins 2001 2001 2000 1999 2001 2001 20001 1999
Citibanking North America $117 & 9% $ 35 $ 55 $ 93 $ 9% $ 64 $ R
Ratio 082% 0.48% 0.78% 1.03% 0.91% 1.22%
Mortgage Barking 45.7 1,157 846 707 45.1 40 59 52
Ratio 253% 2.01% 2.28% 0.09% 0.16% 0.18%
Citi Cards 107.7 2,135 1,497 1,285 102.1 5,556 3,021 3,903
fRatio 1.98% 1.46% 151% 5.44% 4.28% 43%
Other Cards 10 6 6 21 1.5 47 65 49
Ratio 061% 0.35% 1.31% 3.13% 3.76% 3.00%
CitiFinancial 602 2,002 1,272 943 58.7 1,583 1,338 1,189
Ratio 3.32% 2.23% 1.96% 2.70% 257% 2 66%
Western Europe 19.0 800 835 928 18.0 338 342 345
Ratio 421% 4.78% 5.39% 1.88% 2.05% 2.00%
Japan 144 178 101 112 14.4 589 406 270
Ratio 1.28% 0.73% 1.19% 4.10% 3.50% 3.49%
Asia (excluding Japan) 212 367 335 442 23 259 257 286
Ratio 1.73% 151% 1.93% 121% 1.16% 1.32%
Latin America 53 248 235 303 6.0 279 321 408
Ratio 4.71% 3.58% 3.99% 4.63% 4.67% 6.32%
Mexico 6.0 523 15 17 28 96 11 11
Ratio 8.75% 517% 6.78% 3.72% 3.67% 4.89%
CEEMEA 25 36 32 46 23 39 38 32
Ratio 1.41% 1.37% 2.25% 1.70% 1.95% 1.96%
The Citigroup Private Bank +* 5.7 135 61 120 249 14 23 19
Ratio 053% 0.23% 0.54% 0.06% 0.09% 0.10%
Other 40 18 30 33 34 13 {12} 39
Total managed $3244 $ 7,701 $ 5,300 $5,012 $3096 $ 8948 $6833 36693
Ratio 237% 1.75% 1.95% 239% 2.48% 2.80%
Securitized receivables {68.4) (1,282) (1012 916 {63.8) (3,251) (2,228 (2,479)
Loans held for sale 11.9) (110) {110 (32) {14.2) {317) {182) (121)
Consumer loans $2441 $ 6309 $41/8 $4,064 $2316 $ 5380 54423 3§ 4093
Ratio 258% 1.83% 2.09% 2.32% 2.11% 2.24%
{11 The tallos of 90 days o more past due and niet credit losses are codated based on end-of-pertod and average foans, Tespectively, both net of unearned income.
i) Reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.
) The Ciligraup Private Bank resulls ate reported as part of e Global Irvestment Management and Private Banking segment.
Consumer Loan Balances, Net of Unearned income
End of period Average
In hitkens of doflars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Total managed $3244 $302.8 $257.2 $309.6 $275.5 $2303
Securitized recelvables (68.4) {60.6) 58.0) {63.8) 57.0) (51.0)
L.oans held for sale (11.9) (13.3) (4.6) {14.2) 87 55
On-balance sheet $244.1 $228.9 $1946 $2316 $209.8 $182.8

Gitigroup’s allowane for credit losses of $10.088 hillion is available to
absorh probable credit losses inherent in the entire portfolio. For analytical
purposes only, the portion of Citigroup’s allowance for credit losses attributed
to the consumer portfolio was $5.169 billion at December 31, 2001, $4.946
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hillion at December 31, 2000 and $5.220 billion at December 31, 1999. The
increase in the allowance for credit losses from 2000 was primartly due to the
acquisitions of Banamex and EAB. The allowance as a percentage of loans on
thie balance sheet was 2.13% at December 31, 2001, down from 2.16% at
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December 31, 2000 and 2.68% at Decernber 31, 1999, The decline in the
allowance as a percentage of loans primarily reflects the growth in consumer
loans. On-balance sheet consumer loans of $244.1 billion grew $15 billion or
7% from December 31, 2000 primarily driven by the impact of the
acquisitions of Banamex and EAB and growth in CitiFinancial, mostly real
estate secured loans. On-balance sheet loans in Citi Cards declined in 2001 as
growth in managed receivables was more than oftset by increased
securitization activity, In addition, loans in 2001 increased in Japan and
Western Europe, mainly in consumer finance, and decreased in Asia and
Latin America. The decline in Latin America loans primarily reflects
reductions associated with the re-denomination of certain consumer loans in
Argenting. The attribution of the allowance is made for analytical purposes
only and sy change from tine to time. Consumer net credit losses and loans
90 days or more past due are expected to increase from 2001 levels as a result
of portfolio growth and seasonal factors and as uncertain global economic
conditions persist. This statement is 2 forward-looking statement within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Retorm Act. See “Forward-
Looking Staterments™ on page 62.

In miticns of deitirs 2001 2000 1999
Allowance for credit losses $5,169 $4.946 85,220
As a percentage of total consumer loans 2.13% 2.16% 2.68%

CORPORATE CREDIT RISK

For corporate clients and investment banking activities across the

organization, the credit process is grounded in 4 series of tundamental

policies, including:

 Ultimate business accountability for managing credit risks;

+ joint business and independent risk management responsibility for
cstablishing limits and risk management practices;

* Single center of control for each credit relationship that coordinates credit
activities with that client, directly approves or consents to all extensions of
credit to that client, reviews aggregate exposures, and ensures comipliance
withexposure limits;

« Portfolio limits, including obligor limits by risk rating and by maturity, to
ensure diversification and maintain risk/capital alignment,

« A minimum two-authorized credit officer-signature requirement on
extensions of credit-one from a sponsoring credit officer in the business
and one from a credit officer in independent credit risk management;

« Uniform risk measurement standards, including risk ratings, which must
be assigned to every obligor and facility in accordance with Gitigroup
standards; and

+ Consistent standards for credit origination, measurerient and
documentation, as well as problem recognition, classification and
remedial action.

These policics apply universally across corporate clients and investment
banking activities in the Corporate and Investment Bank and Emerging
Markets. Businesses that require tailored credit processes, due to unique or
unusual risk characteristics in their activities, may only do so under & Credit
Prograny that has been approved by independent credit risk management. In
all cases, the above policies must be adhered to, or specific exceptions must be
granted by independent credit risk management.
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The Glohal Corporate credit portfolio is diversified by obligor, industry and
geographic location.

The following table presents the Global Corporate credit portfolio before
consideration of collateral by maturity at December 31, 2001 broken out by
direct outstandings which include drawn loans, overdrafts, interbank
placements, banker’s acceptances and leases; and unfunded commitnients
which include unused commitments to lend, letters of credit and financial
guarantees:

Greater
Within than 1 year Greater Total
in bitiions: fyear butwithin5  than5 years exposure
Direct outstandings 3133 S 54 $28 $215
Unfunded commitments 132 62 10 194
Total 3265 $106 338 $409

Credit Exposure Arising from Derivatives and
Foreign Exchange

The Company measures and manages the creditexposure on its derivative
and foreign exchange contracts taking into account both the current mark-
to-market value of each contract plus 2 prudent estimate of its potential
change in value over its life. The measurement of the potential future
exposure for each credit facility is hased on simulation of market rates and
gencrally takes into account legally enforceable risk-mitigating agreements
for each obligor such as netting and margining,

Under 2 margin agreement the Company obtains collateral from its
counterparties, consisting primarily of cash or marketable securities which are
revalued on a regular basis. The collateral reduces the measured exposure.

The cutrent mark-to-market which is reported within the balance sheet
creditexposure of $29.8 billion represents the current cost of replacing all
contracts and is reported as 4 component of Trading Account Assets. The total
exposure, which is used to manage counterparty tisk, also includes 2 prudent
estimate of the potential increase in the replacenient cost of each credit
facility. The simple sum of the maximum potential lifetime increase in
replacement cost of all facilities is $101 billion. While the current mark-to-
market and the maximum potential increase in replacement cost per credit
facility for a single counterparty is a prudent number used to manage
exposure, when sumimed across all tacilities it materially overstates the
potential foss that could occur at any ene time.

Portfolio Mix

The Global Corporate credit portfolio is geographically diverse by region,
The following table shows direct outstandings, unfunded commitments,
derivatives, and foreign exchange, measured as discussed above, by region:

Dec. 31, Der. 31,

2001 2000

North America 46% 48%
Europe 22% 22%
Japan 3% 3%
Asia 9% 1%
Latin America 6% 7%
Mexico 7% 28
CEEMEA 6% 5%
Other 1% 2%
Total 100% 100%

(1) Devember 31, 2001 inchudes Banamex adstandings and unfunded commilments.
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The Company attempts to maintain accurate and consistent risk ratings
across the Global Gorporate credit portfolio. This facilitates the comparison of
creditexposures across all lines of business, geographic region and product.
All internal risk ratings must be derived in accordance with the Corporate
Risk Rating Policy. Any exception to the Policy must be approved by the
(iitigroup Senior Risk Officer. The Corporate Risk Rating Policy establishes
standards for the derivation of obligor and facility risk ratings that are
generally consistent with the approaches used by the major rating agencies.

Obligor risk ratings reflect an estimated probability of default for an obligor,
and are derived through the use of validated statistical models, external rating
agencies (under defined dircurmstances), or approved scoring or judgmental
methodologies. Facility risk ratings are assigned, using the obligor risk rating,
and then taken into consideration are factors that affect the loss-given default
of the facility such as parent support, coliateral or structure.

Internal obligor ratings equivalent to BBB- and above are considered
investment grade. Ratings below the equivalent of BBB- are considered
non-investment grade.

The following table presents the Global Corporate credit portfolio by
internal obligor credit rating at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000,
as apercentage of the total portfolio:

Direct outstandings and

2001 2000 2001 2000
AAAANA 5% 79% 42% 47%
BBB 15% 14% 29% 23%
BB/B 8% 6% 19% 18%
CCC or below — - 3% 2%
Unrated 2% 1% T% 10%

100% 100% 100% 100%

(1) Includes retail margin Joans, as vell as portilios of tevent acquisitions, which are in the procsss of
conforming to Cifigroup's risk ating methodulogy.

'The Global Corporate credit portfolio is diversified by industry with
aconcentration only to the financial sector which includes banks, other
financial institutions, investment banks and governments and central banks.
The following table shows direct outstandings, unfunded commitments,
derivatives and foreign exchange to the top thirteen industries 4 2 percentage
of the total commercial portfolio:

Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
2001 2000
Banks 14% 14%
Other financial institutions and investment banks 14% 1%
Governments and central banks 11% 7%
Telephone and cable 4% 5%
Insurance 4% 4%
Industrial machinery and equipment 4% 4%
Agricuitural and food prep 4% 4%
Utilities 4% 4%
Freight transpartation 3% 4%
Giobal information technology 3% 4%
Petroleum 3% 3%
Chemicals 2% 3%
Autes 2% 2%
Other industries ) 28% 3%
Total 100% 100%
(1) Includes all other industries, none of which exceed 2% of Infal autstandings
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GLOBAL CORPORATE PORTFOLIO REVIEW

Commercial loans are identified as impaired and placed on 4 nonaccrual
hasis when it is determined that the payment of interest or principal is
doubtful of collection or when interest or principal is past due for 90 days or
more, except when the loan is well secured and in the process of collection.
Impaired commercial foans are written down to the extent that principal is
judged to be uncollectible. Impaired collateral-dependent loans are writien
down to the lower of cost or collateral value. The following table summarizes
commercial cash-basis loans and net credit losses:

I miffions of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Cash-basis loans at year-end

Corporate and Investment Bank {114 $1,525 $ 7786 3 481

EM Corporate & GTS 1,465 1.069 989

Mexico 1,030 79 55
insurance and Investment Activities 4 21 46 55
Total commercial cash-basis loans $4,041 $1,970 $1,580
Net credit losses

Cotporate and Investment Bank 4 $1,261 3 536 $ 145

EM Corporate & GTS 321 199 388

Mexico &1 66 29 21
Insurance and lnvestment Activities - 7 -
Total commercial net credit losses $1,648 $ 771 $ 064

{1y Prioe period cash-hasis foans wete restated fo change the policy of the Associates Canmercial Leasing
business for suspending accrual of intes est on past due loans fo conform vith other leasing businesses
in the Catporate and Investment Bank. The prior poficy of placing loans that are 80 days or more past
due info cash basis, was changed to 90 days of more past dus.

(2) 2001 includes Banamex cash-basis loans and net-credit losses.

{3} Invostment Activitios rosults are repartod in the fvestment Activitios sogmont.

(4) In 1999, excludes amounts related to manufactured housing, as such loan arigination operations were
distontinued in early 2000, Exoluded cash-basis foans and net-credit fosses 1 elating to menufactured
housing were $55 mitlion and $36 mitiion, respectively.

Total commercial cash-hasis loans were $4.041 billion, $1.970 billion and
$1.580 billien at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Gash-basis
loans in CIB were $1.525 billion, $776 miltion and $481 million at December
31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, reflecting increases in the
transportation leasing portfolio and borrowers in the telecommunication,
energy, utility, and retail industries. EM Corporate & GTS cash-basis loans
were $1.465 billion, $1.069 billion and $989 miltion at December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 2001 primarily retlects increases
in Latin America, mainly Argentina, and increases in Asia, mainly Australia
and New Zealand. The increase in 2000 was primarily due to the acquisition
of Bank Handlowy along with increases in Latin America, partially offset by
improvernents in Asia. Mexico cush-basis louns were $1.030 hillion, $79
million and $55 million at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
'The increase in 2001 reflects the acquisition of Banamex whose cash-hasis
loans include exposures in steel, textile, food products and ether industries.

Total Other Repossessed Assets were $439 million, $292 million and
$256 nillion at December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, primarily
reflecting increases in repossessed transportation equipment and the
acquisition of Banames.

Total commercial loans outstanding at December 31, 2001 were $148
hillion compared to $138 hillion and $120 billion at December 31, 2000 and
1999, respectively.
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‘Total commercial net credit losses of $1 648 billion in 2001 increased
$877 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting increases in CIB and EM
Corporate & GTS. CIB net credit losses of $1.261 hillion in 2001 were up
$725 million compared to 2000 primarily reflecting higher net credit losses
in the transportation portfolio combined with higher net credit losses in the
telecommunication, enetgy, retail and aitline industries. EM Corporate &
S net credit Tosses of $321 mitlion in 2001 increased $122 miilion
from 2000 primarily due to write-downs in Argentina, partially offset by
improvements in CEEMEA. Total commercial net credit losses increased
$217 million in 2000 compared to 1999 primarily due to increases in CIB,
partially oftset by decreases in EM Corporate & GTS. The CIB increase in 2000
was due to write-offs on the transportation pertfolio and North American
health care borrowers, 1999 recoveries on real estate loans and the inclusion
of losses for Copelco, which was acquired in the second quarter of 2000. The
EM Corporate & GTS decrease in 2000 primarily reflects improvements in
Asia, mainly China, Indonesia, Australia and Thailand, and in CEEMEA. For
afurther discussion of trends by business, see the business discussions on
pages 0 o0 52.

Citigroup’s allowance for credit losses of $10.688 billion is available to
absorb probable credit losses inherent in the entire portfolio. For analytical
purposes only, the portion of Citigroup's allowance for credit losses attributed
to the commercial portfolio was $4.919 hillion at Decernber 31, 2001
compared to $4.015 billion and $3.633 biltion at December 31, 2000 and
1999, respectively. The increase in the allowance at December 31, 2001
primarily reflects the acquisition of Banamex. The increase in the allowance
at December 31, 2000 primarily reflects additional provisions related o the
transportation pertfolia. Losses on commercial lending activities and the level
of cash-hasis loans can vary widely with respect to timing and amount,
particularly within any narrowly-defined business or loan type. Commercial
net credit losses and cash-basis loans may increase from the 2001 levels due
to weakening global economic conditions, the economic crisis in Argenting,
sovereign o regulatory actions and other factors. This statement is a forward-
looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

In bilfions of deliars al year-end 2001 2000 1999
Commerciat allowance for credit losses $4919 $4.015 $3633
As a percentage of total commercial loans 3.31% 2.90% 302%

REINSURANCE RISK

In the course of its insurance activities, TPC reinsures 4 portion of the risks it
underwrites in an effort to control its exposure to losses, stabilize earnings and
protect capital resources. TPC cedes to reinsurers a portion of these risks and
pays premiumns hased upon the risk and exposure of the policies subject to
such reinsurance. Reinsurance involves credit risk and is subject to aggregate
loss limits. Although the reinsurer is liable to TPC generally to the extent of
the reinsurance ceded, TPC remains primarily liable as the direct insurer on
all risks reinsured. TPC also holds collateral, including escrow funds and
letters of credit, under certain reinsurance agreements. TPC monitors the
financial condition of reinsurers on an ongoing basis, and reviews ifs
reinsurance arrangements periodically. Reinsurers are selected based on their
financial condition and business practices and the price of their product
offerings. For additional information concerning reinsurance, see Note 14to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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THE MARKET RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Market risk at Citigroup— like credit risk—is managed through corporate-

wide standards and husiness policies and procedures.

* Market risks are measured in accordance with established standards to
ensuse consistency across businesses and the ability to aggregate like risks
at the Citigroup-level.

e Each husiness is required to establish, and have approved by independent
Market Risk Management, 4 market dsk limit framework, including risk
measures, limits and controls, that clearly defines approwed risk profiles
and is within the parameters of Citigroup's overall risk appetite.

* Businesses, working in conjunction with independent Market Risk
Management, must ensure that market risks are independently measured,
monitored and reported, toensure transparency in risk-taking activities
and integrity in risk reports.

In all cases, the businesses are ultimately responsible for the market risks
that they take, and for remaining within their defined limits.

Market risk encompasses liquidity risk and price risk, both of which
arise in the normal course of business of a global financial intermediary.
Liquidity risk is the risk that some entity, in some location and in some
currency, may he unable to meet a financial commitment to 2 customer,
creditor, or investor when due. Liquidity Risk is discussed in the Liguidity
and Capital Resouroes section.

Price risk is the risk to carnings that arises from changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity and commaodity prices, and in their implied
volatilitics. Price risk arises in Non-Trading Portfolios, as well as in Trading
Portfolios.

Non-trading Portfolios

Price risk in non-trading portfolios is measured predominantly through
Farnings-at-Risk and Factor Sensitivity techniques. These measurement
techniques are supplemented with additional tools, including stress testing
and cost-to-close analysis.

Business units manage the potential earnings effect of interest rate
movements by managing the asset and Hability mix, either directly or
through the use of derivative financial products. These include interest rate
swaps and other derivative instruments that are designated and effective as
hedges. The utilization of derivatives is managed in response to changing
market conditions as well as to changes in the characteristics and mix of the
related assets and liabilities.

Earnings-at-Risk is the primary method for measuring price risk in
Gitigroup's non-trading portfolios (excluding the Insurance companies).
Earnings-at-Risk measures the pretax earnings impact of a specified upward
and downward parallel shift in the yield curve for the appropriate currency.
The Earmings-at-Risk is caloulated separately for each currency and reflects
the repricing gaps in the position as well as option positions, both explicit
and embedded. U.S. dollar exposures are calculated by multiplying the gap
between interest sensitive items, including assets, liabilities, derivative
instruments and other off-balance sheet instruments, by 100 basis points.
Non-U.S. dolar exposures are calculated utilizing the statistical equivalent
of 2 100 basis point change in interest rates and assuming no correlation
between exposures in different currencies.

Citigroup’s primary non-trading price risk exposure is to movements
in the 1S dollar and Mexican peso interest rates. Citigroup also has

OPP006431



Rarnings-at-Risk in various other currencies; however, there are nu
significant risk concentrations in any other individual non-US. dollar
currency.

The following table illustrates the impact to Citigroup’s pretax earnings
from a 100 hasis point increase or decrease in the U.S. dollar vield curve.
As of December 31, 2001, the potential impact on pretax earnings over the
next 12 months is a decrease of $241 million from an interest rate increase
and an increase of $244 million from an interest rate decrease. This level of
12 month Earnings-at-Risk equates to less than 1.5% of Gitigroup pretax
eamings in 2001, The potential impact on pretax earnings for periods
beyond the first 12 months is an increase of $398 million from an increase
in interest rales and 2 decrease of $1,082 million from an inferest rate
decrease. The change in Eamings-at-Risk from the prior vear reflects the
growth in Gitigreup’s fised funding, the change in mortgage prepayment
characteristics in our portfolio, offset by the change in the asset/ligbility
mix to reflect Citigroup’s view of interest rates.

The statistical equivalent of a 100 basis point increase in Mexican peso
interest rates would have a potential positive impact on Citigroup's pretax

Citigroup Earnings-at-Risk (impact on pretax earnings)

earnings of approximately $208 million for 2002 and a potential positive
impact of $207 million for the vears thereafter. The statistical equivalent of
a 100 basis points decrease in Mexican peso interest tates would have a
potential negative impact on Citigroup’s pretax earnings of approximately
$208 million for 2002 and potential negative impact of $207 million for the
years thereafter. The change in Earnings-at-Risk from December 31, 2000
primarily represents the inclusion of Banamex's Mexican pesv exposure.
Excluding the impact of changes in Mexican peso interest rates, the
statistical equivalent of a 100 basis point increase in other non-U S. dollar
interest rates would have a potential negative impact on Citigroup's pretax
earnings of $275 million for 2002 and potential negative impact $236 million
for the vears thereafter. The statistical equivalent of a 100 basis point decrease
i other non-U.S. dollar interest rates would have « potential positive impact
on Citigroup's pretax earnings of $278 million for 2002 and a potential
positive impact of $250 million for the vears thereafter. The sensitivity to
rising rates in the other non-t7.8. dollar Earnings-at-Risk from prior year
reflects the change in the use of derivatives in managing the risk portfolio and
the change in the asset/liability mix to reflect Citigroup’s view of interest rates.

December 31,2001 December 31, 2000¢
U.S. dollar Mexican peso Other non-U.S. dollar U.S. dofia PMexiean pesn Cther non-U.S. dollar
In eriffons of dollars in 1] ) D i D Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Twelve months and less $(241y $ 244 $208 $(208)  $(275) $278 $(243) $270 $ (9 39 $(178) $180
Thereafter 898 {1,082) 207 (207) {236) 250 778 (883 e} 9 89 106
Total $657 §$ (838) $415 $(415) $(511) §528 $ 535 $(613) $(18) $18 $(267) $286

(1) Excludes the Insurance Gompanies (see befow).

¢ Priee yoar amounis have been testated to conform with te current puried's presentation.
Insurance Companies

The table helow reflects the estimated decrease in the fair value of Ainancial
instruments held in the Insurance companies, s 4 result of a 100 busis point
incregse in interest rates.

I aniflions of dollars at December 21, 2001 2000
Assets

Investments $3,404 $2,715
Liabilities

Long-term debt $ 18 § 28
Contractholder funds 7% 542
Redeamable securities of subsidiary trusts 1 44

Asigniticant portion of the Insurance companies’ liabilitics (c.g.,
insurance policy and daims reserves) are not financial instruments and are
excluded from the above sensitivity analysis. Corresponding changes in fair
value of these accounts, based on the present value of estimated cash flows,
would materially mitigate the impact of the net decrease in values implied
above. The analysis also excludes all inancial instruments, including long-
term debt, identified with trading activities. The analysis retlects the estimated
gross change in vatue resulting from a change in interest rates only and 1s not
comparable to the Earnings-at-Risk used for the Citigroup non-trading
portfolios or the Value-at-Risk used for the trading portolios.

Trading Portfolios
Price risk in trading portfolios is measured through a complementary set of
tools, including Factor Sensitivities, Value-at-Risk, and Steess Testing. Each
trading portfolio has its own market risk limit framework, encompassing
these measures and other controls, including permitted product lists and a
new product approval process for complete products, established by the
business and approved by independent market risk management.

Factor Sensitivities are defined as the change in the value of a position
for a defined change in a market risk factor (e.g., the change in the value
of a Treasury bill for a 1 basis point change in interest rates). It is the
responsibility of independent market risk management to ensure that factor
sensitivities are calculated, monitored and, in some cases, limited, for all
relevant risks taken in 4 trading portfolio. Value-at-Risk estimates the
potential decline in the value of a position or a portfolio, under normal
market conditions, over 4 one-day holding period. ata 9% confidence fevel.
The Value-at-Risk method incorporates the Factor Sensitivities of the trading
portfolio with the volatilities and correlations of those factors.

Stress Testing s performed on trading portfolios on 4 regular basis,
to estimate the impact of extreme market movernents. Stress Testing is
performed on individual trading portfolios, as well as on aggregations
of portfalios and businesses, as appropriate, Itis the responsibility of
independent market risk management, in conjunction with the businesses, o
develop stress scenarios, review the output of periodic stress lesting exercises,
and utilize the information to make judgments as to the engoing
appropriateness of exposure levels and limits
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New and/or complex products in trading portfolios are required to be
reviewed and approved by the Capital Markets Approval Committee (CMAG).
The CMA is responsible for ensuring that all refevant risks are identified and
understood, and can be measured, managed and reported in accordance with
applicable business policies and practices. The CMAC is made up of senior
representatives from market and credit risk management, legal, accounting,
operations and other support areas, as required.

The level of price risk exposure at any given point in time depends on the
market environment and expectations of future price and macket movements,
and will vary from period to period.

For Citigroup's major trading centers, the aggregate pretax Value-at-Risk
in the trading portfolios was $54 million at Decernber 31, 2001, Daily
exposures averaged $63 million in 2001 and ranged from $39 million o
$96 million.

The following table summarizes Value-at-Risk in the trading portfolios as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, along with the averages.

Dec. 31, 2001 Dec 31, 20007
I mytions of doftars 2001 Average 20001t Average
Interest rate $4 $55 $53 $43
Foreign exchange 9 12 1" 10
Equity 10 15 24 20
All other (primarily commodity) 21 18 15 14
Covariance adjustment (30) (37) (39) (35
Total $54 $83 364 $52

(1) Priot-year information has bean restated from that previously presented 1o teflect reorganizations and
a chrange inassumplions made to 1eflect a e consistent view for inanaging price 1 {hioughout
the organization.

Cross-Border Qutstandings and Commitments

The table helow provides the range of Value-at-Risk in the trading
portfolios that was experienced during 2001 and 2600,

2001 2000
in mitions of dodiars Low High fow High
Interast rate $33 $90 $32 $65
Foreign exchange 6 22 5 26
Equity 9 53 10 51
Al other {primarily commaodity) 8 52 6 32

(1) Pricr-year information has been 1estated from that previously presented to seflect rerrganizations and
a change in assumptions made to reftect a more consistent view for managing price 1isk threughout
the organization.

MANAGEMENT OF CROSS-BORDER RISK

Cross-horder risk is the risk that Citigroup will be unable to obtain payment
from customers on their contractual obligations as a result of actions taken
by foreign governments such as exchange controls, debt moratoria, and
yestrictions on the remittance of funds. Citigroup manages cross-border risk
as part of the risk management framework described on page 63.

Except as described below for cross-border resale agreements and the
netting of certain long and short securities positions, the following table
presents total cross-border outstandings and commitments on a regulatory
hasis in accordance with FFIEC guidelines. In regulatory reports under FFIEC
guidelines, cross-border resale agreements are presented based on the
domicile of the issuer of the securities that ase held as collateral. Howeves, for
purposes of the following table, cross-border resale agreements are presented
based on the domicile of the counterparty because the counterparty has the
legal obligation for repayment. Similarly, under FFIEC guidelines, long
securities positions are required to be reported on a gross basls. However,
for purposes of the following table, certain long and short securities positions
are presented on 4 net basis consistent with internal cross-horder risk
management policies, reflecting a reduction of risk from offsetting positions.

Total cross-horder outstandings include cross-border claims on third parties as well as investments in and funding of local franchises. Countries with FFIEC
outstandings greater than 0.75% of Citigroup assets for the respective periods include:

December 31,2001 December 31, 2000
Gross-berder claims on third parties" " > ang
Trading and  Crosa-border funding  Toisl cross- Tolat iross-
short-term resale of local border border
In bittions of dofiars claims®  agreements All other Total franchises outstandings Commitments® oulstandings  Commitmentst
Germany $6.0 $5.8 $15 $13.3 $0.2 $135 $73 $12.4 $71
Mexico 3.3 - 56 89 34 123 06 39 17
United Kingdom 3.9 36 37 12 - 112 168 109 154
France 5.1 38 15 104 0.5 109 8.7 13.4 84
Brazil 32 -— 23 6.0 4.7 107 03 8.1 02
ftaly 53 14 12 79 18 97 24 99 57
Japan 29 35 15 79 - 19 33 74 08
Canada 2.7 0.1 3.0 58 21 79 34 89 50
Nethedands 4.1 18 13 72 — 7.2 30 10.6 1.9

{1} Trading and short-tem daims includs crose-border debt and ecpity secusities hotd in the frading account. trade finance recelvables, net vevaiation gains on forlgn exchange and derivative contracts. and olher claitms

with a maturity of fess than one year.

@) Comumitmants {not included n total oross-border outstandings) include legatly binding cross-ba der lettors of eredit and ather commitments and contingencies as defined by the FREC.

(3) Inerase fiom Decomber 31, 2000 primarily ropresents inclusion of Banamex's Mexican oxposure.

69

OPP006433



Total cross-border outstandings under FFIEC guidelines, including cross-
horder resale agreements based on the domicile of the issuer of the securities
that are held as collateral, and long securities positions reported on a gross
basis, at December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 were (in billions): Germany
(819.5,$16.8, and $14.9), Mexico ($13.2, $4.7, and $5.2), the United
Kingdom ($9.3, $9.6, and $8.8), France ($13.5, $13.5, and §7.9), Brazil
(£119, 39,8, and $4.9), ltaly ($12.8, $13.9, and $10.2), Japan (6.5, $9.1,
and $10.5), Canada (889, $9.0, and §7.1), and the Nethetlands (36.9, §77,
and $5.0), respectively.

Cross-horder commitments (in billions) at December 31, 1999 were
$3.7 for Germany, $0.1 for Mexico, $15.5 for the United Kingdom, $2.2 for
France, $0.1 for Brazil, $0.4 for ltaly, $0.1 for Japan, $2.1 for Canada, and
$2 9 {or the Netherlands,

The sector percentage allocation for bank, public, and private cross-border
claims on third parties under FFIEC guidelines at Decernber 31, 2001 was:
Germany (17%, 59%, and 24%), Mexico (1%, 28%, and 71%), the Tnited
Kingdom (24%, 18%, and 58%), France (26%, 47%, and 27%), Brazil
(14%, 25%, and 61%), Ttaly (13%, 72%, and 15%), Japan (21%, 22%, and
57%), Canada (30%, 9%, and 61%), and the Netherlands (16%, 13%, and
71%), respectively.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Citigroup’s primary source of capital resources is its net earnings. Other
sources include proceeds from the issuance of trust preferred securities, senior
debt, subordinated debt and commercial paper. Gitigroup can also generate
funds by securitizing various financial assets including credit card receivables
and other receivables generally secured by collateral such as automobiles and
single-family residences.

Gitigroup uses these capital resources to pay dividends to its stockholders,
o repurchase its shares in the market pursuant to Board-of-Directors
approved plans, to suppott erganic growth, to make acquisitions and to
service its debt obligations.

As4 financial holding company, substantially all of Citigroup’s net earn-
ings are generated within its operating subsidiartes including Citibank, SSB,
16 and TPG. Each of these subsidiaries makes these funds available to
Citigroup in the form of dividends. The subsidiaries” dividend paying abilities
are limited by certain covenant restrictions in credit agreements and/or by
regulatory requirements. Certain of these subsidiaries are also subject to
rating agency requirements that also inpact their capitalization levels.

During 2002, it is not anticipated that any restrictions on the subsidiaries
dividending capability will restrict Citigroup's ability to meet its obligations as
and when they become due. It is also anticipated that during 2002 Citigroup
will maintain its share repurchase program.

Citigroup announced thatits wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. (TPC), intends to sell a minority interestin TPC in an initial
public offering and Citigroup intends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such arountof the remainder of its interest in TPC so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TP(
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution. The distcibution
is expected to be concluded by yearend 2002. Gitigroup is not ubligated to
conclude the distribution at that time or at all. The distribution of TPC, i it
occurs, will be treated as a dividend to stockholders for accounting purposes
thiat will reduce stockholders” equity by an amount in excess of $7 hitlion.
'This paragraph and the preceding paragraph contain forward-looking
statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act.
See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 62.

Citigroup, Citicorp and certain other subsidiaries issue commercial paper
directly to investors. Citigroup and Citicorp, both of which are bank holding
companies, maintain combined liquidity reserves of cash, securities and
unused bank lines of credit to support their combined outstanding
commercial paper.

Citigroup has unutilized bilateral committed revolving credit facilities
in the amount of $950 miltion that expire in 2002. Under these facilities,
Citigroup is requited to maintain 2 certain level of consolidated stockholders’
equity (as defined in the agreements). Citigroup exceeded this requirement
by approximately $56 billion at December 31, 2001.

Associates, a subsidiary of Citicorp has a combination of unutilized credit
facilities of $6.8 billion as of Decernber 31, 2001 which have maturities
ranging from 2002 to 2005. A1 of these facilities are guaranteed by Citicorp.
Tn connection with the facilities, Giticorp is required to maintain & certain
level of consolidated stockholder’s equity (as defined in the agreements) At
Degernber 31, 2001, this requirement was exceeded by approximately $49
hillion. Citicorp has also guaranteed various debt obligations of Associates
and CitiFinancial Credit Conpany (CCC), an indirect subsidiary of Citicom.
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Borrowings under bank lines of credit may be at interest rates based on
LIBOR, €D rates, the prime rate, or hids submitted by the banks. Each
company pays its banks facility fees for its lines of credit.

Citicorp, Salomon Snith Barney, and some of their nonbank subsidiaries
hawe credit facilities with Citicorp's subsidiary banks, including Citibank, NA,
Borrowings under these facilities must be secured in accordance with Section
234 of the Federal Reserve Act.

he following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's
consolidated contractual long-term debt payments and operating leases at
December 31, 2001

In mitions of dotfars Long-term debt Operating leases
2002 $ 31,202 $1,079
2003 24,636 927
2004 16,305 761
2006 13,175 759
2006 10,045 488
Thereafter 26,268 2854
Total $121,631 $6,668

Management of Liquidity
Management of liquidity at Citigroup is the responsibility of the Corporate
‘Treasurer. A uniform liquidity risk management policy exists for Citigroup
and its major operating subsidiaries. Under this policy, there is a single set of
standards for the measurement of liquidity risk in order to ensure consistency
across businesses, stability in methodologies and transparency of risk.
Management of liquidity ateach operating subsidiary and/or country is
performed on a daily basis and is monitored by Corporate Treasury. Bach
major operating subsidiary and/or country must prepare an annual liquidity
and funding plan for the approval by the Corporate Treasurer. Under the
annual liquidity and funding plan, liquidity limits, targets and ratios are
established. Contingency Funding Plans are prepared on a periodic basis
for Citigroup and each major operating subsidiary and country. These
plans include stress testing of assumptions about significant changes in
key funding sources, credit ratings, contingent uses of funding, and political
and economic conditions in Emerging Markets countries.

Citigroup’s funding sources are well-diversified across funding types
and geography, a benefit of the strength of the global franchise. Funding
for the Parent and its major operating subsidiaries includes a large
geographically diverse retail and comporate deposit base, a significant
portion of which is considered core. Other sources of funding include
collateralized horrowings, securitizations (primarily credit card and
morigages), long-term debt, and purchased/wholesale funds. This funding
is significantly enhanced by Citigroup's strong capital position. Each of
Citigroup’s major operating subsidiaries finances its operations on a basis
consistent with its capitalization, regulatory structure and the operating
environment in which it operates.

Other liquidity and capitad resource considerations for Citigroup and its
major operating facilities follow.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Gitigroup and its subsidiaries are involved with several types of off-halance
sheet arrangements, including special purpose entities (SPEs), lines and
letters of credit, and loan commitments.

The principal uses of SPEs are to obtain sources of liquidity by securitizing
certain of Citigroup's financial assets, to assist our clients in securitizing their
financtal assets, and to create other investment products for our clients.

SPEs may be organized as trusts, partnerships, or corporations. Ina
securitization, the company transferring assets to an SPE converts those assets
into cash before they would have heen realized in the normal course of
business. The SPE obtains the cash needed to pay the transferor for the assets
received by issuing securities to investors in the form of debt instruments,
certificates, commercial paper, and other notes of indebtedness. Investors
usually have recourse to the assets in the SPE and often benefit from other
credit enhancements, such 4s a cash collateral account, overcollateralization
in the form of excess assets in the SPE, or 4 liquidity facility, such 4s a line of
creditor asset purchase agreement. Accordingly, the SPE can typically obtain
amore favorable credit rating from rating agencies, such as Standard and
Poor’s and Moody’s Investors Service, than the transferor could obtain for its
own debt issuances, resulting in less expensive financing costs. The transteror
can use the cash proceeds from the sale to extend credit to additional
custormers or for other business purposes. The SPE may also enter into a
derivative contract in order to convert the yield or currency of the underlying
assets o match the needs of the SPE’s investors or to limit the credit risk of the
SPE. The Company may be the counterparty to any such derivative. The
securitization process enhances the liquidity of the financial markets, may
spread credit risk among several market participants, and makes new funds
available to extend credit to consumers and commercial entities.

Securitization of Citigroup’s Assets
Citigroup securitizes credit card receivables, mortgage, home equity and auto
loans, and certain other financial assets that it originates or purchases.

Credit Card Receivables

Credit card receivables are securitized through a trust, which is established to
purchase the receivables. Citigroup sells receivables into the trust on a non-
recourse hasis.

After securitization of credit card receivables, the Company continues to
maintain credit card customer account relationships and provides servicing
for receivables transferred o the SPE trusts. As a result, the Gompany
considers hoth the sceuritized and unsecuritized credit card receivables to
be part of the business it manages. The documents establishing the trusts
generally require the Corpany to maintain an ownership interest in the trust.
The Company also arranges for third parties to provide creditenhancement to
the trusts, including cash collateral accounts, subordinated securities, and
letters of credit. As specified in certain of the sale agreements, the net revenue
with respect to the investors’ interest collected by the trusts each month is
accumulated up to a predetermined maximum amount, and is available over
the remaining term of that transaction to make payments of interest to trust
investors, fees, and transaction costs in the event that net cash flows from the
receivables are not sufficient, tf the net cash flows are insufficient, Citigroup's
logs is limited to its retained interest. When the predetermined amount is
reached, net revenue with respect to the investors interest is passed directly to
the Citigroup subsidiary thatsold the receivables. Credit card securitizations
are tevolving sccuritizations; that is, as customners pay their credit card
balances, the cash proceeds are used to replenish the receivables in the trust.
Salormon $mith Barney is one of several underwriters that distribute securities
issued by the trusts to investors. The Company relies on securitizations to fund
about 60% of its Card business.
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At Decersher 31, 2001, total assets in the credit card trusts were $87 hillion.
0f that amount, $67 hillion has been sold to investors via trust-issued
securities, and the remaining seller's interest of $20 billion 15 recorded in
Citigroup's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as Consumer
Loans. Gitigroup retains credit risk on its seller’s interests. Amounts receivable
from the trusts were $1,098 million and amounts due to the trusts were
$701 million at December 31, 2001. During the year-ended December 31,
2001, finance charges and interchange fees of $10.1 bilkion were collected
by the trusts. Also for the vear-ended December 31, 2001, the trusts recorded
$6.5 biltion in coupon interest paid to third-party investors, servicing fees,
and other costs. Servicing fees of $1.2 billion were eamed and an additional
$3.6 hillion of net cash tlows were received by the Company in 2001.

Mortgages, Home Equity and Auto Loans
'the Company provides a wide range of mortgage, home equity and auto foan
products to a diverse customer base. In addition to providing a source of
liquidity and less expensive funding, securitizing these assets also reduces
the Company’s credit exposure t the borrowers. In connection with the
securitization of these loans, servicing rights entitle the Company to a future
stream of cash flows based on the outstanding principal balances of the loans
and the contractual servicing fee. Failure to service the foans in accordance
with contractual servicing obligations may lead to a termination of the
servicing rights and the loss of future servicing fees. In non-recourse
servicing, the principal credit risk to the servicer arises from temporary
advances of funds. 1 recourse servicing, the servicer agrees to share credit
risk with the owner of the mortgage loans, such as FNMA, FHLMC, GNMA,
or with a private investor, insurer or guarantor. Our mortgage loan
securitizations ate primarily non-recourse, thereby effectively transferring the
risk of future credit losses to the purchasers of the securities issued by the trust.
Home equity loans may be revolving lines of credit under which borrowers
have the right to draw on the line of credit up to their maximum amouat for
aspecified number of vears. In addition to servicing rights, the Company also
retains a residual interest in its home equity, manufactured housing and auto
Joan securitizations, consisting of sefler's interest and interest-only strips that
arise from the calculation of gain or loss at the time assets are sold to the SPE.

At December 31, 2001, total loans securitized and outstanding were 885
hillion. Servicing rights and other retained interests amounted to 832 billion at
December 31, 2001, During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company
recognized $271 million of gains on securitizations of mortgage loans.

The following table summuarizes certain cash flows received from and paid
to securitization trusts during the vear ended December 31, 2001

2001
in bittons of dofiars Credit cards Mortgages ' and auto
Praceeds from new securitizations $ 27 $348
Proceeds from coliections reinvested

in new receivables 1314 04
Servicing fees received 12 03
Cash flows received on retained

interests and other net cash flows 38 04

{1y Includes martgages and home equity foans,

Securitizations of Client Assets

The Company acts as intermediary or agent for its corporate clients, assisting
them in obtaining sources of liquidity, by selling the clients’ trade receivables
or other financial assets to an SPE.

The Gompany administers several third-party owned, special purpose.
multi-seller finance companies that purchase pools of trade receivables, credit
cards, and other financial assets from third-party clients of the Company. As
administrator, the Company provides accounting, funding, und operations
services to these conduits. The Company has no ownership interest in the
conduits. The clients continue to service the transferred assets. The conduits’
asset purchages are funded by issuing commercial paper and medium-term
notes. Clients absorb the first losses of the condusit by providing collateral
in the form of excess assets. The Company along with other financial
institutions provides liquidity facifities, such as commercial paper back-stop
lines of credit to the conduits. The Company also provides second loss
enhancement in the form of letters of credit and other guarantees. All fees are
charged on a market basis. At Decernber 31, 2001, total assets in the conduits
were $52 billion.

The Company also securitizes clients’ debt obligations in transactions
involving SPEs that issue collateralized debt obligations (CDOs). A majority of
the transactions are on behalf of clients where the Company first purchases
the assets at the request of the clients and warehouses them until the
securitization transaction is executed. Other CDOs are structured where the
underlying debt obligations are purchased directly in the open market o
from issuess. Some CDOs have static unmanaged portfolios of assets, while
others have 4 more actively managed portfolio of financial assets. The
Company receives fees for structuring and distributing the CDO securities
to investors.

Creation of Other Investment Products

The Gompany packages and securitizes assets purchased in the financial
markets in order to create new security offerings, including hedge funds,
mutual funds, and other investment funds, for institutional and private

bank clients as well as retail customers, that match the clients’ investment
needs and preferences. The SPEs may be credit-enhanoed by excess assets

in the investment pool or by third party insurers assuming the risks of the
underlying assets, thus reducing the credit risk assumed by the investors and
diversifying investors’ risk to a pool of 4ssets as compared with investments in
individual assets. The Company typically manages the SPE for market-rate
fees. In addition, the Company may be one of several liquidity providers to the
SPE and may place the securities with investors. The Company has no
ownership interest in these entities.

OPP006436



Credit Commitments and Lines of Credit
The table below summurizes Citigroup's credit commitments. Further details
are included in the footnotes.

i mthions of ddofiars at year end 2001
Financial standby ietters of credit and foreign office guarantees $ 29541
Performance standby letters of credit and foreign office guarantees 1,743
Commercial and similar tetters of credit 5,681
One-to-four family residential mortgages 5,470
Revolving open-end loans secured by 1-4 family residential properties 7107
Commercial real estate, construction and land development 1,882
Credit card lines " 387,396
Commetcial and other consumer loan commitments 210,909
Total $655,735

{1} Cregit card fines are tneolidifionally cancelable by the issuer.
(@ Itudes $135 bitlion with criginal maturity loss thar wne yeal and approdately S50 billon with
aiginal nigluily of one Lo Tive yoars.

CAPITAL

Citigroup inc. (Citigroup)

Gitigroup is subject to risk-based capital guidelines issucd by the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System (FRB). These guidelines are used to
evatuate capital adequacy based primarily on the perceived credit risk
associated with balance sheet assets, as well as certain off-balance sheet
exposures such 48 unused loan commitments, letters of credit, and derivative
and foreign exchange contracts. The risk-based capital guidelines are
supplemented by a leverage ratio requirement.

Citigroup Ratios

At yearerd 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital 8.42% 8.38%
Totai capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 10.92 11.23
Leverage'* 564 597
Common stockholders’ equily 7.58 714

15 Ter 1 capilal divided by adjusted average assels.

Gitigroup muintained a strong capital position during 2001. Total capital
{Tier 1 and Tier 2) amounted to $75.8 hillion at December 31, 2001,
representing 10.92% of risk-adjusted assets. This compares to $73.0 billion
and 11.23% at December 31, 2000. Tier 1 capital of $58 4billion at December
31, 2001 represented § 2% of risk-adjusted assets, compared to §54.5 billion
and 8 38% at December 31, 2000. Citigroup's leverage ratio was 5 64% at
December 31, 2001 compared to 5.97% at December 31, 2000. See Note 1810
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

73

Components of Capital Under Regqulatory Guidelines

In milions of doftars at yoar ead 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital
Common stockholders’ equity $ 79,722 $ 64461
Qualifying perpetual preferred stock 1,400 1,745
Qualifying mandatorily redeemable securities

of subsidiary trusts 6,725 4,920
Minority interest 803 334
Less: Net unrealized gains on securities

available-for-sale i (852) {973)
Accumulated net gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax (168) -
intangible assets

Goodwill {23,861) {11,972)

Other intangible assets (4,944) (3572}
Net unrealized losses on available-for-sale

equity securities, net of tax - (68)
50% investment in certain subsidiaries 72) (82)
Other (305) (295)
Total Tier 1 capital 58,448 54,498
Tier 2 capital
Allowance for credit losses 8,694 8,140
Qualifying debt 8,648 10,492
Unrealized marketable equity securities gains 79 —
Less: 50% investment in certain subsidiaries (72) (82)
Total Tier 2 capital 17,349 18,550
Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) $ 75797 $ 73048
Risk-adjusted assets $694,035  3650,351

(1} Vier 1 capital excludes unreafized gains and losses on debt securities avallable-for-sale in accatdance
with regulatory risk-based capital guidelines. The [ ederal bank 1equlatory agencies pormit instifutions
toinclude in Tier 2 capital up to 45% of pratax net urealized holding gains en avallable-for-sale equity
securities with readily determinable fair values. Institutions are required to deduot from Tier 1 capitad
net uniealized holding losses on avaiiable-for -sale equity securities with readily determinable fai
values, net of tax,

{21 Represents investment in certain oves seas insurance activities and unconsolidaled banking and
finance subsidiaries,

(3 Inciudable up te 1.26% of risk-adjusted assets. Any exvess allowase bs deducted from
tisk-adjusted assets.

(4) Includes qualifying sentor and subordinaled debl n an amount not exceeding 50% of Tier 1 caplal, and
subordinated capital notes subject to cestain Himitations. The net dectease in qualitying debt during
2001 was due to redemptions of subsidiary-obligated debt.

(51 Includes risk-weighted credit equivalent amounts, et of applicable bilateral netting agreements, of
$26.2 billion for inter est rate, commeodily and equity derfvalive cont acts and fureign exchange
confracls, 4s of December 31, 2001, conpared to $27 7 biflion as of Deceynbur 31, 2000, Markel
tisk-euivalent assels included in dsk-adiusted assels amounted 1 §31.4 biflion and $39.6 bitlion
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, 1espectively. Risk- adiusiod assels also includes the effect of olher
off-hatance sheet expostyes stwh as Untsed foan commiments and letters of credit andietlects
decuctions o intangible assets and any excess allowares 1or redit josses,

OPP006437



Common stockholders' equity increased 4 et $15.3 billion during the year
to $79.7 billion at December 31, 2001, representing 7.58% of assets, compared
10 $64.5 hillion and 7.14% at year-end 2000. The increase in common
stockholders’ equity during the year principally reflected netincome of §14.1
bitlion, $6.5 billion related to the issuance of shares to effect the Banamex
acquisition, and $2.2 billion related to the issuance of shares pursuant to
employee benefit plans and other activity, offset by dividends declared on
common and preferred stock of $3.2 billion, treasury stock acquired of $3.0
billion, and $1.3 billion related to foreign currency translation adjustment
and change in unrealized gains and losses un investment securities. The
increase in the commeon stockholders' equity ratio during the year retlected
the above iterns, and was partially offset by the increase in total assets.

During the 2001 fourth quarter, the Board of Directors granted approval
for the repurchase of an additional $5 billion of Citigroup commeon stock,
continuing the Company's program of buying back its shares. Under its long-
standing repurchase program, the Company buys back shares in the market
from time to time.

During the 2001 fourth quarter, Citigroup redeemed its Series K
cumulative preferred stock for $250 million.

On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed for cash all outstanding shares of
its Series ! cumnulative preferred stock. Because notice for redemption of these
shares occurred prior to year-end, they did not qualify as Tier 1 Capital at
Deceraber 31, 2001

The total mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts {trust
securities) which qualify as Tier 1 capital at December 31, 2001 and 2000
were §6.725 hillion and $4 92 billion, respectively. The amount outstanding
at December 31, 2001 includes $4.85 billion of parent-obligated securities
and $2.275 billion of subsidiary-obligated securities, and at December 31,
2000 includes $2.30 billion of parent-obligated securities and $2 62 billion
of subsidiary-obligated securities. On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed
for cash the $400 million Citigroup Capital 1 Trust Preferred Securities
{16 miltion 8% Trust Preferred Securitics at the redemption price of
$25 per Preferred Security plus any accrued and unpaid distribution
thereon. Because notice for tedemption of these securities occurred prior to
vear-end, they did not quality as Tier 1 Capital at December 31, 2001.

Gitigroup’s subsidiary depository institutions arc subject to the risk-based
capital guidelines issued by their respective primary Federal bank regulatory
agencies, which are generally similar to the FRB's guidelines. At December 31,
2001, all of Citigroup’s subsidiary deposttoty institutions were “well
capitalized” under the Tederal bank regulatory agencies definitions.

On January 8, 2002, the FRB issued final rules that govern the regulatory
treatment of merchant banking investments and certain similar equity
investments, including investments made by venture capital subsidiaries,
in nonfinancial companies held by bank holding companies with certain
exclusions. The new rules impose a capital charge that would increase
in steps as the banking organization’s level of concentration in equity
investrents increases. An 8% Tier 1 capital deduction applies on covered
investments that in the aggregate represent up to 15% of an organization’s
Tier 1 capital. For covered investrents that aggregate more than 25% of the
organization’s Ter 1 capital, a top marginal charge of 25% applies. The rules
are not expected to have a significant impact on Citigroup.

In December 2001, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision
{Committee) announced that 2 new consultative package on the new Basel
Capital Accord (new Accord) would not be issued inearly 2002, as previously
indicated. Instead, the Committee will first seek to complete a comprehensive
impact assessment of the draft proposal, after which a new consultative
package will be issued. The new Accord, which will apply to all “sigpificant”
hanks, as well as to holding companies that are parents of banking groups, is
still intended to be finatized by vear-end 2002, with implementation of the
new framework beginning in 2005. The Company is monitoring the status
and progress of the proposed rule,

On November 29, 2001, the FRB issued final rules regarding the regulatory
capital treatment of racourse, direct credit substitutes and residual interest in
asset securitizations. The rules require 4 deduction from Tier 1 capital for the
amount of credit-enhancing interest-only strips (a type of residual interest)
that exceeds 25% of Tier 1 capital, as well as requiring dollar-for-dollar capital
for residual interests not deducted for Tier 1 capital. These rules, which
require adoption in the fourth quarter of 2002, are notexpected to have a
significant impact on Citigroup

Additionally, from time to time, the FRB and the FFIEC propose
amendments to, and issue interpretations of, risk-based capital guidelines
and reporting instructions. Such proposals ot interpretations could, if
implemented in the future, affect reported capital ratios and net risk-adjusted
assets. This paragraph and the preceding three paragraphs contain forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Staternents” on page 62.

Citicorp

The in-country forum for liquidity issues is the Asset/Liability Management
Committee (ALCO), which includes senior executives within each country.
The ALCO reviews the current and prospective funding requirements for alt
businesses and legal entities within the country, as well as the capital position
and balance sheet. All businesses within the country are represented on the
committee with the focal point being the Country Treasurer. The Counitry
Corporate Officer and the Country Treasurer ensure that all funding
obligations in each country are metwhen due. The Citigroup Corporate
Treasurer, in concert with the Country Corporate Officer and the Regional
Market Risk Manager, appoints the Country Treasurer,

Each Country Treasurer must prepare a liquidity plan at least annually
that is approved by the Country Corporate Officer, the Regional Treasurer, and
the Citigroup Corporate Treasurer. The liguidity profile is monitored on an
on-going basis and reported monthly, Limits are established on the extent to
which husinesses in a country can take liquidity risk. The size of the limit
depends on the depth of the market, experience level of local management,
the stability of the liabilities, and tiguidity of the assets. Finally, the linvts are
subject to the evaluation of the entities’ stress test results. Generally, limits are
established such that in stress scenarios, entities need to be self-tunded or
providers of tiquidity to Citicorp
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Regional Treasurers generally have responsibility for monitoring liquidity
risk across 4 number of countries within adefined geography. They are also
available for consultation and special approvals, especially in unusual ot
volatile market conditions.

Citicorp’s assets and liabilities are diversified across many currencies,
geographic areas, and businesses. Particular attention is paid to those
businesses which for tax, sovereign risk, or regulatory reasons cannot be freely
and readily funded in the international markets.

A diversity of funding sources, currencies, and maturities is used to gain a
broad access to the investor base. Citicorp’s deposits, which represent 59% of
total funding at December 31. 2001 and 55% at December 31, 2000, are
broadly diversified by both geogeaphy and customer segments.

Stockholders' equity, which grew $15.6 billion during the year to $63.5
hillion at year-end 2001, continues to he an important component of the
overall funding structure. In addition, long-term debt is issued by Citicorp
and its subsidiaries. Total Citicorp long-term debt outstanding at vearend
2001 was $81.1 biltion, compared with $80.3 billion at year-end 2000.

Asset securitization programs remain an important source of liquidity.
Loans securitized during 2001 included $23.3 billion of U$. credit cards and
$24.3 biltion of LS. consumer mortgages. As credit card securitization
transactions amortize, newly originated receivables are recorded on Giticorp's
halance sheet and become available for asset securitization. In 2001, the
scheduled amortization of certain credit card securitization transactions
made available $11.6 billion of new receivables. In addition, at least $9.4
hillion of credit card securitization transactions are scheduled to amortize
during 2002,

Citicorp is 4 legal entity separate and distinct from Citibank, NA. and its
other subsidiaries and affiliates. There are various legal limitations on the
extent to which Citicorp's banking subsidiaries may extend credit, pay
dividends or otherwise supply funds to Citicorp. The approval of the Office of
the Comptroller of the Currency is tequired if total dividends declared by a
national bank in any calendar vear exceed net profits (as defined) for that
vear combined with its retained net profits for the preceding two years. In
addition, dividends for such a bank may not be paid in excess of the bank's
undivided profits. State-chartered bank subsidiaries are subject to dividend
limitations imposed by applicable state law.

Citicorp’s national and state-chartered bank subsidiaries can declare
dividends to their respective parent companes in 2002, without regulatory
approval, of approximately $9.1 billion, adjusted by the effect of their net
income (loss) for 2002 up to the date of any such dividend declaration. In
determining whether and to whatextent to pay dividends, each bank
subsidiary must also consider the effect of dividend payments on applicable
risk-based capital and leverage ratio requirements as well as policy statements
of the Federal regulatory agencies that indicate that banking organizations
should generally pay dividends out of current operating earnings. Consistent
with these considerations, Citicorp estimales that its bank subsidiaries can
distribute dividends to Citicorp, directly or through their parent holding
company, of approximately $8.9 billion of the available $9.1 billion,
adjusted by the effect of their net income (loss) up to the date of any such
dividend declaration.
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Citicorp also receives dividends from its nonbank subsidiaries. These
nonhank subsidiaries are generally not subject to regulatory restrictions on
their payment of dividends except that the approval of the Office of Thrift
Supervision (OTS) may be required if total dividends declared by asavings
association in any calendar year exceed amounts specified by that agency's
regulations.

Citicorp is subject to risk-based capital and leverage guidelines issued by
the FRB.

Citicorp Ratios

At year-end 2001 2000
Tier 1 capital 8.33% 8.41%
Total capital (Tier 1 and Tier 2) 1241 12.29
Leverage® 6.85 7.54
Common stockholder's equity 9.81 8.68

{11 Ther 1 capital divided by adjusted average assels.

Citicorp maintained a strong capital position during 2001. Total capital
(Tier 1 and Tier 2) amounted to $62.9 billion at December 31, 2001,
representing 12 41% of risk-adjusted assets. This compares with $58 0 hiflion
and 12.29% at December 31, 2000. Tier 1 capital of $42.2 billion at year-end
2001 represented 8.33% of risk-adjusted assets, compared with §39.7 billion
and 8.41% at year-end 2000. The Tier 1 capital ratio at yearend 2001 was
above Citicorp's target range of 8.00% to 8 30%. See Note 18 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.
(Salomon Smith Barney)

Salomon Smith Barney's total assets were $301 billion at December 31, 2001,
compared to $238 billion at year-end 2000, Due to the nature of Salomon
Smith Barney's trading activities, it is not uncommon for asset levels to
fluctuate from period to period. At Decernber 31, 2001, approximately 35%
of these assets represent trading securities, commodities, and derivatives
used for proprietary trading and to facilitate customer transactions.
Approximately 46% of these assets were related to coliateralized financing
transactions where securities are hought, borrowed, sold, and lent in generally
offsetting amounts. A significant portion of the remainder of the assets
represented receivables from brokers, dealers, clearing organizations, and
customers that relate to securities transactions in the process of being settled.
The canving values of the majority of Salomon Smith Bamey’s securities
inventories are adjusted daily to reflect current prices. See Notes 1.5, 6,7,8,
and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a further description of
these assets.

Salomon Smith Bamey's assets are financed through a number of
sources including long and short-term unsecured borrowings, the financing
transactions described above, and payables to brokers, dealers, and customers.
The highly liquid nature of these assets provides Salomon Smith Barney with
flexibility in financing and managing its business. Salomon Smith Barney
monitors and evaluates the adequacy of its capital and borrowing base on a
daily basis in order to allow for flexibility in its funding, to maintain liquidity,
and to ensure that its capital base supports the regulatory capital
requirements of its subsidiaries.
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Salomon Smith Barney funds its operations through the use of secured
and unsecured short-term horrowings, long-term borrowings and TruPS®
Secured short-term financing, including repurchase agreements and secured
loans, is Salomon Smith Barney's principal funding source. Unsecured short-
term borrowings provide a source of short-term liquidity and are also utilized
as an alternative to secured financing when they represent a cheaper funding
source. Sources of short-term unsecured borrowings include commercial
paper, unsecured bank borrowings and letters of credit, deposit Liabilities,
promissory notes, and corporate loans.

Salomen Smith Barney has 2 §5.0 billion 364-day committed
uncollateralized revolving line of credit with unaffiliated banks that extends
through May 21, 2002, with repayment on any horrowings due by May 21,
2004. Satomon Smith Barney nay borrow under this revalving credit facility
at various interest rate options (LIBOR or base rate) and compensates the
banks for this facility through facility fees. Under this facility, Salomon Smith
Barney is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated adjusted net
worth (as defined in the agreement). At December 31, 2001, this requirement
was exceeded by approximately $4.3 billion. At December 31, 2001, there were
no borrowings outstanding under this facility Salomon Smith Barney also
has substantial borrowing arrangements congisting of Facilities that it has
been advised are available, but where no contractual lending obligation
exists. These arrangements are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure
flexibility tn meeting short-term requitements.

Unsecured term debt is a significant component of Salomon Smith
Barney's long-term capital. Long-term debt totaled $26.8 billion at Decernber
31,2001 and $19.7 billion at December 31, 2000. Salomon Smith Bamey
utilizes interest rate swaps to convert the majority of its fixed-rate fong-term
debt used to fund inventory-related working capital requirements into
variable rate obligations. Long-term debt issuances denominated in
currencies other than the 1.8 dolar that are not used to finance assets in the
same currency are effectively converted to U1.S. dollar obligations through the
use of cross-currency swaps and forward currency contracts.

Salonon Smith Barney's borrowing relationships are with a broad range
of hanks, financial institutions and other firms from which it draws funds.
The volume of borrowings generally fluctuates in respense to changes in the
level of financial instruments, commodities and contractual commitments,
customer balances, the amount of reverse repurchase transactions
outstanding, and securities borrowed transactions. As Salomon Smith
Barney's activities increase, borrowings generatly increase to fund the
additional activities. Availaility of financing can vary depending upon
market conditions, credit ratings, and the overall availability of credit to the
securities industry. Salomon Smith Barney seeks to expand and diversify its
funding mix as well as its creditor sources. Concentration levels for these
sources, particularly for short-term lenders, are closely monitored both in
terms of single investor limits and daily maturities.

Salomon Smith Bamey monitors liquidity by tracking asset levels,
coliateral and funding availability to maintain flexibility to meet its
financial commitments. As a policy, Salomon Smith Barney attempts to
maintain sutficient capital and funding sources in order to have the capacity
to finance itself on a fully collateralized basis in the event that aceess to
unsecured financing was temporarily impaired. Salomon Smith Barney's
liquidity management process includes a contingency funding plan
designed to ensure adequate liquidity even if access to unsecured funding
sources is severely restricted or unavailable. This plan is reviewed periodically
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to keep the funding uptions current and in line with market conditions.

The management of this plan includes an analysis that is utitized to
determine the ability to withstand varying levels of stress, which could impact
Salomon Smith Barney's liquidation horizons and required margins. In
addition, Salomon Smith Barney monitors its leverage and capital ratios

on a daily basis.

Travelers Property Casuaity Corp. (TPC)

TPC's insurance subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory restrictions that
limit the maximum amount of dividends available to he paid to their parent
without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. A maximum of
$1.6 billion is available by the end of 2002 for such dividends without prior
approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department. However, the payment of
asignificant portion of this amount is likely to be subject to such approval
depending upon the amount and timing of the payments.

The Travelers insurance Company (TIC)

At December 31, 2001, TIC had $34.1 billion of life and annuity product
deposit funds and reserves. Of that total, $19.1 billion is not subject to
discretionary withdrawal based on contract terms. The remaining $15.0
billion is for life and annuity products that are subject to discretionary
withdrawal by the contractholder. included in the amount that is subject

to discretionary withdrawal is 4.2 billion of liabilities that is surtenderable
with market value adjustments. Also included is an additional $5.0 billion
of the life insurance and individual annuity liabilities which is subject to
discretionary withdrawals and an average surrender charge of 4.7%. in the
payout phase, these funds are credited at significantly reduced interest rates,
The remaining $5 8 billion of liabilities is surrenderable without charge
More than 10.2% of this relates to individual life products. These risks
would have to be underwritien again if transferred to another carrier, which
is considered a significant deterrent against withdrawal by long-term
policyholders. Insurance liabilities that are surrendered or withdrawn are
reduced by outstanding policy loans, and related accrued interest prior

to pavout.

Scheduled maturities of guaranteed investment contracts (GICs) in 2002,
2003, 2004, 2005 and thereafter are $3 972 billion, $1 441 billion, $1.141
hillion, 8965 million, and $3.832 biilion, respectively. At December 31, 2001,
the interest rates credited on GICs had a weighted average rate of 5.10%.

TIC is subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum
amountof dividends available to its parent without prior approval of the
Connecticut tnsurance Department. A maximum of $586 miltion of statutory
susplus is available by the end of the year 2002 for such dividends without the
prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department

Insurance industry - Risk-Based Capital

The National Association of [nsurance Commissioners (NAIC) adopted risk-
based capital (RBC) requirernents for life insurance companies and for
property and casualty insurance companies. The RBC requirements are to he
used as minimum capital requirements by the NALC and states to identify
companies that merit further regulatory action. The formulas have not been
designed to differentiate among adequately capitalized companies that
operate with levels of capital higher than RBC requirements. Theretore, it is
inappropriate and ineffective to use the formulas to rate or to rank such
companies. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, all of the Company's life and
property and casualty companies had adjusted capital in excess of amounts
requiring Company or any regulatory action.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Adjusted Operating Expenses—GAAP operating expenses excluding
restructuring- and merger-related items.

Adjusted Provisions for Benefits, Claims and Credit
Losses —Provisions for benefits, claims and credit losses adjusted for the
effect of securitization activities. See Adjusted Revenuos.

Adjusted Revenues - Reflects the reclassification of net credit losses

on securitized receivables, where the Company continues to manage the
receivables after they have been securitized, from other income to the adjusted
pravisions for benefits, claims and credit losses.

Annuity —A contract that pays a periodic benefit for the lie of a person (the
annuitant), the lives of two or more persons or for a specified period of time.

Assets under Management —Assets held by Citigroup in a fiduciary
capacity for clients. These assets are not included on Citigroup's balance sheet.

Cash Basis Loans —Loans on which interest payments are recorded
when collected from the borrower. These are loans in which the borrower hus
fallen behind in interest payments, and are considered nonaccrual assets.

In situations where the lender reasonably expects that only a portion of the
principal and interest owed ultimately will he collected, payments are credited
directly to the outstanding principal.

Catastrophe—Asevere loss, usually involving risks such as fire,
earthquake, windstorm, explosion and other similar events.

Catastrophe Loss—Loss and directly identified loss adjustnient
expenses from catastrophes.

Catastrophe Reinsurance-Aform of excess of loss property
reinsurance which, subject to a specified Limit, indemmifies the ceding
company for the amount of loss in excess of 4 specified limit or indemnifies
the ceding company for the amount of loss in excess of a specified retention
with respect to an accumulation of losses resulting from a catastrophic event.

Claim-Request by an insured for indemnification by an insurance
company for loss incurred from an insured pesil

Clean Letter of Credit —An instrument issued by a bank on behalf

of its customer which gives the beneficiary the right to draw funds upon the
presentation of the letter of credit in accordance with its terms and conditions.
Generally, they are issued to guarantee the performance of the customer

or to act as a payment mechanism. Clean letters of credit, unlike commercial
letters of credit, are notrelated to the shipment of goods and do not require
the beneficiary to present shipping documents in order to receive payment
from the bank.

Combined Ratio—The sum of the loss and LAE ratio, the underwriting
expense ratio and, where applicable, the ratio of dividends to policyholders to
net premiums earned. A combined ratio under 100% generally indicates an
underwriting profit. A combined ratio over 100% generally indicates an
underwriting loss.

Commercial Lines—The various kinds of property and casualty
insurance that are written for businesses.

Core Income—Net incone excluding restructuring-related items and
merger-related costs and cumulative effect of accounting changes or other
non-recurring lems. as specified.

Credit Default Swap—An agreement between two parties whereby one
party pays the other 4 fived coupon over aspecified term. The other party
makes no payment unless aspecified credit event such as a default occurs, at
which time a payment is made and the swap terminates.

Deferred Acquisition Costs—Primarily commissions and premium
taxes, which vary with and are primacily related to the production of new
insurance business that are deferred and amortized to achieve a matching of
revenues and expenses when reported in financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP,

Deferred Tax Asset—An usset attributable to deductible temporary
differences and carryforwards. A deferred tax asset is measured using the
applicable enacted tax rate and provisions of the enacted tax law.

Deferred Tax Liabitity—A liability attributable to taxable temporary
differences. A deferred tax liability is measured using the applicable enacted
tax rate and provisions of the enacted tax law

Derivative—A contract or agreement whose value is derived from changes
i interest rates, foreign exchange rates, prices of securities or commodities or
financial or commodity indices.

Direct Written Premiums—The amounts charged by a primary
insurer to insureds in exchange for coverages provided in accordance with the
terms of an insurance contract.

Earned Premiums or Premiums Earned - That portion of
property-casualty premiums written that applies to the expired portion of the
policy term.

Federal Funds—Non-interest bearing deposits held by member banks at
the Federal Reserve Bank,

Foregone Interest—Interest on cash-hasis loans that would have been
earned at the original contractual rate if the loans were on accrual status.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) -
Accounting rules and conventions defining acceptable practioes in preparing
financial statements in the United States of America. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB), an independent self-regulatory
organization, is the primary source of accounting rules.

Loss Adjustment Expenses (L AE)-The expenses of settling
claims, including legal and other fees and the portion of general expenses
allocated to claim settlement costs.

Loss and LAE Ratio--For insurance company statutory accounting, it
s the ratio of incurred losses and loss adjustiment expenses to netearned
premiums. For GAAP, it is the ratio of incurred losses and loss adjustment
expenses reduced hy an allocation of fee income to net earned premiums.
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Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses—The sum of losses
incurred and foss adjustment expenses.

Managed Basis Reporting-Reporting, adjusted to reflect certaln
effects of securitization activities, receivables held for securitization, and
receivables sold with servicing retained. On & managed basis, these earnings
are reclassified and presented as if the receivables had neither been held for
securitization nor sold

Managed Loans—Includes loans classified as Loans on the balance sheet
plus loans held for sale which are included in other assets and securitized
receivables, primarily credit card receivables.

Managed Net Credit Losses—Net credit losses adjusted for the effect
of credit card securitizations. See Adjusted Revenues.

Minority Interest —When a parentowns a majority (but less than 100%)
of a subsidiary’s stock, the Consolidated Financial Statements must reflect the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary. The minority interest as shown in the
Statement of Income is equal to the minority’s proportionate share of the
subsidiary's net income and, as included within other liabilities in the
Statement of Financial Position, is equal to the minority's proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net assets.

Net Credit Losses—Gross credit losses (write-offs) less gross
credit recoveries.

Net Credit Loss Ratio—annualized net credit losses divided by average
loans outstanding.

Net Written Premiums - Direct written premiuns plus assumed
reinsurance premiums, less premiums ceded to reinsurers.

Personal Lines—Types of property and casualty insurance written for
individuals or tamilies, rather than for businesses.

Pool - An organization of insurers or reinsurers through which particular
types of risks are underwritten with premiums, losses and expenses being
shared in agreed-upon percentages.

Premiums —The amount charged during the year on policies and
contracts issued, renewed or reinsured by an insurance company.

Property insurance —Insurance that provides coverage fo 4 person with
an insurable interest in (angible property for that person’s property loss,
damage or loss of use.

Reinsurance-A transaction in which a reinsurer (assusifng enterprise),
for a consideration (premiun), assumes all or part of a risk undertaken
vriginally by another insurer (ceding enferprise).

Retention —The amount of exposure an insurance company retains on
any one risk ar group of risks.

Return on Assets —Annualized income (core or net) divided by
average assets.

78

Return on Common Equity —Annualized income (core or net) less
preferred stock dividends, divided by average common equity.

Risk Adjusted Revenue—Adjusted revenues less managed net
credit losses.

Risk Adjusted Margin—Risk adjusted revenue as a percent of average
managed loans.

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell
(Reverse Repo Agreements)—An agrcement between aseller and a
buyer, generally of government or agency securities, whereby the buyer agrees
to purchase the securities, and the seller agrees to repurchase them at an
agreed upon price at 4 future date.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase
(Repurchase Agreements) - An agreement between 4 seller and 2
buyer, generally of government or agency securities, whereby the seller agrees
to repurchase the securities at an agreed upon price at a future date.

Standby Letter of Credit—An obligation issued by a bank on behalf of
abank customer to a third party where the hank promises to pay the third
party in the event of some defined failure by the hank’s customer, usually, but
not always, a failure to pay.

Statutory Surplus —As determined under Statutory Accounting
Practices, the amount remaining after all liabilities, including loss reserves,
are subtracted from all admitted assets. Admitted assets are assets of an
insurer prescribed or permitted by astate to be recognized on the statutory
balance sheet. Statutory surplus is also referred to as “surptus” or “surplus as
regards policyholders” for statutory accounting purposes.

Tier 1and Tier 2 Capital—Tier | capital includes common
stockholders’ equity fexcluding certain components of other comprehensive
incume), qualifying perpetual preferred stock, mandatorily redeemable
securities of subsidiary trusts, and minority interests that are held by others,
less certain intangible assets. Tier 2 capital includes, among other items,
perpetual preferred stock to the extent it does not qualify for Tier 1,
qualifying senior and subordinated debt and subordinated capital notes,
limited life preferred stock and the allowance for credit losses, subject to
certain limitations.

Unearned Compensation —The unamortized portion of a grant to
enployees of restricted stock measured at the market value on the date of
grant. Unearned compensation is displayed as a reduction of stockholders®
equity on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Unfunded Commitments-Legally binding agreements to provide
financing at a future date.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The management of Citigroup is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements and other financial information
contained in this annual report. The accompanying financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles appropriate in the circumstances. Where amounts must be based
onestimates and judgments, they represent the best estimates and judgments
of management. The financial information appearing throughout this
annual report is consistent with that in the financial statements.

The management of Citigroup is also responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting, Management establishes an
environment that fosters strong controls, and it designs business processes to
identify and respond to risk. Management maintains a comprehensive systern
of controls intended toensure that transactions are executed in accordance
with management's authorization, assets are safeguarded, and financial
records are reliable. Management also takes steps to see that information and
communication flows are effective and to monitor performance, including
performance of internal control precedures.

Gitigroup’s accounting policies and internal control are under the general
oversight of the Board of Directors, acting through the Audit Committee of the
Board. The Committee is composed entirely of directors who are not officers or
eniployees of Gitigroup. The Committee reviews reports by internal audit
covering its extensive program of audit and risk reviews worldwide. In
addition, KPMG LLP, independent auditors, are engaged to audit Citigroup’s
financial statements.

KPMG LLP obtains and maintains an understanding of Citigroup’s
internal controf and procedures for financial reporting and conducts such
tests and other auditing procedures as it considers necessary in the
citcurnstances to express the opinion in its report that follows. KPMG LLP has
full access to the Audit Commitiee, with ne members of management present,
to discuss its audit and its findings 4s to the integrity of Citigroup's financial
reporting and the effectiveness of internal control.

Management recognizes that there are inherent limitations in the
effectiveness of any system of internal control, and accordingly, even effective
internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation. However, management believes that
Citigroup maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2001,

Py

Sanford 1 Weill
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

u{&jgﬁ_?wm“‘..: :

Todd S, Thomsen
Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

wana

The Board of Dircctors and Stockholders
Citigroup Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position of Citigroup Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders'
equity and cash flows for cach of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2001, These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Conipany’s management. Our responsibility 18 to express
an apinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our augdits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstaterment. An audit includes
examining, on a test hasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinien.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present faiely, in all material respects, the financial position of Citigroup Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-vear period
ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001 the
Company changed its methods of accounting for derivative instrurnents and
hedging activities, accounting for interest income and impairment on
purchased and retained beneficial interests in securitized financial assets,
and accounting for goodwill and intangible assets resulting from business
combinations consummated after June 30, 2001. Also, as discussed in Note 1
to the consolidated financial statements, in 1999 the Company changed its
methods of accounting for insurance-related assessments, accounting for
insurance and reinsurance contracts that do not transfer insurance risk, and
accounting for the costs of start-up activities.

IKPMe P

New York, New York
January 17, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

1 miflions of doars, excepi per shate amourts

citigroup Inc. and Substdiaries
Year anded Docembor 31,
2001 2000 1999

Revenues

Loan interest, including fees
Other interest and dividerds
insurance premiums
Commissions and fees

$ 39618 § 37377 833,018
26,949 27.562 21,971
13,480 12,429 11,504
15,944 16,363 13,229

Principal transactions 5,544 5,981 5,160
Asset management and administration fees 5,389 5,338 4,164
Realized gains from sales of investments 578 806 541
Other income 4,542 5970 4,809

Total revenues
Interest expense

112,022 111826 94,396
31,965 36,638 28,674

Total revenues, net of interest expense

80,057 75,188 65,722

Benefits, claims and credit losses
Policyholder benefits and claims
Provision for credit losses

11,759 10,147 8120
6,800 5.339 4,760

Total benefits, claims and credit losses

18,559 15,486 13,880

Operating expenses
Non-insurance compensation and benefils

19,449 18,633 16,169

Insurance undenwriting, acquisition, and operating 3,921 3,643 3,765
Restructuring- and merger-refated items 458 759 (53
Other operating expenses 15,773 16,524 13,810
Total operating expenses 39,601 38,559 33,691

Income before income taxes, minority interest and cumulative effect of accounting changes

21,897 21,143 18,161

Provision for income taxes 7,626 7.525 6,530
Minority interest, net of income faxes 87 99 251

income before cumulative effect of accounting changes 14,284 13,519 11,370
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (158) - (127}

Net income

$ 14126 $ 13519 $11,243

Basic earnings per share
Income before cumuiative effect of accounting changes
Cumulative effect of accounting changes

$ 282 $ 289 5 22
{0.03) - 003

Net income

$ 279 $ 289 $ 223

Weighted average common shares outstanding

5,031.7 49770 4,979.2

Diluted earnings per share
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes
Curnulative effect of accounting changes

$ 27 S 262 5 219
0.03) - 0.02)

Netincome

$ 272 3 262 § 217

Adjusted weighted average common shares outstanding

5,147.0 51222 51278

See Notes 1o the Gonsolidated Financlal Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

citsgroup Ine. and Substdiaries

Decomber 31,
I enitions of dotiars 2001 2000
Assets
Cash and due from banks (including segregated cash and other deposits) $ 18515 § 14621
Deposits at interest with banks 19,216 16,164
Federal funds sold and secuirities borrowed or purchased under agreements fo resell 134,808 105,877
Brokerage receivables 35,155 25,696
(rading account agsets {including $36,351 and $30,502 pledged to creditors at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively} 144,904 132,513
Investments (including $15,475 and $3,354 pledged to creditors at December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2000, respectively) 160,837 120,122
Loans. net of ungarned income
Consumer 244,159 228,879
Commercial 147,774 138,143
Loans, net of unearned income 391,933 367 022
Allowance for credit losses (10,088) {8,961)
Total loans, net 381,845 358,061
Reinsurance recoverables 12,373 10,716
Separate and variable accounts 25,569 24,947
Cther assets 118,227 93,493
Total assets $1,051,450  $902,210
Liabilities
Non-interest-bearing deposits in U S. offices $ 23054 § 216%4
Interest-bearing deposits in U.S. offices 110,388 58,913
Non-interest-bearing deposits in offices cutside the US. 18,779 13,811
Interest-bearing deposits in offices outside the US. 222 304 206,168
Totai deposits 374525 300,586
Federal funds purchased and secrities ioaned or scid under agreements to repurchase 153511 110,625
Brokerage payables 32,891 15,882
Trading account liabilities 80,543 85,107
Contractholder funds and separate and variable accounts 48,932 44,884
Insurance policy and claims reserves 49,294 44 666
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings 14,804 18,227
Short-term borrowings 24 461 51675
Long-term debt 121,631 111,778
Other fiabilities 62,486 47,654
Citigroup or subsidiary obligated mandatorily redeemable securities of
subsidiary trusts holding solely junior subordinated debt securities of —Parent 4,850 2,300
—Subsidiary 2,275 2,620
Total liabilities 970,203 836,004
Stockholders’ equity
Preferred stock ($1.00 par value: authorized shares: 30 million), at aggregate liquidation value 1525 1.745
Commaon stock ($.01 par value; authorized shares: 15 billion),
issued shares: 2001 —5,477,416,254 shares and 2000 —5,351.143,583 shares 55 54
Additional paid-in capital 23,196 16,504
Retained earnings 69,803 58,862
Treasury stock, at cost: 2001 —328,727,790 shares and 2000 - 328,921,180 shares {11,009) {10,213
Accumuiated other changes in equity from nenowner sources (844) 123
Unearned compensation (1,389) (869}
Total stockholders’ equity 81,247 66,206
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,061,450 3902210

Ses Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Cetigroup Ine. and Subsidiaries

Year anded December 31,

Amourts Shares
in millions of dofars. excepl shares in thusaents 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1099
Preferred stock at aggregate liquidation vaiue
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,745 $ 1895 $ 2,274 6,233 6,831 8.327
Redemption or retirement of preferred stock (250) {150 (379) {500) (598) {1,496}
Othere: 30 = - 17 — —
Balance, end of year 1528 1,745 1.895 5,850 6,233 6,831
Common stock and additional paid-in capital
Balance beginning of year 16,558 15,361 14210 5,351,144 5350977 5338223
Empioyee benefit plans 228 1118 1.036 - — 381
Conversion of redeemable preferred stock to common stock — - 140 - - 12,489
Otheri 6,465 78 (25 126,272 167 (116}
Balance, end of year 23,251 16,568 15361 5477416 5351144 5350977
Retained eamings
Balance, beginning of year 58,862 47 997 38,893
Net income 14,126 13519 11,243
Common dividends (3,075) {2,535 (1,990
Preferred dividends (110) (119) {149)
Balance, end of year 69,803 53,862 47997
Treasury stock, at cost
Balance, beginning of year (16,213} {7 662} (4829) (328922) (326918 (288,935
lssuance of shares pursuant to employee benefit plans 1,980 1.465 1,116 59,681 83,601 76,469
Treasury stock acquired (3,045) {4,066} (3.954) (84,184) (87.149) (116697}
Other 179 50 5 4,697 1,544 245
Balance, end of year (11,089) (10,213 (7662) (328,728) (328922) (32608)
Accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources
Balance. beginning of yea: 123 1,155 984
Cumulative effect of accounting changes. net of tax:* 118 — —
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investment securities, net of tax (222) ©74) 214
Net change for cash flow hedges, net of tax i — —
Net change in foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (1,034) {368} (43)
Balance, end of year (844) 123 1,155
Uneamed compensation
Balance, beginning of year (869) {458} {497
Net issuance of restricted stock (1,133) {1.055) (380
Restricted stock amartization 613 642 421
Balance. end of year (1,389) {869) (456}
Total common stockholders’ equity and common shares outstanding 19722 84 461 56,395 5,148,688 5022222 5024059
Total stockholders’ equity $81,247 $66.206 $58,290
Summaty of changes in equity from nonowner sources
Net income $14,126 313518 $11,243
Other changes in equity from nonowner sources, net of tax (967) 1032} 171
Total changes in equity from nonowner sources $ 13,159 §12.487 $11.414

{1} Represents shates proviouly held by affifiates that have subisequently been tiaded on the open narket o third parties.

£ I 2000, primatfly includes $6.5 Dillen fe the isstancs of shares 1o etfect 1he Banamex acquisition.

(31 Refars to the adoption of SFAS 1373 and the adoption of EITF 99-20 i 2001, resulting in increases to equity rom nonowner s ces of $25 miflion and $93 miflion, respectively.

See Notes to the Gonsolidated financiat Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

cangroup nc. ard Subsichiaries

Year anded December 31,
i mitlions of dittars 2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 14126 3 13519 3 11243
Adjustments to reconcile net income fo net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs and valug of insurance in force 2,062 1,676 1,613
Additions to deferred policy acquisition costs (2,592) (2,154) {1,961)
Depreciation and amettization 2417 2,648 2.226
Deferred tax provision 1,014 1,637 598
Provision for credit losses 6,800 5,339 4,760
Change in trading account assets {12,391) {25,452 9,928
Change in trading account liabilities (4,564) (5,393) (3,848)
Change in Federal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements 1o resell (28,932) 6,778 (17.824)
Change in Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or soid under agreements to reptirchase 39,834 18,034 11,566
Change in brokerage recsivabies net of brokerage payables 7,550 (1,033) {4,926)
Change in insurance policy and claims reserves 4,628 824 405
Net gains on sales of investments (578) (806) (541}
Venture capital activity 888 {1,044 (863)
Restructuring-related items and merger-related costs 458 759 (53)
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax 158 — 127
Other, net (4,300) {12,559 {1,227
Total adjustments 12,452 (10,846) (20)
Net cash provided by operating activities 26,578 2673 11,223
Cash flows from investing activities
Change in deposits at interest with banks (3,052) (3.898) {(573)
Change in foans (34,787) (82,985)  (120,97Q)
Proceeds from sales of loans 26,470 32,580 94,677
Purchases of investments (453,504) (103.461) {92,495)
Proceeds from sales of investments 403,078 67,561 49,678
Proceeds from maturities of investments 31,867 34,774 35525
Other investments, primartly short-term, net (642) (3.086) 2,677
Capital expenditures on premises and equipment (1,779) (2.249) 1.750)
Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment, subsidiaries and affiliates, and repossessed assets 1,802 1,232 3437
Business acquisitions {7,067) (8.843) 6,321}
Net cash used in investing activities (37,609) {68,375) {36,115)
Cash tlows from financing activities
Dividends paid {3,185) (2,654) {2,139
Issuance of common stock 875 958 758
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts —_ e 600
Issuance of mandatorily redeemable securities of parent trusts 2,550 — -
Redemption of mandatoriy redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts (345) — —
Recemption of preferred stock, net (220) (150) {388)
Trieasury stock acquired (3,045) {4,066) (3,954
Stock tendered for payment of withholding taxes {5606) {593) {496}
Issuance of long-term debt 43,735 43827 18,537
Payments and redemptions of long-temy debt (34,795) (22,330) {18,835)
Change in deposits A 39013 32.160
Change in short-term borowings inchuding investment banking and brokerage borrowings (32,081) 9,851 (580)
Contractholder fund deposits 8,363 6,077 5,033
Contractholder fund withdrawals (5,486) {4,758) {5,028)
Net cash provided by financing activities 15,248 64,875 26,568
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and due from banks (323) {530) (98)
Change in cash and due from banks 3,894 (1,357) 1,578
Cash and due from banks at beginning of period 14,621 16,978 14,400
Cash and due from banks at end of period $ 18516 § 14621 3 15978
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for income taxes § 2411 % H337 0§ 4314
Cash paid during the period for inferest 32,831 34924 27,502
Non-cash investing activiies— transfers to repossessed assets 445 820 862
Nan-cash effects of accounting for the conversion of investments in Nikko Securities Co., Lid, - 702 —

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principies of consofidation. The consolidated financial statements
include the accounts of Citigroup and its subsidiaries (the Company).
Twenty-to-fifty percent-owned affiliates, other than investments of designated
venture capital subsidiaries, are accounted for under the equity method, and
the pro rata share of their income (Joss) is included in other income. Income
from investments in less than twenty percent-owned companies is generally
recognized when dividends are received. Gains and losses on disposition of
branches, subsidiaries, affiliates, and other investments and charges for
management’s estimate of impairment in their value that is other than
temporary, such that recovery of the carrying amount is deemed unlikely, are
included in other income. On July 1, 2001 the Company adopted the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
(SFAS 141) and certain provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” (SFAS 142) as required for goodwill and intangible assets
resulting from business combinations consummated after June 30, 2001,
Goodwill related to purchase acquisitions completed prior to June 30, 2001 is
amortized on astraight-line basis over its estimated useful life through the
end of the year, while goodwill related to purchase acquisitions completed
after June 30, 2001, principaily Banamex and EAB (as described in Note 2 to
the Gonsolidated Financial Statements), is not amortized. OnJanuary 1,
2002, Gitigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 under which
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives will no
Tonger be amortized, butwill be subject fo annual impairment tests. See
Future Application of Accounting Standards in Note 1 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Other intangible assets are amortized over their
estimated useful tives, subject to periodic review for impairment thatis other
than temporary. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 141 and SFAS 142, if it was
determined that enterprise level goodwill was unlikely o be recovered,
impairment was measured on 4 discounted cash-flow basis. The Company
recognizes a gain or loss in the Consolidated Statenent of Income when a
subsidiary issues its own stock to a third party at a price higher or lower than
the Company’s proportionate canying anpount,

Certain amounts in prior vears have been reclassified to conform to the
current vear's presentation.

Foreign currency translation. Assets and liabilities denominated in
non-U.S. doliar currencies are translated into U S, dollar equivalents using
yearend spot foreign exchange rates. Rewenues and expenses are translated
monthly at amounts which approximate weighted average exchange rates,

with resulting gains and losses included in income. The effects of translating
operations with a functional currency other than the US. dollar are included
instockholders' equity along with related hedge and tax effects. The effects of
translating operations with the U.S. dollar as the functional currency, including
those in highly inflationary environments, are included in other income along
with related hedgp effects. Hedges of foreign currency exposures include forward
currency contracts and designated issues of non-U.S. doliar debt.
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Ciltgronp Inc. and Subsidiaries

Use of estimates. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
atfect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported arnounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash flows, Cash equivalents are defined as those amounts included in
cash and due from banks. Gash flows from risk management activities are
classificd in the same category as the related assets and Liabilitics.

Investments. Investments include fived maturity and equity securities.
Fixed maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks, as well
as certain foan-backed and structured securities subject to prepayment risk.
Equity securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks.
Fixed maturities classified s “held to maturity” represent securities that the
Company has both the ability and the intent to hold until maturity and are
carried at amortized cost. Fixed maturity securities classified as “available-
for-sale” and marketable equity securities are carried at fair values, based
primarily on quoted market prices or if quoted market prices are not
available, discounted expected cash flows using market rates commensurate
with the credit quality and maturity of the investment, with unrealized gains
and losses and related hedye effects reported in a separate component of
stockholders’ equity, net of applicable income taxes. Declines in fair value
that aze determined to be other than temporary are charged to eamings.
Accrual of income is suspended on fixed maturities that are in default, or on
which it is likely that future interest payvments will not be niade as scheduled.
Fixed muaturities subject to prepayment risk are accounted for using the
retrospective method, where the principal amortization and effective yield are
recalculated each period based on actual historical and projected future cash
flows. Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are included in
earnings on 4 specific identified cost basis.

Citigroup’s venture capital subsidiaries include subsidiarics registered as
Small Business Investment Cormpanies and other subsidiaries that engage
exclusively in venture capital activities. Venture capital investrnents are
carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in other income.
The fair values of publicly-traded securities held by these subsidiarics are
generally based upon quoted market prices. In certain situations, including
thinly-traded securities, Large-block holdings, restricted shares or other
special situations, the quoted market price is adjusted to produce an estimate
of the attainable fair value for the securities. For securities held by these
subsidiaries that are not publicly traded, estimates of fair value are made
based upon review of the investee’s financial results, condition, and prospects,
together with comparisons to similar companies for which quoted market
prices are available.
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Securities borrowed and securities foaned are recorded at

the amount of cash advanced or received. With respect to securities loaned,
the Company receives cash collateral in an amount in excess of the market
value of securities loaned. The Company monitors the market value of
securities borrowed and loaned on a daily basis with additional collateral
obtained as necessary. Interest received or paid is recorded in interest income
or interest expense.

Repurchase and resale agreements are tieated as collateralized
financing transactions and are carried at the amounts at which the securitics
will be subsequently reacquired or resold, including accrued interest, as
specified in the respective agreements. The Company’s policy is to take
possession of securities purchased under agreements to resell. The market
value of securities to be repurchased and resold is monitored, and additional
collateral is obtained where appropriate to protect against creditexposure.

Trading account assets and liabilities include securities,
commodities and derivatives and are recorded at either market value o, when
market prices are not readily available, tair value, which is determined under
an alternative approach, such as matrix or model pricing. Obligations to
deliver securities sold but not vet purchased are also valued at market and
included in trading account liabilities. The determination of market or fair
value considers various factors, including; closing exchange or over-the-
counter market price quotations; time value and volatility factors underlying
options, warrants and derivatives; price activity for equivalent or synthetic
instruments; counterparty credit quality; the potential impact on market prices
or fair value of liquidating the Company’s positions in an orderly manner over
aregsonable period of time under current market conditions; and derivatives
transaction maintenance costs during that period. Interest expense on trading
account liabilities is reported as a reduction of interest revenues,

Commuodities include physical quantities of commodities involving future
settlement or delivery, and related gains or losses are reported as principal
fransactions.

Derivatives used for trading purpoeses include interest rate, currency, equity,
credit, and commeodity swap agreements, options, caps and floors, warrants,
and financial and commodity futures and forward contracts. The fair
value of derivatives is determined based upon liquid market prices evidenoed
by exchange traded prices, broker-dealer quotations or prices of other
transactions with similarly rated counterparties. The fair value includes an
adjustment for individual counterparty credit risk and other adjustments, as
appropriate, to reflect liquidity and ongoing sewvicing costs. The fair values
(unrealized gains and losses) associated with derivatives are reported net by
counterparty, provided a legally enforceable master netting agreement exists,
and are netted across products and against cash collateral when such
provisions are stated in the master netting agreement. Derivatives in a net
receivable position, as well as options owned and warrants held, are reported
as trading account assets. Similarly, derivatives in a net payable position, as
well as options written and warrants issued, are reported as trading account
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liabilities. Revenues generated from derivative instruments used for trading,
purposes are reported as principal transactions and include realized gains
and losses as well as unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in
the market or fair value of such instrunients.

Commissions, underwriting and principal transactions
revenues and related expenses are recognized in income on a trade date basis.

Consumer loans includes loans managed by the Global Consumer
business, The Citigroup Private Bank and consumer loans issued by Banamex
in Mexico. Consumer loans are generally written off not later than a
predetermined mimber of days past due primaily en a contractual basis, or
earlier in the event of bankruptcy. The number of days is set at an appropriate
level by loan product and by country. The policy for suspending accruals of
interest on consumer loans varies depending on the terms, security and foan
loss experience characteristics of each product, and in consideration of write-
off criteria in place.

Commercial loans represent loans managed by Global Corporate and
commercial loans issued by Banamex in Mexico. Commercial loans are
identified as impaired and placed on a cash (nonaccrualy basis when it is
determined that the payment of interest or principal is doubtful of collection,
or when interest or principal is past due for 90 days or more, except when the
loan is well secured and in the process of collection. Any interest accrued is
reversed and charged against current carnings, and interest is thereafter
included in eamings only to the extent actually received in cash. When there
is doubt regarding the ultimate collectibility of principal, all cash receipts are
thereatter applied to reduce the recorded investment in the loan. Impaired
commercial loans are written down to the extent that principal is judged to be
uncollectible. Impaired collateral-dependent loans where repayment is
expected to be provided solely by the underlying collateral and there are no
other available and reliable sources of repayment are written down to the
lower of costor cotlateral value. Cash-basis loans are returned to an accrual
status when all contractual principal and interest amounts are reasonably
assured of repayment and there is 4 sustained period of repayment
performance in accordance with the contractual terms.

Lease financing transactions. Loans include the Company’s share of
aggregate rentals on lease financing transactions and residual values net of
related unearned income, Lease financing transactions substantially represent
direct financing leases and also include leveraged leases. Unearned income is
amortized under 2 method which results in an approximate level rate of return
when related to the unrecovered lease investment. Gains and losses from sales
of residual values of leased equipment are included in other income.,
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Securitizations primarily include sales of credit card receivables,
maortgages and home equity loans.

Revenue on securitized credit card receivables is recorded monthly as
eamed over the term of each securitization transaction, which may range
up to 12 years. The revolving nature of the receivables sold and the monthly
recognition of revenue result in 4 pattern of recognition that is similar to the
pattern that would be experienced if the receivables had not been sold.

Net revenue on securitized credit card receivables is collected over the life
of each sale transaction. The net revenue is based upon the sum: of finance
charges and fees received from cardholders and interchange revenue earned
on cardholder transactions, less the sum of the vield paid to investors, credit
losses, transaction costs, and 4 contractual servicing fee, which is also
retained by certain Citigroup subsidiaries as servicers.

The Company retains a seller’s interest in the credit card receivables
transferred to the trust, which is not in securitized form. Accordingly, the
seller’s interest is carried on a historical cost basis and dlassified as consumer
loans. Retained interests in securitized mortgage loans are classified as
investments.

Servicing rights retained in the securitization of mortgage and home
equity loans are measured by allocating the carrying value of the loans
between the assets sold and the interest retained, based on the relative fair
value at the date of the securitization. The fair market values are determined
using either financial models, quoted market prices or sales of similar assets.
Gain or loss on the sale of mortgage loans is recognized at the time of the
securitizations. Mortgage servicing assets are amortized over the expected life
of the loan and are evaluated periodically for impairment.

Loans held for sale. Credit card and other receivables and mortgage
loans originated for sale are classified as loans held for sale, which are
accounted for at the lower of cost or market value in other assets with net
credit losses charged to other income.

Allowance for credit losses represents management’s estimate of
probable losses inherent in the portfolio. Attribution of the allowance is
made for analytical purposes only, and the entire allowance is available to
absorb probable credit losses inherent in the portfolio including unfunded
commitments. Additions to the allowance are made by means of the
provision for credit losses. Credit losses are deducted from the allowance,
4and subsequent recoveries are added. Securities received in exchange for
loan claims in debt restructurings are initially recorded at fair value, with
any gain or loss reflected as a recovery or charge-off to the atlowance, and
are subsequently accounted for as securities available forsale.
Larger-balance, non-homogenous exposures representing significant
individual credit exposures are evaluated based upon the borrower's overall
financial condition, resources, and payment record; the prospects for support

from any financially responsible guarantors; and, if appropriate, the
realizable value of any collateral. The allowange for credit losses attributed
to these loans is established via a process which beging with estimates of
probable loss inherent in the portfolio based upon various statistical
analyses. These analyses consider historical and projected default rates

and loss severities; internal risk ratings; geographic, industry, and other
environmental factors; and model imprecision. Management also considess
overall portfolio indicators including trends in internally risk-rated
exposures, classified exposures, cash-basis loans, and historical and
forecasted write-offs; and a review of industry, geographic, and portfolio
concenirations, including current developments within those segments. In
addition, management considers the current business strategy and credit
process, including credit limit setting and compliance, credit approvals, foan
underwriting criteria, and loan workout procedures. Within the altowance for
credit losses, a valuation allowance is maintained for larger-balance, non-
homogenous loans that have heen individually determined to be impaired.
This estimate considers all available evidence including, as appropriate, the
present vatue of the expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's
contractual effective rate, the secondary market value of the loan and the fair
vatue of collateral.

Each portfolio of smallerbalance, homogenous loans, including
consumer mortgage, installment, revolving credit and most other consumer
loans, is collectively evaluated for impairment. The allowance for credit fosses
attributed to these foans is established via a process that begins with estimates
of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, based upon various statistical
analyses. These include migration analysis, in which historical delinquency
and credit loss experience is applied to the current aging of the portfolio,
together with analyses that reflect current trends and conditions.
Managenent also considers overall portfolie indicators including historical
credit losses, delinquent, non-performing and classified loans, and trends in
volumes and terms of loans; an evatuation of overall credit quality and the
credit process, including lending policies and procedures; consideration of
economic, geographical, product, and other environmental factors; and
model imprecision.

This evaluation includes an assessment of the ability of borrowers with
foreign currency obligations to obtain the foreign currency necessary for
orderly debt servicing,

Repossessed assets. Upon repossession, loans are adjusted, if
necessary, to the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral and
transferred to Repossessed Assets, which is reported in other assets net of a
valuation allowance for selling costs and net declines in value as appropriate.
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Risk management activities-derivatives used for
non-trading purposes. The Company manages is expasures to market
1ate movements outside of i1s trading activities by modifying the asset and
liability mix, either directly or through the use of derivative financial products
including interest rate swaps, futures, forwards, and purchased option
positions such as interest rate caps, floors, and collars as well as foreign
exchange contracts. These end-user derivatives are carried at fair value in
other assets or other liabilities.

To qualify a5 2 hedge, the hedge relationship is designated and formally
documented at inception detailing the particular risk management objective
and strategy for the hedge which includes the item and risk that is being
hedged, the derivative that is being used, as well as how effectiveness is heing
assessed. A derivative must be highly effective in accomplishing the objective
of offsetting either changes in fair value or cash flows for the risk being
hedged. The effectiveness of these hedging relationships is evaluated on a
fetrospective and prospective basis using quantitative measures of correlation.
If a hedge relationship is found to be ineffective, it no longer qualifies as a
hedge and any excess gains or losses attributable to such ineffectiveness, as
well as subsequent changes in fair value, are recognized in other income.

The foregoing criteria are applied on a decentralized basis, consistent with
the level at which market risk is managed, but are subject to various limits
and controls, The underlying asset, lizhility, firm commitment or forecasted
transaction may be an individual item or a portfolio of similar items.

For fair value hedges, in which derivatives hedge the fair value of assets,
liabilities or firm commitments, changes in the fair value of derivatives are
reflected in other income, together with changes in the fair value of the
related hedged item. The net amount, representing hedge ineffectiveness, is
reflected in current earnings. Citigroup's fair vatue hedges are primarily the
hedges of fised-rate long-term debt, loans and available-for-sale securities.

For cash flow hedges, in which derivatives hedge the variability of cash
flows related to loating rate assets, iabilities or forecasted transactions, the
accounting treatment depends on the effectiveness of the hedge. To the extent
these derivatives are effective in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash
flows, changes in the derivatives' fair value will not be included in current
eamings but are reported as other changes in stockholders equity from
nonowner sources. These changes in fair value will be included in earnings of
future pertods when eamnings are also affected by the variability of the hedged
cash flows. To the extent these derivatives are not effective, changes in their
far values are immediately included in other income. Citigroup’s cash flow
hedges primarily include hedges of tloating rate credit card receivables and
loans, rollovers of commercial paper and foreign currency denominated
funding. Cash flow hedges also include hedges of certain forecasted
transactions up to a maximum tenor of 30 vears, although a substantial
majority of the maturities is under five years,

For net investment hedges, in which derivatives hedge the forign currency
exposure of 4 net investment in aforeign operation, the accounting treatment
will similarly depend on the effectiveness of the hedge. The effective portion of
the change in fair value of the derivative, including any forwaed premium or
discount, is retlected in other changes in stockholders' equity from nonowner
sources as part of the foreign currency translation adjustment.

Non-trading derivatives that are either hedging instruments that are
carried at fair value or do not qualify as hedges are also carried at fair value
with changes in value included either as an element of the yield or return on
the hedged item or in other income.

For those hedge relationships that are terminated, hedge designations that
are removed, or forecasted transactions that are no longer expected to occur,
the hedge accounting treatment described in the pacagraphs above is no
longer applied. The end-user derivative is terminated or transterred to the
trading account. For fair value hedges, any changes to the hedged item
remain s part of the hasis of the asset or liability and are ultimately reflected
a5 an element of the vield. For cash tlow hedges, any changes in fair value of
the end-user derivative remain in other changes in stockholders' equity from
nonowner sources and are included in earnings of future periods when
earnings are also affected by the variability of the hedged cash flow If the
hedged relationship was discontinued or a forecasted transaction is not
expected t occur when scheduled, any changes in fair value of the end-user
derivative are immediately reflected in other income.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133), on January 1, 2001 (see
Accounting Changes below), end-user derivatives designated in qualifying
hedges were acceunted for consistent with the risk management strategy as
follows. Amounts payable and receivable on interest rate swaps and options
were accrued according to the contractual terms and included in the related
revenue and expense category as an element of the vield on the associated
instrument (including the amortization of option premiums). Amounts paid
of teceived over the life of futures contracts were deferred until the contract
is closed; accumulated deferred amounts on futures contracts and amounts
paid or received at settternent of forward contracts were accounted for as
elements of the carrying value of the associated instrument, affecting the
resulting vield. End-user contracts related to instrurnents carvied at fair
value were also carried at fair value, with amounts payable and receivable
accounted for a5 an element of the vield on the associated instrument, When
related to securities available-for-sale. fair value adjustments were reported
in stockholders equity, net of tax.

If an end-user derivative contract was terminated, any resulting gain or
loss was deferred and amortized over the original term of the agreement
provided that the effectiveness criteria had been met. 1f the underlying
designated items were no longer held, or if an anticipated transaction was
no fonger likely to occur, any previously unrecognized gain or loss on the
derivative contract was recognized in earnings and the contract was
accounted for at fair value with suhsequent changes recognized in earnings.
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Foreign exchange contracts which qualified as hedges of foreign currency
exposures, including net capital investments outside the U.S., were revalued at
the spot rate with any forward premium or discount recognized over the life
of the contract in interest revenue or interest expense. Gains and losses on
foreign exchange contracts which qualified s a hedge of afirm commitment
were deferred and recognized 4s part of the measurement of the related
transaction, unless deferral of a loss would hawe led to recognizing losses on
the transaction in later periods.

Insurance premiums from long-duration contracts, principally life
insueance, are earned when due. Premiums frem short-duration insurance
contracts are earned over the related contract period. Short-duration contracts
include primarily property and casualty, including estimated ultimate
premiums on retraspectively rated policies, and credit life and accident and
health policies.

Value of insurance in force, included in other assets, represents the
actuarially determined present value of anticipatad profits to be realized from
lite and accident and health business on insurance in force at the date of the
Company's acquisition of its insurance subsidiaries using the same
assumptions that were used for computing related liabilities where
appropriate. The value of insurance in foroe acquired prior to December 31,
1993 is amortized over the premium paving periods in relation to anticipated
premiums. The value of insurance in force relating to the 1993 acquisition of
The Travelers Corporation was the actuarially determined present value of the
projected future profits discounted at interest rates ranging from 14% to 18%
for the business acquired. The value of insurance in force is amortized over
the contract period using current interest crediting rates to accrete interest
and using amortization methods based on the specified products. Teaditional
life insurance is amortized over the period of anticipated premiums; universal
life in relation to estimated gross profits; and annuity contracts emploving a
level vield method. The value of insurance in force is reviewed periodically for
recoverability to determine if any adjustment is required.

Deferred policy acquisition costs, included in other assets, for

the life insurance business represent the costs of acquiring new business,
principally commissions, certain underwriting and agency expenses and the
cost of issuing policies, Deferred policy acquisition costs for the traditional life
business are amortized over the premium-paying periods of the related
policics, in proportion to the ratie of the annual premiunt revenue to the total
anticipated premium revenue. Deferred policy acquisition costs of other
husiness lines are generally amortized over the life of the insurance contract
or at 2 constant rate based upon the present value of estimted gross profits
expected to be realized. For certain property and casualty lines, acquisition
costs (primarily commisstons and premium taves) have been deferred to the
extent recoverable from future eamned preriums and are amortized ratably
over the terms of the related policies. Deferred policy acquisition costs are
reviewed to determine if they are recoverable from future income, inchuding
investment income, and, if not recoverable, are charged to expense. All other
acquisition expenses re charged to operations s incurred.

Separate and variabie accounts primarily represent funds for
which investment income and investment gains and losses accrue directly to,
and investrnent risk is borne by, the contractholders. Each account has
specific investment objectives. The assets of each account are legally
segregated and are not subject to claims that arise out of any other business
of the Company. The assets of these accounts are generally caried at market
value. Amounts assessed to the contractholders for managenent services

are included in revenues. Deposits, net investment income and realized
investment gains and losses for these accounts are excluded from revenues,
and related liability increases are excluded from benefits and expenses.

Insurance policy and claims reserves represent liabilities for
future insurance policy benefits. Insurance reserves for traditional life
insurance, annuities, and accident and health policies have been computed
based upon mortality, morbidity, persistency and interest rate assumptions
(ranging from 2.5% to 8.1%) applicable to these coverages, including adverse
deviation. These assumptions consider Company experience and industry
standards and may be revised if it is determined that future experience will
differ substantially from that previously assumed. Property-casualty reserves
include (1) unearned premiums representing the unexpired portion of policy
premiums, and (2) estimated provisions for hoth reported and unreported
claims incurred and related expenses. The reserves are adjusted regularly
based on experience.

In determining insurance policy and clains reserves, the Company
performs a continuing review of its overall position, its reserving techniques
and its reinsurance. The reserves are also reviewed periodically by a qualified
actuary employed by the Company. Reserves for property-casualty insurance
losses represent the estimated ultimate cost of all incurred claims and claim
adjustment expenses. Since the reserves are hased on estimates, the ultimate
liahility may be more or less than such reserves. The effects of changes in such
estimated reserves are included in the results of operations in the period in
which the estimates are changed. Such changes may be material t the results
of uperations and could occur in 4 future period.

Contractholder funds represent receipts from the issuance of
universal life, pension investment and certain individual annuity contracts.
Such receipts are considered deposits on investment contracts that do

not have substantial mortality or morbidity risk. Account balances are
increased by deposits received and interest credited and are reduced by
withdrawals, mortality charges and administrative expenses charged to

the contractholders. Calculations of contractholder account balances for
investment contracts reflect lapse, withdrawal and interest rate assumptions
(ranging from 1.9% to 14.0%) based on contract provisions, the Company’s
experience and industry standards. Contractholder funds also inctude other
funds that policyholders leave on deposit with the Company,
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Employee benefits expense includes prior and current service costs
of pension and other postretirement henefit plans, which are accrued on a
current basis, centributions and unrestricted awards under other eniployee
plans, the amortization of restricted stock awards, and costs of other employee
benefits. There are no charges to earnings upon the grant or exercise of fixed
stock options or the subscription for or purchase of stock under stock
purchase agreements. Compensation expense related to performance-based
stock options granted in prior periods was recorded over the periods to the
vesting dates. Upon issuance of previously unissued shares under employee
plans, proceeds received in excess of par value are credited to additional paid-
in capital. Upon issuance of treasury shares, the difference hetween the
proceeds received and the average cost of treasury shares is recorded in
additional paid-in capital.

Income taxes. Deferred taxes are recorded for the future tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the financial statements or tax returns,
hased upon enacted tax laws and rates. Deferved tax assets are recognized
subject to management's judgment that realization is mure likely than not. The
Company and its wholly owned domestic non-life insurance subsidiaries file a
consotidated Federal income tax return. The major life insurance subsidiaries
are included in their own consolidated Federal income tax return. Associates
filed separate consolidated Federal income tax returns prior to the merger

Earnings per common share is computed after recognition of
preferred stock dividend requirements. Basic eamings per share is computed
by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period, excluding
restricted stock. Dituted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if secutities or other contracts to issue common stock were
exercised and has been computed after giving consideration to the weighted
average dilutive effect of the Company's convertible securities, common stock
warrants, stock options and the shares issued under the Company's Capital
Accumulation Plan and other restricted stock plans.

Accounting Changes

Adoption of EITF 99-20. During the second quarter of 2001, the
Company adopted Emerging Issucs Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 99-20,
“Recognition of Interest Income and Impairment on Purchased and Retained
Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets™ (BITF49-20). BITF 99-20
provides new guidance regarding income recognition and identification and
determination of impairment on certain asset-hacked securities. The initial
adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment of $116 million after-tax,
recorded as 4 charge to earnings, and an increase of §93 million included in
other changes in stockholders” equity from nonowner sources.

Derivatives and hedge accounting. On January 1, 2001, Citigroup
adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities. These new rules changed the accounting treatment of derivative
contracts {including foreign exchange contracts) that are employed to
manage risk outside of Citiproup’s trading activities, as well as certain
derivative instruments embedded in other contracts. SFAS 133 requires that all
derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. "he treatment
of changes in the fair value of derivatives depends on the character of the
transaction, including whether it has been designated and qualifies as part of 4
hedging relationship. The majority of Citigroup’s derivatives are entered into
for trading purpuses and were not impacted hy the adoption of SFAS 133. The
cumuiative etfect of adopting SFAS 133 at January 1, 2001 was an after-tax
charge of $42 million inctuded in et income and an increase of $25 million
included in other changes in stockholders equity from nonowner sources.

Business combinations, Effective July 1, 2001, the Company adopted
the provisions of SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and certain
provisions of SFAS Nu. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”™ as required
for goodwill and intangible assets tesulting from business combinations
consummated after June 30, 2001. The new rules require that all business
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 he accounted for under the
purchase method. The nonamortization provisions of the new rules affecting
goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are effective

for all purchase business combinations conpleted after June 30, 2001,

Insurance-related assessments. During the first quarter of 1999,
the Company adopted Statement of Position (“SOP™) 97-3, “Accounting by
Insurance and Other Enterprises for Insurance-Related Assessments.” SOP

7-3 provides guidance for determining when an entity should recognize a
liahility for guaranty-fund and other insurance-related assessments, how to
measure that liability, and when an asset may be recognized for the recovery
of such assessments through premium tax offsets or policy surcharges. The
initial adoption resulted ina cumulative adjustment recorded as a charge to
earnings of $135 million after tax and minority interest.

Deposit accounting. During the first quarter of 1999, the Company
adopted SOP 98-7, “Deposit Accounting; Accounting for Insurance and
Reinsurance Contracts That Do Not Transfer Insurance Risk.” SOP 98-7
provides guidance on how to account for insurance and reinsurance contracts
that do not transfer insurance risk and applies to all entitics and all such
contracts, except for long-duration life and health insurance contracts.

The method used to account for such contracts is referred to as deposit
accounting, The initial adoption resulted in 4 cumulative adjustment
tecorded s 4 credit to earnings of 323 million after-tax and minority interest.

Start-up costs. During the first quarter of 1999, the Conipany adopted
SOP 98-5, “Reporting on the Costs of Start-Up Activities.” SOP 98-5 requires
costs of start-up activities and organization costs to be expensed as incurred.
The initial adoption resulted in a cumulative adjustment recorded as a
charge to earnings of $15 million after-tax.
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Future Application of Accounting Standards

Business Combinations, Goodwiil and Other
Intangible Assets

OnJanuary 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted the remaining provisions of SFAS 142,
when the rules became effective for calendar year companies. Under the new
rules, effective January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives will no longer be amortized, but will be subject to annual
impairment lests. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over
their useful fives.

Based on current levels of goodwill and an evaluation of the Company's
intangible assets, which determined that certain intangible assets should be
reclassified as goodwill and identified as other intangible assets that have
indefinite lives, the nonamortization provisions of the new standards will
reduce other expense hy approximately $570 million and increase net income
by approximately 3450 miltion in 2002.

During 2002, the Company will pedform the required impairment tests of
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets as of January 1. 2002, Itis not
expected that the adoption of the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 will have a
material effect on the financial staternents as 4 result of these impairment tests.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

In September 2000, FASB issued SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a
replacement of FASB Statement No. 1257 (SFAS 140). In July 2001, FASB
issued Technical Bulletin No, 01-1, “Effective Date for Certain Financial
Institutions of Certain Provisions of Statement 140 Related to the Isolation
of Transferred Assets.”

Certain provisions of SFAS 140 require that the structure for transfers of
financial assets to certain securitization vehicles be modified to comply with
revised isolation guidance for institutions subject to receivership by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. These provisions are effective for
transfors taking place after December 31, 2001, with an additional transition
period ending no later than September 30, 2006 for transters to certain master
trusts. Tt is not expected that these provisions will materially affect the
financial statements. SFAS 140 also provides revised guidance for an entity to
be considered a4 qualifying special purpose entity.

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

OnJanuary 1, 2002, Citigroup adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Immpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets™ (SFAS 144), when the rule
hecame effective for calendar vear companies. SFAS 144 establishes additional
criteria as compared to existing generally accepted accounting principles

t determine when a long-lived asset is held for sale. It also broadens the
definition of “discontinued operations, " but dees not allow for the accrual

of future operating losses, as was previously permitted.

The provisions of the new standard «re generally to be applied
prospectively. The provisions of SFAS 144 will affect the timing of discontinued
operations treatment for the planned initial public offering and tax-free
distribution of Travelets Property Casualty Corp.

2. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS

Planned Initial Public Offering and Tax-Free Distribution
of Travelers Preperty Casuaity Corp.

Citigroup announced that its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property
Casualty Corp. (TPC), intends to sell a minority interest in TPC in an initial
public oftering and Citigroup infends to make a tax-free distribution to its
stockholders of such amount of the remainder of its interest in TP so that it
will hold approximately 9.9% of the outstanding voting securities of TPC
following the initial public offering and tax-free distribution.

The distribution is subject to various regulatory approvals as well a5 4
private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service that the distribution
will be tax-free to Citigroup and its stockholders. Citigroup has no obligation
to consummate the distribution, whether or not these conditions are satishied.

Acquisition of Banamex

On August 6, 2001, Citicorp completed its acquisition of 99.86% of the issued
and outstanding ordinary shares of Grupe Financiero Banamex-accival
(Banamex), a leading Mexican financial institution, for approximately

$12 5 billion in cash and Citigroup stock. Citicorp completed the acquisition
by settling transactions that were conducted on the Mexican Stock Exchange.
On September 24, 2001, Citicorp became the holder of 100% of the issued and
outstanding ordinary shares of Banamex following a share redemption by
Banamex. Banamex's and Citicorp's banking operations in Mexico have been
integrated and conduct business under the “Banamex” brand name.

Acquisition of EAB

Onjuly 17, 2001, Citibank completed its acquisition of European American
Bank (EAB), 2 New York state-chartered bank, for $1.6 billion plus the
assumption of $350 million in FAB preferred stock.

Acquisition of Assoclates

On November 30, 2000, Citigroup Inc., completed its acquisition of Associates
First Capital Corporation (Associates). The acquisition was consummated
through a merger of a subsidiary of Citigroup with and into Assaciates (with
Associates as the surviving corporation) pursuant to which each share of
Associates common stock became a right to receive .7334 of a share of
Citigroup Inc. common stock (534.5 million shares). Subsequent to the
acquisition, Associ ates was contributed to and becanie a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Citicorp and Citicorp issued afull and unconditional guaraniee
of the outstanding long-term debt securities and commercial paper of
Associates. Associates debt securities and commmercial paper will no longer be
separately rated. The acquisition was accounted for a5 a pooling of interests.

Acquisition of Travelers Property Casualty Corp.
Minority interest

Turing April 2000, 4 subsidiary of the Company completed a cash tender ofter
to purchase all of the outstanding shares of Travelers Property Gasualty Corp.
not previously owned.
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3. BUSINESS SEGMENT iNFORMATION Investment Management and Private Banking segment offers 2 broad range

Citigroup is a diversified hank-holding company whose businesses provide a of life insurance, annuity and asset management products and services from
hroad range of financial services 1 consumer and corporate customers global investment centers around the world, including individual annuity,
around the world. The Company’s activities are conducted through Global group annuity, individual life insurance products, COLI products, mutual
Consumer, Global Corporate, Global Investment Management and Private funds, closed-end funds, managed accounts, unit investment trusts, variable

Banking, and {nvestment Activities. These segments reflect the characteristics annuities, pension administration, and personalized wealth management
of its products and services and the clients to which those products or services services distributed to institutional, high networth, and retail clients. The

age delivered, Investrent Activities segment includes the Company’s venture capital

The Global Consumer segment includes a global, full-service consumer activities, realized investment gains and losses from certain insurance-related
franchise encompassing, among other things, branch and electronic investrents, results from certain proprietary investments and the results of
banking, consumer lending services, investment services, credit and charge certain investments in countries that refinanced debt under the 1989 Brady
card services, and auto 4nd homeowners insurance. The businesses included Plan or plans of 4 similar nature. Corporate/Other includes net corporate
in the Company's Global Corporate segment provide corporations, treasury results, corposate staff and other corporate expenses, certain
governments, institutions, and investors in gver 100 countries and territories intersegment eliminations, and the remainder of internet-related
with a broad range of financial products and services, including investment development activities not allocated to the individual businesses. The
advice, financial planning and retail brokerage services, banking and accounting policies of these reportable segments are the same as those
financial services, and commercial insurance products. The Global disclosed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table presents certain information regarding these segments:

Total revenues, net Provision for Identifiable
B . of interest expense:™ Incoine taxes Net income (logs) i assets atyear-end
i midllions of dotiars, except

idertifiable assuts in bilfos 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1899 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Global Consumer $37697 $32999 $29816 $4,023 33,315 $2911 $7222 $580 $ 489 $ 357 $275 $235
Globat Corporate 34297 33479 28688 2,929 3,234 2.902 5,707 6,020 5259 572 506 449

Global Investment Management
and Private Banking 7,553 7,145 6,099 817 786 702 1,528 1,434 1,221 99 93 83
Investment Activities 907 2,309 1,089 264 805 356 530 1,383 650 9 11 H
Corporate/Other (397) {(744) 30 (507) (615) 341) (861) (1,178) {(784) 14 17 18
Total $80,057 $75,188 $65722 $7,526 $7.525 $6,530 $14,126 $13519  $11,243 $1,051 $802 $796

(11 Includes total revenues. nel o intarest expense in the United States of $55.4 biftion. $53.3 bilion, and $47.5 bl in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectivily. Includes lotd rovenues, net of interest expense in Mexice of
$2.1 bitlion, $6507 miliion, and $531 milfien in 2001, 2004, and 1994, respectively, There wele no other individual foreign coumtries that ware malerial to totat revenues, net of interesl expense.

(21 For 2001, Global Consurer, Global Gorparate, Global lvestment Managament and Private Banking, and Comorate/Othet results reflect after-tax restructuring-refated charges (rredits) of $144 million, $137 milion, $7
mitlion. and ($3) miflion, respectively. For 2000, Gobal Consumner, Global Corposate, Global Investment Management and Private Banking, and Corporate/Other results rofleet aftor-tax resiueting telated charges and
merges tolak s of $144 million, $146 million, $11 million, and $320 million, resportivoly, The 2000 results alse rofleet attor tax Housing Finance unit chatges m Corporate/Othor. For 1909, Global Gonsume, Globat
Corporale, Glubal westiment Marvgemnent and Private Barking, and Capuale/Othes 1esults refiect after -tax restrucluring -tefated charges (oreditst of $78 million, (5121) mitkon, (82) miflion, and $20 million, respectively.

G} Includes pi ovision Tor benefits, claims and eredit losses in the Global Gonstimer 1esulis of $9.4 billion, $7.9 bitlion, and $7.3 bitfion, in the Global Corporate results of $6.5 billion. $5.2 bitiion, and $4.3 billion, in the Global
nwastment Managenmen! and Private Rarking results of $2.6 biflion, $2.4 billion, and $2.0 bilion, and in the Corparate/ Other tesults of $1 million, $26 million, and $208 million for 2001, 2000, and 1999, 1espentively.
includes proviston for erodit osses in the Investment Activities results of $7 million in 2000,

14y For 2001, Gorporate/Othet includes after-tax charges of $42 millien and $116 million for the cumudative effect of accaunting changes refated to the Implementation of SFAS 123 and EITF 99241, respectively. For 1909,
Corpotato/Othor indudes attor tax charges (oredits} of $135 million, (823 million, and $15 million for the cumulative effect of aceatnting changos ralated to tha implemontation of SOP 67.35, S0P 88 7, and SOP 08 5,
aspectively. See Nede 1o the Consdidated Financhal Stataments.
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4. INVESTMENTS

inmitlons of dotkars af yoar ord 2001 2000
Fixed matwities, primatily available for sale at fair value $139344 3 90484
Equity secwrities, primarily at fair value 7577 6,652
Venture capital, at fair value 4,318 5,204
Short-term and ather 9,600 8782

$160,837  $120,122

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities and equity securities at December 31, were as follows:

2001 2000
Gross Gross Gloss Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair Amottized uniealized unreatized Fait

in evdthens of dodars of year ond cost galns losses value codl gains lossos valuo
Fixed maturity securities held to maturity,

principally mortgage-backed securities'” $ 26 $ - $ — § 2% § 28 $ - $ - § 28
Fixed maturity securities available for sale

Mortgage-backed securities, principally abligations of

U.S Federal agencies $ 28614 $ 438 $ 250 § 28802 $16,196 $ 329 $ 21 $16,314

U.S. Treasury and Federal agencies 6,136 62 85 6,113 5,680 171 15 5,836

State and municipal 16,712 441 152 17,001 15,314 730 141 15,903

Foreign government = 44,942 266 79 45,129 25,934 148 154 25,928

U.S. corporale 30,097 U3 591 30,349 25143 580 547 25,185

Gther debt securities 11,516 554 146 11,924 9,633 763 106 10,290

138,017 2,604 1,303 139,318 97,900 2,730 1,174 99,456

Total fixed maturities $138,043 $2,604 $1,303  $139,344 $97,928 $2,730 $1,174 $99.484

Equity securities®: $ 740t $ 40 $ 224 § 71577 $ 6,757 $ 340 $ 445 $ 6,652

{1} Revorded at amailized cost,

(2) Increase primarity 1elates to incluston of Banamex portiolle of Mexican govesniment securities,
i3} Inchudes non-marketable equity securities cartiod at vost, which are reported in beth the amortized vost and fait vatue columns.

The accompanying table shows components of interest and dividends on
investrents, realized gains and losses from sales of investments, and net

gains on investments held by venture capital subsidiaries:

I mifiens of doffars 2001 2000 1999
Taxable interest $5,687 $6,743 $6,916
Interest exempt from U.S. Federal
income tax 827 762 688
Dwidends 263 393 306
Gross realized investment gains (1 $2,070 $2.008 $1,273
Gross realized investment lossest 1,492 1,202 732
Net realized and unrealized
venture capital gains $ 393 $1,850 $ 816
which included:
Gross unrealized gains 782 1,762 999
Gross unrealized losses 613 618 587

(1) Inclucdes net realized gains related to insurance subsidiaries” safe of OREC and mortgage loans of
$% mifflon, $74 miltion, and $215 miflonin 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.
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The following table presents the amortized cost, fair value, and average
vield on amortized cost of fixed maturity securities by contractual maturity

dates as of Decernber 31, 2001

Amortized Fair
Tt eraflions of dollars cost value Yield
U.S. Treasury and Federal agencies:"
Due within 1 year $ 1,422 $ 1426 2.81%
After 1 but within 5 years 2,038 2,086 442
After 5 but within 10 years 1,651 1,679 569
After 10 years ¢ 24,255 24,266 6.36
Total $29,366 $29 457 6.02%
State and municipal
Due within 1 year $ 128 $ 130 5.47%
After 1 but within 5 years 935 1,035 5.43
Atter 5 but within 10 years 2431 3519 5.07
After 10 years 12,158 12317 544
Total 316,712 $17.001 5.36%
All other
Due within 1 year $18,628 318775 5.78%
After 1 but within 5 years 36,529 37,118 717
After 5 but within 10 years 17,669 17847 7.33
Atter 10 years @ 19,139 19,146 8.27
Total $91,965 $92.,886 7.15%

{1} Inchudes mortgage-backed saciaities of U.S. Foderd agencies.
{2} Investments with no stated matuiities are included 4s cortractual maturities of greater than 10 years.
Astual maturifies ray differ due to call or propayment rights.
{3} Includes foreign governtment, U.S. cotporate, moigage tacked secuities issued by U.S. corporations,
and other debt securities. Yields reflect the impact of lecal inferest tates prevailing in countiies outside

thelUsS.
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5. FEDERAL FUNDS, SECURITIES BORROWED, LOANED,
AND SUBJECT TO REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

Federal funds sold and securities horrowed or purchased under agreements
to resell, at their respective carrying values, consisted of the following at
December 31

i mitions of dollars 2001 2000
Federal funds sold and resale agreements $ 80472 $ 60,087
Depaosits paid for securities borrowed 45,337 36,790

$134809 3105877

Federal funds purchased and securities loaned or sold under agreements to
repurchase, at their respective carrying values, consisted of the following ut
December 31:

I rllions of Gkats 2001 2000
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements $137649  § 94397
Deposits received for securities foaned 15,862 16,228

$153511 3110625

The resale and repurchase agreements represent collateralized financing
transactions used to generate net interest income and facilitate trading
activity. These instruments are collateralized principally by government and
government agency sccurities and generally have terms ranging from
overnight to up to a vear [tis the Company's policy to take possession of the
underlying collateral, monitor its market value relative to the amounts due
under the agreements, and, when necessary, require prompt transfer of
additional collateral or reduction in the balance in order to maintain
contractual margin protection. In the event of counterparty default, the
financing agreement provides the Company with the right to liquidate the
collateral beld. Resale agreements and repurchase agreements are reported
net by counterparty, when applicable, pursuant to FASB Interpretation 41,
“Oftsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Repurchase and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements” (FIN 41). Excluding the impact of FIN 41, resale
agreements tofaled $141.2 billion and $118.9 billion at December 31, 2001
and 2000, respectively.

Deposits paid for securities horrowed (securities borrowed) and deposits
received for securities loaned (securities loaned) are recorded at the amount
of cash advanced or received and are collateratized principally by government
and government agency securities, corporate debt and equity securities.
Securities borrowed transactions require the Company to deposit cash with the
lender. With respuct to securities loaned, the Company receives cash collateral
in an amount generally in excess of the market value of securities loaned. The
Company monitors the market value of securities borrowed and securities
loaned daily, and additional collateral is obtained as necessary. Securities
borrowed and securities loaned are reported net by counterparty, when
applicable, pursuant to FAS [nterpeetation 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related
to Certain Contracts” (FIN 39).

6. BROKERAGE RECEIVABLES AND
BROKERAGE PAYABLES

The Company has receivables and payables for financial instruments
purchased from and sold to brokers and dealers and customers. The Company
is exposed to risk of loss from the inability of brokers and dealers or customers
to pay for purchases or to deliver the financial instrument sold, in which case
the Gompany would have to sell or purchase the financial instruments at
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prevailing market prices. Credit risk is reduced to the extent that an exchange
of clearing organization acts 4s a counterparty to the transaction.

‘The Company seeks to protect itself from the risks associated with
customer activities by requiring customers to maintain margin collateral in
compliance with regulatory and intemal guidelines. Margin lewels are
monitored daily, and customers deposit additional collateral as required.
Where customers cannot meet collateral requirernents, the Company will
liquidate sufficient underlying financial instruments to bring the customer
into compliance with the required margin level.

Exposure to credit risk is impacted by market volatility, which may
impair the ability of clients to satisfy their obligations to the Company. Credit
limits are established and closely monitored for customers and brokers and
dealers engaged in forward and futures and other transactions deemed to be
credit sensitive.

Brokerage receivables and brokerage payables, which arise in the normal
course of business, consisted of the following at Decernber 31:

in exitlions ol doftars 2001 2000
Receivables from customers $19,660 $23.142
Receivables from brokers,

dealers, and clearing organizations 15,495 2,554
Total brokerage receivables $35,155 $25,696
Payables to customers $16,876 513,564
Payables to brokers,

dealers, and Clearing organizations 16,015 2,318
Total brokerage payables $32,801 $15,882
7. TRADING ACCOUNT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Trading account assets and liabilities, at market value, consisted of the
following at December 31:
In mitfions of doliars 2001 2000
Trading account assets
U.S. Treasury and Federal agency securities $ 46218  § 30939
State and municipal securities 4517 2,439
Foreign government securities 12,450 13,308
Corporate and other debt securities 21,318 17,048
Derivatives 29,762 35,177
Equity securities 15619 17,174
Mortgage loans and

collateralized mortgage securities 6,869 6,024
Other 8,151 10,406

$144904 3132513
Trading account liabilities
Securities sold, not yet purchased $ 51815 $ 48489
Derivativest 28,728 36618
$ 80543  $ 85,107

{1) Net of master netting agreements.
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8. TRADING RELATED REVENUE 9. LOANS

Trading related revenue consists of principal transactions revenues and net I mitiorys of chollors al yes oot 200 2000

interest revenue associated with trading activities, Principal transactions Conptamer

revenues consist of realized and unrealized gains and losses from trading InUS offices

activities. The following table presents trading related revenue for the years Mortgage and real estale 7 $80099 S 73166

ended December 31; Installment, revolving credit and other 84,367 78017

in pilhions of dotars 2001 2000 1999 164,466 151,183

Global Corporate In offices outside the US.

Fixed inceme $4,007 $2.531 $2.306 Mortgage and realn estate 27,703 24,988

Fquities [r) 1720 1973 lnslaliment_ lfeVQIVIng credit, and other 54,276 55,515

Foreign exchange < 1,464 1,103 1115 Leass financing 391 427

All other 197 308 499 82,370 80,930

Total Globai Corporate 6,550 5,662 5,193 246,836 232,113

Global Consumer and Other 826 782 584 Uneamed income (2877 3,234)

Total trading refated revenue $7376  $6.444 $5777  Consumer loans, net of uneared income $244,159  $228,879

(1} Includes 1evenues from government securities and cotpoiale debt, muricipal securities, prefetred stock, Commiercial
mortgage secutities, and other dobt instiuments. Also indludes spot and forward rading of currencies )
and exchange- traded and cver-the-counter (TC) currency eptions, oplions on fixed income securitios, in U.S offices
interest1ale swaps, CURteney swaps, Swap options, caps and fluors, financial fulres, TG options and Commercial and industyiali $ 3243 $§ 37,220
forward contracts on fixed income seruities. ! . ’

@k u‘.;udes lwem‘m from eoramon and converliblie preferred stock, convertible corporate det, equity Lease financing 18,518 14,864
linked noles, and exchange-aded and OTC equity options and wasants. Mortgage and real estate 2,784 3.490

31 Inchides revenues from forelgn exchange spet. forward, oplion and swap confracls.

{4) Primanily inchudes revenues from the results of Phibro Ine. (Phibro), which trados enude oll, refined o 53,733 55 6574
pmgiu:ts, naiural gas. electicity, metals, and othet commaxdities. Also includes reverzies refated io .
atbitrage st atagies In offices outside the U.S.

o . . . . i i jal i 1
The following table reconciles principal ransactions revenues on the Commercial and industrialt 76459 G911
N R . ) . Mortgage and real estale: 2,859 1,720
Consolidated Statement of Tncume to trading related revenue for the years Loans to financial institutions 10.163 9550
ended December 31. Lease financing 3,788 3,689
Governments and official institutions 4,033 1052
I mitiens of dofiars 2001 2000 1990
o ) 97,302 86,021
Principal transactions $5,544 $5.981 $5.160
Net interest revenue 1832 463 617 151,035 141,605
_ Unearned income (3,261) (3,462}
Total trading related revenue $7,376 $6.444 $5.777
Commercial loans, net of unearned income $147,7714  $138,143
(1) Loans secured primarily by real estate.
(24 Includas $4.9 biflion in 2001 and $3.7 billion in 2000 of commercial 10l estate loans related to
community banking and private banking activiies.
(3} Inchiudes $2.5 billion in 2001 and $2.7 billion in 2000 of leans sectred by commercial real estate.
(4) Inchudes Inans not otherwise separately calegorized
94
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Impaired foans are those on which Citigroup believes it is not probable
that it will be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the loan, excluding smallerbalance homogeneous loans that are
evaluated collectively for impairment, and are carried on a cash basis.
Vatuation allowances for these loans are estimated considering all available
evidence including, as appropriate, the present value of the expected future
cash flows discounted at the loan's contractual effective rate, the secondary
market vatue of the loan and the fair vidue of collateral. The following table
presents information shout impaired loans.

fnn nilions of doftacs al yesr enif 2001 2000 1999
impaired commercial ioans $3572 31,847 31,551
Other impaired loans !t 339 100 185
Total impaired loans $3,911 $1.947 $1.736
Impaired loans with valuation allowances $3,500 $1,583 $1.381
Total valuation allowances 915 480 411
During the year:

Average balance of impaired loans $3,098 $1,858 $1,898

Interest income recognized on impaired loans 98 97 85

{1} Primarity coramercial real estate loans refated to community and private banking activities.
(2) Atyear-end 2001, approximately 17% of these loans were measured for impaiiment using the fair value

of the coltateral, compared with appradmalely 25% at year-end 2000.

& Included in the allowance for credit losses.

For the loan portfolios where the Company continues to manage loans
after they have been securitized, the following table presents the total loan
amounts managed, the portion of those portfolivs securitized, and
delinquencies (loans which are 90 days or more past due) at December 31,
2001 and 2000, and credit losses, net of recoveries, for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000:

2001 2000
Home equity Home equity
Crodit card and auto Crodit card and auto
Managed loans receivables floans teceivables loans
I bithions of dofiars
Principal amounts, at year-end:
Total managed $108.7 $ 274 $104.0 $330
Securitized amounts 67.1) {1.3) B7.0) (36)
On-balance sheet $ 416 $ 26.1 $ 470 $29.4
I silhions af doitars
Delinquencies, at year-end:
Total managed $ 2,141 $1,174 $1.503 3754
Securitized amounts {1,268) {14) 925) 87)
On-balance sheet ! $ 873 $1,160 $ 578 $707
I niffions of doliars
Credit losses, net of recoveries,
for the year ended
December 31:
Total managed $ 5,603 $ 720 $3,986 $619
Sectritized amounts (3,140) {111) (2,216} (12
On-halance sheet " $ 2,463 $ 609 $1,770 $ 607

{13 Includes loans held for sale

10. ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

In mitioes of dollers 2001 2000 1999
Allowance for credit losses

at beginning of year $ 8,961 $8,853 98,596
Additions

Constimer provision for credit losses 5,316 4,345 4,169

Commercial provision for credit losses 1,44 994 591
Total provision for credit losses 6,800 5339 4,760
Deductions

Consumer credit losses 6,233 5,352 4,862

Consumer credit recoveries (853) (929) (769)
Net consumer credit losses 5,380 4,423 4,093

Commercial credit losses 2,085 906 746

Commercial credit recoveries ™ (407) (135) {156)
Net commercial credit losses 1,648 771 530
Other —net 1,355 37) 180
Allowance for credit losses at end of year $10,088 $8,961 $8,853

(1) chades amounts recaved unty credil defaull swaps purchased hom Uind paities,

(21 tncludes the addition of credit loss 1eserves related o the acquisitions of Banamex andEAB in 2001,
Alsty includes the addition of allowanee for cyeditlnsses refated 1o other acquisitions and the impact of
fotedgn curtency anstation affects.

11. SECURITIZATION ACTIVITY
Citigroup and its subsidiaries securitize primarily credit card receivables,
mortgages, home equity loans and auto loans.

After securitizations of credit card receivables, the Company continues to
maintain credit card customer account relationships and provides servicing
for receivables transferred to the trust. The Company also provides credit
enhancement to the trust using cash coltateral accounts. As specified in
certain of the sale agreements, the net reventie collected each month is
accumulated up to 2 predetermined maximum anmwunt, and is available over
the remaining term of that transaction to make payrents of yield, fees, and
transaction costs in the event that net cash flows from the receivables are not
sufficient. When the predetermined amount is reached net revenue is passed
directly to the Citigroup subsidiary that sold the receivables.

The Company provides a wide range of mortgage and home equity
products to a diverse customer base. [n connection with these loans, the
servicing rights entitle the Company to a tuture stream of cash flows based on
the outstanding principal balances of the loans and the contractual servicing
fee. Failure to service the loans in accordance with contractual requirements
may lead to 2 termination of the servicing rights and the loss of future
servicing fees. In non-recourse servicing, the principal credit risk to the
servicer is the cost of temporary advances of funds. In recourse servicing, the
servicer agrees to shase credit risk with the owner of the mortgage loans such
as FNMA or FHLMC or with a private investor, insurer or guarantor. Losses on
recourse servicing occur primarily when foreclosure sale proceeds of the
property underlying a defaulted mortgage or home equity loan are less than
the outstanding principal balance and accrued interest of such mortgage loan
and the cost of holding and disposing of the underlying property.
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The foltowing table summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid
to securitization trusts during the vearended December 31:

2001 2000
Mortgages: Mortgages™
and aute and aulo
In bittions of deliars Credit cards loans Cradit cards loans
Proceeds from new
securitizations 227 $34.8 39.1 3183
Proceeds from collections
reirvested in new
receivables 1314 04 1272 02
Servicing fees received 12 03 1.0 03
Cash flows received on
retained interests and
other net cash flows 38 04 28 04

{1} Inchudes mortgages and home equity leans,

For the vears ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company
recognized $271 million and $142 million, respectively, of gains on
securitizations of mortgages, home equity loans and auto loans.

Key assumptions used for mortgages during the vear-ended December 31,
2001 in measuring the fair value of retained interests at the date of sale or

securitization follow:

Discount rate
Constant payment rate
Anticipated net credit losses

5.0% to 15.0%
6.9% to 40.0%
0.02% t05.0%

As required by SFAS 140, the effect of two negative changes in each of the
key assumptions used to determine the fair value of retained interests must
be disclosed. The negative effect uf each change in each assumption must be
calculated independently, holding all other assumptions constant. Because
the key assurmptions may not in fact be independent, the netetfect of
simultaneous adverse changes in the key assumptions may be less than the
sum of the individual effects shown below.

At December 31, 2001, for mortgages, auto loans and manufactured
housing loans, the key assumptions, presented by product groups, and the
sensitivity of the fair value of retained interests to two adverse changes in each

of the key assumptions were as follows:

In millions of dollars

Carrying value of retained interests $3,222.1
Discount rate 5.0% to 15.0%; 15.0%; 13.0%
+10% $ (100.8)
+20% $ (1954)
Constant payment rate 12.0% to 40.0%; 14.1% to0 19.3%; 10.5%
+10% $ (116.3)
+20% $ (220.7)
Anticipated net credit losses 0.04% 0 5.0%; 6.7% to 14.0%; 13.1%
+10% $ (60.6)
+20% $ (122.0)
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12. DEBT

Investment Banking and Brokerage Borrowings
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings and the comresponding
weighted average interest rates at December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000

Weighted Weightod

average avelAge

interest interest

In mdlions of dedlars Balance Rate Balance rate
Commercial paper $13,858 19% $16705 6.6%
Bank barrowings 565 25% 429 5.7%
Other 381 82% 1,093 6.0%

$14,804 318,227

Investment banking and brokerage borrowings are short-term in nature
and include commercial paper, bank borrowings and other borrowings used
to finance Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.'s (Salomen Smith Bamey's)
operdtions, including the securities settlement process. Outstanding bank
borrowings include both U $. dollar and non-U S. dollar denominated loans,
The non-tiS. dollar loans are denominated in multiple currencies including
the Japanese yen, German miark, and TLK. stedling, All commercial paper
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was U.S. dollar denominated.
Also included in other are deposit liabilities and other short-term obligations.

AtDecember 31, 2001, Salomon Smith Barney had a $5.0 hillion, 364-day
committed uncollateralized revolving line of credit with unaffiliated banks
thatextends through May 21, 2002, with repayment on any borrowings due
by May 21, 2004. Salomon Smith Barney may borrow under its revolving
credit facilities at various interest rate options (LIBOR or base rate) and
compensates the banks for the facility through facility fees. Under this facility,
Salomon Smith Barney is required to maintain 4 certain level of consolidated
adjusted net worth (as defined in the agreement). At December 31, 2001, this
requirement was exceeded by approxiniately $4.3 billion. At December 31,
2001, there were no barrowings outstanding under this facility

Salomon Smith Barney also has substantial borrowing arrangements
consisting of facilities thatit has been advised are available, but where no
contractual lending obligation exists,

Short-term Borrowings
At December 31, short-term borrowings consisted of commercial paper and
other borrowings with weighted average interest rates as follows:

2001 2000
Weighted Weighled
B ilions of doias Balance average Balanee dviage
Commercial paper
Citigroup $ 48t 184% § 4% 6.61%
Citicorp and Subsidiaries 12,215 199% 37656 5.34%
12,606 38,152
Other borrowings 11,765 3.44% 13,523 8.76%
$24 461 351875
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Citigroup, Citicorp and certain other subsidiaries issue commercial paper
directly to tnvestors. Citigroup and Citicorp, both of which are hank holding
companies, maintain combined liquidity reserves of cash, securities, and
unused baok lines of credit to support their combined outstanding
commercial paper

Borrowings under bank lines of credit may be at interest rates based on
LIBOR, CI) rates, the prime rate or bids submitted by the banks. Each
company pays its banks comumitment fees for its lines of credit.

Giticorp, Salomon Smith Barney, and some of their nonbank subsidiaries

have credit facilities with Citicorp’s subsidiary hanks, including Citibank, NA.

Bortowings under these facilities must be secured in accordance with Section
23A of the Federal Reserve Act

Citigroup has unutilized bilateral committed revolving credit facilities in
the amount of 8950 million that expire in 2002. Under these facilities the
Company is required to maintain a certain level of consolidated stockholders
equity (as defined in the agreements). The Company exceeded this
requitement by approximately $56 billion at December 31, 2001,

Associates, a subsidiary of Citicorp, has a combination of unutilized credit
facilities of $6.8 hillion as of December 31, 2001. These facilities, which hawe
maturities ranging from 2002 to 2005, are all guaranteed by Citicorp. In
connection with the tacilities for Associates, Citicorp is required to maintain
acertain level of consolidated stockholder's equity (as defined in the
agreements). At Decemnber 31, 2001, this requirement was exceeded by
approximately $49 billion. Citicorp has also guaranteed various other debt
obligations of Associates and CitiFinancial Credit Company (CCC), an
indirect subsidiary of Citicorp.

Long-Term Debt

Weighted
average

In millicns of dotiars coupon Maturities 2001 2000
Cltigroup Inc.
Senior Notes ' 481%  2002-2030 $30544 $ 13947
Subordinated Notes 7.25% 2010 4,250 4250
Citicorp and Subsidiaries
Senior Notes 828%  2002-2037 52,965 65,313
Subordinated Notes 8.97%  2002-2035 6,663 7,747
Salomon Smith Bamey

Holdings Inc.
Senior Notes @i 428%  2002-2029 28,813 19,652
Travelers Insurance

Group Holdings inc.
Senior Notes 7.368%  2008-2026 380 850
Travelers Property

Casualty Corp. !¢ 16 19
Senior Notes 110,702 99,762
Subordinated Notes 10,913 11,997
Other 16 19
Total $121831 3111778

{11 Also includes $250 million of noles maluring in 2008.
(2} Also includes 31,45 billion of notes maturing betweon 2025 thraugh 2097
(3 Aso inctudes subordinated debit of $124 million and $145 mitlion at Decermber 31, 2001 and
Docomber 2000, respectively,
(43 Principally 12% GNMA/FNIA- coliateralized obligations
The Company issues both US. dollar and non-(1.S. dollar denominated
fixed and variable rate debt. The Company utilizes derivative contracts,
primarily interest rate swaps, to effectively convert a portion of its fixed rate
debt to variable rate debt. The maturity structure of the derivatives generally
corresponds with the maturity structure of the debt being hedged. At
December 31, 2001, the Company has outstanding interest rate swaps which
convert $51.5 billion of its $101.6 billion of fixed rate debt to variable rate
obligations. At December 31, 2001, the Company’s overall weighted average
interest rate for long-term debt was 5.23% on 4 contractual basis and 4.99%
including the effects of derivative contracts. In addition, the Company utilizes
other derivative contracts to manage the foreign exchange impact of certain
debt issuances.

Aggregate annual maturities on long-term debt obligations (hased on final maturity dates) are as follows:

I mitlions of doitars 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter
Citigroup Inc $ 6722 $ 4500 $ 5050 $ 4874 $ 4,000 $10,648
Salomon Smith Bamey Holdings inc. 5,030 8.163 4,982 2,193 2,143 4,302
Citicorp and Subsidiaries 20,450 11.973 6,273 6,108 3752 11,072
Travelers Insurance Group Holdings Inc — — - — 150 230
Travelers Property Casualty Corp. — e - — 16

$31,202 324,636 $16,3056 $13,175 $10,045 $26,268
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13. INSURANCE POLICY AND CLAIMS RESERVES
At Decernber 31, insurance policy and claims reserves consisted of the
following;

In erilions of doiars 2001 2000

Benefits and loss reserves:
Property-casualty ! $29,792 $28,327
Life and annuity 10,987 9,966
Accident and health 1,271 1074
Unearned premiums 6,681 4,836
Policy and contract claims 563 463
$49,294 344,066

{11 Included at Decombor 31, 2001 and 2000 are $1.4 biion of resorvos refatod fo workers componsation
tiat have been discotmted using an interastiate of b%.
The following table is 4 reconcitiation of beginning and ending property-
casualty reserve balances for clairs and claim adjustment expenses for the
vears ended December 31:

I millions of doitars 2001 2000 1999
Claims and claim adjustment expense

reserves at beginning of year $28,327 $28,776 $29.139
Less reinsurance recoverables on

unpaid losses 8,405 8,409 7,987
Net balance at beginning of year 19,922 20,367 21,152
Provision for claims and claim adjustment

expenses for claims arising in current year 8,075 7,015 6.504
Estimated claims and claim agjustment

expenses for claims arising in prior years 2 (204) 28h
Total increases 8,077 6,811 6.283
Claims and claim adjustment expense

payments for claims arising in:

Current year 3,202 2,975 2757
Prior years 4,606 4,281 4311

Total payments 7,808 7,256 7068
Net balance at end of year 20,191 19,922 20,367
Plus reinsurance recoverables on

unpaid losses 9,601 8,405 8409
Claims and claim adjustment expense

reserves atend of year $29,792 $28,327 328,776

The increase in the claims and claim adjustment expense reserve in 2001
from 2000 was primarily due to the impact of the terrorist attack on
September 11th, 2001. Partially offsetting the above were net payiments of
$427 million in 2001 for environmental and cumulative injury claims. The
decrease in the claims and claim adjustment expense reserves in 2000 from
1999 was primarily attributable to net payments of $341 million, for
environmental and cumulative injury claims.

i 2001, estimated claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims
arising in prior years included net favorable loss development on Commnicrcial
Lines loss sensitive policies in various lines; however, since the business to
which it relates is subject to pemium adjustments, there is no impacton
results of eperations. 1n addition, estimated claims and claim adjustment
expenses for claims arising in prior years also included approximately
$109 million of net unfavorable development, primarily related to certain
Commercial Lines coverages, predominately in general liability, commercial
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auto liability, assumed reinsurance and specialty businesses, partially
offset by favorable development in commercial multi-peril and other claim
adjustnent expenses.

1n 2000, estimated claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims arising
in prior years included approximately $76 million primarily relating to net
favorable development in certain Comumercial Lines coverages, predominantly
in the commercial multi-peril line of business, and in certain Personal Lines
coverages, predominately personal umbrella coverages. In addidion, in 2000
Commercial Lines experienced favorable loss development on loss sensitive
policies in various lines, however, since the business to which it relates is subject
to premium adjustments, there is no impact on results of operations.

In 1999, estimated claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims
arising in priog vears included approximately $205 million primasily
relating to net favorable development in certain Personal Lines coverages,
predominantly automobile coverages, and in certain Commercial Lines
coverages, predominantly in the general liability and commercial multi-peril
lines of business. In addition, in 1999 Commercial Lines experienced
favorable loss development on loss sensitive policies in the workers’
compensation line; however, since the business to which it relates is subject to
premium adjustments, there was no impact on results of operations.

'the property-casualty claims and claim adjustment expense reserves
include $1.216 billion and $1.364 billion for asbestos and environmental-
related claims net of reinsurance at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively,

Tt is difficult to estimate the reserves for environmental and asbestos-
related claims due to the vagaries of court coverage decisions, plaintiffs
expanded theories of libility, the risks inherent in major litigation and uther
uncertainties, including without limitation, those which are set forth helow.
Conventional actuarial techniques are not used to estimate such reserves.

In establishing environmental reserves, the Company evaluates the
exposure presented hy each insured and the anticipated cost of resolution, if
any, for each insured on 4 quarterly basis. In the course of this analysis, the
Company considers the probable liability, available coverage, relevant judicial
interpretations and historical value of similar exposures. In addition, the
Company considers the many variables presented, such as the nature of the
alleged activities of the insured at each site; the allegations of environmental
harm at cach site; the number of sites, the total number of potentially
responsible parties at each site; the nature of environmental harm and the
corresponding remedy ateach site; the nature of government enforcement
activities at each site; the ownership and general use of each site; the overall
nature of the insurance relationship between the Company and the insured,
including the role of any umbrella or excess insurance the Company has
issued to the insured; the involvement of other insurers; the potential for other
available coverage, including the number of vears of coverage: the role, if any,
of non-environmental claims or potential non-envirenmental claims, in any
resolution process; and the applicable law in cach jurisdiction.

In establishing the Company’s ashestos reserves, the Company evaluates
the exposure presented by each insured. [n the course of this evaluation, the
Company considers available insurance coverage including the role of any
umbrella or excess insurance issued by the Company to the insured; limits
and deductibles; an analysis of cach insured's potential liability; the
jurisdictions involved; past and anticipated future claim activity; past
settlement values of similar claims; allocated claim adjustment expense;
potential role of other insurance; the role, if any, of non-ashestos claims or
potential non-asbestos claims in any resolution process. and applicable
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coverage defenses or determinations, if any, including the determination as to
whether or not an ashestos claim is a product/completed operation claim
subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if any, for that
claim. Once the gross ultimate exposure for indemnity and allocated claim
adjustment expense is determined for each insured by each policy vear, the
Company calculates 2 ceded reinsurance projection based on any applicable
facultative and treaty reinsurance, as well as past ceded experience.
Adjustments to the ceded projections also occur due to actual ceded claim
experience and reinsurance collections.

Historically, the Company’s experience has indicated that insureds with
potentially significant environmental and/or ashestos exposures often have
other cumulative injury other than asbestos (CIOTA) exposures or CIOTA
clasms pending with the Company. Due to this experience and the fact
that settlement agreements with insureds may extinguish the Company’s
obligations for all claims, the Company evaluates and considers the
environmental and ashestos reserves in conjunction with the C107TA reserve.

The Company also compares its historical direct and netloss and expense
paid experience year-by-vear, to assess any emerging trends, Huctuations or
characteristics suggested by the aggregate paid activity. The comparison
includes a review of the result derived from the division of the ending direct
and net reserves by last year's direct and net paid activity, also known as the
survival ratio.

The reserves carried for environmental and ashestos claims at December
31, 2001 are the Company’s best estimate of ultimate claims and claim
adjustment expenses based upon known facts and current law. However, the
uncertaingies surrounding the final resotution of these claims continue.
These include, without limitation, the risks inherent in major litigation,
including more aggressive ashestos litigation against insuress, including the
Company, any impact from the bankeuptcy protection sought by various
asbestos producers and other asbestos defendants, a further increase or
decrease in asbestos and environmental claims which cannot now be
anticipated, the role of any umbrelia or excess policies issued by the Company
for such claims, whether or not an asbestos claim is a product/completed
operation claim subject to an aggregate limit and the available coverage, if
any, for that claim, the number and outcome of direct actions against the
Company and unanticipated developments pertaining to the Company’s
ahitity to recover reinsurance for environmental and asbestos claims. 1tis also
not possible o predict changes in the legal and legislative environment and
theit impact on the future development of ashestos and environmental
claims. Such development will be affected by future court decisions and
interpretations, as well as changes in applicable legislation. In addition,
particularly during the fast few months of 2001 and continuing info 2002, the
asbestos-related trends described above have both accelerated and become
more visible. These trends include, but are not limited to, the filing of
additional claims, more aggressive litigation based on novel theories of
liability and litigation against new and previously peripheral defendants, and
developments in existing and pending bankrupicy proceedings.

Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabilities may arise
for amounts in excess of the current related reserves, These additional
amounts, or 4 range of these additional amounts, cannot now be reasonably
estimated, and could result i a liability exceeding reserves by an amount that
could be material 1o the Company’s operating results in a future period.
However, in the opinion of the Company's management, it is not likely that
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these claims will hawe a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
condition or liquidity.

The Company has 4 geographic exposure to catastrophe losses in certain
areas of the United States. Catastrophes can be caused by various events
including hurricanes, windstorms, earthquakes, hail, severe winter weather,
explosions and fires, and the incidence and severity of catastrophes are
inherently unpredictable. The extent of losses from a catastrophe is a function
of buth the total amount of insured exposure in the area affected by the
event and the severity of the event. Most catastrophes are restricted to small
geographic areas, however, hurricanes and earthquakes may produce
significant damage in large, heavily populated areas. the Company generally
seeks to reduce its exposure to catastrophes through individual risk selection
and the purchase of catastrophe reinsurance.

14. REINSURANCE
The Company’s insurance operations participate in reinsurance in onder to
limit losses, minimize exposure to large risks, provide additional capacity for
tuture growth and effect business-sharing arrangements. Life reinsurance is
accomplished through various plans of reinsurance, primarily cotnsurance,
modified coinsurance and yearly renewable term. Property-casualty
reinsurance is placed on hoth a quota-share and excess of loss basis. The
property-casualty insurance subsidiaries also participate as aservicing carrier
for, and a member of, several pools and associations. Reinsurance ceded
arrangements do not discharge the insurance subsidiaries as the primary
insuret, except for cases involving 2 novation.

Reinsurance amounts included in the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

Gross Net
I miiens of dotiars amount Ceded amewumt
2001
Premiums
Property-casualty insurance $12,373 $(1,920) $10,453
Life insurance 3,124 (343) 2,781
Accident and health insurance 505 (279) 226
$16,002 $(2542) $13.460
Claims incurred $14,269 $(3.623) $10646
2000
Premiums
Property-casualty insurance $11.691 $(1,795) $ 9,89
Life insurance 2550 (332) 2,218
Accident and health insurance 530 215) 315
$14,771 $(2,342)  $12,429
Claims incurred $10,779 $(1895) 5 8884
1999
Premiums
Propeity-casualty insurance $10,960 $(1,722) $ 9,238
Life insurance 2190 (314) 1.876
Accident and health insurance 444 {(54) 390
$13,504 $(2,090)  $11,504
Claims incurred $ 9,039 $(1913) $802
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Reinsurance recoverables, net of valuation atfowance, at December 31
include amounts recoverable on unpaid and paid losses and were as follows:

I amwlions of dollars 2001 2000
Life business $ 2,283 3 2,028
Property-casuaity business:
Pools and associations 2,082 2.592
Other reinsurance 8,008 6,096
Total $12,373 $10,716

15. RESTRUCTURING AND MERGER-RELATED ITEMS

I ardthions of doftars 2001 2000 1999
Restructuring charges $448 $579 $ 166
Changes in estimates {53) (65) {401
Accelerated depreciation 63 68 182
Total restructiring-related items 458 582 (53}
Merger-related items - 177 —
Total restructuring and merger-related items  $458 $759 $ B3

During 2001, Citigroup recorded restructuring charges of $448 million. Of
the $448 million, $319 million related to the downsizing of certain functions
in the Global Corporate and Global Consumer businesses in order to align
their cost structures with current market conditions and $129 million related
to the acquisition of Banamex and the integration of its operations within
the Global Consumer business. These restructuring charges were expensed
and are included in “Restructuring- and merger-related items™ in the
Consolidated Statement of Income. Tn addition, 4 restructuring reserve of
$112 million was recorded in connection with the acquisition of Banamex
and recognized as a liability in the purchase price allocation of Banamex.
The total Banamex reserves of $241 million include costs related to
downsizings, the reconfiguration of branch operations in Mexico, and the
integration of operations and operating platforms. These restructuring
iniiatives are expected to be implemented over the next year. The reserves
inctuded $423 million related to employee severance, $72 million related
texiting leasehold and other contractual obligations, and $65 million of
asset impairment charges.

The $423 million related to employee severance retlects the cost of
eliminating approximately 12,500 positions, including 4,200 in Citigroup's
Global Gonsumer business and 3,600 in Banamex related to the acquisition,
and 1,300 in the Global Consunier business and 3,400 in the Global
Gorporate business related to other restructuring initiatives. Approximately
3,200 of these positions were in the United States.

The 2001 restructuring reserve utilization included $65 mitlion of asset
impairment charges as well as $287 million of severance and other costs {of
which $203 million of employee severance and $16 million of leasehold and
other exit costs have been paid in cash and $68 is legally obligated), together
with translation effects. Through December 31, 2001 approximately 8,660
gross staff positions have been eliminated under these programs.

During 2000, Citigroup recorded restructuring charges of $579 million,
primarily consisting of exit costs related to the acquisition of Associates. The
charges included $241 million related to employee severance, $154 million
related to exiting leasehold and other contractual obligations, and
$184 million of asset impairment charges.
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Of the $579 million charge, $474 million related to the acquisition of
Associates included the reconfiguration of certain branch operations, the exit
from non-strategic businesses and from activities as mandated by Federal
bank regulations, and the consolidation and integration of corporate, middle
and back office functions. In the Global Consumer business, $51 mitlion
incudes the reconfiguration of certain branch operations outside the U.S. and
the downsizing and consolidation of certain back office functions in the .S,
Approxinutely $440 million of the $579 million charge related to operations
in the United States.

The $241 million portion of the charge related to employee severance
reflects the costs of eliminating approximately 5800 positions, inchuding
approximately 4,600 in Associates and 700 in the Global Consumer business,
Approximately 5,000 of these positions related o the United States. In 2000,
an additional reserve of $23 million was recorded, $20 million of which
related to the elimination of 1,600 non-U S, positions of an acquired entity.

As of December 31, 2001, the 2000 restructuring reserve utilization
included $184 million of asset impairment charges and $302 miltion of
severance and other exit costs {of which $145 million of emplovee severance
and $107 million of leasehold and other exit costs have been paid in cash and
$50 million is legally obligated), together with translation effects. The
remaining reserve for 2000 restructuring initiatives of $37 mitlion at
December 31, 2001 is expected to be substantially utilized by the end of the
first quarter of 2002, Through December 31, 2001, approximately 5,450 staff
positions have been eliminated under these programs.

During 2000, the Company also recorded $177 million of merger-related
costs which included legal, advisory, and SEG filing fees, as well as other costs
of administratively closing the acquisition of Assaciates.

1n 1999, Citigroup recorded restructuring charges of $166 million,
including additional severance charges of $49 million as a result of the
continued implementation of 1998 restructuring initiatives, a3 well a5 $82
million of exit costs associated with new initiatives in the Global Consurer
business primarily related to the recontiguration of certain branch operations
outside the 1S, the downsizing of certain marketing operations, and the exit
of a non-strategic business. The 1999 restructuring reserve was fully utilized
at Jjune 30, 2000.

The 1999 charge included $35 million of integration charges recorded by
Associates (the Avco charge) related to its January 6, 1999 acquisition of Avco
Financial Services, Inc. (Aveo). In addition to the Aveo charge, 4s part of the
purchase price allocation of the Avco acquisition, Associates recorded a $146
million reserve at the time of the acquisition. This reserve was established to
reflect the costs of exiting certain activities that would not be continued after
the acquisition. The costs primarily consisted of severance costs and related
expenses, lease termination costs and other contractual liabilities. The Avco
reserve was fully utilized at December 31, 1999,

The implementation of these restructuring initiatives also caused certain
related premises and equipment assets to become redundant. The remaining
depreciable lives of these assets were shortened, and accelerated depreciation
charges (in addition to normal scheduled depeeciation on those assets) of
$63 million, $68 miltion and $182 million were recognized in 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

OPP006464



The status of the 2001, 2000, and 1999 restructuring initiatives is
summarized in the following table:

Restructuring Reserve Activity

Restructuring kitiatives
iy mitfions of doitars 2001 2000 1999
Original charges $ 448 3579 $117
Acquisitions during:®
2001 112 — —
2000 - 23 —
1999 - — 146
112 23 146
Utilization during:®
2001 (352) 231 —
2000 - (255) 1)
1999 - — {212
(352) (486) {263)
Changes in estimates during:
2001 {18) {29) -
2000 - -_ -
1899 —_ — —
{18) {29)
Reserve balance at
December 31,2001 $190 $ 87 3 —

(13 Represents additions to restructuring liabilities arising from acquisitions
{2) Utilization amounts include transtation effects on the testiuciuting reserve,

Changes in estimates are attributable to facts and circumstances arising
subsequent to an original restructuring charge. Changes in estimates
attributable to lower than anticipated costs of implementing certain projects
and a reduction in the scope of certain initiatives during 2001 resulted in the
reduction of the resesve for 2001 restructuring initiatives of §18 million, 2
reduction of $29 million for 2000 restructuring initiatives and a reduction of
$6 million for 1998 and 1997 restructuring initiatives. During 2000 and
1999, changes in estimates resulted in reductions in the reserve for 1998
restructuring initiatives of $65 million and $151 million, respectively.
Changes in estimates related to 1997 restructuring initiatives, which were
fully utitized as of December 31, 1999, were $250 million in 1999, and were
primarily related to the reassessment of space needed due to the Trawelers and
Giticorp merger, which indicated the need for increased occupancy and the
utilization of space previously considered excessive,
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16. INCOME TAXES

In mittons of doliars 2001 2000 1999
Current
Federal $3,649 $3,295 $3,350
Foreign 2,481 2,301 2,198
State 382 392 384
6,512 5,988 5,932
Deferred
Federal 757 1,231 631
Foreign 98 197 (134)
State 159 109 101
1,014 1,537 598
Provision for income tax
hefore minority interest 7526 7,525 6,530
Provision (benefit) for income faxes on
cumulative effect of accounting changes (93) — (84)
income tax expense (benefit) reported in
stockhoiders” equily refated to:
Foreign currency franslation (252) (108) (25)
Securities available for sale {71) (259) 28)
Employee stock plans (674) {1,400} (1,017
Cash flow hedges 105 — —
Other - (24) )
income taxes hefore minority Interest $6,541 $5.734 $5,375

(11 dudes the effevt of securifies transactions resulting in a provision of $202 million in 2001, $282

ruftfion in 2000, whd $189 million in 1999,

The reconciliation of the Federal statutory income tax rate to the

Company’s effective income tax rate applicable to income (hefore minority
interest and cumulative effect of accounting changes) for the vears ended

Decernber 31 was as follows:

200t 2000 1999
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Limited taxability of investment income (1.3) (1.2) {1.4)
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit 18 186 1.7
Other, net {0.9) 0.2 0.7
Effective income tax rate 34.4% 356% 36.0%
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Deferred income taxes at December 31 related to the following:

I mithions of dottars 2001 2000
Deferred tax assets
Credit loss deduction $ 4,197 $2.981
Differences in computing policy reserves 1,787 1,956
Unremitted forelgn eamings - 2031
Deferred compensation 1,413 1234
Employee benelits 1,108 613
Interest-related items 379 363
Foreign and state loss carryforwards 290 293
Other deferred fax assets 1,427 1513
Gross deferred tax assets 10,601 10,084
Valuation allowance 200 220
Deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 10,401 10,764
Deferred tax liabilities
Unremitted foreign earnings {37) —
Investments (978) {1.534)
Deferred policy acquisition costs and value of

insurance in force (1,248) (1.102)
L eases {1,792) {(1.524)
Intangibles (769) {354)
Other deferred tax liabiliies (1,897) (1,695}
Gross deferred tax liabilities (6,521) {6,500}
Net deferred tax asset $ 3,880 $425

Forcign pretax earnings approximated $8.1 billion in 2001, $6.9 hillion in
2000, and $5.4 billion in 1999. As a U.S. corporation, Citigroup is subject to
US. taxation currently on all foreign pretax earnings earned by a foreign
branch. Pretax eamings of a foreign subsidiary or affiliate are subject to US.
taxation when effectively repatriated. In addition, certain of Citigroup's US.
income is subject to foreign income tax where the payor of such income is
domiciled outside the United States. The Company provides income taxes on
the undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries except to the extent that
such earnings are indefinitely invested outside the United States. At December
31, 2001, $2.0 billion of accunulated undistributed earnings of non-US.
subsidiaries was indefinitely invested. At the existing U.S. Federal income tax
rate, additional taxes of $365 million would have o be provided if such
eamings were remitted.
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Income taxes are not provided for on the Company's life insurance
subsidiaries” “policyholders’ sumplus account” because under current U.S. tax
rules such taxes will hecome payable only to the extent such amounts are
distributed as a dividend or exceed limits prescribed by Federal law.
Distributions are not contemplated from this account, which aggregated 8982
million (subject to 4 tax of $344 million) at December 31, 2001

The 2001 net change in the valuation allowance related to deferred tax
assets was a decrease of $20 million primarily relating to state net operating
losses. The valuation allowance of $200 million at Decenber 31, 2001 is
primarily related to specific state and local, and foreign tax carryforwards. or
tax law restrictions on benefit recognition in the U.S. Federal tax return and
in the above jurisdictions.

Managenent believes that the realization of the recognized net deferred
tax asset of $3.880 hillion is more likely than not hased on existing cartyback
ability and expectations as to future taxable income. The Company has
reported pretax financial statement income of approximately $20 hillion, on
averdge, over the last three vears and has generated Federal taxable income
exceeding $13 billion, on average, each year during this same period.

17. MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE SECURITIES OF
SUBSIDIARY TRUSTS

The Company formed statutory business trusts under the laws of the state of
Del aware, which exist for the exclusive purposes of (i) issuing Trust Securities
representing undivided beneficial interests in the assets of the Trust; (if)
investing the gross proceeds of the Trust securities in junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures (subordinated debentures) of its parent; and
(iii) engaging in only those activities necessary or incidental thereto. Upon
approval from the Federal Reserve, Citigroup has the right to redeem these
securities. These subordinated debentures and the related income effects are
eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. Distributions on the
neandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts below have been
classified as interest expense in the Consolidated Statement of Tncome,
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The following tables summarize the financial structure of each of the Company's subsidiary trusts at December 31, 2001:

Trust securities

Junior subordinated debentures owned by trust

shares Redeemable
with distributions issuance Securities  Liguidation Coupon issued by issuer
guaranteed by date issued value rate to parent Ameunt Maturity beginning
In miflions of doftars
Gitigroup:
Gitigroup Capital ! Oct. 1996 16,000,000 $ 400 8.000% 494 880 $ 412 Sept. 30. 2036 QOct. 7, 2001
Citigroup Capitat I Dec. 1996 400,000 400 7.750% 12,372 412 Dec. 1, 2036 Dec. 1, 2006
Citigroup Capital i Dec. 1996 200,000 200 7.625% 6,186 206 Dec. 1, 2036 Not redeemable
Citigroup Capital V Jan. 1998 8,000,000 200 6.850% 247 440 206 Jan. 22,2038 Jan. 22, 2003
Citigroup Capital V Nov. 1908 20,000,000 500 7.000% 618,557 515 Nov, 15, 2028 Nov. 15, 2003
Citigroup Capitai Vi Mar. 1999 24,000,000 600 6.875% 742,269 619 Mar. 15, 2029 Mar. 15, 2004
Citigroup Capitat Vi July 2001 46,000,000 1,150 7.125% 1422681 1,186 July 31,2031 July 31, 2006
Citigroup Capital Vilt Sept. 2001 56,000,000 1,400 6.950% 1,731,959 1,443 Sept. 15, 2031 Sept. 17.2006
Total parent obfigated $4.850
Subsidiaries:
Travelers P&C Capital | April 1996 32,000,000 $ 800 8.080% 989.720 $ 825 Aprit 30, 2036 April 30, 2001
Travelers P&C Capital i May 1996 4,000,000 100 8.000% 123,720 103 May 15, 2036 May 15, 2001
Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc.

Capital | Jan. 1998 16,000,000 400 7.200% 494,880 412 Jan. 28, 2038 Jan. 28, 2003
Citicorp Capitat | Dec. 1996 300,000 300 7.933% 9,000 309 Feb. 15,2027 Feb. 15,2007
Citicorp Capital i Jan. 1997 450,000 450 8.015% 13.500 464 Feb. 15,2027 Feb. 15, 2007
Citicorp Capital i June 1998 9,000,000 225 7.100% 270,000 232 Aug. 15,2028 Aug. 15,2003
Total subsidiary obligated $2.275

{n each case, the coupon rate on the debentures is the same as that on the

trust securities. Distributions on the trust securities and interest on the

debentures are payable quarterly, except for Citigroup Capital 1T and I and
Giticorp Capital T and 11, on which distributions are payable semiannually.

18. PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Perpetual Preferred Stock
The following table sets forth the Company’s perpetual preferred stock outstanding, at December 31:

On January 7, 2002, Citigroup redeemed, for cash, all of the Trust Preferred
Securities of Citigroup Capital I at the redemption price of $25 per Preferred
Security plus any accrued and unpaid distributions thereon.

m":‘:f:g‘r" “e"e“‘::z: Number of Carrying value 7 miions of doitars)

Rate on or after’ per share’: shares 2001 2000

Series F 6.365% June 16, 2007 $250 1,600,000 $ 400 $ 397
Serigs G 6.213% July 11, 2007 3250 800,000 200 181
Series H{% 6.231% September 8, 2007 $250 800,000 200 200
Serigs K 8.400% March 31, 2001 $500 500,000 - 250
Serigs Mt 5.864% October 8, 2007 $250 800,000 200 195
Series Q1 Adjustable May 31,1999 $250 700,000 175 172
Series R Adjustable August 31, 1999 $250 400,000 100 100
Series U™ 7.750% May 15, 2000 $250 500,000 125 125
Series Vi Fixed/Adjustable February 15, 2006 $500 250,000 125 125
$1,525 31,745

(1) Under various circumstances, the Company may 1 adeem cartain series of prefel ted stock al tines other than described dbove,
(2) Liquidation preference per share equals redemplion price per share.
(31 Issued as depositary shares, cach represonting a one b inferestin a share of the corresponding series of preferod stock.

(4 Issund as depositary shares, each represanting a one Twertiollzinterestin a share ef the corresponding series of preferted stock.
(5) Issuod as depositary shares, cach representing a ono tenth interost i a share of the comosponding scrios of prefarred stock,

3 Shares previoudly held by affiliates in 2001 have been subsequently traded on the open markel to third parties duing the third quarter of 2001,
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All dividends on the Company's perpetual preferred stock are payable
quarterly and are cumulative. Citigroup redeemed Series K Preferred Stock in
QOctober 2001 In January 2002, Gitigroup redeemed Series U Preferred Stock.

Dividends on Series  and R Preferred Stock are payable at rates
determined quarterly by formulas based on interest rates of certain LS.
"Treasury obligations, subject to certain minimum and maximum rates as
specified in the certificates of designation. The weighted-average dividend rate
on the Series Q and R Preferred Stock was .83% for 2001,

Dividends on the Series V Preferred Stock are payable at 5.86% through
February 15, 2006, and thereafter at rates determined quarterly by aformula
hased o certain interest rate indices, subject to a minimum rate of 6% and a
mizximum rate of 12%. The rate of dividends on the Series V Preferred Stock is
subject to adjustment based upon the applicable percentage of the dividends
received deduction.

Regulatory Capital

Citigroup and Citicorp are subject to risk-hased capital and leverage
guidelines issued by the Board of Goverors of the Federal Reserve System
(FRB), and their U.S. insured depository institution subsidiaries, including
Citibank, N A., are subject to similar guidelines issued by their respective
primary regulators. These guidelines are used to evaluate capital adequacy
and include the required minimums shown in the following table.

To be “well capitalized” under Federal bank regulatory agency definitions,
adepository institution must have a Tier 1 ratio of atleast 6%, a combined
Tier 1 and Tier 2 ratio of at least 10%, and a leverage ratio of at least 5%, and
not be subject to 4 directive, order, or written agreement to meet and maintain
specific capital levels. The regulatory agencies are required by taw to take
specific prompt actions with respect to institutions that do not meet
minimum capital standards. As of Decerber 31, 2001 and 2000, all of
Citigroup's LS. insured subsidiary depository institutions were “‘well
capitalized.” At December 31, 2001, regulatory capital as set forth in
guidelines issued by the U.S. Federal bank regulators is as follows:

Minimum Citibank,
i millions of doltars requirement Citigroup Citicorp NA
Tier 1 capital 358.448 542,188 331763
Total capitalt 75,797 62,871 46,778
Tier 1 capital ratio 4.00% 8.42% 8.33% 9.23%
Total capital ratiot!! 8.00% 10.92% 1241% 13.60%
Leverage ratio: 3.00% 5.64% 6.85% 7.16%

{11 Tota) capital includos Tier T and Ticr 2.
(2} Tiet 1 capital divided by adjusted average assels,

There are various legal limitations on the extent fo which Citigroup's
hanking subsidiaries may pay dividends to their parents. Gitigroup's national
and state-chartered bank subsidiaries can declare dividends to their respective
parent companies in 2002, without regulatory approval, of approximately
$9.1 hillion adjusted by the effect of their net income (loss) for 2002 up to the
date of any such dividend declaration. tn determining whether and to what
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extent to pay dividends, each bank subsidiary must also consider the effect of
dividend payments on applicable risk-hased capital and leverage ratio
requirements as well as policy statements of the Federal regulatory agencies
that indicate that banking organizations should generally pay dividends out
of current operating earnings. Consistent with these considerations, Citigroup
estimates that its bank subsidiaries can distribute dividends to Citigroup of
approximately $%.9 bitlion of the available $9.1 billion, adjusted by the effect
of their net inconx (loss) up to the date of any such dividend declaration.

'the property-casualty insurance subsidiaries statutory capital and surplus
at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $7.687 billion and $7 634 hillion,
respectively. The life insurance subsidiaries’ statutory capital and surplus at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $6.188 billion and $6.079 hillion,
respectively. Statutory capital and surplus are subject to certain restiictions
imposed hy state insurance departments 4s to the transfer of funds and
payment of dividends. The property-casualty insurance subsidiaries’ statutory
net income for the vears ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was
$1.001 hillion, $1 445 billion and $1.500 billion, respectively. The life
insurance subsidiaries’ statutory net income for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999 was 5471 million, $1.090 billion and $938 million,
respectively. Statutory capital and surplus and statutory net income are
determined in accordance with statutory accounting practices.

TIC is subject to various regulatory restrictions that limit the maximum
amount of dividends available to its parent without prior approval of the
Connecticut Insurance Department. A maximum of $586 million of statutory
surplus is available by the end of the year 2002 for such dividends without the
prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department.

TPC’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various regulatory restrictions
that linit the maximum amount of dividends available to be paid to their
parent without prior approval of insurance regulatory authorities. A
maximum of $1.0 billien is available by the end of 2002 for such dividends
without prior approval of the Connecticut Insurance Department. However,
the payment of a significant portion of this amount is likely to be subject to
such approval depending upon the amount and timing of the payments.

Certain of the Company's U.S. and non-U.S. broker-dealer subsidiaries
are subject to various securities and commodities regulations and capital
adequacy requirements promulgated by the regulatory and exchange
authorities of the countries in which they operate. The principal regulated
subsidiaries, their net capital requirement or equivalent and excess over the
minimum requirement s of December 31, 2001 are as follows:

Excess over
Net capital minimum
Subsidiary Jurisdiction or equivalent  requirement

I mitlicns of dottars
Salomon Smith Rarney Inc. 1.8, Securities and
Exchange Commission Uniform
Net Capital Rule (Rule 15¢3-1) $3.474 33,014
Salomon Brothers United Kingdom's Securities
International Limited and Futures Authority 2,757 768
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19. CHANGES IN EQUITY FROM NONOWNER SOURCES
Changes in each component of “Accumulated Other Changes in Equity from Nonowner Sources™ for the three-year period ended December 31, 2001

are as follows:
Accumitiated other
Net unreatized gains Fereign currency changes in equity
on investment translation from nonowner
In midlions of dofiars securities adjustment Cash flow hedges sources
Balance, January 1, 1999 $1,433 $ (449 $ — $ 984
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $161 566 - — 566
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
income, net of tax of $189) (352) - - {352)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of ($25) — (43} — (43)
Gurrent period change 214 (43) — 171
Balance, December 31,1999 1,647 {492 - 1185
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $23 (150) - — (150}
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gamns included in net
income, net of tax of ($282) (524) — - (524)
Foreign currency translation agjustment, netof tax of ($108) - (358 - (358)
Current period change 674) {358) — (1.032)
Balance, December 31,2000 973 850 — 123
Cumulative effect of accounting changes. net of tax of $701 101 20 3 118
Unrealized gains on investment securities, net of tax of $71 154 — — 154
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in nef income.
net of tax of $202) (376) - — (376)
Foreign currency ranstation adjustment, net of tax of (§263) —_ {1.034) — {1.034)
Cash flow hedges, net of tax of $106 — - 171 171
Cuirent period change (121 (1.014) 168 (967)
Balance, December 31,2001 $ 852 $(1,864) $168 $ (844)

(1) Relers o the 2001 first quaiter adeplion of SFAS 133 wid the 2007 second quarter aduption of EITF 99-20
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20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is 4 reconciliation of the income and share data used in the
basic and diluted earnings per share computations for the vears ended
December 31

21. INCENTIVE PLANS

The Company has adopted a number of equity compensation plans under
which it administers stock options, restricted/deferred stock and stock
purchase programs to attract. retain and motivate officers and emiployees, to

compensate them for their contributions to the growth and profits of the

In milons of doikus, except per shats sments 200t 2000 1999
R — Company, and to encourage employee stock ownership. At December 31,

'“00"“9 be':;w;""a““ effect St sse s11an0 2001, approximately 450 million shares were authorized for grant under
of accounting changes 351¢ K e etk it name

Cumutative effect of accounting changes (158) - {120 Citigroup s stock inoentive plas.

Preferred dividends (110) (116) 149 stock Option Programs

income available to common The Company has 4 number of stock option programs that provide for the
stockholders for basic EPS 14,016 13,403 11.084  granting of stock options to officers and employees. Options are granted at the

Effect of dilulive securities - - 10 fair market value of Citigroup common stock at the time of grantfor a period

income avaitable to common of ten years. Generally, Gitigroup options vest over a five-year period,
stockholders for diluted EPS $14,016 513403 $11104  including options granted under Travelers predecessor plans and options

Weighted average common shares granted since the date of the merger. Generally, 50% of the options granted

outstanding applicable to basic EPS ~ 5,031.7 49770 49792 under Citicorp predecessor plans prior to the merger are exercisable
Effect of dilutive ssaurites: beginning on the third anniversary and 50% beginning on the fourth
Options 816 1109 1033  anniversary of the date of grant. Generally, options granted under Associates
Restricted stock 26 332 348 predecessor plans vest over 4 three-vear period. Certain options permit an
Convertible securities 1.1 11 105 employee exercising an option under certain conditions to be granted new
Adjusted weighted average common shares options (reload options) in an amount equal to the number of common
outstanding applicable to diluted EPS  5,147.0 51222 51278  shares used to satisfy the exercise price and the withholding taxes due upon
exercise. The reload options are granted for the remaining term of the related
Basic earnings per share . ) .
Inoome before cumulative effect original option and vest after six months.
of accounting changes $ 282 $ 260 $ 226 To further encourage employee stock ownership, the Company’s eligible
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (0.03) - 003 employees participate in WealthBuilder, Citibuilder, or the new Gitigroup
Net income $ 279 5 269 ¢ 203  Ownershipstock option programs. Commencing in 2001, new grants are
magde under the Citigroup Ownership Program. Options granted under the
Diluted earnings per share WealthBuilder and the Citi nershi st over a five-y
. . Sitigroup Ownership programs vest over a five-year
income before cumulative effect o s e o
of apcounting changes $ 275 5 2060 5 219 period, whereas options granted under the CitiBuilder program vest after five
Cumulative effect of accounting changes (0.03) _— 0.02 VEALS. T| heSe (pr()HS d(} not have a leand feaillr‘:.
Juri a group of key Citi ees were granted 12,680,
Not ncome s 212 S 262 § 217 During 1998, a group of key Citicorp emplovees were granted 12,680,000

petformance-based stock options at an equivalent Citigroup strike price of
$24.13. These performance-based options vested in 1999 when Citigroup’s
stock price reached $40.00 per share. The cost of performance-based options
was measured as the difference between the exercise price and the market
price required for vesting. After-tax expense recognized on these performance-
based options was $68 million in 1999. All of the expense related to these
grants has been recognized.

During 2001, 2000 and 1999, weighted average options of 100.1 million
shares, 28.1 miltion shares and 42.7 million shares with weighted average
exercise prices of $52.76 per share, $58.32 per share, and $40 81 per share,
respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted EPS because the
options” exercise price was greater than the average market price of the
Company’s common stock.

Information with respect to stack option activity under Citigroup stock option plans for the vears ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighled

average average average

exercise exercise oxercise

Options price Optiens price Optinns price

Outstanding, beginning of year 372547412 $3055 377,082,042 32369 419060809 $20.37

Granted-criginal 57,366,507 52.77 86,287,613 4357 29,869,276 3446

Granted-reload 13,655,748 4999 57,637,033 49.50 39,352,789 3761

Forfeited (21544,911) 3455 (20,672,028) 27.11 (18,106,937) 2043

Exercised (57,602,949} 23.12 {127,787.248) 26.14 {93.093,805) 18.70

Outstanding, end of year 364,421 807 $36.18 372,547 412 $30.55 377,082,042 $23.69
Exercisahle at year-end 164,268,613 118,330,975 113813418
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The following table summirizes the information about stock options outstanding under Citigroup stock option plans at December 31, 2001:

Options outstonding Options exeroisable

Weighted
average Weighted Weighted
contractual average average
Number life exercise Number exercise
Range of exercise prices outstanding remaining price exercisable price
$ 0.03—3% 999 16,025,359 2.3 years 3 683 15,012,126 3 672
$10.00—$19.99 13,439,499 4.3 years 14,26 11977180 14.26
$20.00—$29.99 123,660,877 6.0 years 2360 65,974,043 23.42
$30.00—$39.99 30,524,889 7.1vyears 3377 10,956,980 3352
$40.00—349.93 91,065,480 7.7 years 4549 27,506,605 46.58
$50.00—$59.99 89,612.050 7.1 years 53.41 32772216 54.09
$60.00—$60.92 103,653 7 3years 6093 69,463 60.93
364,421,807 6.6 years $36.18 164,268,613 $31.9

The Restricted Stock Program

‘the Company, primarily through its Capital Accumulation Program (CAP),
issues shares of Citigroup common stock in the form of restricted stock to
participating officers and employees. The restricted stock generally vests after
atwo- of three-year restricted period, during which time the stock cannot be
sold or transferred by the participant and is subject to total or partial forfeiture
if the participant’s employment is terminated. Certain CAP participants may
elect to receive part of their awards in CAP stock and part in stock options, The
figures in the two previous tables include options granted under CAP.
Unearned compensation expense associated with the restricted stock grants
represents the market value of Citigroup comrmon stock at the date of grant
and is recognized 4s a charge to income ratably over the vesting period.
Information with respect to restricted stock awards is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Shares awarded 26,018,414 27989280 14577765
Weighted average fair market value
per share $43.80 340,66 $28.52
After-tax compensation cost charged fo
earnings in millnts of doliars) $ 397 $ 417 $ 269

Citigroup 401(k)

Under the Citigroup 401 (k) plan, eligible employees receive awards up to 3%
of their total compensation deferred into the Citigroup commeon stock fund.
‘The after-tax expense associated with this plan amounted to $32 million in
2001, $29 million in 2000 and $31 million in 1999.

Stock Purchase Program

Stock Purchase Program offerings, which ate administered under the
{itigroup 2000 Stock Purchase Plan and the Citicorp 1997 Stock Incentive
Plan allow eligible emplovees of Citigroup to enter into fixed subscription
agreements to purchase shares in the future at the market value on the date of
the agreements. Subject to certain limits, entolled employees are permitted to
make one purchase prior to the expiration date. The purchase price of the
shares is paid with accumulated payroll deductions plus interest. Shares of
Citigroup’s commen stock to be delivered under the Stock Purchase Program
may be sourced from authorized and unissued or treasury shares. The
original offering under the Citigroup Stock Purchase Program was in August
2000 1n 2001, three additional offerings were made to new employeesin
March, July and November 2001,
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A previous offering under the 1997 Stock Purchase Plan allowed eligible
employees of Giticorp to enter into fixed subscription agreements to purchase
shares at the market value on the date of the agreements. Such shares could
be purchased from time to time through the expiration date. Shares of
Citigroup’s common stock delivered under the Stock Purchase Plan were
sourced from treasury shares.

Following is the share activity under the August 2000 and 1997 fixed-price
offerings for the purchase of shares at the equivalent Citigroup price of $52.92
and $22 65 per share, respectively. The fixed-price offerings for the purchase
of shares for the offerings made in March, July and Noveraber 2001 were
$44.98, $50.21 and $45 52, respectively. The 1997 offering expired on June 30,
1999. All current offerings will expire in September 2002.

20M 2000 1999

Outstanding subscribed shares
at baginning of year 24,081,663 — 15000212
Subscriptions entered into 2,981,557 24618050 —
Shares purchased 76,361 1,647 13,765,639
Ganceled or terminated 5,725,549 534,740 1324573

Outstanding subscribed shares
at end of year 21,261,310 24,081,663 -

Pro Forma Impact of SFAS No. 123
The Gompany applies APB Opinion No. 25, “Acoounting for Stock Issued to
Imployees” and related interpretations in accounting for its stock-based
compensation plans under which thete is generally no charge to earnings for
employee stock option awards (other than performance-based options) and
the dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share

Alternatively, FASB rules would permit a method under which a
compensation cost for all stock awards would be calculated and recognized
over the service period (generally equal to the vesting period). This
compensation cost would be determined in a manner prescribed by FASB
using option pricing models, intended to estimate the fair value of the awards
at the grant date. Earnings per share dilution would be recognized as well.

Under both methods, an offsetting increase to stockholders” equity is
recorded equal to the amount of corpensation expense charged.
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Had the Company applied SFAS No. 123 in accounting for the Company's
stock option plans, net income and net income per share would have heen the
pro forma amounts indicated below:

due to the shorter vesting period of reload options. In addition, since reload
options are treated 45 separate grants, the existence of the reload feature
results in a greater number of options being valued.

Shares received through option exercises under the reload pregram are

+ prillions of dotars, excep! per shase amounts 2001 2000 1999 . L ) .
Lo e s subject to restrictions on sale. Discounts (as measured by the estimated cost of
Compensation experse protection) have been applied to the fair value of options granted to etlect

related to stock these sale restrictions.
option plans As reported $ - & - 5 108 ditional valuztion and related sssumption i ation for Citier
Pro forma 262 919 818 Additional valuation and related assumption information for Gitigroup
option plans is presented below:
Net income As reported $14,126 813,519 $11.243
Pro forma 13,566 12,931 10,782 Fer options granted during 2001 2000 1999
Basic earnings per share  As reported $ 219 § 269 $ 223 Weighted average fair value
Pro forma 268 257 AL Option $11.69 $3.94 $10.65
Diluted earnings per share  As reported §$ 272 S 2862 8§ 217 Weighted average expected life
Pro forma 281 2.50 2.05 Original grants 3 years 3years 3years
Reload grants 1year 1 year 1 year
The pro forma adjustments relate to stock options granted from 1995 Valuation assumptions
through 2001, for which a fair value on the date of grant was determined Expected volatility 38.76% 41.35% 46.1%
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. No effect has been given to Risk-free interest rate 463% 6.17% 5.17%
options granted prior to 1995. The fair values of stock-based awards are based Expected annual dividends per share $ 0@ 8076 3047
Expected annual forfeitures 5% 5% 5%

on assumptions that were determined at the grant date.

SFAS No. 123 requires that reload options be treated as separate grants
from the refated original grants. Under the Company's reload program, upon
exercise of an option, employees tender previously owned shares to pay the
exercise price and surrender shares otherwise to be received for related tax
withholding, and receive a reload option covering the same number of shares
tendered for such purposes. Reload options vest at the end of 4 six-month
period. Reload options are intended to encourage emplovees to exercise
options at an eartier date and to retain the shares so acquired, in furtherance
of the Company’s long-standing policy of encouraging increased employee
stock ownership. The result of this program is that emplovees generally will
exercise oplions as soon 4s they are able and, therefore, these eptions have
shorter expected lives. Shorter option lives result in lower valuations using a
Biack-Scholes option model. However, such values are expensed more quickly

Net Benefit Expense

22. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

'The Company has several non-contributory defined benefit pension plans
covering substantially all US. employees and has various defined benefit
pension termination indemnity plans covering emplovees outside the United
States. The U.S. defined benefit plan provides benefits under 2 cash balance
formula. Employees satisfying certain age and service requirements remain
covered by aprior final pay formula. The Company also offers postretirement
health care and lite insurance henefits to certain eligible U.S, retired
employees, as well s to certain eligible employees outside the United States.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income and the funded status
and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet for the Company’s
U S. plans and significant plans outside the United States.

Ponsion plans Postretiremont bensfit plans
US. plans Plans outside US. U.S.plans
In mifens of doffrs 2001 2000 1959 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Berefits earned during the year $232 3238 $ 264 $116 $ 35 $ 89 $6 $12 $16
Interest cost on benefit obligation 544 527 494 190 102 98 72 73 68
Expected return on plan assets {795) 757y (688) {185) (106} 90) {20) (18 (16)
Amortization of unrecognized:
Net transition (asset) abligation - 1 {17 9 5 4 - — —
Prior service cost (18} © ®) - - - (73] ©) 8
Net actuarial loss (gain) 3 29 14 5 (1} 6 3) Q) 2
Curtailment {gain) loss (5) —_ —_ 8 - — (39) (29 (29)
Net (benefit) expense ${39) 3 (29 $ 61 $ 141 3 95 $107 $15 324 336

(1} For plans outside the 1.8, net postiefirement benefit expense totaled $42 miflion in 20071, $13 milonin 2000, and $13 million in 1998,
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Prepaid Benefit Cost (Benefit Liability)

Postretirement

Pension plans benefit plana®
U.§, plans Plans outside U.S. 4.8, plans

In milfions of doflars at year-end 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $7,382 $6,630 $1,794 31,632 $1,015 $ 046
Benefits earned during the year 232 238 116 95 6 12
Interest cost on benefit cbligation 544 527 188 102 73 73
Plan amendments {166) 1 - (5) -_ 3
Actuarial (gain) loss br4 327 104 109 28 95
Berefits paid (389) (351) (128) (68) 82) 7N
Acquisitions 10 24 559 59 - —
Expenses (16) (14 -— - — —
Curtailment 5 - 1 8 (22) (31
Setflements - — 1 8 — —
Foreign exchange impact — - (70) (114) - —_—
Benefit obligation at end of year $7,823 $7.382 $2,565 $1,794 $1,018 $1,015
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at fair value at beginning of year $8,478 $8,638 $1.421 $1,421 $ 218 $ 217
Actuat return on plan assets {238) 102 333 17 {6) 1
Company contributions 379 7 139 104 82 77
Employee contributions - - 8 4 — -
Acquisitions 10 32 388 47 —_ —
Settlements - — ®) (5} - -
Benefits paid {389) (351) (128) {68) (82) (77)
Expenses (16) (14) - - - -
Foreign exchange impact - - (57) {99 - -
Plan assets at fair value at end of year $8,224 $8,478 $2,009 $1.421 $ 212 $ 218
Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) benefit cost and total amount recognized
Funded status of the plan $401 $1,006 $(a8) 8 (373 §$(@B06) I (797
Unrecognized:

Net transition obligation {asset) — — 24 26 - —

Prior service cost {245) {114) 10 8 {8) (26)

Net actuarial {gain) loss 655 (589) 289 148 (30) (88)
Net amount recognized $ 811 $ 393 $(143) S (19 $(8449 9 (O
Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of
Prepaid benefit cost $1,300 $ 848 $ 174 $ 13 - § -~
Accrued benefit liability {554) {513) (401) (365) (844) 911)
Intangible asset 85 58 84 43 - -
Net amount recognized $ 811 $ 393 $(143) S(191) $@ 3O

{1 For unfunded ULS. plans, the aggregate bonefit ebligation was $247 million and $537 million, and the aggregate accumitated henelit vbligation was $512 million and $475 miflien at December 31, 2001 and

2000, respudlively,

) For plans cutside the U.S,, the aggregate banefit obligation was $2.378 bilion arid $1.175 billion, and the falr value of plan assets was $1.877 billion and $700 ralflion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectivly. for
plans whese benefit obligation excoeds plan assets. The aggregate accumulated benefit obligation was $670 million and $440 million, and the fair value of plan assels was $324 million and $167 million at December 31,

2001 and 2000, respectively, for plans whose acctmtdated bensfit obligation exceeds plan assets,

{3) For plans outside the U.S., the acoumulated postr etirement benefit obligation was $524 miflion and $86 miflion and the postretiremont benetit fiability was 36 19 milfion and $44 million at Decembet 31,2001 and

2000, 1espectively.
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The expected long-term rates of return on assets used in determining the
Company’s pension and postretirement expense are shown below:

2001 2000 1999
Rate of return on assets
US. plans 85% 90%to085% 90%to95%
Plans outside the U.S. 3.0%t120% 25%10120% 25%l0125%

{1} Exchuding highty inflationaty coutiies,

The principal assumptions used in determining pension and
postretirement benefit obligations for the Company's plans are shown in the
following table.

At year-end 2001 2000
Discount rate
U.S. plans 1.25% 7.5%
Plans outside the U8 25%t012.0% 25%1012.0%
Future compensation increase rate
U.S. plans 4.0%106.0% 40%t06.5%
Plans outside the U.S. 25%t012.0% 25%to12.0%
Health care cost increase rate—U.S. plans
Following year T0%t080%  7.0%to85%
Decieasing to the year 2005 5.0%te 55% 5.0%

(1} Excluding highty inflationary countries.

As an indicator of sensitivity, increasing the assumed health care cost trend
rate by 1% in each year would have increased the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 by $38 million and the aggregate
of the benefits earned and interest components of 2001 net postretirement
benefit expense by $5 million. Decreasing the assumed health care cost trend
rate by 1% in each year would have decreased the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001 by $35 million and the aggregate
of the benefits earned and interest components of 2001 net postretirement
benefit expense by $4 million.

23. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER ACTIVITIES
The following table summarizes certain information related to the Company’s
hedging activities for the vear ended December 31, 2001:

Year ended December 31,
i rnitlions of dots 2001
Fair value hedges:
Hedge ineffectiveness recognized in earnings $168
Net gain excluded from assessment of effectiveness 85
Cash flow hedges:
Hedge ineffectiveness iecognized in earnings 20
Amount excluded from assessment of effectiveness —_
Net investment hedges:
Net gain included in foreign currency transiation
adjustment within accumulated other changes in
equity from nonowner sources 432
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Additionally, $313 million of net gains is expected to be reclassified from
accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources within twelve
months from December 31, 2001,

The accumulated other changes in equity from nonowner sources from
cash flow hedges for 2001 can be summarized as follows (net of taxes):

Year ended December 31,
By mitons of doffars 2001
Beginning balancet: $ (3
Net gains from cash flow hedges 315
Net amounts reclassified to earnings (144)
Ending balance $ 168

(1} Rasults from the comedative effect of aecnnnting change for cash tow hedgos

Citigroup enters into derivative and foreign exchange futures, forwards,
options and swaps, which enable customers to transfer, modify or reduce
their interest rate, foreign exchange and other market risks, and also trades
these products for its own account. In addition, Citigroup uses derivatives
and other instruments, primarily interest rate products, a5 an end-user in
connection with its risk management activities. Derivatives are used to
manage interest rate risk relating to specific groups of on-balance sheet assets
and liabilities, including investments, commercial and consumer loans,
deposit liabilities, long-term debt and other interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities. as well as credit card securitizations, redemptions and sales. In
addition, foreign exchange contracts are used to hedge non-U S, dollar
denominated debt, net capital exposures and foreign exchange transactions.

Futures and forward contracts are commitments to buy or sell at a future
date a financial instrument, commodity or currency at a contracted price and
may be settled in cash or through delivery. Swap contracts are commitments 1o
settle in cash at a future date or dates which may range from a few days to a
number of years, based on differentials between specified financial indices, as
applied to a notional principal amount. Option contracts give the purchaser,
for a fee, the right, hut not the obligation, to buy or sell within « limited time, 4
financial instrument or currency al 4 contracted price that may also be settled
tn cash, based on ditferentials between specified indices.

Gitigroup also sells various financial instruments that have not been
purchased (short sales). In order to sell securities short, the securities are
horrowed or received as collateral in conjunction with short-term financing
agreements and, at a later date, must be delivered (.. replaced) with like or
substantially the same financial instruments or commuodities to the parties
from which they were originally borrowed.

Derivatives and short sales may expose Citigroup to market risk or credit
risk in excess of the amounts recorded on the balance sheet. Market risk on a
derivative, short sale or foreign exchange product is the exposure created by
potential fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and other
values, and is a function of the type of product, the volume of transactions,
the tenor and terms of the agreement, and the underlying volatility. Credit risk
is the exposure to loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the
transaction and if the value of collateral held, if any, was not adequate to
cover such losses. The recognition in earnings of unseatized gains on these
transactions is subject to management's assessment as to collectibility,
Liquidity risk is the potential exposure that arises when the size of the
derivative position may not be able to be rapidly adjusted in times of high
volatility and financial stress at a reasonable cost
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24. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in econonic, industyy or
geographic factors simitarly atfect groups of counterparties whose aggregate
creditexposure is material in refation to Citigroup’s total credit exposure.
Although Gitigroup’s portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversitied
along industry, product. and geographic lines, material transactions are
completed with other financial institutions, particularly in the securities
trading, derivative, and foreign exchange businesses.

25. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL IMSTRUMENTS

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The table presents the canying value and fair value of Citigroup's inancial
instruments, as defined in accordance with applicable requireents.
Accordingly, as required. the disclosures exclude leases, affiliate investments,
and pension and benefit obligations. Contractholder funds amounts exclude
certAin iNSUFANCe COMTACts. Also as required, the disclosures exclude the effect
of taxes. do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from
offering for sale atone time the entire holdings of a particular instrument, the
excess fair value associated with deposits with no fixed maturity, as well a8
other expenses that would he incurred in 4 market transaction. In addition,
the table excludes the values of nonfinancial assets and liabilities, as well as 3
wide range of franchise, relationship, and intangible values, which are
integral to a full asscssment of Citigroup's financial position and the valuc of
its net assefs.

The data represents management’s best estimates based on a range of
methodologies and assumptions. The carmying value of short-term financial
instruments as well as receivables and payables arising in the ordinary course
of business, approximates fair value because of the relatively short period of
tirme between their origination and expected realization. Quoted market
prices are used for most investments, for loans where available, and for both
trading and end-user devivatives, 45 well as for Hiabilities, such as long-term
debt, with quoted prices. For pedforming foans where no quoted market prices
are available, contractual cash flows are discounted at quoted secondary
market rates or estimated market cates if available. Otherwise, sales of
comparable loan portfolios or curreat market origination rates for loans wi th
similar terms and risk characteristics are used. Tor loans with doubt as to
collectibility, expected cash tlows are discounted using an appropriate rate
considering the tire of collection and a premium for the uncertainty of the
flows. The value of collateral is also considered. For liabilities such as long-
term debt without quoted market prices, market horrowing rates of interest
are used to discount contractual cash flows.

Fait values of credit card securitizations reflect the various components of
these ransactions but principally arise from fixed rates payable to certificate
holdess, Under the applicable requirements, the estimated fair value of
deposits with no fixed maturity in the following table excludes the premium
values available in the market for such deposits, and the estimated value is
shown in the table a5 being equal to the carying value.

2001 2000
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimatad
I hithiouss of doftars al yoar-ond value fair value value falt valuo
Assets and related
instruments
Investments $160.8 $160.8 $1201 $120.1
Federal funds sold and
securities borrowed or
purchased under
agreements to resell 1348 1348 1059 105.9
Trading account assets 149 1449 1325 1325
Loans’! 350.1 3746 3381 3511
Other financial assets*" 156.6 156.3 138.2 1386
Liabilities and related
instruments
Deposits 3745 3742 3006 3007
Federa! funds purchased
and securities loaned or sold
under agreements
to repurchase 1535 1535 1106 1106
Trading account liabilities 805 805 85.1 85.1
Contracthoider funds
With defined maturities a5 10.0 6.7 6.7
Without defined maturities 10.6 103 10.1 99
Long-term debt 1216 124.3 1118 1123
QOther financia! liabilitiest 1325 1325 1482 147.8

1y The cairying value of loans is net of the allowance for eredit losses and also excludes §27.7 billion and
$20.0 billior: of tease finance receivables in 2001 and 2000, tespertively.

(21 Inchides cash and due from banks, cleposits al inferost ith barks, bt oker age teeivables, relnsurance
recoverables and separate and variable accolnts for which the canying salue ts a teasonable estimate
of Tair value, wd the carying value and estimated fair vatue of financial inslruments ncluded in other
assels on the Consolicated Staterment of Financial Position.

(3 Includes bioketage payables, separate and variable accounts investment banking and brokerage bur
Louangs, short-tem bmosings, for which the cairying vale is a reasonable astimate of tait value, and
the canying value and estimated fait value of financial instumments included in other fisbilies on the
Consufidated Statesnent of Financial Posilion
Fair values vary from period to period based on changes in awide range of

factors, including interest rates, credit quality, and market perceptions of value,

and as existing assets and liabilities run off and new iters are entered into,
‘the estimated fait values of loans reflect changes in credit status since the

loans were made, changes in interest rates in the case of fixed-rate loans, and

premium values at origination of certain loans. The cstimated fair values of

Citigroup's foans, in the aggregate, exceeded carrying values (reduced by the

allowance for credit losses) by $15.5 billion at vearend 2001 and $13.0 billion

{12000, Within these totals, estimated fair values exceeded carrying values for

consumer loans net of the allowance by $10.9 hillion, an increase of $1.5

billion from year-end 2000, and for commercial loans net of the allowance

hy $4.6 billion, which was an increase of $1.0 biltion from year-end 2000.

The increase in estimated fair values in excess of carrying values of consurer

Joans and commercial loans is primarily due to the lower interest rate

environment in 2001,

The estimated fair vatue of credit card securitizations, which are included
with other financial assets in the table above, was $0.3 billion less than

their carrving value at December 31, 2001, which is $0.6 billion less than

December 31, 2000, when the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying

value by $0.3 billion. This decrease is due to the effects of a lower inferest rae

environment on the fixed-rate investor certificates.
For 2001, all end-wser derivative contracts, which are included in other
assets and other fiabilities in the previous table, are carried at fair value. At

December 31, 2000 the gross difference between the fair value and carrying
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amountwas $0.8 billion for contracts whose fair value exceeds carying
value, and $0.5 biltion for contracts whose carrying value exceeds fair value.

26. PLEDGED ASSETS, COLLATERAL
AND COMMITMENTS

Pledged Assets

At December 31, 2001 and 2000 the approximate market values of securities
sold under agreements to repurchase and other assets pledged, excluding the
impact of FIN 29 and FIN 41 were as follows:

I tions of dulars 2001 2000
For securities sold under agreements to repurchase $183814  $161800
As coliateral for securities bor rowed of approximately
equivalent value 44,340 41149
As collaterat on bank loans 154 225
Ta clearing organizations o segregated under
securities taws and regulations 12,834 10,427
For securities loaned 17,562 21226
Other 43,054 41520
$301,758  $276.456

In addition, included in cash and due from hanks at December 31,
2001 and 2000 is $5.3 hillion and $2.7 hiftion, respectively, of cash
segregated under Federal and other hrokerage regulations ot deposi ted
with clearing organizations.

At Decernber 31, 2001 the Company had $975 million of outstanding
letters of credit from banks to satisty various collateral and margin
requirements.

Collaterai

At Decernber 31, 2001 and 2000, the approximate market value of collateral
received by the Company that may be sold or repledged by the Company,
excluding amounts netted in accordance with FIN 39 and FIN 41, was $245.0
pillion and §236 6, respectively. This collateral was received in connection
with resale agreements, securities borrowings and loans, derivative
wransactions, and margined broker loans.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, a substantial portion of the collateral
received by the Company had been sold or repledged in connection with
repurchase agreements, securitics sold, not yet purchased, securitics
borrowings and loans, pledges o clearing organizations, segregation
requirements under securities Taws and regulations, derivative transactions,
and hank foans.

In addition, at Decernber 31, 2001 and
§47.5 billion and §47 5 billion, respectively, of collateral that may
or repledged by the secured parties.

2000, the Company had pledged
not be sold

Lease Commitments

Rental expense (principally for offices and computer equipment) was $1.7
hiltion, $1.5 billion and $1.4 billion for the vears ended December 31, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively.

112

Future miniraum annual rentals under noncancelable leases, net of
sublease income, are as follows:

In mitions of dolars af year-ond

2002 $ 1,079
2003 927
2004 761
2005 759
2006 488
Thereafter 2,654

56,668

The Company and certain of Salomon Smith Barney's subsidiaries
together have an option 10 purchase the buildings presently leased for
Salomon Smith Barney’s executive offices and New Yark City operations at the
expiration of the lease term.

Loan Commitments

In miions of doliars &t year-end 2001 2000
One to four family residential morlgages $ 5470 § 24%%6
Revolving open-end loans secured by 1-4 family

residential properties 7107 6,164
Commetcial 1eal estate, construction and land development 1,882 1310
Credit card lines 387,396 347.383
Commercial and other consumer tan commitmentst 210,909 197,415
Total $612,764 3554728

(1) inchudes commes clal cominiments to make o pichase toans, 1o purchase third-paity recelvables, and

1o provige note ssuance o Tovalving undeswiiting facitties.

The majotity of unused commitments are contingent upon customers
maintaining specific credit standards. Commercial commitments generally
have floating interest rates and fixed expiration dates and may require
pavment of fees. Such fees (net of certain direct costs) are deterred and, upon
exercise of the commitment, dmorti sed over the life of the loan or, if exercise
is deemed remote, amortized over the commitment period. The table does not
include commercial letters of credit issued on behalf of customers and
collateralized by the underlying shipment of goods which totaled $5.7 billion
and $6 & billion at December 31, 2001 and 2600.

Loans Sold with Credit Enhancements

Amounts

in hiflions ot dollars &t year-end 2001 2000  Form of credit enhancement

Residertial mortgages and other
loans soid with recourse’™ $ 77 $10.4  2001: Recourse obligation
of $3.5, and put options as
described below. 2000:
Recourse obligation of
$5.1, and put options as
described below.

GNMA sales/senvicing

agreementsi 134 16.1 Secondary recourse
obiigation
securitized credit card receivables 66.8 570  Includes net revenue over

the life of the transaction
Also includes other
recourse obligations of
$1.01in 2001 and 2000.

{1y Residential mortgages represent 57% of amounts in 2001 and 71% in 2000,
(@) Government National Morigage Association Sales/servicing agreements rovering secitized
residentisl motigages.
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Citigroup and its subsidiaries are obligated under various credit
enhancements related to certain sales of loans or sales of participations in
poals of loans, as summarized above.

Net revenue on securitized credit card receivables is collected over the life
of each sale transaction. The net revenue is based upon the sum of finance
charges and fees received from cardholders and interchange revenue earned
on cardholder transactions, less the sum of the yield paid to investors, credit
Josses, transaction costs, and a contractual servicing, fee, which is also
retainied by certain Citigroup subsidiaries a servicets. As specified in certain of
the sale agreements, the net revenue cotlected each month is accumulated up
t0 a predetermined maximum amount, and is available over the remaining
form of that teansaction to make payments of yield, fees, and transaction Costs
in the event that net cash flows from the receivables are not sufficient, When
the predetermined amount is reached, net revenue is passed directly to the
Citigroup subsidiary that sold the receivables. The amount contained in these
accounts is included in other assets and was $139 million at December 31,
2001 and $66 million at December 31, 2000. Net revenue from securitized
credit card receivables inctuded in other revenue was $2.1 billion, $2.4
billion, and $2.1 billion fo the years onded Decernber 31, 2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively.

various put options were written during 2000 and 1999 which require
Gitigroup to purchase, upon request of the holders, securities issued in certain
securitization transactions in order to broaden the investor base and improve
execution in connection with the securitizations. The put option at year-end
2001 is exercisable in October of each year beginning in October 2000, with
respect to an aggregate of up to approxi mately $2 biltion principal amount of
certificates backed by manufactured housing contract receivables, of which
approximately $133 million was exercised in 2000, Ifexercised, the Company
will be obligated to purchase the certificates or notes at par plus accrued
interest Two option contracts from 2000 that were exercised in 2001 were the
following; 2 put option, exercisable at any time after june 15, 2000, with
respect to an aggregate of up to approximately $1 billion pri ncipal amount
of notes secured by home equity loan receivables only to the extent the
securitization trust canniot meet its obligation under a separate put option
by the trust which is exercisable at any time after March 15, 2000; and a put
option, originally exercisable at any time after September 15, 2000, the
exercise of which had been extended to April 12, 2001, with respect to an
aggregate of up to approximately $1.25 billion of notes secured by home
equity loan receivables only to the extent the notes are not purchased by the
securitization trust pursuant to a separate put option issued by the trust and
exercisable at any time after June 15, 2000. The aggregate amortized amount
of these options was approximately $1.4 biltion at December 31, 2001 and
$3.4 hillion at December 31, 2000. The Company has recorded liabilities
totaling approximately $6 million at December 31, 2001 and $17 milkion at
December 31, 2000 in connection with these options. Subsequent to their
initial issuance, such options are marked to market with the fluctuation
heing reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Financial Guarantees
Financial guarantees are used in various transactions to enhange the credit
standing of Gitigroup customers. They represent irrevocable assurances, subject
to the satisfaction of certain conditions, that Citigroup will make payment in
the event that the customer fails to fulfill its obligations to third parties.
Citicorp issues financial standby letters of credit which are obligations to
pay a third-party beneficiary when 4 customer fails to repay an outstanding,
loan ot debt instrument, such as assuring payments by & foreign reinsurer o &
{0.$. insuret, to act 4 4 substitute for an escrow account, to provide a payment
mechanism for a customer’s third-party obligations, and to assure payment of
specified financial bligations of a customer. Fees are recognized ratably over
the term of the standby letter of credit. The following table summarizes
financial standby letters of credit issued by Citicorp. The table does notinclude
securities lending indemnifications issued to customers, which are fully
collateralized and totaled $19.9 billion at December 31, 2001 and $15.5 hillion
At Decernber 31, 2000, and performance standby letters of credit.

2001 2000

Exphe within Expieafior  Total amount Total amount

It biiions of doliars at yoar-ead 1 yea 1yewr  outstanding outstanding

Insurance, surety $ 28 $67 $ 95 $ 80
Options, purchased securities,

and escrow 0.3 01 04 Q.3

Clean letiers of credit 33 10 43 45

Backstop state, county, and

municipal securities - — - 01

Other debt related 7.4 2.7 10.1 10.2

Total: $138 $105 $24.3 $23.1

(1) Total is net of cash colfateral of $2.2 bilion in 2001 and $2.0 bitfionin 2000 Collateral other thant cash
coverad 20% of the total in 2001 and 24% in 2000,

Other Commitments

Salomon Smith Barney and a principal broker-dealer subsidiary haw each

provided a portion of 4 residual value guarantee in the amountof 77 mitlion

in connection with the lease of the buildings occupied by Salomon Smith

Barney's executive offices and New York operations.

27. CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, Citigroup and/or its subsidiaries are
defendants or co-defendants in various litigation matters, other than
environmental and ashestos property and casualty insurance claims as
discussed in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although there
can be no assurances, the Company believes, based on information currently
available, that the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings would notbe
likely to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, financial
condition, ot Yiquidity
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28. CITIGROUP (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Condensed Statement of Income Year onded Deosmber 31,
Vear onded December $1, i millions of chiliars 2001 2000 1999
o mfons of dolats 2001 2000 1999  Cash tiows trom operating activities
Net income $14126 S$13510  §11.243
Revenues $ 54 5 133 8§ 80  Adustments toreconcile netincome to cash
Expenses provided by operating activities:
Inferest 851 246 189 Equity in net income of subsidiaties (14,642) (13.820) (11529
Other 267 256 133 Dividends received from:
Bank and bank holding company
Total 918 601 H22 subsidiaries 5,784 1,255 479
Pre-tax loss (864) (468) 449) o :thex ?ubmdaanes 2,(1%: 1 ’;ig g gig
income tax benefit 348 167 156 o, e (109) (240) :
Loss before equity in net Net cash provided by operating activities 7,484 2,249 8,836
income of subsidiaries (516) (301) {286)  Cash flows from investing activities
Equity in net income of subsidiaries 14,642 13.820 11,529 Capital contributions to subsiciaries (6,250) (5,800) (321
Change in investments {1,487) 1,763 (425)
13,51 1,24 o \
Income $14.126  S13519  S11243  oices to subsiciaries, net (13733 653 (1208)
Condensed Statement of Financial Position Net cash used in investing activities @1470)  (10560) (1952
December3t,  Cashflows from financing activities
. - Proceeds from {repayment of) advances
I f s 2001 2000 from subsidiaries, net 2,961 ©17 (1,197
Assets Dividends paid {3,185) (2,654) {2,139)
Cash $ 27 3 85 tssuance of common stock 875 958 758
Investments 1,487 —_ Redemption of preferred stock {250) (150) (388)
Investment in and advances to: Stock tendered for payment of
Bark and bank holding company subsidiaries 87,562 56,973 withhalding taxes (506) (593) {496)
Other subsidiaries 33,060 30431 Treasury stock acquired (3,045) {4,066) (3.954)
Cost of acquired businesses in excess of net assets 368 381 issuance of long-term debt 17610 14,817 1,859
Other 383 508 jssuance of junicr subordinated debentures 2,483 — 619
~ Payments and redemptions of long-term dept  (3,000) {650) (100}
Total $122,887 888378 (pangein short-term borrowings {15) 496 ©01)
Liabilities Net cash provided by (used in)
Advances from and payables to subsidiaries $ 748 S5 0 financing activities 13028 7 541 6,029)
Commercial paper 481 496 ) r
Junior subordinated debentures, held by subsidiary trusts 4,850 9367  Changeincash 58) 779) 855
Long-lerm debt 34,794 18197 Cash at beginning of period 85 855 —
Othier Yiablities B 541 616 pach at end of perind $ 27 S & § 8%
Redeemable preferred stock, held by subsidiary 226 226
Stockholders’ equity Supplemental disciosure of cash
Preferred stock 100 par value; authorized shares: flow inforn}gtion v ,
30 milfion), at aggregate liquidation value 1525 1.74% Cash paid during the period for interest $ 1738 S 510 % 400
Common stock Cash raceived during the period for taxes a1 1,066 1,251
(.01 par value, authorized shares: 15 billion),
issued shares: 5,477,416,254 at December 31. 2001
and 5.351,143,583 at December 31, 2000 55 54
Additional paid-in capital 23,196 16.504
Retained earnings 69,803 58,862
Treasury stock, at cost (2001 —328,721,790 shares,
and 2000~ 328,921,189 shares) (11,009) (10,213)
Accumulated other changes in equity from
nonowner Sources {844) 123
Unearned compensation {1,380) {869
Stockholders’ eguity 81,247 66,206
Total $122887 $88378
114
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29. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA {(UNAUDITED)

2001 2000
1 ptlions of doftaes, except pet sivare amounts Fourth Third Second First Fouth Third Second First
Total revenues $26,650 $27,714  $27.854 $29804 $29328 328,624 $27.059  $26815
Tetal revenues, net of interest expense 21,004 19,387 19,385 20,281 19,003 18,836 18,220 19,130
Total benefits, claims, and credit losses 5,208 4983 4,166 4,201 4,288 3,760 3,753 3,685
Total operaling expenses 9,985 9523 9502 10,501 10,282 9.620 9.290 3,367
Income hefore income taxes, minority interest, and cumulative
effect of accounting changes 5810 4,881 5,627 5579 4,433 5,455 5177 6,078
Provision for income taxes 1,898 1,678 1,960 1,990 1,582 1,958 1,818 2167
Minority interest, net of income taxes 37 26 15 9 1" 13 20 55
Income hefore cumulative effect of accounting changes 387 3177 3,652 3,580 2,840 3,484 3.339 3,856
Cumutlative effect of accounting changes! — — {116} (42) — — — —_
Net income $3875 $3177 $ 3536 $3538 $2840 $3484 § 3339 $ 3856
Basic eamings per share $ 075 $ 062 § 070 $ 070 $ 057 $ 069 §$ 067 $ Q.77
Diluted earnings per share $ 074 $ 061 S 089 $ 089 $ 055 & 067 S 0656 5 073
Common stock price per share
High $51.190 $53.480  $53.550 $56297 $57.125  §59.126  $50.1 56 %46.781
Low 41.750 36.360 42.700 40.600 44.500 45,422 42.000 35813
Close 50.480 40.500 52.840 44980 51.063 54.063 45188 44,906
Dividends per share of common stock 0.160 0.160 0.140 0.140 0.140 0.140 0.120 0.120

{11 Accounting changes inchude the first quarter 2001 adoplion of SFAS 133 and the second quarter 2001 adoption of EHF 98-20.

Due to averaging of shares, quarterly earnings per share may not add to
the totals for the full-year totals. The fourth quarter of 2001 includes charges
of $235 million (pretax) refated to write-downs of Argentine credit exposures
and $235 million (pretax) in losses related to the foreign exchange
revaluation of the consumer loan portfolio. The 2001 fourth quarter also
includes 2 $228 million (pretx) write-down of Enron-related credit exposure
and trading pasitions, and the impairment of Enron-related investments.

The third, second and first quarters of 2001 include $82 million after-tax
(3129 miltion pretax), $129 million afler-tax (4209 million pretax) and $60
million aftcr-tax (3110 million pretax), respectively, of restructuring charges.
The fourth, third, and second quarters of 2000 include $381 million after-tax
($538 million pretax), $15 million after-tax {$24 million pretax), and $11
million aftee-tax ($17 million pretax), respectively, of restructuring charges,
and in the 2000 fourth and third quarters, include $119 million after-tax
($143 million pretax) and $22 million aftertax {$34 million pretax),
respectively, of merger-refated costs. The fourth quarter of 2000 includes 4

$135 million after-tax ($210 million pretax) transportation oss provision
rolated to the truck loan and leasing portfolio. The first quarter of 2000
includes 4 $71 million after-tax ($112 million pretax) charge related to
discontinuation of Associates Housing Finance loan originations. The fourth
and second quarters of 2001 include credits for reductions of prior charges of
$22 million after-tax ($35 million pretax) and $10 mitkion after-tax ($18
million pretax), respectively. The fourth and second quarters of 2000 include
credits for teductions of prior charges of $13 million after-tax ($22 million
pretax) and $28 million after-tax ($43 million pretax), respectively. The 2001
fourth, third, second and first quarters also include $9 million after-tax

($14 million pretax), $3 million after-tax (§5 million pretax), $14 million
after-tax ($22 million pretax), and $14 million after-tax (422 million
pretax), respectively, of restructuring-related accelerated depreciation. The
2000 fourth, third, second, and first quartess aso include $4 million aftertax
($7 miltion pretax), $8 million after-tax ($12 million pretax), $19 million
after-tax ($29 million pretax), and $12 mittion after-tax ($20 million
pretax), respectively, of restructuring-related accelerated depreciation.
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FINANCIAL DATA SUPPLEMENT

AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES, TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS 5

Average velume Interest revenue % Average rate
in mitiens of dolfars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Assets
Cash and due from banks
inUS. offices $ 2842 % 333 § 3038 $ - & - % - - - -
in offices outside the US* 1,095 1,540 17 17 30 13 155 1.95 1.42
Total 3937 4,878 3055 17 30 13 043 062 033
Deposits at interest with banks® 18,395 13,232 12,384 1,265 1,226 992 6.88 9.27 8.01
Fodoral funds soid and securities borrowed
or purchased under agreements to resell
InU.S. offices 104,150 96.807 82,778 7,082 8,654 6,120 6.80 8.94 7.39
In offices outside the U.8.¢ 34,087 30615 32,635 1,788 1817 1,549 5.27 593 475
Total 138237 127422 115413 8880 10,471 7,669 6.42 8.22 6.64
Brokerage receivables
inU.3. offices 25,058 26,029 17.002 1,197 2,135 1,212 478 8.20 713
In offices outside the U.8 2517 3271 3416 205 320 188 8.14 9.78 550
Total 21575 20,300 20418 1,402 2,458 1,400 5.08 8.38 6.86
Trading account assets™
InU.S. offices 81,241 63,723 58,062 3,685 3,181 2,245 454 4.99 3.87
in offices outside the U5 37,304 36571 30,948 1,787 1,340 989 4,79 366 3.20
Total 118545 100294 83,000 5472 4521 3,234 462 4 51 363
Investments
in U.S. offices
Taxable 79,731 74375 67,924 4919 4918 4327 6.17 6.61 6.37
Fxempt from U.S. income tax 16,050 14,747 14,297 1,213 1,057 1,000 156 717 6.99
in offices outside the US4 38,822 29,623 28.262 2,557 2.169 2,907 6.59 732 10.29
Total 134503 118745 110,483 8,689 8,142 8,234 6.46 6.86 7.45
Loans (net of unearned income}”
Consumer loans
inU.S. offices 151,837 134824 113773 17,353 15,797 13,321 1143 1173 11.71
in offices outside the U.S# 79,782 75,200 68,984 10,187 9,708 8,984 12m 1291 13.02
Total consumer loans 231619 200824 182,757 27540 25,505 22,305 11.89 12.16 12.20
Commercial loans
InU.S. offices
Commercial and industrial 36,330 32,472 27,443 2,759 2,649 2,325 759 8.16 8.47
L ease financing 14,364 11.792 8,758 1,339 1,045 682 9.32 8.86 7.79
Mortgage and real estate 3,140 3508 6518 278 361 730 885 10.03 11.20
in offices outside the US. 91,867 79.812 73565 7,706 7821 6,980 8.39 9380 949
Total commercial loans 145701 127674 116,284 12,082 11876 10,717 829 §.30 9.22
Total loans 377,320 337498 290041 39,622 37.381 33,022 1050 11.08 11.04
Other interest-earning assets 15,456 9,745 7,740 1,607 1,027 753 1040 10.54 9.73
Yotal interest-earning assels 834,068 741114 658,434  $66954 365,253 $55,317 8.03 8.80 8.40
Noni-interest eaming assets’™ 149,171 135538 118641
Total assets $983239 4876652 8777075

(1) The taxable equivalent adjusiment i bassd o the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate of 35%

() Interestales and amoeunts include the effects of sk maragament aeliviios assoui vith the 1espoctive asset anid ahiity categories. Seo Note 24 fo he Consdidaled Finarcial Stalements
{31 Monthiy o quarterly averages have been used by cortain subsickaries, where dally averages are unavaiable.

(41 Average rates reflect provailing Toval intetest rates inchuding inflationary offects and monietary comection in certain count fes.

(&) The talt value carrying amounts of derivative anci foreign exchange cuntiacts ae weported in Bon-interest eaining assets and other non-interest bearing labitities.

6 Interest exponse o rading aceoun! sabiities of Satomon Smith Bainey istepottedas a raduction of interest tevenue.

(71 includes cash-basis loars.

116
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AVERAGE BALANCES AND INTEREST RATES, TAXABLE EQUIVALENT BASIS O

Average velume Interest expense o Average rate

i milions of Goltars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1899
Liabilities
Deposits
In U.S. offices

Savings depositst? $ 68,427 $ 36252 § 33422 $1676 51206 § 928 245 3.33 2.78

Other time deposits 20,391 16,050 12,105 461 712 301 226 4.44 249
in offices outside the US.H 200542 196368 160,138 9,008 11,172 9,519 434 569 562
Total 298360 248670 214665 11,236 13,090 10,748 3 5.26 501
Federal funds purchased and securities foaned

or sold under agreements to repurchase
In U.S. offices 118928 108,655 79,669 7673 9,515 6,172 6.45 892 7.75
In offices outside the US.+* 36,878 27 435 30,326 2,892 2,351 1,778 784 8.57 5.86
Total 155,806 134,000 109,995 10,565 11,866 7,950 6.78 8.85 7.23
Brokerage payables
In US. offices 22632 18.275 11,802 236 282 219 1.04 1.54 1.85
In offices outside the U.S# 1,851 1,926 1,675 12 25 3 0.65 1.30 0.18
Total 24,483 20,201 13,527 248 307 222 1.01 152 1.64
Trading account liabilities
nU.S. offices 2354 20,711 28,400 37 39 54 0.16 0.19 0.19
in offices outside the U.S:* 24,7713 22,696 21,150 12 17 3 0.05 0.07 0.15
Total 48317 43407 49,559 49 56 85 0.10 013 017
Investment banking and brokerage borrowings
nUS. offices 13,651 16,970 11,656 669 1,188 663 4.90 700 5.69
in offices outside the US.* 679 539 533 " 58 86 10.46 10.76 14.50
Total 14,330 17,509 12,249 740 1,246 749 5.16 712 6.11
Short-term borrowings
inU.S. offices 33,965 42482 35318 1,359 2,131 1,631 4.00 502 4,62
In offices outside the US4 10,066 8,803 9,539 944 1223 1,343 9.38 13.88 14.08
Total 44,031 51201 44 857 2,303 3354 2074 523 654 663
Long-term debt
InU.S. offices 114,372 84,668 79,392 5,827 5679 4,802 5.09 6.71 6.05
In offices outside the U.S.* 10,029 10,402 9,548 572 662 776 5.70 6.36 813
Total 124,401 95,060 88,040 6,399 6,341 5,578 514 6.67 8.27
Mandatorily redeemable securities of

subsidiary trusts 5,563 4920 4,920 425 378 368 164 /.68 /.48
Demand deposits in U.S. offices 8203 3,008 10,761
Other nan-interest bearing labilities™ 186,870 189977 173852
Total stockholders’ equity 72,785 61529 53750
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $083239 9876652 S$777.075 $31965 $36638  $28,674
Net interest revenue as a percentage of

average interest-eaming assets
nU.S. offices® §520,774 $471277 $407,304 $22400 $17578  $16543 423 373 406
in offices outside the US.® 304294 269837 251130 12,589 11,037 10,100 414 409 402
Total $834,068 $741,114 36058434 $34980 286815  $26,643 419 3.86 405

{1y The taxable equivalent acjustimer { is based on the U.S. Federal statutory tax rale of 35%.

) Imerest rates and amounts include the effects of risk managernent activities associated with he respoctive asset and lability categorios. See Note 25 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) Monthiy or quarterly averages have heen tised by certain subsidiarles, where daily averages are unavaiable

(41 Average rates reflect provaliing tocal intarest ratos including inflationiary effects and monetary correctlon in certain counkles.

(5) The fair value carrying amounts of derivative and foreign exchange contracts are veparted in non-interest eaming assets and other 1o interest hearing fiabiltties.

{6) Interest expense on nading account fabilities of Salomon Smith Bainey is teportod as a reduction of interest reventie.

{F) Savings deposits consist of nstyed Mooy Market fate ancounts, NOW accounts, and other savings depasits.

) Weludes altocations for capital and funding costs based on the location of the asset.
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ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST REVENUE

2001 vs, 2000 2000 vs, 1999
Increase (decrease) Inorease {donroasch
due to change in; due to change i
Average Average Net Aveiage Average Net

Iz imillions of doltars o & taxable squivalent hasis ™ volume rate change” volume rate change
Cash and due from banks s ® §$ (B § 13 $ 1 $ 6 $ 17
Deposits at interest with banks 404 (365) 39 7 163 234
Eederal funds sold and securities borrowed or purchased under agreements fo resell
InUS$. offices 619 {2,191) (1,672) 1,134 1,400 2,534
In offices outside the U.S. 195 {214) {19) (100 368 263
Total 814 {2,408) {1,581) 1,034 1,768 2,802
Brokerage receivables
InU.S. offices (T% 861) (938) 719 204 923
In offices outside the U.S & (6 (48) {115) 5] 140 132
Total (144) {909) {1,063) 711 344 1,055
Trading account assets'®
inUS. offices 815 (311) 504 236 700 936
In offices cutside the U.S. @ 27 420 447 134 157 351
Totat 842 109 951 430 857 1,287
Investments
InU S, offices 434 {275) 159 458 188 646
in offices outside the U.S.% 622 {234} 388 134 872) (738)
Total 1,056 (509) 547 502 {684) (92)
Loans — consumer
in.S. offices 1,976 (420) 1,666 2,447 29 2,476
In offices cutside the U.S 586 (107} 479 803 7% 724
Totat 2,562 (527) 2,635 3,250 (50) 3.200
Loans — commercial
InUS. offices 490 {169) 321 430 (121 318
in offices outside the U.S. 1,004 {1,209) (115) 606 235 841
Total 1,584 {1,378) 206 1,045 114 1,159
Total loans 4,146 {1,908) 2,241 4,295 64 4,359
Other interest-earning assets 594 (14) 580 207 67 274
Total interest revenue 7,704 {6,003} 1,701 7.351 2,585 9,936
Deposits
InU.S. offices 1,031 {812) 219 202 487 689
In offices outside the U.S,™ 710 {2,783) (2,073) 1,548 105 1,683
Total 1,741 {3,595) {1,854) 1,750 592 2,342
Federal funds purchased and securities woaned or sold under agreements to repurchase
InUS. offices 1,006 (2,848) (1,842) 2,310 1,033 3,343
In offices cutside the U.S.= 754 {213) b4t {183 756 573
Total 1,760 {3,061) {1,301) 2,127 1,789 3916
Brokerage payables
InU.S. offices 58 (104) {46) 103 {40 63
In offices outside the U.5.% (1} {12) {13) 1 21 22
Total 57 {116) (59) 104 (19 85
Trading account liabilities ©
InUS. offices 5 {n 2) (15} — (15
In offices outside the U.S.% 1 {8) (8) 3 an (14
Total 6 {13) (] {12) (17) 29}
Investment banking and brokerage barrowings
InU.S. offices (205} {314) (519) 348 177 525
I offices outside the U8 15 {2) 13 N 21 28}
Totat {190} (316) (506) 341 156 497
Short-term borrowings
inU.S. offices (384) {388) (772) 351 149 500
in offices outside the U.S 157 (436} (278) (102) 18) {120}
Total (227) (824) {1,051) 249 131 380
Long-term deht
inUS. offices 1,709 {1,561} 148 332 545 877
n offices outside the U.S. (23) (67) (90) 65 {179} 114}
Total 1,686 {1,628) 58 397 366 763
Mandatorily redeemable securities of subsidiary trusts 49 {2) 47 - 10 10
Total interest expense 4,882 (9,565) (4,673) 4,956 3,008 7,964
Net interest revenue $2,822 $ 3,552 $6374 $2,305 $ (423 $1.972

{1} The taxable squivalent adjustment is based on the U.S. Federal statitory tax rate of 35%.

(1 Rate/vdlume variance s alfocated based o the percentage efationship of changes In volume and changes in rate to the total nel change.

(3} Changes in avetage rates reflect changes in provaling tocal inferest rates including inflationary affents and monetary carrection in certain eountries.
4} Interest oxpense on tading account ¥abilitios of Satormon Smith Barney is reported as a reduction of intorest reverue.
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RATIOS LOANS OUTSTANDING
2001 2000 1099 bn itions of doflars af yoar ot 2001 2000 1999 1988 1997
Net income to average assels 1.44% 1.54% 1.45%  Consumer loans
Return on common stockholders’ equity™ 19.72% 22.43% 2147%  InUS offices
Return on total stockhoiders” equity 19.41% 2197% 20.92% Mottgage and real estate § 80,009 $ 73,166 $ 59,376 $ 51381 § 46,465
Total average equity to average assets 7.40% 7.02% 8.92% instaltment, revolving
Dividends declared per conunon credit, and other 84,367 78017 63374 60564 57,340
share as a percentage of income per
comman share, assuming dilution 214% 19.8% 18.7% 164488 151183 122750 111945 103.805
) i, ] o N In offices outside the U.S.
43 l:{:m K(;l(\ kge;t 123{::;0 tess total profoniad stock cvidends as a parcentage of R/NAGE CNMOR Mortgage and real estate 27703 24988 24, 808 21578 19,140
1 Based on fiet ineama less profattod stock dividonds as a picentage of average lotal Instaliment, revolving
stockholdars’ oy, credit, and other 54276 55515 50,293 42375 34,989
Lease financing 391 427 475 484 544
FOREGONE INTEREST REVENUE ON LOANS © 82370 80080 75576 64437 54673
InUS. ¥ .S, 2001
I rtions of dediars offices n"?ﬁwes total 246,836 232113 198326 176,382 158,478
Unearned income 2870 (3234 @157 (377 {3,432
Interest revenue that would have been
acciued at otiginal contractual ratest $358 3516 $874 Consumer loans —net 244,159 228879 194069 173,005 155,046
Amount recognized as interest revenuet® 103 164 267 Commercial loans
Foregone interest revenue $255 $352 $607 inUS offices
Commercial and industrial 32,431 37,220 30,163 26,182 23,597
(11 Redates to commercial cash-bais and renegotiated loans and consumer Inans on which aceral of Leass financing 18518 14864 10 281 0477 8.690
interest had been suspended. N 40 ' T
) Interost sevenue in offices oulside the 14, may reflect prevaifing local intes st rates, including the Mortgage and real estate 2,784 3,490 5438 3000 7,666
effents of inflalion and monetary carection in certain courtiies.
53,733 55574 45883 44859 39,953
LOAN MATURITIES AND SENSITIVITY TO CHANGES IN In offices cutside the US.
INTEREST RATES Commercial and industrial 76,458 69,111 61,984 56,761 48,284
li)nm l.'m;r'i 1 Mortgage and real estate 2,859 1,720 1728 1,792 1,661
within 1 but within Over ] i
o Loans to financial
2 ffons of doflars al yeai-e 8 Total
I rilfions of dottars al year-end year Syears years of nstitutions 10,163 9.550 7602 8,008 6.480
Maturities of the gross commercial Lease financing 3,788 3,689 2459 1,760 1439
loan portfolio fovernments and official
inU.S. offices institutions 4,033 1,952 3,250 2132 2,376
Commercial and industrial loans $ 7734 318666 $6032 $ 3243 N
Mortgage and real estate 925 1353 506 2,784 97302 86031 77113 70458 60.230
Leage financing 3192 12173 3,153 18518 151,085 141605 122996 115112 100,183
n offices outside the U.S. 60073 28517 8712 91,3 Unearned income (3261) (3462 (2664) (2430 (2,186)
Total commercial loan portfolio $71024 $60,708 $18403 $151,035 Commercialloans—net 147,774 138,143 120,332 112673 97897
Sensitivity of loans due afier one Total loans—net of
year to changes In interest rates™ uneamed income 391,933 367,022 314901 285678 253,043
Loans at predetermined interest rates $28602 $ 8110 Allowance for credit
Loans at fioating or adjustable losses (10,088) (8,961 (8,833 {8,596) 18.087)
i 1 10,203
interest rates 32,106 0, Total loans—net of
Total $60,708 518,403 uneamed income
and allowance for
{1} Baged on contractual ferms, Repticing characteristics may effectively be modified om time fo time credit losses $381,845 $358,061 $306.048 $277.082 $244,956

Nsing} desivative roetracts. See Notes 23 and 75 to the Consolidated Firancial Statements
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CASH-BASIS, RENEGOTIATED, AND PAST DUE LOANS

DETAILS OF CREDIT LOSS EXPERIENCE

i s of dofis at gor end 2001 2000 1990 1998 1997 I o of dolfars 2001 2000 1099 1998 1997
Commercial Allowance for credit losses
cash-hasis loans at heginning of year $8061 98853 98596  $8.087 $7.306
Collateral dependent Provision for credH losses
(atlower of cost or Consumer 5316 42345 4160 3753 3523
collateral value) ™ $609 5300 $473 $ 585 & 398 Commercial 1,484 994 591 508 79
Othert: 3342 1,580 1,162 1,201 806
, " . : . 8,800 5339 4760 4281 3,595
Tota ,041 1,970 1635 $1,756 1,204
5 Gross credit losses
Commercial Gonsumer’
cash-basis loans in U.S. offices 4,185 3413 3063 3057 3011
MU offices $1315 § 700 § 476 S 614 $ 432 tgooﬁlces z;;ts&de the US. 2,048 1,039 1,789 1,235 989
inoffces outside the US> 2,726 1270 1150 1,142 a7 mmeclal
Mortgage and real estate
Total $4041 31970 $1635 §! 756 $1.204 inU.S. offices 13 10 59 40 33
In cffices outside the U.S. 3 22 11 58 4/
Commercial Governments and official
renegotiated loans institutions outside the US —_ - — 3 -
InU.S. offices $ 651 §$ 634 § 609 3 532 $ 560 Loans fo financial institutions
In offices outside the U.S. 130 151 %8 9% 77 InU.5 offices 10 - - -
In offices outside the US - - 1 97 7
Total $681 $ 785 S 607 $ 628 & 6 Commercial and industrial
" in 4 S. offices 1,378 563 186 125 70
Consumer loans on which In otfices outside the U.S 651 311 419 348 112
accrual of interest had
been suspended 8288 6258 5608 4983 4,269
In U.S. offices $2501 $1797 $16% 81751 $1.679 Credit recoveries
in offices outside the US." 1,733 1,607 1821 1,664 1,063 Consumer:’
InUS. offices 435 526 413 427 450
Total $4238 83404 83517 83415 2742y gffices outside the US. a8 403 36 287 264
Accruing loans 90 or more &‘;‘:{'5::;";!’ ;eal st
1 days delinquent " ‘ nUS. offices 1 9 3% 89 50
n US. offices $1822 $1247 § 874 § 833 $ 87 in off .
X ) , n offices outside the U.S. 1 i 2 10 7
in offices outside the U.8.5 776 385 452 532 467 Governments and official
Total $2508 51632 $1326 51,365 S %8 institutions outside the US. — 1 — 10 36
" Loans to financiat institutions
i1 A cash-basis loan is defined a5 colateral dependent when repayment is expestad to e provided soisly in cffices outside the U.S. 9 2 5 16 17
by the underying collateral and there are no other available andreliable soces of repayment, in which Commercial and industrial
case the loans A @ vritien down 1o the lowes of enst on cottateral value :
. A6 vl ) ‘ inU.S. offices 262 45 19 36 72
2} The December 31, 2061 balance udes Banamex loan data. y .
) St;)st;nﬁaﬂy alt consur’mx loen‘\‘sbn)'(n:michb?};f)?u mill)i(on, {36& willion, $374 milion, $267 mitien, and In cffices outside the US. 134 70 a4 30 55
5240 mflion a1 & govesnment -guaranteed student loans at December 31, 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, and
1997, espectively. 1,260 1,064 925 905 951
Net credit losses
OTHER REAL ESTATE OWNED AND OTHER inUS. offices 4888 3406 2840 2670 2,542
REPOSSESSED ASSETS in offices outside the US. 2,140 1,788 1,843 1,388 76
I iilions of doffars &l year-end 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 7,028 5,194 4,683 4,068 3.318
Other real estate owned Other —net 1,355 (37 180 306 504
Consumer $393 $306 $332 3358  § 366 Aliowance for credit losses
Commercial™ 220 291 511 514 716 atend of year $10,088 98,061 $88563 $8506  $8.087
Corporate/Other 8 8 14 g 8
Net consumer credit losses $5,380 54423 34003 83578 $3,286
Total other real s a percentage of average
estate owned $621 9665  $867  $880  §1080 consume loans 232% 2.11% 224% 223% 219%
Other repossessed assets . $439 $292 3256 $135 & 126 Net commercial credit losses  $1,648  § 771 $ 50 $ 480 §& 32
As a percentage of average
(1} Reprosonts repossossod rea estate, caticd at lowor of costor fair value, loss costs {0 ocll. commercial loans 1.13% 0.60% 051% 0.45% 0.04%

2) Primatily comnercial eatsportation equipment and manufaciured housing, cairied st fower of cost ot
fair velue, less costs to sell
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(1) Consumeat creditiosses and recoveries primarly refate to revebing oredit and installment loans.

2 Inchudas amotints raceived under credit defauit swaps purchased trom thitd parties.

(3 2001 primarly inchudos the addition of
Banarnex and FAR. Alse inciudes the addition of allo
and the impact of foreign cumency trandlation effects. 1996 eficts

of e odit loss 1eserves tefated to the acqulsit

was restored to the allowance for sredit

securilization tansactions wheie e

fiows rom the socurilized eceivables,
guaranioes was reclas sifiad to other Habilitles, &
exchange contracts was rectassified as 2 deduction fFom lrading account a

expusNe

fosses that had previeusly

$50 mition allibutabie to standby |
+ 850 million attibutable to derivative and foreign

allowante for credit losses 1olatod to the acguisifions of

wance for credit losses related to other acquisitions
he addiion of $320 million

o0 of the Universal Card portiofio. In 1037, $373 million

been attributed to credit card
to credi usses was contiactually Brited to the cush

tiors of crodil und

5518,
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AVERAGE DEPOSIT LIABILITIES IN OFFICES OUTSIDE THE U.S.1"

2001 2000 1999

Average Average Auetage Average Avarage Average

1 millins of doffars at year-ond balance interest rate halance  interest rate halance  inteyestrale
Barksh: $ 24,039 6.3%% $ 32,063 6.78% $ 21.993 7.10%

Other demand deposits 58,885 2.74 44 486 3.64 38,798 3.14

Other time and savings depositst? 141,392 43 132,325 557 119.581 5.64

Total $224,316 414 $208.874 535 $180372 528

113 Wtesest rates and amuunts include the effects of lisk management activities, and also
(©) Primarily consists of time cerfificates of deposit and other time doposits in denominati

MATURITY PROFILE OF TIME DEPOSITS ($100,000 OR

MORE) IN U.S. OFFICES

roflect the impaet of the local interest rates prevading in cestain countries. See Nole 23 to the Cunsclidated Hnancial Statements.
ons of $100,000 o more.

In erlfons of doliars Under 3 Over3t08  Over8to12 Over 12
at year-end 20011 months months months months
Certificates of deposit 34,480 $793 $829 $1.798
Other time deposits 535 191 115 6,748
SHORT-TERM AND OTHER BORROWINGS®
Federal funds purchased
and securities sold under Investment banking and
agreements to repurchase Commerclal paper Dther funds borrowed </ brokerage borrowings
i miions of dolfars 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1099 2001 2000 1993 2001 2000 1999
Amounts outstanding
atyear-end $153511 $110625 § 92501 $12,696 $38,152 $31018 $11,766 $13523 $13321 $14,804 $18,227 $13719
Average outstanding
during the year 155806 134090 100995 30524 37837 32760 13507 13,454 12088 14330 17509 12249
Maximum month end
outstanding 172,763 154,543 129,112 35,825 43,037 38,018 16,331 15,478 17,666 18,840 21,701 14,048
Weighted-average interest rate
During the yeart 6.78% 8.85% 7.23% 358% 5.02% 4.75% 895% 10.82% 11.72% 5.16% 7.12% 6.11%
At year-end“ 2.49% 5.78% 4.34% 1.98% 5.36% 5.69% 3.44% 8.76% 7.94% 2.03% 6.55% 6.00%

(1) Original rmatuities of fess than ore yeat

() Rates reflect the impact of local interest rates prevaing in counliies oulside the United Stales.
3} Interest rates includs the affents of risk management aclivities. See Notes 12 and 23 to the Consalidated Financial Statenents.

(4) Basod on contractal rates al year -end.
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Property-Casualty Insurance Services-Other Information

Selected Product Information

The following table sets forth by product fine net writlen premiums
(including Associates) for Commercial Lines and Personal Lines for the year
ended 2001. Many National Accounts Customers demand services, other than
pure risk coverage, pri marily for workers’ compensation and to 4 lesser extent
general tiability and commercial automobile exposures. These types of
services include risk management services such as claims management, loss
control and risk managenent information Servicss, and are gencrally offered
in connection with 4 large deductible or self-insured programs. These services
generate fee income rather than net written premiures, and are not retlected
in the following table.

2001 Net Written Premiums

Amount of Percentage of
net written total net written
In miicns of doflars premiums premiums

Product Line
Commercial Lines

Commercial muiti-peri $1,793 286%
Workers  compensation 1,033 165
Commercial automobie 1,133 18.0
Property 905 144
General liability 506 8.1
Fidetity and surely 907 144
Total Commercial Lines $8,277 100.0%
Personal Lines
Automohile §2.642 63.4%
Homeowners and other 1524 366
Total Personal Lines $4,166 100.0%

Property and Casualty Reserves

Property and casualty claim reserves are cstablished to account for the
estimated ultimate costs of claims and claim adjustment expenses for claims
{hat have been reported but not yet sitled and claims that have been incurred
but not reported. The Company establishes reserves by major product lin,
coverage and year.

The table on page 123 sets forth the vear-end reserves from 1991 through
2001, and the subsequent changes in those reserves, presented on a historical
basis for the Company. The original estimates, curnulative amounts paid, and
reestimated reserves in the table for the years 1991-1995 have not been
restated to include the property-casualty insurance businesses acquired by the
Company from Aetna Services, Inc. in 1996 (Aetna P&C) Beginning in 1996,
the tablke includes the reserve activity of Aetna P&, The data in the table is
presented in accordance with reporting requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Gare must be taken to avoid misinterpretation by
thase unfamiliar with this information ot familiar with other data commonly
reported by the insurance industry. The following data s not accident year
data, but rather a display of 1991-2001 year-end reserves and the subsequent
changes in those reserves. For instance. the “cumulative deficiency or
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redundancy" shown in the table for each year represents the aggregate
amount by which original esamates of reserves 25 of that yearend have
changed in subsequent years. Accordingly, the cumulative deficiency fora
vear relates only to reserves at that year-end and those amouats are not
additive. Expressed another way, if the original reserves at the end of 1991
included $4 million for aloss that is finally paidin 2001 for $5 million, the
$1 million deficiency (the excess of the actual payment of $5 million over the
original estimate of $4 million) would be included in the cumulative
deficiencies in each of the years 1991- 2000 shown in the table.

various factors may distort the reestimated reserves and cumulative
deficiency or redundancy shown in the table. For example, 4 substantial
portion of the cumulative deficiencies shown in the table arise from claims on
policies written prior L the mid-1970s nvolving liability exposures such as
environmental, asbestos, and other cumulative injury clains. In the post-
1984 period, the Company developed more stringent underwriting standards
and policy exclusions and s gnificantly contracted or terminated the writing
of these risks. See ~“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of ()perationstmimnmental Claims, Ashestos Claims
and Litigation, Uncertainty Regarding Adequacy of Environmental and
Ashestos Reserves and Cumulative Injury Other than Ashestos Claims.”
General conditions and trends that have affected the development of these
Jigbilities in the past will not necessaily recur in the futute.

Other factors that aftect the data in the gable include the discounting of
workers' compensation reserves and the use of retrospectively rated insurance
policies. To the extent permi tied under applicable accounting practices,
workers’ compensation feserves are discounted to reflect the time value of
money, due to the refatively long time period over which these clains are
to be paid. Apparent deficiencies will continue to occur as the discount on
these workers’ compensation reserves is accreted at the appropriate interest
rates. Also, a portion of National Accounts husiness is underwritten with
fetrospectively rated insurance policies in which the wltimate loss experience
is primarily borne by the insured. For this business, increascs in loss
experience result in an increase in reserves, and an offsetting increase in
amounts recoverable from insureds. Likewise, decreases in loss experience
resultin a decrease in reserves, and an offsetting decrease in amounts
regoverable from these insureds. The amounts recoverable on these
retrospectively rated policies mitigate the impact of the cumulative
deficiencies or redundancies but are not reflected in the table.

Because of these and other factors, itis difficult o develop 2 meaningful
extrapolation of est mated future redundancies or deficiencies in loss
reserves from the data in the table. The differences between the reserves
for claims and claim adjustment expenses shown in the tahle, which is
prepared in accordance with GAAP, and those reported in the annual
staienents of the Company's subsidiaries filed with state insurance
departments, which are prepared in accordance with statutory accounting
practices, were: { $17) million, $9 million and $38 million, for the years 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively.
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The table helow reflects Associates for all periods due to the acquisition being accounted for as

a pooling of interest:

Year ended December 31,

1 avifions of tftars 19917 1992 19930 1004 1996 199662 1097 10684 19092 20007 2001
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment

oxpenseorluh\allyest‘unatod $ 0421 $9884 $10200 310271 $10124  $21.839 $21426 $21,152  $20.367 319922  $20,191
Cumulative amounts paid as of
One year iafer 2,144 2215 1,907 1,861 1,529 3,714 4,033 431 4,281 4,606
Two years later 3593 3,563 3,228 2,897 2817 6610 6,890 7137 9,948
Three years later 4,603 4571 3,996 4,064 3011 8,861 8,858 9,308
Four years iater 5,384 5170 4,950 4,942 4,769 10,365 10,488
Five years latet 5,860 5973 5,662 5,655 5330 11,659
Six years latet 6,556 6,587 6,270 6,122 5,850
Seven years later 7,099 7127 6,678 8,591
Eight years later 7,591 7.492 7107
Nine years later 7928 7892
Ten years later 8,301
Reserves reestimated as of
One year later 9,457 10023 10,162 9,054 9860 21366 21004 20868 20,163 19924
Tejo years later 9765 10,125 10427 9,778 9797 21174 20708 20557 20062
Three years later 10050 10,155 10,002 0,864 6800 20828 20428 20,365
Four yeass later 10,166 10,161 10,166 9,896 9,746 20,677 20179
Five years later 10963 10,378 10193 9,932 g722 20440
Six years later 10,507 10,413 10,244 9,910 9,672
Seven years later 10536 10481 10.266 9914
Eight years later 10,617 10,528 10,270
Nine years later 10,677 10,542
Ten years later 10,708
Cumutlative deficlency (redundancy) $1287 & 6% & & $ (357) $ (452 $(1,399) 31247 $ (780 B (305) $ 2
Gross liability—end of year 313822 $13834 $14740 $29002 $20.367 $20.13¢ 408776 $28.327 $29,792
Reinsurance recoverables 3,617 3,623 4616 8,153 7,941 7,987 8,409 8,405 9601
Net liability —end of year $10,205 $10271 810124 $21839 $21426 $21.162 $20.367 $19.922  $20,191
Gross reestimated liability —latest 313036 313820 $14136 328424 $27.876 $28.354 $28.417 528525
Reestimated reinsurance

recoverables — latest 3666 3,906 4464 7,084 7697 7.989 8,365 8,601
Net reestimated liability —latest $10270 $ 9914 $ 0672 $20,440 $20,179 $20,365 $20062 $19.924
Gross cumulative deficiency

(redundancy) $ 114§ (74 S (604 301568 $(.491) 5 785 $ (353 § 198

(1) Refiocts reserves of Travelets P&, exciuding Aetna FRC 1eseives which were acquited on Apii 2, 1996, Aceo

1etdes vy lo fasses 1o

youd, 4y otigitally extiinated, less net reserves feestimated oS of subsequernt yodts)

(21 Inchides Actna PEC (oSS 1osenves of $16.775 bitlion and net reserves of §11.752 billten acruited on Apdl 2,

123

wdingly, the reserve cevedopimient (
dedt by Travelers PRC aid does nol el
1996 and stbseauent development yecortied by Aetria PG

el reserves fos loss and loss adjustment expense 1ecol dext at the end of the
e Teserve devalopment tecorded by Avltia P&C.
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Property and Casualty Reinsurance
TPC, reinsures 2 portion of the risks it underwrites in order to control its
exposure to losses, stabilize eamings, and protect capital resources. TPG
cedes to reinsurers a portion of these risks and pays premiums based upon
the risk and exposure of the policies subject to this reinsurance, Reinsurance
involves credit risk and is generally subject to aggregate toss limits.
Although the reinsurer is liable to TPC to the extent of the reinsurance
ceded, TPC remains liahle as the direct insurer on all risks reinsured. TPC
also holds collateral, including escrow funds and letters of credit, under
cortain reinsurance agreements. TPC monitors the financial condition of
reinsurers on an ongoing hasis, and reviews its reinsurance arrangements
periodically. Reinsurers are selected hased on their financial condition,
husiness practices, and the price of their product offerings. For additional
information concerning reinsurance, see Note 14 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

TP, utilizes 4 variety of reinsurance agreements to control its exposure to
{arge property and casualty losses.

Net retention policy. The descriptions below relate to reinsurance
arrangements of TPC in effect after january 1, 2002. For third-party lighility,
inciuding automobile no-fault, the reinsurance agreements used by
Commercial Accounts limit the net refention to 2 maximum of $8.2 million
per insured, per occurrence and those used by Select Accounts limits the net
retention to a maximun of $6.4 million per insured, per occurrence.
National Accounts utilizes reinsurance to limit net retained policy limits on
third-party coverages to $6.0 milkion. Gulf utilizes various reinsurance
mechanisms and has limited its net retention to a maximun of $5.5 million
per risk for any line of business. For commercial property insurance, thereisa
$7.5 million masimum retention per risk with 100% reinsurance coverage for
risks with higher limits. The reinsurance agreement in place for workers'
conmpensation policies writien by Commercial Accounts, National Accounts,
Select Accounts, and sorme segments of the residual market business within
National Accounts and Gulf cover 75% of each loss between §10 million and
$20 rillion. Personal Lines retains the first $5 milfion of umbrella policies
and purchases facultative reinsurance for limits over $5 million. For personal
property insurance, there is 4 $6 million maximum retention per risk. For
executive liahility products such as errors and omissions liability, directors’
and officers’ liahility, employment practices liability and blended insurance
products, Bond generally retains from $2 million up to $5 million per risk.
For surety protection Bond generally retains up to $29.7 mitlion per principal
which may be increased hased on the type of obligation and other credit rigk
factors. Retention policies are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Catastrophe reinsurance. TPC utilizes reinsurance agreements with
nonaffiliated reinsurers o control its exposure to losses resulting from one
occurrence. For the accumulation of net property losses arising out of one
oceurrence, reinsurance agreements cover 67% of total losses between §450
million and $750 million. For multiple workers’ compensation losses arising
from asingle occurrence, reinsurance agreements cover 100% of losses
Between $20 miltion and $250 million and, for workers’ compensation losses
caused by property perils, reinsurance agreements cover 67% of losses between
$450 million and $750 million. Risk and catastrophe coverages are reviewed
at least quarterly and changes made when deemed appropriate.

Regulation and Supervision

Bank holding company regutation. The Company is a bank
holding company within the meaning of the US. Bank Holding Company Adt
of 1956 (BHC Act) registered with, and subject to examination by, the Federal
Reserve Board (FRB). The subsidiary depository institutions of the Company
(the banking subsidiaries), including its principal bank subsidiary, Citibank.
N.A (Citibank), are subject to supervision and examination by their
respective federal and state banking authorities. The nation ally chartered
subsidiary banks, including Citibank, are supervised and examined by the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (DCC); Federal savings association
subsidiaries are regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision (0TS); und state-
chartered depository institutions are supervised by the banking departments
within their respective states (California, New York, Delaware, and Utah), as
well s the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The FDIC also has
back-up enforcement authority with respect to each of the hanking
subsidiaries, the deposits of which are insured by the FDIC, up to applicable
limits. The Company also controls (either directly or indirectly) overseas
banks, branches, and agencies. tn general, the Company’s overseas activities
are regulated by the FRB and 0CC, and are also regulated by supervisory
authorities of the host countries.

The Company’s banking subsidiaries are also subject to requirements and
restrictions under federal, state, and foreign taw, including requirements to
maintain reserves against deposits, restrictions on the types and amounts of
loans that may be made and the interest that may be charged thereon, and
limitations on the types of investments that may be made and the types of
services that may be offered. Various consumer laws and regulations also
affect the operations of the Company’s banking subsidiaries.

The activities of U S. bank holding companies are generally limited to the
husiness of hanking, managing or controlling banks, and other activities
that the FRB determines to be so closely related to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. In addition, under the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (the GLB Act), which became effective in most
significant respects on March 11, 2000, bank holding companics, such
as the Company, all of whose controlled depository institutions are “well
capitalized” and “well managed,” us defined in Federal Reserve Regulation ¥,
and which obtain satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act ratings, have the
ahility to declare themselves to be “financial holding companies™ and engage
in a broader spectrum of activities, including insurance underwriting and
brokerage (including annuities), and underwriting and dealing securitics.
'The Company’s declaration to become a financial holding company hecame
effective on the first eligible date, and as  result, it is permitted to continue to
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operale its insurance businesses as currently structured and, if it so
determines, to expand those businesses. Financial holding companies that do
not continue to meet all of the requirements for such status will, depending
on which requirement they fail to meet, face not being able to undertake new
activities or acquisitions that are financial in nature, ot losing their ability to
continue those activities that are not generally permissible for bank holding
companies. Under the BHC Act, after two years from the date as of which the
Company became 4 bank holding company, the Company was required to
conform any activities that were not considered to be closely related to
banking or financial in nature under the BHC Act. This two-year period may
be extended hy the FRB for three additional one-year periods, upon
application by the Company and finding by the FRB that such an extension
would not be detrimental to the public interest. The Compuny obtained

such an extension with respect to several activities in October 2000 and
October 2001.

Under the GLB Act, financial holding companies are able to make
acquisitions in companies that engage in activities that are financial in
nature, hoth in the U.S. and outside of the United States. No prior approval of
the FRB is generally required for such acquisitions except for the acquisition
of U8, depository institutions and foreign banks. In addition, under merchant
banking authority added by the GLB Act, financial helding companies ase
authorized to invest in conipanies that engage in activities that are not
financial in nature, 45 long a5 the financial holding company makes its
investment with the intention of limiting the investment in duration, does not
manage the company on 4 day-to-day basis, and the investee company does
not cross-market with any of the financial holding company’'s controlled
depository institutions. This authority applies to investments both in the 1.8,
and outside the United States. Regulations interpreting and conditioning this
authority have been promulgated. Bank holding companies also retain their
authority, subject to prior specific or general FRB consent, to acquire fess than
20% of the voting securities of a company that does not do business in the
United States, and 20% or more of the voting securitics of any such company
if the FRB finds by regulation or order that its activities are usual in
connection with banking or finance outside the United States. In general,
bank holding companies that are not financial holding companies may
engage in abroader range of activities outside the United States than they
may engage in inside the United States, including sponsoring, distributing,
4nd advising open-end mutual funds, and underwriting and dealing in debt,
and to a limited extent, equity securities, subject to local country Laws.

Subject to certain limitations and restrictions, 4 US. bank holding
company, with the prior approval of the FRB, may aoquire an out-of-state
bank. Banks in states that do not prohibit out-of-state mergers may nerge
with the approval of the appropriate Federal bank regulatory agency. A
national or state bank may establish a de novo branch out of state if such
branching is expressly permitted by the other state. A Federal savings
association is generally permitted to open 4 de novo branch in any state.

Outside the 11.8., subject to certain requirements for prior FRB consent or
notice, the Company may acquire banks and Citibank may establish branches
subject to Jocal kaws and to US. laws prohibiting companies from doing
business in certain countries.

The Conpany’s eamings and activities are affected by legislation, by
actions of its regulaters, and by local legislative and administrative bodies
and decisions of courts in the foreign and domestic jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries conduct business. For example, these indlude
limitations on the ability of certain subsidiaries to pay dividends to their
intermediate holding companies and on the abilities of those holding
companies to pay dividends to the Company (see Note 18 to the Consolidated
Financtal Statements). 1t is the policy of the FRB that bank holding
companies should pay cash dividends on common stock only out of income
available over the past year and only if prospective eamings retention is
consistent with the organization's expected future needs and financial
condition. The policy provides that hank holding companies should not
maintain a level of cash dividends that undermines the bank holding
company's ability to serve as a source of strength to its banking subsidiaries.

Various federal and state statutory provisions limit the amount of
dividends that subsidiary banks and savings associations can pay to their
holding companies without regulatory approval. In addition to these explicit
lirnitations, the Federal regulatory agencies are authorized to prohibit 4
banking subsidiaty or bank helding company from engaging in an unsafe or
unsound banking practice. Depending upon the circumstances, the agencies
could take the position that paying a dividend would constitute an unsafe or
unsound banking practice.

Numerous other federal and state laws also affect the Company’s earnings
and activities including federal and state consumer protection laws.
Legistation may be enacted or regulation imposed in the U.S. orits political
subdivisions, or in any other jurisdiction in which the Corpany does
business, to further regulate banking and financial services or to limit finance
charges or other fees or charges earned in such activities. There can be no
assurance whether any such legislation or regutation will place additional
timitations on the Company’s operations or adversely affect its earnings. The
preceding statement s a forward-looking statement within the meaning of
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking
Staternents” on page 62.

There are various legal restrictions on the extent to which a bank holding
corupany and certain of its nonhank subsidiaries can borrow or otherwise
obtain credit from banking subsidiaries or engage in certain other
transactions with or involving those banking subsidiaries. In general, these
restrictions fequire that any such transactions must be on terms that would
ordinarily be offered to unaffiliated entities and secured by designated
amounts of specified collateral. Transactions between a banking subsidiary
and the holding company or any nonbank subsidiary are limited to 10% of
the banking subsidiary’s capital stock and surplus, and as to the holding
company and all such nonhank subsidiaries in the aggrepate, to 20% of the
bank’s capital stock and surplus.
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The Company’s right to participate in the distribution of assets of any
subsidiary upon the subsidiary's liquidation or reorganization will be subject
{o the prior claims of the subsidiary's creditors. In the eventof a liquidation or
other resolution of an insured depository institution, the claims of depositors
and other general or subordinated creditors are entitled to a priority of
payment over the claims of holders of any obligation of the institution o its
stockholders, including any depository institution holding company (such as
the Company) ot any stockholder or creditor thereof.

tn the liquidation or other resolution of a failed U S. insured depository
institution, deposits in U.S. offices and certain claims for administrative
expenses and employee compensation are afforded a priority over other
general unsecured claims, including deposits in offices outside the 1S, non-
deposit claims in all offices, and claims of a parent such as the Company.
Such priority creditors would include the FDIC, which succeeds to the position
of insured depositors.

A financial institution insured by the FDIC that is under common contral
with a failed or failing PDIC-insured institution can be required to indemnify
the EDIC for losses resulting from the insolvency of the failed institution,
even if this causes the affiliated institution also to become insolvent. Any
obligations or Liability owed by a subsidiary depository institution to its parent
company is subordinate to the subsidiary’s cross-guarantee liahility with
respect to corunonly controlled insured depository institutions and to the
rights of depositors.

Under FRB policy, a bank holding company is expected to act as asource
of financial strength to each of its banking subsidiaries and commit resources
{o their support. As a result of that policy. the Company may be required to
commit resources to its subsidiary banks in certain circumstances. However,
under the GLB Act, the FRB is not able to compel a bank holding company to
remiove capital from its regulated securities or insurance subsidiaries in order
to commit such resources o its subsidiaty banks.

The Company and its US. insured depository institution subsidiaries are
subject to risk-hased capital and leverage guidelines issued by US. regulators
for banks, savings associations, and bank holding companies. The regulatory
agencies are required by law to take specific prompt actions with respect to
institutions that do not meet minimum capital standards and have defined
five capital tiers, the highest of which is “well-capitalized. " As of December
31,2001, the Company's bank and thrift subsidiaries, including Citibank,
were “well capitatized " See “Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Note 18 o the
Consolidated Financial Statements for capital analysis.

A bank is not required to repay a deposit at abranch outside the LS. if the
hranch cannot repay the deposit due to an act of wag, civil strife, or action
taken by the government in the host country, unless the bank has expressly
agreed to do so in writing,

The GLB Act included the most extensive consumer privacy provisions ever
enacted hy Congeess. These provisions, among other things, require full
disclosure of the Gompany's privacy policy to consumers and mandate
offering the consumer the ability to “opt out” of having non-public customer
information disclosed to third parties. Pursuant to these provisions, the
Federal banking regulators have adopted privacy regulations. In addition, the
states are permitted to adopt more extensive privacy protections through
legislation or regulation. there can be no assurance whether any such
legislation or regulation will place additional limitations on the Company’s
operations or adversely affect its earnings. The preceding statement is 4
forward-looking statement within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act. See “Forward-Looking Statenients™ on page 62.

The earnings of the Company, Citibank, and their subsidiaries and
affiliates are affected by general economic conditions and the conduct of
monetary and fiscal policy by the US. government and by govemments in
other countries in which they do business.

Legislation is from time to time introduced in Congress that may change
hanking statutes and the operating environment of the Company andits
hanking subsidiaries in substantial and unpredictable ways. The Company
cannot determine whether any such proposed legistation will be enacted,
and if enacted, the ultimate effect that any such potential legistation or
implementing regulations would have upon the financial condition or resulls
of operations of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Insurance — State Regulation

The Company's insurance subsidiaries are subject to regulation in the various
states and jurisdictions in which they transact husiness. The regulation,
supervision and administration relate, among other things, to the standards
of solvency that must be met and maintained, the licensing of insurers and
their agents, the lines of insurance in which they may engage, the nature of
and limitations on investments. premium rates, restrictions on the size of
risks that may be insured under a single policy, reserves and provisions for
unearned premiums, losses and other obligations, deposits of securities for the
benefit of policyholders, approval of policy forms and the regulation of
market conduct including the use of credit information in underwriting 4
well as other underwriting and claims practices. In addition, many states
have enacted variations of competitive rate-making haws which allow insurers
to set certain premium rates for certain classes of insurance without having to
obtain the prior approval of the state insurance department. State insurance
departments also conduct periodic examinations of the aftairs of insurance
companies and require the filing of annual and other reports relating o the
financial condition of companies and other maiters.
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Although the Company is not regulated as an insurance company, itis the
awner, through various holding company subsidiaries, of the capital stock of
its insurance subsidiaries and as such is subject to state insurance holding
company statutes, as well as certain o ther Laws, of each of the states of
domicile of its insurance subsidiaries. All holding company statutes, as well as
certain other laws, require disclosure and, in some instances, prior approval
of material transactions between an insurance corapany and an affiliate.

The Company's insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state statutory
and regulatory restrictions in each company'sstate of domicile, which limit
the amount of dividends or distributions by an insurance company toits
stockholders. See Note 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company's property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are also
regusired to participate in various involuntary assigned risk pools, principatly
involving workers’ compensation and automobile insurance, which provide
VATIOUS INSUTANCE COVErages individuals or other entities that othenwise are
unable to purchase such coverage in the voluntary market. Participation in
these pools in most states is generally in proportion to voluntary wiitings of
related lines of business in that state.

Many state insurance regulatory Laws intended primarily for the protection
of policyholders contain provisions that require advance approval by state
agencies of any change in control of an insurance company that is domiciled
(or, in some cases, having such cubstantial business that itis deemed to be
commercially domiciled) in that state. ~Control is generally presumed to
exist through the ownership of 10% or more of the voting securities of 4
domestic insurance company ot of any company that controls a domestic
insurance company. I addition, many state insurance regulatory laws
contain provisions that require prenotification o state agenciesof a change
in control of 2 nondomestic admitted insurance corpany in that state. Such
requirements may deter, delay or prevent certain transactions affecting the
control of or the ownership of the Gompany’s common stock, including
iransactions that could be advantageous to the stockholders of the Company.

Securities Regulation

Certain U.S. and non-U.S. subsidiaries are subject to various securities and
commodities regulations and capital adequacy requirenients promulgated
by the regulatory and exchange authorities of the jurisdictions in which
they operate.

The Company’s registered hroker-dealer subsidiaries are subject to the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s (the SEC) net capital rule, Rule
15¢3-1 (the Net Capital Rule), promulgated under the Exchange Act. The Net
Capital Rule requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined.
The Net Capital Rule also limits the ability of hroker-dealers to transfer large
amonnts of capital to parent companies and other affiliates. Gompliance with
the Net Capital Rule could limit those operations of the Company that require
the intensive use of capital, such as underwriting and trading activities and
the financing of customer account balances, and also could restrict Salomon

Smith Barney Holdings Incs ability to withdraw capital from its beoker-
dealer subsidiaries, which in turn could limit Salomon Smith Bamey
Holdings Inc.'s abillty to pay dividends and make payments on its debt. Sce
Notes 12 and 18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain ofthe
Company's broker-dealer subsidiaries are also subject to regulation in the
countries outside of the U S. in which they do business. Such regulations
include requirements to maintain specified Jevels of net capital or

its equivalent.

The Gompany is the indirect parent of investment advisers registered and
regulated under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 who provide investment
advice to investment companies subject to regulation under the I nvestment
Company Act of 1940. Under these ACSS, advisory contracts between the
Company's investment adviser subsidiaries and these investment companies
(Affiliated Funds) would automatically terminate upon an assignment of
such contracts by the investment adviser. Such an assignment Wo uld be
presumted to have occurred if any party were o acquire more than 25%of the
Company’s voting securities. In that event, consent to the assignment from
the stockholders of the Atfiliated Punds involved would be needed for the
advisory relationship to continue. In addition, subsidiaries of the Company
and the Affitiated Funds ave subject to certain restrictions in their dealings
with each other.

Competition

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to intense competition in
all aspects of their businesses from both bank and non-bank institutions
that provide financial services and, in some of their activities, from
govemnment agencies.

General Business Factors

{n the judgment of the Company, no material part of the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries is dependent upon asingle customer ot group
of customers, the loss of any one of which would have a materially adverse
effecton the Company, 4nd no one customer of group of affiliated customers
accounts for as much as 10% of the Company’s consolidated revenues.

Properties

The Company's executive offices are located at 399 Park Avenue, New York,
New York. 399 Park Avenue is a 39-story building whi chiis owned by Citibank
and is occupied by the Gompany and certain of ifs subsidiaries, including,
the principal offices of Citicorp and Citibank. The Company and certain

of its subsidiaries occupy office space in Gitigroup Center (153 E. 53ed St.,
New York, NY) under a long-term lease. Citibank owns 4 building in Long
Island City, New York and leases a building located at 111 Wall Street in

New York City, which are totally occupied hy the Company and certain of

its subsidiaries.
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The Company's property-casualty insurance subsidiaries lease 168 field
offices throughout the United States. The principal offices of TIC, TLAC, and
TPC, are located in Hartford, Connecticut. The majority of such occupied
spac in [artford is owned by TG TPE also rents space from Aetna Services,
Inc. at GitvPlace, tocated in Hardord, Connecticut.

The Company’s life insurance subsidiaries lease office space at
approximately 15 locations throughout the United States. TIC and/or
‘the Travelers Insurance Group Inc. lease v other buildings in Hartford,
Connecticut, most of which is subleased to third parties. TIC also owns
abuilding in Norcross, Georgia that s occupied by its information
systems department.

Salomon Smth Bamey leases two buildings located at 388 and 390
Greenwich Street in New York City. These leases, which expire in 2008,
include a purchase option with respect o the related properties. The principal
offices of Salomon Smith Barney are Jocated at 388 Greenwich Street,

New York, New York

Associates maintains its principal offices in lrving, Texas, in facilities
which are, in past, owned and, in part, leased by it. Associates has office and
branch sites for its business units throughout the United States, Canada, Asia
(japan, Taiwan, Philippines and Hong Kong), Eutope and Latin America. The
majority of these sites are leased and, although numerous, none s material o
Associates’ operations.

Other offices and certain warehouse space are owned, none of which is
material to the Company’s financial condition or operations.

The Company believes its properties dre adequate and suitable for its
business as presently conducted and are adequately maintained. For
further information concerning leases, see Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Legal Proceedings

1n the ordinary course of business, Citigroup and its subsidiaries are
defendants or co-defendants in various litigation matiers incidentat o and
typical of the businesses in which they are engaged. These include civil
actions, arbitration proceedings and other matters in which the Company’s
broker-dealer subsidiaries have been named, arising in the normat course of
business out of activities as a broker and dealer in securities, as an
undarwriter of securities. as an investment banker or otherwise. These also
include numerous matters in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are
named, arising in the nommal course of their business. In the opinion of the
Company's managerent, the ultimate resolution of these legal proceedings
would not be likely to have a material adverse effect on the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries’ operations, financial condition, or liguidity

Executive Officers
The following information with respect to each executive officer of
Citigroup is set forth below as of March 8, 2002: name, age and the
position held with Gitigroup.

Name Age
Sir Winfried RW. Bischoff 60
Michael A. Camenter 54

Position and office held

Chairman, Citigeoup Europe

Chairman & CEO, Corporate

and Investment Bank and

Salomon Smith Barney

52 Chairman & CEQ, Global lnvestment
Managerent & Private Banking Group:
Chuirman & GEO, Citigroup

Asset Management

Vice Chairrnan; Chairnaan, Internet
Operating Group; Head, Citigroup Mergers
& Acquisitions; Chainman, Cross-Marketing
Group; Chairman, Gitigroup Japan

Thomas W. jones

SirDeryck C. Maughan 54

victor J. Menezes 52 Chairman & CEO, Citibank, NA; Head of
Emerging Markets

Charles 0. Prince 52 Chiet Operating Officer;
Corporate Secretary; Chief Operating
Officer, Emerging Markets

William R Rhodes 66 SeniorViee Chairman,
Citigroup/Citicorp/Citibank, NA.

Robert E. Rubin 63 Director; Member, Office of
the Chairman

Todd 8. Thomson 4 Executive Vice President; Chief Financial
Officer; Head of Global Investiments

Sanford 1. Weill 68 Chairman & CEO

Robert B. Willumstad 56 President; Chairman & CEO,

Global Consumer

Fxcept as described below, each executive officer has been employed in
such position or in other executive or management positions within the
Company for at least five years.

Sir Winfried Bischoff joined Citigroup in April 2000 upon the merger of
J. Henry Scheoder & Co. Led. with Salomon Smith Barney Holdings Inc. and,
From 1995 until that time, he was Chaitman and Group Chief Executive of
1. Henry Schroder & Go. 1td Mr_Jones joined Citigroup in August 1997 and,
prior to that time, he was Vice Chairman, President. Chief Operating Officer,
and adirector of the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association— College
Retirement Equitics Fund. Mr. Rubin joined Citigroup in QOctober 1999 and,
prior to that time, served as Secretary of the Treasury of the U nited States from
1995 to 1999, Mr. Themson joined Citigroup in July 1998 and, prior to
that time, was Senior Vice president, Strategic Planning and Business
Development for GE Capital Services. Previously, Mr. Thomson held
tanagement positions at Barents Group LLC and Bain and Company,
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EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

The following exhibits are either filed herewith or have been previously filed

with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are filed herewith by

incotporation by reference:

o Citigroup's Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended,

e Citigroup's By-Laws,

o Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holdess, Including Indentures,

o Material Contracts, including certain compensatory plans available only
10 officers and/or directors,

o Statements te: Computation of Ratios,

o Subsidiaries of the Registrant,

o Consents of Experts and Counsel,

o Powers of Mtorney of Directors Armstrong, Belda, Bialkin, Ders, Deutch,
Harp Held, Hemdndez Ramirez, jordan, Lipp, Mark, Masin, Mecun,
Parsons, Pearson, Rubin, Thornas, and Zankel.

A more detailed exhibit index has been filed with the SEC. Stockholders
may obtain copies of that index, or any of the documents on that index, by
wiiling to Gitigroup, Gorporaie Governance, 425 Park Avenue, 2nd Floor
New York, New York 10043, or on the Internet at /AW SEC BOV.

Financial Statements filed for Citigroup Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Consolidated Statement of Income

consolidated Statement of Financial Posttion

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

On Decernber 10, 2001, in connection with the August 2000 acquisition of
the outstanding capital stock of AST StockPlan, Inc, the Gompany issued
88,01 shares of its common stock. No underwriters were used and the
recipients of the Company’s comrmon stock wete former stockholders o
option holders of the acquired company. The shares of common stock issued
on December 10, 2001 were issued in reliance upon an exemption from the
registration requircments of the Securities Act of 1933 provided by Rule 506
of Regulation D thereof. The former stockholders and option holders of the
acquired company made certain representations to the Company as to
investment intent and that they possessed & sufficient level of financial
sophistication. The shares issued on December 10, 2001 were subject to
westrictions on transfer absent registration under the Securities Act of 1933,
and no offers to sell the securities were made by any form of general
solicitation or general advertisernent. Subsequently, the Company registered
the 8,013 shares for resale on 4 registration sgaternent on Form $-3 declared
effective by the SEC on January 7, 2002.

On October 18, 2001, the Company filed a Gurrent Report on Form 8K,
dated October 17, 2001, reporting under fem 5 theroof the wsults of its
operations for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, and certain other
selected financial data.

On October 29, 2001, the Company filed a Gurrent Report on Form &-K,
dated October 26, 2001, (a) noting under Item 5 thereof that the Company
had previously changed its operating segments presentation 1o include the
various Associates businesses within the other exising operating segments of
Citigroup, and (b) filing as an exhibit under ltem 7 thercof the restated
Historical Annual Supplement of Gitigroup.
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On December 19, 2001, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K.
dated Decernber 19, 2001, reporting under Ltem 5 thereof the intention of
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Travelers Property Casualty Corp. ("1PCT),
to sell a portion of its equity inan initial public offering and the Company’s
intention to make a tax-free distribution of a portion of its interest in TPC to
the Company’s stockholders,

No other reports on Form 8-K were filed during the 2001 fourth quarter
however, ont January 18, 2002, the Company filed a Gurrent Report en Form
8-K, dated January 17, 2002, reporting under Item 5 thereof the results of its
operations for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2001, and certain
other selected financial data.

On February 22, 2002, the Company filed 4 Current Repott on Form 8K,
dated February 13, 2002, filing asexhibits under Htem 7 thereof the Terms
Agreement, dated February 13, 2002, and the Form of Note relating to the
offer and sale of the Company’s 6.00% Notes due February 21, 2012.

On Mach 7. 2002, the Company filed a Current Reporton form 8-K,
dated Fehruary 27, 2002, filing asexhibits under Item 7 thereof the Terms
Agreement, dated February 27, 2002, and the Form of Note relating to the
offer and sale of the Company’s 5.00% Notes due March 6, 2007,

Securities and Fxchange Commission
Washington, DG 20549
Form 10-K

Annual Report pursuant to Section 13 ot 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2001
Commission File Number 1-9924

Citigroup lnc.

Incorporated in the State of Delaware

1RS Employer Identification Number: 52-1568099
Address: 399 Park Avenue

New York, New York 10043

Telephone: (212) 559-1000

Stockholder information
Citigroup common stock is tisted on the New York Stock Exchange and the
pacific Exchange under the ticker symbol *C.”

Citigroup Preferred Stock Series F G, H, M, Q. and R are also listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Annual Meeting
the annual meeting will be held at 900 a.01. 0n April 16, 2002, at Camegle
Hall, 154 West 57th Street, New York, NY

Transfer Agent
Stockholder address changes and inquiries reganding stock transters, dividend
replacement, 1099-DIV reporting, and lost securities for common and
preferred stocks should be directed to:

Citibank Stockholder Services

P.0. Box 2502

Jersey City, NJ 07303-2502

Telephone No. (201) 536-8057

Toll-free No. (888) 250-3985

Facsimile No. (201} 324-3284

E-mai! address: Citibank@em fenbd.com
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Exchange Agent
Holders of Associates First Capital Corporation, Giticorp of Salomon Inc.
common stock, Citigroup Inc. Preferred Stock Series J, K. 3, T or U, Salomon
inc. Preferred Stock Series £ or Y, or Travelers Group Preferred Stock Series A
ot D should arrange to exchange their certificates by contacting:

(itihank Stockholder Services

p.0), Box 2502

Jersey Gity, NJ 073032502

Telephone No. (201) 536-8057

Toll-free No. (888) 250-3985

Facsimile No. (201) 324-3284

£-mail address: Gitthank@em.fenbd.com

The 2001 Forms 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
for the Company and certain subsidiaries, as well as Annual and Quarterly
reports, are available from Citigroup Document Services toll free at (877)
936-2737 (outside the United States at (718) 765-6514) or by writing to:

(itigroup Document Services

140 58th Street, Suite 5i

Brooklyn, NY 11220

Copies of this annual report and other Gitigroup financial reports can be
viewed or retrieved on the Internet at hitp:/www.Citigroup.cm OF
Retp:/AWWWSEC SOV,

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b)
and (q) of the Act

Alist of Gitigroup securities registered pursuant Section 12(h) and (g) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 s available from Citigroup Corporate
Governance, 425 Park Avenue, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10043 or on the
Internet at http//Awww.sec.gov.

As of February 4, 2002, Citigroup had 5,127.926,371 shares of common
stock outstanding,

As of February 4, 2002, Citigroup had approximately 221,400 common
stockholders of record. This figure docs not represent the actual number of
beneficial owners of common stock because shares are frequently held in
“street name” by securities dealers and others for the benefit of individual
owners who may vote the shares,

Citigroup (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(c) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the
past 90 days.

Disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to tem 405 of Regulation 5-Kis
not contained herein nior in Citigroup’s 2002 Proxy Statement incorporated by
roference in Part 111 of this Form H-K.

The aggregate market value of Citigroup common stock held by non-
affiliates of Citigroup on February 4, 2002 was approximately $227 billion.
Certain information hias been incorporated by reference as described
herein into Part 111 of this annual report from Gitigroup's 2002 Proxy

Staement,

Signatures

pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
ixchange Actof 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to he signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authotized, on the &th day of
March, 2002,

Citigroup inc.
(Registrant)

Todd S. Thomson
Chief Financial Officer

Pursiiant to the requireraents of the Securities pxchange Act of 1934, this
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities indicated on the 8th day of March, 2002.

Citigroup’s Principal Executive Officer.

Sanford I. Weill

Citigroup’s Principal Financial Officer:

Todd S. Thomson

Citigroup’s Principal Accounting Officers:

frwin R. Ettinger william P Hannon

The Ditectors of Citigroup listed below executed a power of attormey
appointing Todd $. Thomson their attorney-in-fact, enpowering him to sign
this report on their behalf.

Reuben Mark
Michael T. Masin
Dudley G. Mecum
Richard . Parsons
Andrall E. Pearson

. Michael Armstrong
Alain].P Belda
Kenneth ], Biatkin
Kenneth T Derr

John M. Deutch

Alfredo Hamp Held Robert E. Rubin
Roberto Herndndez Ramirez Franklin A, Thomas
Ann Dibble Jordan Arthur Zankel

Robert 1. Lipp
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CITIGROUP BOARD OF DIRECTORS

C. Michael Armstrong
Chatrman and

Chief Executive Officer

AT&T Corp

Alain J.P. Belda
Chairman of the Board
and Chiel Executive Officer
Aleoa e

Kenneth }. Bialkin, Esq.

Partner
Skadden, Arps, Shate,
Meagher & Flom LLP

Kenneth T. Derr
Chainman of the Board, Retired
ChevionTexaco Comporation

John M. Deutch
[nstitute Professor
Massachusetts Institute of
Technology

Alfredo Harp Held
Chasrman of the Board
Grupo Financiero Banamex

Roberto Herndndez
Ramirez

Chaieman of the Board
Banco Nacional de Mxice

Ann Dibble Jordan

Consujtant

Robert I. Lipp
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Travelers Property Casualty Corp.

Reuben Mark
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer
Colgate-Palmolive Company
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Michael T. Masin
Vice Chairman and President
Yerizan Compmunications Inc.

Dudley C, Mecum
Managing Director
Capricomn Holdings, LLC

Richard D. Parsons
Co-Chid Operating Officer
AOL Time Warner [ne.

Andrall E. Pearson
Founding Chainnan
TRICON Global Kestauranis, Ine

Robert E. Rubin
Member, Office of the Chaitran
Gitigroup Inc.

Franklin A. Thomas
Former President
The Ford Foundation

Sanford I. Weill
Chairman and

Chid Executive Officer
Citigroup Inc

Arthur Zankel
Managing Member
High Rise Capital Advisors, LLC

HONORARY DIRECTOR

The Honorable
Gerald R. Ford
Former President

of the United States
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